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Leading business indicators

(Consolidated figures in M.€, except where indicated otherwise)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Net total assets 42 956 44 565 42 700 42 629 40 673
Assets under management! 14 425 13 445 13121 15816 17 905
Loans to Customers (gross) and guarantees 31535 30519 29 004 28 474 27 089
Customer deposits 23778 23 800 24 551 26 518 25 637
Total Customer resources® 32818 31 004 31 669 35401 35 669
Business turnover® 64 353 61 523 60 673 63 875 62 758
Business turnover® per Employee (thousands of euro) 7 287 7 088 6958 7 509 7 358
Loans to deposits ratio*® 109% 106% 96% 84% 85%
Net operating revenue 1020.1 1330.0 1048.1 857.7 1181.9
Net operating revenue per Employee (thousands of euro) 112 151 120 99 138
Operating costs / net operating revenue 67.2% 48.1% 62.1% 78.3% 56.7%
Operating costs / net operating revenue, excluding non-recurring impacts® 64.4% 62.1% 69.4% 61.6% 56.0%
Net profit (284.9) 249.1 66.8 (163.6) 236.4
Return on average total assets (ROA) (0.4%) 0.8% 0.4% (0.1%) 0.9%
Return on Shareholders’ equity (ROE)’ (13.5%) 13.1% 2.9% (7.3%) 10.4%
Net profit per share® (0.284) 0.216 0.048 (0.115) 0.163
Book value per share® 0.467 1.235 1.389 1.467 1.659
Weighted average no. of shares (in millions)® 1003.8 1154.6 1383.7 14223 1450.4
Credit at risk / Loans to Customers® 3.2% 4.1% 4.7% 5.0% 4.6%
Impairments cover of credit at risk'° 70% 71% 77% 82% 87%
Net credit loss!! 0.43% 0.92% 0.96% 0.70% 0.48%
Pension liabilities to Employees 836 937 1082 1278 1280
Cover of pension obligations'? 100% 105% 105% 98% 109%
Shareholders’ equity 469 1708 1922 2127 2 407
Shareholders' equity and non-controlling interests 822 2061 2 306 2 546 2835
Core Tier 1 capital ratio (previous rules of Bank of Portugal) 9.2% 15.0% 16.5% - -
Common equity Tier 1 ratio (CRD IV / CRR phasing in) - - - 10.2% 10.9%
Common equity Tier 1 ratio (CRD IV / CRR fully implemented) - - - 8.6%"3 9.8%
Closing price (euro)® 0.471 0.943 1.216 1.026 1.091
Stock market capitalisation at year end 476 1311 1 690 1495 1590
Distribution network (no.)** 917 914 871 835 788
BPI Group staff complement (no.)'® 8831 8 680 8720 8 506 8 529
Note: figures as reported. The figures presented in the Directors’ Report refer to the amounts as reported, except where it is expressly stated that they are Table 1

proforma figures (taking into consideration the retrospective application of the requirements of IFRIC 21, as provided for by IAS 8; refer to the note
to the financial statements 2.1 — Comparability of information (IFRIC 21)). The retrospective application of the requirements of IFRIC 21 has the following

impacts using the consolidated figures at 31 Dec. 14: decrease in shareholders’ equity of 16.5 M.€ and decrease of 0.9 M.€ in net income.

1) Figures not corrected for double counting (investments of financial products in other financial products). Includes unit trust funds, retirement-savings plans (PPR’s) and
equity savings plans (PPA’s), capitalisation insurance, limited-risk / capital-guaranteed bonds, Private Banking and institutional Clients” assets under discretionary
management and advisory mandate and assets of pension funds under management (including the BPI Group’s Employees’ pension funds).

2) On-balance sheet Customer Resources (deposits, bonds placed with Customers and capitalisation insurance) and off-balance sheet resources (financial-asset and
real-estate unit trust funds, equity savings plans and retirement savings plans). Figures corrected for double counting.

3) Customer loans, guarantees and total Customer resources.

4) Deposits as a percentage of net loans.

5) Calculated in accordance with Bank of Portugal Instruction 16 / 2004.

6) Excluding non-recurring impacts both in costs and revenues.

7) In calculating ROE, it was considered the Shareholders’ equity prior to deduct the fair value reserve relating to the portfolio of available-for-sale financial assets

8) Figures adjusted for capital increases by way of the incorporation of reserves in May 2011 and through cash injection in August 2012.

9) Calculated in accordance with the definition in Bank of Portugal Instruction 23 / 2011 and considering the consolidation perimeter in IAS/IFRS, in which BPI Vida e
Pensoes is consolidated by global integration and its loan portfolio is included in the consolidated loan portfolio (under the supervision perimeter of the Bank of Portugal,
BPI Vida e Pensoes is consolidated under the equity method). According to the Instruction 23 / 2011 and considering the supervision perimeter, as of 31 Dec.15, the
consolidated credit at risk ratio amounts to 4.9%.

10) Cover by accumulated loans and guarantees impairment allowances in the balance sheet and without considering the effect of associated collaterals.

11) Loan impairment charges in the year, after deducting recoveries of loans written off (income statement) / Customer loans.

12) Includes contributions to the pension fund (37.9 M.€ in 2011, 0.5 M.€ in 2012, 2.9 M.€ in 2013, 47.0 M.€ in 2014, 1.3 M.€ in 2015) made at the beginning of the

following year.

13) Proforma figures considering the adherence to the special regime applicable to deferred tax assets (DTA) and the change to the risk weightings applied to Banco BPI's
indirect exposure to the Angolan State and to BNA.

14) Includes network of traditional branches in Portugal, in France (Paris branch) and investment centres in Portugal and in Angola (BFA), and the network geared to serving
large and medium-sized companies, project finance centre and the institutional centres in Portugal, the corporate centre in Madrid (Madrid branch) and the corporate
centres in Angola.

15) Excludes temporary workers.
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Figure 1

* Proforma figures considering the adherence to the special regime applicable to deferred tax assets (DTA) and the change to the risk weightings applied to Banco BPI's
indirect exposure to the Angolan State and to BNA.
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ACRONYMS AND ABBREVIATIONS

BPI Group entities — some designations adopted
“BPI Group” / “BPI"*:
The financial group as defined in page 13.

“Banco BPI” (S.A.) / "BPI” or “the Bank”*:
Head of the BPI Group and responsible for conducting the Commercial Banking business; listed on the stock exchange.

“Banco Portugués de Investimento” (S.A.), “the Investment Bank”*:
The group's investment bank.

“Banco de Fomento Angola” (S.A.), “BFA”:
Angolan law bank, 50.1% held by BPI, develops BPI Group banking business in Angola.

“BCI” / “Banco Comercial e de Investimentos”:
Mozambican law bank, in which BPI has an equity interest of 30%.

Units

€ euro

UsS$ American dollar

th.€ thousands of euro

M.€, M.US$, M.AKZ millions of euro, millions of American dollar, millions of Angolan Kwanza

th.M.€, th.M.US$, th.M.AKZ thousand millions of euro, thousand millions of dollar, thousand millions of kwanza
b.p. basis points
p.-p. percentage points

* if the context so permits.
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Introduction

A GOOD YEAR TO REMEMBER

BPI closed 2015 with a consolidated net profit of

236.4 million euro, the best result of the last three years
and the fifth highest in its entire history. This figure
includes the contribution from domestic operations (which
was negative in 2014) of 93.1 million euro, while
international activity increased its contribution to

143.3 million euro, 13.6% more than in the preceding
year. The return on consolidated shareholders’ equity (ROE)
was situated at 10.4%, twice the figure generated by
domestic operations.

The results achieved are also meaningful from the

qualitative standpoint, because they reflect on both the

domestic and international fronts an important

reinforcement of the commercial capability, a substantial

improvement in net interest income and an undeniable

control over risks and costs, in tandem with the

maintenance of sound financial indicators, as borne out by

the capitalisation, leverage and liquidity ratios. Employee

pension liabilities are, for their part, 109% covered, with Chairman of the Board of Directors
the Pension Fund recording an annual average return of Artur Santos Silva
9.5% since its creation 25 years ago and of 13.2% in the

past three years.

Due to the fact that this aspect is often overlooked, it is important to draw attention in
this general overview to the escalating special or contextual costs which are increasingly
recurring and burdening BPI and the other financial institutions operating in Portugal.
These costs are having a significant impact on the operating statements: the sum of the
so-called extraordinary contribution on the banking sector, with the compulsory
contributions to the Deposit Guarantee Fund, the National Resolution Fund and the
European Resolution Fund, totalled 31 million euro — 44% more than in 2014 and the
equivalent to around one third of the net earnings from domestic operations.

Domestic activity

In 2014, domestic activity had presented a negative result of 290 million euro, roughly
90% of which is explained by non-recurring impacts. The recovery in earnings to a net
profit of 93 million euro in 2015 is from the outset attributable to the confirmation of
the non-recurring nature of the previous loss and to the contributions from net operating
revenue, which rose by 48.4%, and from the lower loan impairments, which fell to
around half of the previous year’s figure and to approximately one third of the 2013 and
2012 figures.

The breakdown of Net Operating Revenue shows the positive behaviour of commissions,
which climbed 4%, and the sharp growth of 28% in net interest income, greatly
influenced by the steep decline in the average spread on time deposits, falling from

1.9 to 0.8%. Conversely, net interest income continued to be strongly penalised by the
conjugation of four negative factors: the volume effect resulting from the smaller loan
portfolio, the downward pressure on the lending spreads for the better risk borrowers, the
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reduced contribution from public debt by volume and income, and the cancellation of the
average margin on sight deposits as a consequence of the backdrop of interest rates at
close to zero or even negative.

Notwithstanding these conditions, the Bank posted net growth of 24 thousand Customers
and increased its market shares from 8.3 to 9% in individuals’ resources and from

10.6 to 11.5% in companies’ deposits, with improvements in all segments. The expected
contraction in the volume of time deposits — ascribable to the substantial decrease in the
returns offered and which remained below the market average — was compensated by a
clear increase in diversification: BPI rose from 5™ to 3" place in the aggregate
“Capitalisation Insurance Funds and PPR”, with a 16% share, the highest since 2003.
At the end of the year, the transformation of deposits into loans ratio stood at 107% in
domestic terms and at 85% in consolidated terms.

As concerns lending, the market shares rose marginally to 9.7% for individuals and from
6.3 to 6.7% in non-financial companies, registering a significant slowdown in the total
portfolio’s contraction which shrank 2.8% versus 5.9% in 2014, as a consequence of a
significant increase in new lending in the major business areas.

Insofar as individuals are concerned, it is worth highlighting the 88% growth in the
contracting of new home loans, with market share rising to 10.6%, and the respective
45% and 23% expansion in consumer loans and motor car finance, markets in which the
Bank also reinforced its relative position. It is interesting to note that the contracting of
new home loans is the highest since 2010, but represents only 27% of the volume
recorded in 2007, the best year ever, although on the other hand the spread is now
significantly higher.

In the Companies’ segment, the portfolios in the Medium-sized Companies and Small
Business segments, identified as such according to the Bank’s internal criteria, posted
growth of 8 and 17%, respectively after the stagnation observed in 2014. In the Large
Corporations and SME segments, defined using the Bank of Portugal’s criterion, the
market retreated 3.2 and 3.9%, respectively, while BPI's share registered gains from
7.6 to 8% in the first case, and from 6.2 to 6.5% in the second; in loans to the export
sector, which according to the Bank of Portugal grew by 1.5%, BPI also improved its
position, from 7.3 to 7.9%.

The increase in new lending business was conducted while adhering to stringent
selectivity criteria as regards both risk levels and priority sectors. By way of example,
it is worth noting the level of the loan / security relationship, the average of which was
situated at 55%, and the higher penetration in the best risk levels in the Large
Corporations and Small Business segments, where the most pronounced growth rates
were obtained in the priority sectors, such as Agriculture and Exports.

The number of companies which indicate BPI as the principal bank grew by 2.3 points to
19.4%, placing BPI in second place according to the DATA E 2015 survey, the most
reputable barometer published in Portugal in this domain. The same source also refers to



BPI as the “overall best bank for companies” and with the “best products for
companies”, moving from second to first position in these classifications when compared
to 2014. Last year’s performance also enabled BPI to reinforce its leading position in
Cosec brokerage, in the PME Crescimento lines and in the Agriculture sector, with it
retained first place in the Protocolo CAP, Linha IFAP line and in Agrogarante.

Also noteworthy in this review of commercial activity in 2015 was the growth observed in
the trade finance and specialised credit areas — in particular leasing and confirming — the
performance in the issue of large companies’ bonds and in special lending operations,
the placing of the Jessica lines earmarked for urban rehabilitation, the specific range of
products developed for the Portugal 2020 investment programme and the intermediation
of the European Investment Bank and European Investment Fund lines, in which BPI
maintained the vanguard position that it has built up and consolidated over more than
30 years. Very important for commercial banking continues to be on the one hand the
placing of insurance, increasingly more transversal to all the networks, although with
greater weight in individual Customers. The number of policies in portfolio surpassed
300 thousand units, while the commissions from the sale of autonomous or
linked-to-credit insurance grew by 5% to 41.3 million euro.

Risk and costs

The good results from lending activity in 2015 were accompanied by a clear
improvement in credit risk indicators. BPI closed the year with a credit-at-risk ratio of
4.6% in consolidated terms and of 4.5% in domestic operations, the best amongst the
Portuguese banking community and second in the Iberian Peninsula.

Still on the domestic front, loans in arrears for more than 90 days were situated at 3.6%,
being 108% covered by impairments; considering credit at risk, the cover stands at 85%,
also the highest amongst Portuguese banks. For their part, impairments net of loan
recoveries fell to half the 2014 figure, totalling 87 million euro, corresponding to 0.38%
of the portfolio, which levels are now very close to the early years of the financial crisis,
that is 2008 and 2009. Based on Bank of Portugal information, it is possible to conclude
finally that the overdue loans ratio at BPI corresponds to less than half of the market
average in the individuals’ segment and to roughly one third in the companies’ area.

The 2015 financial year confirmed on the other hand the strategy of improving the
efficiency and containment of costs pursued since 2007. Recurring operating costs,
excluding early retirements, were down 1.3%, above all due to the effect of the 2.8%
decrease in personnel costs.

In the period 2007-2015, operating costs without early retirements have fallen by

100 million euro, that is, 17%, while the accumulated inflation rate was 9.3%. The
number of personnel employed in domestic activity has declined by 24%, with special
incidence in the retail network, which closed down 30% branches and reduced its
workforce by 30%. This trend translated into a considerable productivity gain, reflected
in the business volume and the number of Customers per Employee, which in the same
period climbed 28% and 64%, respectively.

Report | Introduction 9
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International operations

Banco de Fomento Angola, in which BPI has a 50.1% shareholding, earned a net profit
in 2015 of more than 300 million dollars, the highest ever despite the country’s
deteriorating financial and economic landscape fuelled by the plunging oil price. BPI's
attributable share of the net profit was the equivalent of 136 million euro, corresponding
to a ROE of 34%, equalling the 2008 figure, year in which BFA posted the best earnings
and when BPI owned 100% of the capital.

The rate of growth and the quality of BFA's results is reflected, amongst other indicators,
in the number of Customers, which rose by 8.4% to 1.4 million, accompanied by the
expansion of the workforce, which increased 3.3% to total 2610, and by the moderate
enlargement of the distribution network which now boasts 166 generalist branches,

16 corporate centres and 9 investment centres, five more units than in 2014. On the
other hand, the Bank consolidated its leading position in the virtual channels, with

570 thousand subscribers to BFA Net and shares of 14% in ATM’s, 26% in point-of-sales
terminals and 22% in debit cards.

In spite of the higher operating costs, justified by the expansion in business activity, the
efficiency ratio fell by one point to 33.6%, bearing in mind that net operating revenue
grew by 26%, spurred above all by net interest income, which climbed by more than 30%.
BFA recouped the leadership in the deposits market and closed the year in eighth place in
the loans’ business as an expected consequence of the prudent risk-management policy.
At the close of 2015, provisions covered 122% of credit at risk and corresponded, in net
terms, to 1.86% of the total portfolio in 2015.

Globally, the contribution from international operations to consolidated net profit
advanced 13.6% to 143 million euro, including, besides BFA’s results, the 9.4 million
euro derived from the 30% equity interest held by BPI in Banco de Comércio e Industria
de Mocambique, which disputes the leadership in that market, with a return of close to
19% in 2015.

Quality, Reputation and Social Responsibility

The 2015 financial year surpassed the Bank’s excellent historical records in the areas
of service quality, reputation and social responsibility, as borne out by some of the
most important indicators of public recognition. After the second place obtained in the
period 2014-15, BPI attained in 2016 absolute first place in the ECSI — indice
Nacional de Satisfagao do Cliente (national Customer satisfaction index) for the
banking sector, a classification laid down by the European Commission and
administered by the Quality Institute and Universidade Nova de Lisboa. The Bank
recovered on the other hand the second overall place and the first amongst major
financial institutions in the index “Satisfaction with the Principal Bank” published by
Basef, of Marktest, the oldest and most important market poll conducted in Portugal
covering the banking sector.

In the second quarter of 2015, BPI surpassed the historical high of its own internal
service quality indicator (IQS), backed by a periodic survey of a movable base of

15 Customers and remained above the market average and its main rivals in the
“Mystery Customer” poll, an evaluation of the service provided at the branches of all
the system’s institutions, carried out by an independent company based on



unannounced visits. The level of complaints at the Bank of Portugal continued to be
situated below the system’s average; meanwhile, the overall number of complaints
increased exceptionally, and only for reasons related to the tariff schedule, while the
average response time fell by around 20%, in line with an improving trend clearly
confirmed in the past four years.

Turning to public recognition, amongst other distinctions, above all within the ambit of the
capital markets, BPI was included for the second consecutive year in Superbrands’ Brands
of Excellence (Portuguese listing), and has already in 2016 been designated for the third
year running the Trusted Brand in the banking sector in Portugal, in a pan-European survey
conducted for the main areas of major consumption by the Reader’s Digest Selections. BPI
occupied first place in all the attributes considered and managed to achieve the greatest
distance ever relative to the second ranked.

In Angola, BFA secured first place in virtually all the local and international classifications
for that market: Bank of the Year (The Banker, Euromoney), Best Bank in Angola (EMEA
Finance), Best Company of the Year in the financial sector (Sirius, Deloitte), Best Branch
Network (Capital Finance International), Best Corporate Bank (International Finance
Magazine), Best Commercial Bank (Global Banking and Finance Review), Best Community
Development Bank (The Banker, Africa), STP Excellence Prize, for the best processing
(Deutsche Bank) and Superbrands’ Brand of Excellence in Angola.

In the Social Responsibility domain, BPI boosted from 4.55 to 4.8 million euro its overall
involvement, which it has maintained without significant oscillations over the past eight
years, even in the two years it reported losses. Culture, Social Solidarity, Education and
Science and Entrepreneurship are the four spheres which aggregate the Bank’s most
significant involvement, with special mention of the first two. These include on the one
hand being patron of the Museu de Serralves and Casa da Musica and, on the other, the
support given to social institutions via the BPI Seniores and BPI Capacitar Awards, for
projects aimed at fostering social inclusion for the elderly and disabled people. Altogether,
these two awards benefited some 200 institutions and 60 thousand people over the past
five years.

Exposure to Angola

In tandem with the unequivocal recovery in earnings and the main activity indicators,
BPI's activity was marked in 2015 by the process of reducing the stake in BFA in order
to comply with a European Central Bank ruling in terms of which the Bank’s exposure to
the Angolan State and to the Banco Nacional de Angola ceased to be exempt from the
application of the large exposures limits, as envisaged in European regulations (CRR).
The end of the aforesaid exemption had as a consequence the surpassing of that limit by
roughly three thousand million euro.

In parallel, CaixaBank, BPI's biggest shareholder with a holding of 44.1% manifested its
wish to eliminate the voting limitation currently enshrined in article 4 of the Statutes and
with this objective, launched on 17 February 2015 a public offer for the total share
capital. On 5 March the Board of Directors responded to that bid, considering the price
offered insufficient. On 17 June, in General Meeting, Santoro Finance, the Bank’s second
largest shareholder voted against a motion submitted by it aimed at the statutory
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elimination of the limit on voting (“armour plating”) and managed, precisely through this
limit, to derail one of the takeover bid’'s conditions, with CaixaBank announcing on the
following day its withdrawal.

On 30 September, the Board of Directors approved a proposed simple demerger of BPI,
separating itself from BFA in order to put an end to the overstepping of the large risks
limit that the ECB wished to see resolved by April 2016.

On 3 January 2016, as an alternative solution to the demerger, Unitel, the BFA
shareholder with 49.9%, proposed to buy 10% of BFA's shares for 140 million euro,
which offer was unanimously rejected by the Board of Directors, in a vote in which one of
the Board members who also forms part of Unitel’s Board of Directors did not take part.

On 4 February 2016, with two votes against, BP| Board of Directors decided to present
to the General Meeting at the appropriate time a proposal to eliminate the statutory limit
on votes. On the following day, the General Meeting was held which had been convened
about a month earlier, having obtained 63.08% of the votes, but ended up being rejected
by the opposition of Santoro Finance, with the “armour-plating” effect having functioned
once again.

With the object of finding an alternative to the demerger project, which would have
permitted accommodating the ECB’s demands as regards the large risks limit, March
2016 saw the start of negotiations between the shareholders CaixaBank and Santoro
Finance, talks these which had not yet been concluded at the time of closing and
approving this Report.

Executive Committee

Francisco Barbeira (General Manager), Alexandre Lucena e Vale (General Manager), Manuel Ferreira da Silva (Director),
Pedro Barreto (Director), Farinha Morais (General Manager) — standing

Maria Celeste Hagatong (Director), Manuel Meneses (General Manager), Antonio Domingues (Deputy-Chairman),
Fernando Ulrich (Chairman), Jodo Pedro Oliveira e Costa (Director), José Pena do Amaral (Director) — seated



Financial structure and business

The BPI Group — headed by Banco BPI — is a financial
group centred on corporate and retail banking businesses,
and in the provision of investment banking and asset
management services.

The two main markets of operations are Portugal, a
developed and competitive market where BPI has a

At 31 December 2015, 80% of the Group’s
Shareholders’ equity was allocated to domestic
operations’, and the remaining 20% to international

activity.

Leading indicators by business segment
At 31 December 2015

Amounts in M.€

Investment Banking

Banco Portugués de
Investimento

Portugal, Spain,

strong competitive position, and Angola, an emerging Domestic International  Consolidated

economy which has historically recorded robust and activity activity

sustained growth, where BPI, through its equity interest Net total assets? 32652 8022 40 673

in BFA, has a leading position in the market. Loans to Customers®
and guarantees 25111 1978 27 089
Total Customers resources 28 809 6 860 35 669
Business turnover* 53 920 8 838 62 758
No. of Customers (thousand) 1778 1410 3188
No. of Employees 5899 2 630 8 529
Distribution network (no.) 597 191 788

Table 2
Main units of the BPI Group
Banco BPI
Portugal DOMESTIC | INTERNATIONAL
ACTIVITY ACTIVITY
o] ]
Financial investments Domestic Commercial Asset Management Insurance International
and Private Equity Banking i Commercial Banking
100% B 100% 35%%) 50.1%
BPI Private # Individuals and Small BPI Gestao Allianz Portugal ' Banco de Fomento
Equity Businesses Banking de Activos
Portugal " Private Banking Portugal Portugal Angola

France, South Africa

® Fquities
® Corporate Finance

*

® Private Equity

Participating
interests

" International Private
Banking

® Corporate Banking,
Institutional Banking
and Project Finance

Portugal, Portuguese
emigrant communities®,
France branch,
Madrid branch

100%

BPI Suisse

Switzerland

= Unit trust funds
management

100%

= Non-life and life-risk
insurance

BPI Vida e Pensdes

Cosec

Portugal

Portugal

® Capitalisation insurance

= Pension funds
management

® Export credit insurance

| ® Individuals Banking
| ® Corporate Banking

50%7]

" |nvestment Banking

30%°8
Banco Comercial e
de Investimentos

Mozambique

Figure 2

The indicated percentages refer to the allocated capital by business segment at 31 December 2015. In determining the capital allocated to the domestic activity and to the international

activity business areas, the accounting capital (shareholders' equity), excluding the fair value reserve (net of deferred taxes) related to the financial asset available for sale, was taken

into consideration. As regard each business area integrating the domestic operations, it is assumed that the capital employed is identical to the average capital employed for this activity

as a whole, except as regards the fair value reserve, which was excluded from the capital allocated.
1) BPI Group adopted the geographical segmentation as the main basis for the segmentation of its activities, having defined two segments: domestic activity and international activity.
2) The total assets figure presented for each geographic segment is corrected for the balances resulting from operations between these segments.

3) Gross loans.

4) Loans, guarantees and total Customer resources.

5

7
8

Equity-accounted subsidiaries.

6) In association with Allianz, which holds 65% of the capital.
In association with Euler Hermes, a company of Allianz Group.
In partnership with Caixa Geral de Depositos (51%) and a group of Mozambican investors, which together, hold 19% of the share capital.

9) The BPI Group has overseas branches and representative offices in overseas cities with large communities of Portuguese emigrants.
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Highlights of 2015

2015
January

9

29

February
17

17

BPI was rated for the 2™ consecutive year the Most Trusted Banking Brand in Portugal, according to the Trusted Brands
survey which the Readers’ Digest Selections has been conducting for the past 15 years in 10 countries.

Release of the 2014 consolidated results: consolidated net income was a negative 163.6 M.€, greatly affected by the
negative extraordinary results of 264.3 M.€ derived from domestic activity.

CaixaBank, which owns 44.1% of BPI's capital, discloses by way of the publication of a preliminary announcement, its
intention to launch a general and voluntary takeover over bid for all of the Bank’s share capital, for a consideration of
1.329 euro per share and which included the following two conditions: i) elimination of any limit on the counting of votes
of any shareholder in general meeting, as laid down in article 12(4) of the Statutes; and ii) acquisition of a minimum of
5.9% of the shares, in order to secure a holding of more than 50% of the share capital.

BPI won 4 first places in the Euronext Lisbon Awards 2016, an event organised by Euronext for the purpose of paying
tribute to the performance of those entities which contributed most actively to the development of the Portuguese capital
market in 2015. BPI was distinguished in the following categories: Most Active Research House, Most Active Trading
House in Bonds, Most Active Trading House in Shares — EnterNext and No.1 Corporate Bond House.

March

3 BPI makes public the letter which the Chairman of the Executive Committee received on this date from Santoro, in which
Santoro outlines its reflections concerning CaixaBank’s takeover bid and affirms that, in its opinion, it is its duty to
propose to the Boards of Banco BPI and Millennium BCP that they analyse the alternative strategy of a merger between
the two entities.

5 The Board of Directors presents its report on the takeover bid announced by CaixaBank for Banco BPI, S.A.’s shares. The
Board of Directors considers that the price of 1.329 euro per share offered by CaixaBank does not reflect the value of BPI,
with the result that it recommended to its Shareholders that they do not accept the offer.

20 BPI presents a non-binding proposal to buy Novo Banco as part of the 2™ phase of the sale process.

April

18 BPI is notified by the Bank of Portugal that its offer was not selected for the 3" phase of the sale of Novo Banco.

29 Release of the results for the 1% quarter of 2015: consolidated net profit amounts to 30.9 M.€ and a ROE of 5.6%.

29 Shareholders approved the report and accounts at the Annual General Meeting, the proposed appropriation of 2014 net
income and the other motions submitted by the Governing Bodies: at the request of the Shareholder Santoro, a point was
included in the order of business for considering an alteration to the Statutes with the aim of eliminating the limit on the
counting of votes. Following the motion presented by Artur Santos Silva, in his capacity as a shareholder, the Meeting
approved by 54.74% of the votes cast the suspension of proceedings and their continuation on 17 June for consideration
of the point referred to.

June

1-4 Banco Portugués de Investimento is the Portuguese broker co-organiser of the Euronext Pan-European days conference
staged in New York and Boston, at which 14 Portuguese companies were present.

17 The second session of the GM of 29 April was held for considering the proposed elimination of the limit on the counting
of votes. In terms of the statutes, the statutory amendment concerned requires the approval of 75% of the votes cast:
since it only obtained votes in its favour of 52.45%, it was consequently not approved.

18 CaixaBank informs that “its Board of Directors decided to present to the CMVM its decision to withdraw the registration of
its takeover bid for BPI shares preliminarily announced on 17 February, bearing in mind that the condition relating to the
elimination of the limit on the counting of votes laid down in BPI’s statutes was not fulfilled”.

July

29 Release of the consolidated results for the 1 half of 2015: consolidated net profit was 76.2 M.€ and the ROE was

6.8%.
August

25 BPI elected the Brand of Excellence in Portugal, for the 2™ consecutive year according to Superbrands, an independent
international organisation dedicated to the promotion of brands governed by values such a longevity, loyalty, acceptance,
goodwill and market dominance in 89 countries since 1995.
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Banco Portugués de Investimento stages in Oporto the twelfth Iberian conference, which was attended by 77 European
and North American institutional investors and 49 companies (46 Iberian and 3 French).

Banco BPI, S.A. informs that the Board of Directors had approved a proposed Simple Demerger of the Bank with a view to
solving the question relating to the surpassing of the large risks limit in Angola. The aforesaid Project, after having been
submitted to the Company’s oversight body for its opinion and that of an independent Statutory Auditor and having been
registered at the Commercial Registry, will be submitted for approval at the Shareholders’ General Meeting.

As part of the 3" edition of the BPI Seniores Award, BPI handed over 700 thousand euro to 32 institutions which
presented projects that promote social inclusion and the active involvement of people aged more than 65.

The consolidated results for the first nine months of 2015 are released: consolidated net profit of 151.0 M.€ and ROE
of 8.9%.

BPI is the “Bank that Grew the Most” (ex aequo), for the 2™ consecutive year, in the Large Banks category, according to
the classification of Banca & Seguros 2015 organised by the Exame magazine. BPI’s classification is the result of the
analysis of twelve economic-financial indicators, carried out by Deloitte with the collaboration of Informa D&B Portugal.
Banco BPI informs about the EBA's 2015 pan-European Transparency Exercise.

As part of the 6™ edition of the BPI Capacitar Award, BPI handed over 700 thousand euro to 25 institutions which
presented projects with the goal of integrating the difference and contributing to improving the quality of life of the
disabled or permanently handicapped.

Banco BPI, S.A. lodges for registration at the Commercial Registry the Bank’s simple demerger project.

Banco BPI informs about the letter dated 31 December 2015 received from Unitel, containing a proposal for the
acquisition of 10% of BFA.

BPI is elected the Best Private Banking in the categories Asset Management, International Clients and Philanthropic
Advice, in the Euromoney Private Banking & Wealth Management Survey 2016. This classification results from a poll
realised annually by the magazine Euromoney Private Banking & Wealth Management, a prestigious worldwide financial-
sector publication.

BPI is the new Trusted Brand in Banking in 2016. Elected for the 3™ consecutive year the most trusted banking brand in
Portugal, according to the Trusted Brands survey conducted which the Reader’s Digest Selections published annually.
BPI's trust level climbed from 39% to 46%, registering the best result ever in the banking sector since the survey was
first launched in 2001.

Release of the 2015 consolidated results: consolidated net profit of 236.4 M.€ and ROE of 10.4%.

BPI announces the first edition of the BPI Solidario Award, an award of 500 thousand euro which seeks to support
projects that promote the improvement in the living conditions of those who are destitute and socially excluded.

Banco BPI informs that the Board of Directors analysed the proposal presented by Unitel, S.A. for the purchase of shares
representing 10% of Banco de Fomento Angola, S.A.’s share capital and voting rights, and unanimously resolved to
decline it. In the discussion and voting on this point the Board member Mario Leite da Silva did not take part.

Banco BPI, S.A. informs that following an initiative of the Executive Committee in this respect, the Board of Directors
approved — with two votes against and no abstentions — to submit for consideration of the General Meeting to be convened
for this purpose a motion to alter Banco BPI’s statutes with a view to eliminating the statutory limit on the counting of
votes cast in General Meeting.

The Shareholders’ General Meeting, at which shareholders were present or represented holding shares corresponding to
82.35% of the share capital, did not approve Banco BPI's demerger by virtue of not having achieved the qualified
majority of two thirds of the votes cast on which its approval was dependent; the proposal concerned obtained 63.08% of
the votes cast in its favour.
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Distribution channels

In Portugal and Europe
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Human resources

Staff headcount
At 31 December 2015, the BPI Group’s workforce
numbered 8 529.

In domestic operations, the staff headcount fell by
63 (1.1%), to 5 899 Employees.

BPI Group Employees

In international operations, the workforce grew by 86,
which represents a 3.4% increase. At the end of 2015,
Banco de Fomento Angola’s headcount stood at 2 610
Employees, of which 21 are BPI staff seconded to
Angola.

Year-end figures Year-average figures
2014 2015 A% 2014 2015 A%
Domestic activity
Activity in Portugal
Banco BPI 1 5641 5598 (0.8%) 5763 5633 (2.3%)
Banco Portugués de Investimento 2 56 52 (7.1%) 134 54 (59.7%)
Other subsidiary companies 3 61 66 8.2% 64 65 1.6%
[=21t03]| 4 5758 5716 (0.7%) 5961 5752 (3.5%)
Overseas branches and
representative offices 5 204 183 (10.3%) 205 193 (5.9%)
Domestic activity [=4+5]| 6 5962 5 899 (1.1%) 6 166 5954 (3.6%)
International activity
Banco de Fomento Angola 7 2 526 2610 3.3% 2 466 2754 4.4%
BPI Capital Africa 8 14 16 14.3% 14 15 7.1%
Financial services Mozambique 9 4 4 0.0% 4 4 0.0%
International activity [=7+8+9]|10 2 544 2 630 3.4% 2 484 2 593 4.4%
Total’ [=6+10]|11 8 506 8 529 0.3% 8 650 8 538 (1.3%)
Table 3
BPI Group staff complement
As % of the Group With higher education Age and experience at Distribution by gender
BPI Group
Number % Years %
Banco BPI 5568 I 59 [ i6e [TRG 5 55
— e 140 40 71 29
Other
subsidiaries I 7 4 64 36
Overseas
branches? 183 I e 8 58 42
BPI Capital
e s 3 56 44
[ e 32 54 46
0 25 50 75 100 0 10 20 30 40 50 0 25 50 75 100

B Average age Chart 1
--- Average period of service

1) Includes fixed-term contracts and excludes temporary employment of persons with no binding work contracts with BPI.
At 31 December 2014 and 2015, the number of Employees with fixed-term contracts in Portugal stood at 21 and 32, respectively, while for overseas operations, the number stood at 4

and 4, for the same dates.

In average terms, the number of Employees with fixed-term contracts in Portugal was situated at 35 and 30 in 2014 and 2015, respectively, while the corresponding figures for overseas

operations were 7 and 4, respectively.
2) Overseas branches and representative offices.
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Digital banking

The digital technologies represent an enormous
transformation opportunity and BPI is grooming itself for
responding to the new challenges, taking advantage of
the investments made in the IT systems and the
capacities that the new technologies afford.

BPI is well positioned in the usage and adoption
indicators pertaining to the digital channels (see box),
while in 2015 the heavy investment in all the dimensions
supporting Digital Banking was maintained and
reinforced.

The digital transformation process in 2015 was organised
with the following overriding objectives:

= modernisation, mobility and efficiency of the
Commercial Networks;

= improvement in the Individuals’ and Companies’
Homebanking services, with special attention paid to
Mobile Banking;

= boosting the capacities of Digital Marketing for
improving the promotion, sales and communication on
the digital channels and social networks.

NEW DIGITAL BANKING DIVISION

BPI's digital transformation initiatives were aggregated
under a new Digital Banking Division, created at the
end of 2015 with the goal of coordinating the
transformation process, ensuring a leading position in
the renovation and coordination with the contact
channels and in the reformulation of the relationship
experience between Customers and Bank.

This new division integrates functions and
responsibilities of Marketing, IT Systems Development,
Usage Experience and the forging of partnerships in
the areas of digital channels for Customers and
Employees, as well as being the fundamental lever in
BPI’s digital transformation initiatives.

Of the multiple initiatives carried out in 2015, a few
stand out owing to their large impact on the Bank’s
business and efficiency.

MOBILITY OF THE COMMERCIAL NETWORKS

During 2015, continuing with the work initiated in the
previous year, solutions were reinforced in the area of
Mobility and modernisation of the Commercial Network,
registering the following advances:

= broadening of the GoBanking commercial mobility to
Private Banking and Private Banking International
Employees;

= making available the Wi-Fi network to Customers and
Employees at the Investment Centres, Corporate Centres
and Central Services buildings;

= extending video-conference equipment.

Accordingly at the end of 2015, more than

250 Employees with commercial functions — all the
Employees at the Investment Centre, Private Banking and
Private Banking International networks — were equipped
with mobile solutions, with access to multiple support
tools for their commercial activity.

GOBANKING
GoBanking is BPI's new commercial platform.

Founded on new equipment solutions, — hybrid work
post — and software — new business apps —,
GoBanking enables BPI's commercial managers to
performance their work in total mobility, close to
Customers and when it is most convenient for them.

With GoBanking, the Commercial Managers have at
their disposal, at any place, the following functionalities:

= opening of accounts with recourse to the digital
signature;

= access to complete information about the Customer;

= access to information regarding BPI products and
services;

= carrying out sale operations with recourse to digital
signature;

= access to the network of BPI Remote Specialists.

REMOTE SPECIALISTS

The service to Customers was improved in 2015 with the
growing use of the Remote Specialists solution, which
permits access to Product and Investment Specialists
during commercial meetings between the Customer and
his/her Manager.

This solution is supported by a vast network of
video-conferencing rooms available at all the Investment
Centres, Corporate Centres and at more than 50
branches. In 2015 the solution was made available on
GoBanking, thereby permitting its utilisation via the
mobile medium.
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OPENING AN ACCOUNT VIA MOBILITY

The opening of an account with recourse to the digital
signature available on GoBanking has permitted the
acquisition of new Customers via mobility and raising the
security in a process that has become speedier, more
intuitive and without recourse to paper. Founded on a
process of adherence to the various services
simultaneously, it allows offering at the same time: digital
documentation, the means of operating the account and
installations of Apps.

Other developments are under way which will be
launched during 2016 to enable exploiting even further
available capabilities and extending the solution to the
other networks.

IMPROVING HOMEBANKING SERVICES

BPI provides its Customers the homebanking services BPI
Directo, BPI Net, BPI Net Empresas, BPI Net Mobile,
Apps BPI, as well as the online brokerage services BPI
Online and BPI Net Bolsa. The increased adherence to
homebanking services has permitted a progressive
migration of transactional activity from the branches to
these channels, freeing the commercial network to
perform more value-added functions.

During 2015 improvements were made to the service and
sales functionalities in the Individuals’ Homebanking
area, notably:

= launching of the new Deposits and Savings and prepaid
Cards areas, with more information support tools for
sales;

= reformulation of the 1% access to BPI Net, rendering it
more user friendly, intuitive and appealing;

= reformulation of the contacts area with more connection
between the branches and Customers.

Besides the various improvements in existing Apps, which
reflect the growing importance of the Mobile Banking
channel in the relationship with Customers, the following
is worth highlighting:

= the launching of a solution for access financial
information produced by BPI covering the stock market
(App BPI Equity Research);

= the enlargement of the functionalities available on the
App BPI Empresas (for companies).

More than 100 thousand new downloads of BPI Apps
were effected in 2015, with approximately 400 thousand
new downloads having been realised since those
applications were unveiled.

As concerns Corporate Internet Banking, 2015 saw
improvements made to the App BPI Empresas and the
creation of a new area at BPI Net Empresas. which
groups the information and operations relating to
beneficiaries and debtors, and the subscription to digital
documentation via this channel.

Transversal developments were also noted at the various
digital channels, stemming from functional improvements
or regulatory requirements, as well as other developments
referring to the new solutions to be launched in 2016.

BPI homebanking services
Selected indicators

2014 2015 A%
BPI Directo / Net + BPI Net Empresas
Active adherents (x th.) 1128 1156 2%
% total transactions! 94% 94%
BPI Directo / Net
Active adherents (x th.) 1 000 1018 2%
BPI Net Empresas
Active adherents (x mil)? 128 138 8%
Online brokerage
Market share (Internet) 24.8% 254% 0.6 p.p.

Table 4

BPI IS LEADER IN DIGITAL CHANNELS

“Consumer Satisfaction Index — CSI Banca” (2™ wave

of 2015)

= BP| leader in “Internet Contact Penetration Channel
Used”

= BP| leader in “Internet Banking Loyalty”

“BASEF Banca” (2015)

= BPI leader in “Internet Banking Service Penetration”

“Companies Financial Services Barometer — BFin”

(2015)

= BPI leader in “Net Banking Service Penetration”

= BP| leader in “Share of Net Banking Service ”

“BPI Service Quality Survey (2015)

= Level of Satisfaction with Internet Services: 8.8
(scale of O to 10)

“Brokerage Services— Ranking CMVM” (2015)

= BPI leader in Online Brokerage

1) Total transactions of homebanking services as a percentage of the Bank's total. Does not include ATM.
2) Does not include Individuals and Small Businesses that use BPI Net service. These Customers are considered in BPI Net service.
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STEPPED-UP DIGITAL MARKETING

BPI's commitment to Digital Marketing has been
increasing, enabling it to take advantage of the new
digital channels and be closer to Customers / users with a
value proposal, at the same time managing to capture
new opportunities.

It is worth noting in this strategy the positioning of BPI’s
public sites as commercial channels, and the growing
and improved use of Search Marketing from the viewpoint
of both paid advertisements and organic search.

In 2015 the Digital Marketing initiatives were responsible
for some 100 thousand simulations on BPI sites and for
5 thousand direct opportunities.

BANCO BPI SITE

Banco BPI's public site, revamped in 2014, saw its
commercial content and sales support capabilities
boosted during the course of 2015.

In 2015 BPI continued to direct its efforts aimed at
capturing online business, thereby meeting the needs of
its Customers who are increasingly searching for
alternatives to traditional channels and office hours.

The adherence by Customers and potential Customers to
click to call and chat on the websites has been rising,
allowing a request to be made for a commercial contact
via telephone or chat, free of charge and during extended
hours, to Portugal or abroad. The information is provided
by attendance managers specialised in banking products,
ranging from loans to resources, with particular emphasis
on the simulation and presentation of scenarios that best
suit the reality and needs expressed by the Customer.

BANCO BPI MOBILE SITE

BPI's public site optimised for Smartphones celebrated
its 1" year of existence in 2015, while there was an
increase in its utilisation, thus tracking the main trends
of users in terms of online navigation.

In order to keep pace with the main trends and needs of
users in the use of mobile devices in 2015, the BPI
Mobile site integrated into its structure the Click to Call
solution.

BPI YOUTUBE SITE

BPI's YouTube channel was the most viewed banking
channel in Portugal in 2015, with more than 3.7 million
video views, assuming an important positioning in the
promotion and involvement of the BPI brand.

BPI EXPRESSO IMOBILIARIO SITE

BPI Expresso Imobiliario has since June a new layout,
more attractive, and offers a new form of searching for
properties, with the primary objective of providing the
user a simpler and more intuitive navigation experience.

In 2015, the BPI Expresso Imobiliario site recorded an
average of 417 thousand monthly visits and 4.6 million
monthly page views, representing increases of 8% and

20,5%, respectively, relative to the year before.

BPI ON THE SOCIAL NETWORKS

The growing integration between the different digital
platforms — website, YouTube channel and Facebook
pages —, aims to afford visitors a more dynamic and
interesting experience in their interaction with the
Bank.

In this respect, BPI launched in 2015 the Facebook
pages Prémio BPI Capacitar and Prémio BPI Seniores,
the first to do so on this social network.

The Prémio BPI Capacitar page was launched in June
during the period of candidacies to the 6" edition. This
drive reached some 14 thousand followers, driven by
the campaign which told the stories of Susana and
Daniel. For its part, 1 October — International Word for
Older Persons — was chosen for the launching of the
Prémio BPI Seniores page. The page now begins to
bring together a community which is interested in
topics related to improving the quality of life and the
active lifestyle of persons over the age of 65, informing
them about the initiatives and projects related to the
Award.
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The BPI Brand

The rise to the outright leader in the quality of service
provided to Customers, the rating as Trusted Bank of the
Portuguese and as the Best Bank for Companies, are just
some of the main distinctions received by BPI which
highlight its performance in 2015.

In the social responsibility domain, the Bank stepped up
its financial backing for its programmes in the cultural,
solidarity, education, innovation and entrepreneurial fields
with an allocation of 4.81 million euro.

Satisfaction and trust

BPI attained 1 place in Customer Satisfaction according
to the ECSI Portugal 2016 poll — National Customer
Satisfaction Index. ECSI Portugal is an independent
survey conducted annually by the Portuguese Quality
Institute, the Portuguese Quality Association and the
Higher Institute for Statistics and Information
Management — Universidade Nova de Lisboa, based on a
common European methodology — the European Customer
Satisfaction Index — which permits assessing the quality
of the goods and services offered on the national market
in a number of sectors of activity.

BPI was rated for the 3" consecutive year the most
trusted banking brand in the 2016 edition of Trusted
Brands which the Reader’s Digest Selections have
compiled over the past 16 years in 10 countries. BPI's
trust level climbed from 39% to 46%, recording the best
result since the survey was first launched in 2001.

BASEF — Estudo de Base do Sistema Financeiro
(Financial System Base Survey), published by Marktest,
once again confirms that BPI has the highest level of
satisfaction amongst the Portuguese financial system'’s
five largest banks as regards overall satisfaction
indicators, quality of attendance — an indicator where it
has always been top placed, maintaining also the lowest
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share of abandonment. The same poll reveals that BPI
occupies the top three positions in the ranking in 46% of
the position-related indicators evaluated.

BPI was voted by companies as the Best Bank for
Companies, with the Most Suitable Products and leader
in New Customers according to DATA E’s BFin 2015 —
Corporate Financial Services Barometer. The same survey
also reveals that BPI occupies 2™ position in the
indicators such as Total Penetration and Satisfaction with
the 1 Bank, Globally Most Efficient Bank, Most
Innovative, Closest to Customers and the Most Solid.

BPI was also honoured by being rated the best banking
brand in the category of banking products for senior
citizens according to the poll realised by Consumer
Choice 2015. The Senior Choice is a consumer choice
project that assesses the satisfaction of Customers aged
over 60 as relates to specific products or services.

Reputation and recognition

BPI's performance was also publicly acknowledged in
several areas of financial activity by independent national
and international entities. The following distinctions
attributed to the Bank merit special mention in 2015:

= The Bank with Biggest Growth (ex aequo)
For the 2™ year running in the Large Banks category,
according to the 2015 Banking and Insurance
classification compiled by the Exame magazine. BPI’s
classification is the result of the analysis of 12
economic-financial indicators carried out by Deloitte in
collaboration with Informa D&B Portugal.

= Brand of Excellence in Portugal
For the 2™ consecutive year and according to
Superbrands, an independent international organisation
that is dedicated to the promotion of brands governed



by values such as longevity, loyalty, acceptance,
goodwill and market dominance in 89 countries since
1995. Superbrands analyses brand performance with
the aim of identifying those which outperform their
peers.

Best Private Banking

In the categories Asset Management, International
Clients and Philanthropic Advice of the Euromoney
Private Banking and Wealth Management Survey 2016.
This classification results from a survey conducted
annually by Euromoney Private Banking & Wealth
Management magazine, a respected editorial reference
of the financial sector worldwide. Winners are selected
based on an assessment carried out by its own
competitors.

4 Capital Market Awards

BPI won 4 first places in the Euronext Lisbon Awards
2016, the Euronext event which honours the
performances of those entities that contributed most
actively to the development of the Portuguese capital
market in 2015. BPI was distinguished in the following
categories: Most Active Research House, Most Active
Trading House in Bonds, Most Active Trading House in
Shares — EnterNext and No. 1 Corporate Bond House.

Best Open-end Fund

BPI Valorizagao won the Country Award given by the
magazine |IPE, Investment Pensions Europe 2015. It
was the 7™ time that a BPI Vida e Pensdes pension
fund was honoured and the 6™ time that the award was
given to the Fundo de Pensdes Aberto BPI Valorizagao.

Investment and communication

In 2015, the financial sector posted an 8% decline in
advertising investment, remaining the eighth largest
investor in the universe of all sectors of activity, with a
market share of 4%.

In the financial sectors’ total expenditure ranking, BPI
occupies 17" position, with a 4% total market share
amongst the five biggest Portuguese banks and 2% share
for the financial sector total.

In 2015 BPI's communication policy had as its chief goal
responding to the challenges posed by the particularly
demanding economic and social landscape. It was
centred on the creation and dissemination of a broad set
of initiatives related to the support for Portuguese
companies, with the Bank’s digital transformation, BPI's
involvement in the social responsibility arena and the
dynamic promotion of credit and insurance products
amongst individual and corporate Customers.

Each one of these topics is described further in separate
chapters of this report, the main overriding aspects of
which are outlined here.

= Support for Portuguese companies
BPI reinforced its stimulus policy aimed at the creation,
development, innovation and expansion of companies’
businesses:

= reaffirmed its leadership in the principal State-backed
programmes and statuses, PME Lider and PME
Exceléncia, and in a number of PME Investe and
PME Crescimento lines;

Allianz Health insurance. Protects all
and each one.

BPI Mortgage Loan’ solutions.
Make here your simulation.

Personal loans BPI.
For the projects of your life.

200 M.€ to the innovative companies.
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= it broadened its offer of products and services tailored
for companies, offering them solutions with greater
efficiency, quality and service level, namely within the
ambit of Portugal 2020, the partnership with COSEC
and the FEI Inovagao line;

it boosted its positioning as the Bank for Agriculture,
giving incentives to cases of agricultural success in
Portugal in yet another edition of the National
Agriculture Award — a BPI and Cofina Group joint
initiative sponsored by the Ministry of Agriculture and
the Sea. It was leader in the accumulated total
amounts made available in various support lines to the
sector and renewed its sponsorship of the sector’s
main fairs and events: Feira Nacional da Agricultura,
Coléquio Nacional do Milho, Ovibeja and SISAB.

= Digital transformation
Customers are the core of the Bank’s operations, with
the quality and innovation of BPI's product range being
critical aspects for enhancing their satisfaction and for
bolstering their relationship with the Bank.

In 2015, BPI developed a number of transversal
initiatives involving the Bank'’s various digital channels
in order to optimise the user’s knowledge and
utilisation experience, as well as to enhance the
efficiency of the solutions available.

New functionalities were created while existing ones
were improved and redesigned, and business, work and
collaboration processes were simplified.

Of the vast array of initiatives undertaken, special
mention is made of GoBanking, a totally innovative
mobile commercial banking platform in the Portuguese
banking sector. This App permits the opening of an
account and the realisation of selling operations with
recourse to a digital signature, as well as access in real
time to all the information relating to the Customer and
the Bank’s product range, and to product and
investment specialists via video conference. Also
noteworthy was the introduction of click-to-call solutions
in the mobile version of BPI's site, the broader range of
Apps and the launching of Facebook pages devoted to
the BPI Capacitar and BPI Seniores awards.

Social responsibility

In 2015, BPI gave continuity its policy of commitment
and social actions, supporting the most diverse initiatives
in the fields of social solidarity, culture, education and
research, innovation and entrepreneurship.

The nature of BPI's involvement assumed various forms,
ranging from the grassroots development of social-value
projects, such as the BPI Capacitar and BPI Seniores
awards, to the continued support to existing entities.

The Bank for agriculture. My partner in Portugal 2020.
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Social responsibility

BPI interprets its social responsibility as the set of the
Institution’s duties and obligations towards the
community in which it operates and to the groups of
specific interests that depend on its operations:
Customers, Shareholders, Employees and Investors.

In this respect, the conduct of social responsivity assumes
multiple dimensions, starting at the outset with compliance
with the Law and applicable regulations, observance of its
own code of conduct, governance policy and respective
execution, the promotion of service quality, the policy of
enriching its human resources, the induction into the
company’s affairs and the support for its initiatives.

This chapter presents a summary of the Bank’s actions
relating to its backing for the company’s initiatives in
domains such as solidarity, culture, education and
research, innovation and entrepreneurship.

In these domains, the nature of BPI's involvement
assumes different forms, ranging from the grassroots
development of social-value projects to continued support
for existing entities. BPI is governed by the following
principles of action:

= support to institutions of acknowledged importance in
Portuguese society;

= which demonstrate the ability to become sustainable;

= from the standpoint of continuity and a long-term
commitment.

In 2015, the Bank once again stepped up its backing
for corporate social responsibility initiatives with a total
contribution of 4.81 million euro, spread over the areas
of social responsibility, culture, education, research,
innovation and entrepreneurship. Notwithstanding the
economic background, in the past 9 years the Bank has
contributed annually an average value of some

4.43 million euro.

BFA — Banco de Fomento Angola, in which BPI has a
50.1% stake, continued to sponsor major initiatives

through its social fund. At the end of 2015 the social
fund was valued at 16.8 million dollars.

In Mozambique, Banco Comercial e de Investimento, BCI,
in which BPI has a 30% interest, confirmed its support
for a number of initiatives in the fields of social
responsibility, culture and education.

SOCIAL SOLIDARITY
In 2015 in the social solidarity arena, the highlight was
the staging of the 6™ edition of the Prémio BPI Capacitar.

A total of 277 candidacies were recorded, the highest
number of all the editions realised so far, involving a total
donation of 700 thousand euro, 200 thousand euro more
than in the preceding editions. The recipients were

25 non-profit institutions which have as their mission
promoting the quality of life and the social integration of
handicapped or permanently disabled people.

The 1% award was given to BIPP — Solugdes para a
Deficiéncia, with a project directed at creating
sustainable employment for young handicapped people
and at guaranteeing their recognition as an active
workforce. Through the creation of internships and paid
employment in the agricultural area, it translates into an
innovative model, replicable and of great environmental
value.

BPI Capacitar — Fulfill dreams BPI Capacitar — See further
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Also noteworthy was the 3™
edition of the BPI Seniores

Award, destined to support

projects which promote the

social integration and active
involvement of persons over
the age of 65.

In 2015, the Prémio BPI
Seniores registered 713
candidacies, representing an
83% increase relative to the
1 edition and 23% more

. . BPI Seni . Better life lity.
than in the preceding year. eniores. etter e qualty.

The amount attributed also increased to 700 thousand
euro, up 40% on previous years.

In 2015 the recipients were 32 non-profit institutions,
covering more than 14 thousand direct beneficiaries. The
1 award was given, ex aequo, to the Associacdo de
Socorros Mutuos dos Artistas de Braganga with a

BPI Capacitar (enable) 2015 — winning projects
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programme to combat domestic violence amongst the
elderly and to the Associagdo de Estudantes da Faculdade
de Ciéncias Médicas de Lisboa with a project which
promotes the part-time care of elderly people by medical
students.

In total over the past 6 years, the BPI Capacitar and BPI
Seniores awards handed over 4.9 million euro for the
implementation of 184 social-inclusion projects, which
encompass some 58 thousand direct beneficiaries,
constituting one of the most prominent Corporate Social
Responsibility initiatives in Portugal.

2015 also saw the creation of the BPI Solidario award,
the purpose of which is to fund projects which promote
the improvement in the living conditions of the poor and
socially excluded. This award complements the support to
the segments already covered by the BPI Capacitar and
BPI Seniores awards — handicapped people and the
elderly; the launching of the Prémio BPI Solidario award
took place already at the start of 2016.

BPI Seniores (elder people) 2015 — winning projects



In the social solidarity area, the following initiatives also
merit mention:

= Solidarity Campaign —
Help a Child Smile —
which enabled offering for
the 4™ consecutive year
presents to around 20
thousand children from
450 regional solidarity
institutions; Christmas
trees in more than 580
BPI commercial areas and
central services were
decorated with a card

which had the present
which each child wanted Offer a happier Christmas.

to receive for Christmas; the presents were offered by the
Bank’s Customers and Employees; BPI participated by way
of a donation to each local institution and to institutions
operating at national level;

Renewal of the support to EPIS — Empresarios pela
Inclus@o Social, whose activities are centred on fighting
against school failure and drop-outs, thereby contributing
to the growth and development of young persons within
the context of human dignity, concentrating on education
and qualification at school, university and the workplace,
as the fundamental instrument for personal realisation and
social inclusion;

Other notable initiatives in this domain are the renewed
support to Fundac&o de Direitos Humanos Pro Dignitate
(human rights); to Crescer Ser — Associagdo Portuguesa
para o Direito dos Menores e da Familia (minors and
family law); to Associacé@o Bagos D'Ouro; to Novo Futuro —
Associacao de Lares para Criangas (foster homes); to
Centro de Acolhimento para Criangas Refugiadas (refugee
children); to Movimento ao Servigo da Vida (MSV) for
backing the Casa das Cores project; to Casa do Gaiato
(child shelter); to Federacé@o dos Bancos Alimentares
contra a Fome (food banks); to Instituto de Surdos da
Imaculada Conceigado (deaf people); Operagao Nariz
Vermelho; to Liga do Hospital D. Estefania; to BUS — Bens
de Utilidade Social; Associagao Portuguesa de Criangas
Desaparecidas (missing children); APELA — Associagdo
Portuguesa para a Esclerose Lateral Amiotréfica.

In Angola, the following initiatives sponsored by BFA
merit highlighting:

= Banco Alimentar Angola (food bank) —in 2015, BFA
maintained its support for BACFA in the campaign for
collecting food which had a voluntary component, in
which BFA Employees participated in the collection,
separation and weighing of foodstuffs; food items were
collected at various commercial establishments in
Luanda and were delivered to social solidarity
institutions, such as Centro Santa Barbara (Mama
Muxima), Dom Bosco, Horizonte Azul, Centro Arnaldo
Janssen, Centro de Reabilitagdo Nossa Sr.? da Boa Nova
and Associagao de Solidariedade a Terceira Idade (ASTI);

= Christmas Campaign “Give a toy, receive a smile”, with
the object of involving BFA Employees and the
community in general in a unique cause, entailed
donating a toy to the children of the Centro Arnaldo
Janssen and of the Hospital Pediatrico de Luanda; more
than 300 toys were collected during 5 days at a
commercial outlet — Kero and at Luanda bay.

In Mozambique, BCI continued to allocate a portion of its
revenues generated from the use of its “Daki” debit card in
transactions realised with Customers, channelling such
funds to supporting social solidarity causes and institutions
without any additional costs for the cardholders, granting
donations to numerous institutions / projects, namely:

= to the Ministry of Education and Human Development,
with the offer of 47 thousand books on Portuguese and
mathematics to basic teaching establishments
throughout the country;

= to Winnua, Lda., the company that ensures the daily
supply of soya milk to certain selected schools within
the ambit of the Nutritional Reinforcement Programme
to school-age children in the Zambézia province;

= to the Instituto Nacional de Gestdo de Calamidades
(national disaster relief) and to the Movimento da
Sociedade Civil, to relieve the emergency situation caused
by the flooding that occurred at the start of the year;

= to the Mozambique Reconstruction Project and the 11™
Gala Beneficente, promoted by Mozambique television;

= to other institutions such as ONGD Portuguesa
Estimulo, Pediatria dos Hospitais Gerais de Machava e
de Mavalane, Escola Comunitaria S. Vicente Paulo da
Malhangalene, Casa do Gaiato, Fundagao para a
Conservacao da Biodiversidade, Cooperativa
Ntumbuluku — Operagao Caco-Mafalala and Slive Lda.

Report | Social responsibility 27



CULTURE

BPI continued to support in 2015 leading national
institutions dedicated to the arts, such as the Museu de
Serralves and the Casa da Mdsica, of which the Bank is
the founder, and to Fundagao Calouste Gulbenkian, in
which it co-sponsored for the 14™ consecutive year to
cycle of Major Composers concerts.

= Sole patron of the Museu de
Serralves, which registered close
to 525 thousand visits in 2015,
the highest number ever.

Sponsor of the 2015 Annual
Major Exhibition “Monika
Sosnowska: arquitectonizacéo”,
the first exhibition in Portugal
dedicated to the works of this
renowned Polish artist, which
was attended by more than 107
thousand visitors.

Together celebrating
Patron of the “Serralves em Festa” contemporary art
— 40 hours of non-stop culture, with more than 110
activities, more than 200 cultural sessions, which set a

new public attendance record: 141 718 visitors.

Main Patron of the Casa da
Musica, which celebrated in
2015 its 10™ anniversary,
with more than 525
thousand visitors, of whom
261 thousand were
spectators.

Patron of the Sala Suggia,
known as the heart of the
Casa da Musica, with 150
thousand spectators.

Main Patron of the “Casa da Musica”

Patron of the festival “A volta do Barroco”, with a total
of 9 900 spectators.

Sponsor of the “Verdo na Casa”, a festival dedicated to
the summer season which included 75 concerts, 26 of
which were open air and of these two large concerts
staged on the Avenida dos Aliados which were attended
by a total of 69 300 spectators.
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= Patron of the cycle of Major Composers concerts
forming part of the 2015 Gulbenkian Music season,
which included 10 events with a total of around
11 thousand spectators.

Also worth mentioning was the renewed status of Patron
of the following: the Caramulo Museum, the Elvas
Museum of Contemporary Art, Centro Nacional de
Cultura, Teatro Viriato in Viseu, Fundacéo Casa de Mateus
and the backing given to the Foundations Fundagéo Luis
Miguel Nava and Julio Resende — Lugar do Desenho and
to the Teatro Micaelense.

In Mozambique, BCI maintained the support for certain
of the main socio-cultural initiatives such as the active
partner in enhancing and preserving the Nation’s artistic
treasure chest:

= principal sponsor of the BCl Mozambique Music Awards
(BCI MMA), an international platform showcasing local
artists and which in 2015 saw the number of sponsors
and partners grow, boosting its acceptance and
credibility amongst the artistic and critics community
and the public in general. In this sphere, a special
reference to the show “Apoteose” by the celebrated
choreographer and dancer Casimiro Nyussi;

sponsor of the 8" edition of the Marrabenta Festival,
the 2015 Gala Ngoma Mogambique, the Festival of
Timbila “M’saho 2015” and the summer festivals held
at the Zalala, Tofo, Barra and Lago Niassa beaches,
events with great public participation and with the
object of showcasing the artistic potential of traditional
and light Mozambican music. It also sponsored the
Maputo Classical Music season and the 2015 XIQUITSI
Project of the Associagao Cultural Kulungwana which
involved 150 children and teenagers from the City of
Maputo and outskirts;

patron of the National School of Music which permitted
offering 5 bursaries for the training of selected students
based on their talent and without the means to bear the
costs of attending courses at that establishment;

renewal of the long-term support to the National Song
and Dance Company, to the foundation Malangatana
Valente Ngwenya and to the Universidade Eduardo
Mondlane’s Cultural Department.



In partnership with AEMO — Associagao dos Escritores
Mogambicanos (association of Mozambiquan writers), BCI
awarded the BCI 2015 Annual Literature prize which has
already become a national hallmark in the literary arena
for the contribution which stimulates the publication of
literary works in Mozambique, and the promotion of its
critical reading by the public in general.

EDUCATION AND RESEARCH

In the education and research domain, BPI had at the
end of 2015 protocols in force with a total of 30 higher
learning institutions. Amongst these are the long-term
protocols with the Instituto Superior Técnico, where it
lends social support to PALOP (ex-colonies in Africa)
students and backing for the Técnico Science Garden, a
space dedicated to the scientific and environmental
dissemination of activities of a social, cultural, sporting
and integrated environmental nature on the IST's
Technological and Nuclear Campus; with the Foundation
for Science and Technology in funding for the Lisbon
MBA; with the Universidade Catélica Portuguesa; with the
Escola de Tecnologias Navais da Armada Portuguesa; with
the Universidade do Algarve, in the granting of 5
excellence bursaries in the amount corresponding to the
annual fees and in the awarding of prizes to the best
students from the Universidade do Algarve and
Universidade de Aveiro.

For the 5™ consecutive year, BPI promoted a series of
initiatives at public and private schools with students
aged between 8 and 14, addressing the “Importance of
Saving”, with the object of contributing actively to
bolstering training in financial matters.

In 2015, BPI renewed its support for the Fundagao
Cidade de Lisbhoa (Lisbon City Foundation), which has
been taking place for more than 5 years and is founded
on the granting of 10 annual study bursaries, in the
amount of 7 500 euro each awarded to 10 university
students from 5 African-speaking countries, preferentially
citizens of Angola and Mozambique.

Also noteworthy with the continued partnership with the
Ministry of Education and Science for the Cambridge
English for Schools project whose main purpose over the
medium term is to contribute to the widespread
certification of the population’s use of the English
language, conferred by one of the most prestigious
learning institutions in the world, the University of
Cambridge.

Mention is also made of the continued backing to Jus
Gentium Conimbrigae and to the Instituto de Direito
Penal Econémico e Europeu, both of the Law Faculty of
Coimbra University, as well as the cooperation with the
Associacao Escola Superior Biotecnologia of the
Universidade Catdlica.

In Angola, in these domains BFA maintained major
partnerships, namely:

= GEM Angola — GEM is the biggest independent survey
of entrepreneurship carried out around the world; it
analyses the relationship between the level of
entrepreneurship and the level of economic growth in
each participating country; BFA has been a partner in
this initiative since 2008 and, in 2015, presented the
project formally to the press;

MBA Atlantico — this is a training programme for senior
managers lectured in 3 Portuguese-speaking countries:
Angola, Brazil and Portugal; this initiative of the
Universidade Catélica de Angola, the Universidade
Catolica Portuguesa and the Pontificia Universidade
Catélica do Rio de Janeiro seeks to foster the exchange
of academic, professional and networking experience
between the managers from these 3 countries; BFA has
been supporting the MBA Atlantico course since its first
edition and, this year, for the 6™ consecutive time an
Employee of the Bank was selected to participate in the
programme.

In Mozambique, BCI undertook several initiatives aimed
at encouraging and rewarding merit and excellence
displayed by students attending medium and higher
courses at the country’s principal universities and
polytechnic institutes. The integration of young graduates
into curricular internships and professional positions in
BCl's various work areas constituted an integral part of
the support strategy to this sector.

INNOVATION AND ENTREPRENEURSHIP

In 2015, BPI supported and organised several initiatives
directed at fostering innovation and entrepreneurship,
amongst which:

= 4" edition of the National Agriculture Award, a joint
Cofina Group and BPI initiative, in partnership with the
Ministry of Agriculture and the Sea, the object of which
is to encourage and reward cases of success in the
Portuguese Agriculture, Agro-Industrial, Livestock and
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Forestry sectors, in the Large Companies categories
(winner Portucelsoporcel Florestal, S.A.); Small and
Medium-sized companies (winner Quinta do Vallado —
Soc. Agricola, Lda.); Associations / Cooperatives (winner
Cooperativa Unido Agricola CRL); young farmers (winner
Formigaleite, Lda.); new projects (winner Férmula da
Avo, Lda.); Innovation (winners ex aequo Micoflora, S.A.
and Bioinvitro Biotecnologia, Lda.);

the awarding for the 6™ year running of the BPI
Inovacdo Awards which reward ideas advanced by BPI
Employees in the categories Individuals and Divisions,
who advocate innovation as relates to the Bank’s
products, services or processes;

the launching of Academia BPI Empresérios e Negécios,
an idea that won the 2012 Innovation Prize in the
Divisions category and which in 2015, was put into
practice with the signing of a protocol with NOVA SBE;
directed at the Bank’s Employees, it entails an
integrated and permanent training programme with the
object of streamlining the commercial network’s
capability to keep abreast of Companies & Small
Businesses and in the granting of credit;

iTGROW — Software e Sistemas, ACE, an innovative
project in Portugal in which BPI and Critical Software
participate and which focuses on the recruitment and
training of talented young people in the IT area and
which in 2015 commemorated 5 years of activity; in this
sphere, a special word about the Programa Acertar o
Rumo (“find the right direction”), an initiative developed
by ITGROW in collaboration with the Coimbra University,
and is geared to the professional requalification of
unemployed people with university degrees and who wish
to focus on alternative career areas such a computer
programming; in 2015, BPI once again supported this
programme, which embarked on its 3" edition, giving the
BPI Merit prize to the best student of each edition of the
course, besides making available a credit line for training
adjusted to this programme’s needs;

the New Ideas Competition, a contest of Business Plans
for students of the Universidade Nova de Lisboa. The
initiative, which BPI backed for the 7" consecutive
year, is promoted by the Entrepreneurial Office of the
Universidade Nova de Lisboa with the object of
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affording students an integrated apprenticeship
experience that stimulates an entrepreneurial attitude
and a multi-disciplinary ethos; in the 2015 edition, BPI
was once again a member of the jury, composed of
professors and private-sector professionals, having
sponsored the granting of a cash prize in the overall
amount of 15 thousand euro split between the first 3
placed: the 1% BPI prize went to Outerpreter, an online
platform which puts entities that need linguistic support
at international telephone conferences into contact with
the most suitable interpreters for satisfying this need;
the 2™ prized was given to HyMe which is developing a
biosensor which alerts people to the need to drink water
when the hydration levels are below normal; the 3™
prize was given to Hopping Paws, a brand of healthy,
nutritional and hypoallergenic food for animals;

BPI supported for the 10™ straight year and since its
creation the PME Inovagdo Award COTEC BPI,
promoted by COTEC with the goal of honouring Small
and Medium-sized Companies (SME) with innovative
attitude and businesses, examples of the creation of
value for the country; in this edition, Palbit, S.A. and
TEKEVER - Tecnologias de Informacéo, S.A. were
distinguished as the most innovative SME’s in 2015,
taking into consideration their business strongly
founded on innovation, with a large export-oriented bias
and the generation of expressive economic results;

the 8" edition of FAZ — Innovative Entrepreneurial
Award for the Portuguese diaspora, promoted by COTEC,
which honours every year those Portuguese
businessmen and women who excel abroad as a result
of their entrepreneurial ability in their host countries. In
2015, the winner was José Neves, founder of Farfetch.
This is an online platform which comprises 400 luxury
boutiques in 27 countries and was recently valued at
one thousand million dollars, being the only Portuguese
start-up with such a high valuation.

In Mozambique, 2015 was marked by the renewal of the
partnership between BCI and the Clube Empresarial da
Gorongosa, and which seeks to back projects and
activities that are indispensable for the success of the
restaurants operating in the Gorongosa National Park, the
largest biodiversity conservation land mass in
Mozambique and one of the world’s largest.



Background to operations

PORTUGAL - ECONOMY AND MARKETS

GLOBAL AND EUROPEAN ECONOMIES

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) revised
downwards the forecast for global economic growth,
which meanwhile should continue along an upward
trajectory. World GDP is expected to have posted a 3.1%
expansion in 2015, with that institution projecting that
the global economy will return to the same growth rate as
that registered in the preceding year, i.e. +3.4%. The
more moderate growth trend can be ascribed to the more
timid and heterogeneous recovery noted in the developed
economies, whilst the performance of the emerging or
developing countries disappointed, evidencing the effects
of the principal commodities’ downward price cycle,
notably crude oil, or reflecting the effects of the
structural imbalances and the need to implement
appropriate economic policy measures with a restrictive
impact on activity. In a context in which, as foreseen, we
are witnessing a gradual deceleration in China’s economy
— the IMF forecasts GDP growth of 6.3% in 2016 and
6% in 2017 — negative performances are also expected
from Brazil — in 2016 it should record a new recession of
the same scale as that observed in 2015, -3.6% — Russia
(-1% in 2016) and South Africa (0.7% in 2016).

For the developed economies as a whole, the USA posted
a slight acceleration in growth (from 2.4% in 2014 to the
2.5% projected for 2015), where the gradual
improvement in the labour market and the robust
domestic demand justified the hike in the Federal
Reserve’s key interest rates in December — the first rise in
more than a decade. In the bloc of Eurozone countries,
the economy accelerated — from 0.9% in 2014 to a
projected 1.5% in 2015 — but the growth has remained
weak and disparate amongst the member states. Against
the backdrop of the significant and sustained drop in
inflationary expectations and fears of a depressive cycle
in activity and employment, the European Central Bank
stepped up the expansionist stance of its monetary policy.

European Central Bank implemented unconventional
measures

The ECB launched in March the purchase of long-term
assets which entails the acquisition of 60 thousand
million euro (th.M.€) of private and public debt (i.e.
quantitative easing). The acquisition of private debt
includes programmes involving the buying of covered
bonds and ABS, already started in 2014. The public-debt
purchase programme accounts for the greater part of the
60 th.M.€, totalling some 40 th.M.€ each month.
Initially the programme had as its indicative termination

date September 2016, but in December its termination
(which remains open) was extended to March 2017. In
addition, the array of eligible securities began to include
regional public debt and, in the post-programme period,
the securities in the ECB’s portfolio which have in the
meantime attained maturity will be reinvested. The
rollover of the debt in the ECB’s portfolio will have an
important impact on the perception of the trend in
funding costs from a long-term perspective, to the extent
that the maintenance of the ECB as the purchaser of last
resort guarantees that the interest rates on longer-dated
debt will continue to languish at low levels. Finally the
ECB also decided to reduce by 10 basis points the
interest rate on the marginal deposit facility, setting it at
-0.3%. The remaining key rates stood at 0.05% in the
case of the refi rate and at 0.3% in the case of the
interest rate on the marginal lending facility. The ECB’s
decision is attributable to the debility of the rise in
consumer prices associated with the renewed fall in the
price of crude oil in the second half of 2015.

In December asset purchases by the ECB amounted to
650 thousand million euro (th.M.€), of which 491.2
th.M.€, that is, 76% of the total, are public-debt
purchases. Besides the purchase of public debt, the ECB
carried out four liquidity-provision operations directed at
the credit market, placing up until the end of 2015
205.4 th.M.€, which must be added to the 212.4
th.M.€ placed in 2014. At the end of the year, the ECB’s
assets stood at 2.8 billion euro, 0.6 billion more than in
March, when it embarked on its public-debt buying
programme. It is projected that in March 2017, the date
scheduled for the programme’s termination, the central
bank’s assets will be situated at 3.7 billion euro,
equivalent to 33% of GDP. The prospect that monetary
policy will continue to be accommodative for an extended
period of time was mirrored in the fall in short-term
interest rates across all maturities of up to 6 months.
This trend is expected to continue at least until the
middle of 2016, with the three-month Euribor sliding to
levels of around -0.3 / -0.35% at the end of 2016,
according to the rates implicit in the three-month Euribor
futures rate and which incorporates the prospect that the
European Central Bank will cut the marginal fundraising
rate by a further 10 percentage points, fixing it at -0.4%.
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PORTUGUESE ECONOMY

In 2015, the economy advanced 1.5%, which represents
acceleration when compared to the 0.9% growth
observed in the previous year. This behaviour essentially
benefited from the greater dynamism of domestic
demand, primarily from the private consumption
component. For its part, the contribution from external
demand became more negative in 2015, which is
explained by the expansion in imports. When measured at
current prices, they grew 1.9% in the year, but if one
excludes the import of fuel, the expansion rate was
considerably more pronounced: 6.7%. Exports continued
to turn in a very positive behaviour, due to the
diversification of efforts and the reinforced position in
certain destinations with good growth prospects,
advancing by 3.6% despite the 33% plunge in sales to
Angola. In this scenario, the economy’s external financing
capability remained positive, although there was a decline
relative to 2014, reflecting in great part the reduced
capacity of households’ financing, explained by the
higher consumption. Additionally, the households’ savings
rate decreased sharply, being situated at roughly 4% of
disposable income. According to the European
Commission, the 2015 pubic deficit was situated at 3%
of GDP, above the fixed target. Considering the public
sector’s direct support to Banif’s resolution operation, the
public deficit is substantially higher, standing at 4.2% of
GDP. The public-debt ratio improved by 0.9 percentage
points, dropping to 129.1% of GDP.

Benefiting from the improved financing conditions, the
Treasury pursued a financing strategy aimed at extending
the useful life of Portuguese pubic debt and made the
early repayment of 8.4 th.M.€ of IMF loans under the
Economic and Financial Assistance Programme. The net
issues of T-Bonds during 2015 were situated at 12.9
thousand million euro, while the average maturity of the
issues realised during the year was 11.7 years. The cost
of public debt was situated at 3.5% in 2015, down 0.1
p.p. on 2014.

The average inflation rate stood at -0.3% in 2014.
Notwithstanding the weakness in domestic demand,
inflation‘s behaviour reflected the steep drop in oil prices
and the competitive gains achieved in recent years. This
scenario should boost the purchasing power of
households, thus underpinning consumption.
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The labour market behaved in a satisfactory manner, with
the estimated unemployment rate dropping to 11.8% in
December, 1.8 percentage points lower than the same
period of 2014. This improvement is explained by the
improved employer sentiment, but also by the carrying
out of structural reforms in the labour market, introducing
greater flexibility and reducing costs.

GDP growth
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Scenario for 2016

The European Commission estimates that the Portuguese
economy’s growth rate will accelerate to 1.6% in 2016,
with domestic demand continuing to be the main engine
driving growth. However, domestic demand’s contribution
could fall short of that registered in 2015, to the extent
that a scenario of greater internal and external
uncertainty could lead to more cautious behaviour on the
part of economic agents. Notwithstanding the current
government’s announced promise to devolve income,
private consumption could trend more moderately in
2016, given that the labour market is expected to turn in
a more subdued performance, thereby spurring the
inclination to divert the restored income to savings. The
maintenance of crude prices at low levels — the IMF
estimates that in 2016 these will be situated at 41.97
dollars per barrel, roughly 9 dollars lower than in 2015 —



will continue to be a factor underpinning the economy.
Nonetheless, in the current scenario, the risks are
trended towards the downside.

Financial system

In 2015 the financial system’s deleveraging process
continued with the loan / deposits ratio falling to 106%
in June 2015, down 1.2 percentage points on the
December 2014 figure and 60 percentage points lower
than in June 2010, when this ratio stood at its highest
level. This performance mirrors the fact that loans
advanced (including securitisation operations) maintained
in 2015 a contracting tendency, albeit at a more
moderate pace than in 2014, whilst deposits continued
to record a growth trajectory.

The recourse to ECB funding declined throughout 2015,
being situated at 26 th.M.€ at the end of the year, down
5 th.M.€ on the 2014 figure, equivalent to a year-on-year
drop of 17%, which compares with the 30% decrease for
the entire Eurosystem. Long-term funding operations
account for 67% of Portuguese banks’ total recourse to
the Eurosystem.

Loans

In 2015, loans advanced to residents contracted by
around 2.0% in annual average terms, 1.8 percentage
points lower than a year earlier. The contraction in
lending extended to all sectors with a 1.9% decrease in
loans advanced to non-financial companies and a 2.2%
drop in loans to individuals. The rate of decline in
lending decelerated during the course of the year and is
expected to stabilise during 2016.

Deposits

Deposits of the non-financial private sector expanded by
about 3.5% in annual terms during 2015, by virtue of
the approximate 6% growth in the placements of
non-financial companies and the increase in deposits of
individuals close to 3%.
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The financial market continued to be influenced not only
by the permanence / reinforcement of the leading central
banks’ ultra-expansionist policy, but also by the
materialisation of divergences in the tempo of activity in
the Anglo-Saxon and Eurozone economies. This state of
affairs was reflected in the contrasting positioning of the
major central banks with an impact on the behaviour on
the principal financial assets.

On the currency market, the dollar benefited from the
divergence between the economic cycles and monetary
policy. After having reached a peak of 1.3992, the
EUR/USD rate fell from 1.20 at the beginning of 2015 to
1.09 at the end of the year, which represents a
depreciation of some 10% on the part of the single
currency. In the early months of 2016, the trend changed
course, with the EUR/USD recovering to around 1.12.
Against the pound sterling, the euro lost 6% last year,
reflecting the strengthening of the British economy as
well as the prospects that the Bank of England will follow
the path of the North American Federal Reserve,
initiating in 2016 the cycle of normalising benchmark
interest rates.
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On the interbank market, the main trend was the fall in
Euribor rates to negative levels, initially only in the
shortest maturities, but which by the end of the year had
spread to all maturities up to six months. This movement
became more pronounced at the beginning of 2016 and
has extended to all maturities, reflecting the stepping up
of the ultra-accommodative posture of the ECB’s
monetary policy and the signalling that such posture
could be extended even further in 2016. At the close of
the year, the three-month Euribor rate was situated at
-0.13% and the six-month rate at -0.04%.

In the US, the signalling that the Federal Reserve was
initiating the cycle of normalising the fed funds rate was
reflected in an upward movement in the dollar Libor. In
fact, the three-month dollar Libor rate began the year at
0.26% and closed at 0.61%.

On the public-debt market, the yields on the principal
benchmarks remained at minimal levels, which in the case
of the US, contrasts with the more positive macroeconomic
landscape, and in Europe reflect the effects associated
with the ECB’s public-debt purchasing programme and the
fact that the inflation rate remains at extremely low levels.
At the end of the year, yields continued to be situated at
close to record lows. In the North American market, the
yield on the ten-year note fluctuated between 1.68% and
2.467%, with the minimum being observed in February
and the peak in June. In the Eurozone, the movement was
identical, but the levels considerably lower than in the US.
The 10-year German bund traded between an interval of
0.077% and 0.945% during the course of the past year,
closing the year at around 0.6%.

In the periphery’s sovereign-debt market, the risk
premiums remained contained when compared to those
observed in recent years, reflecting essentially the effect
of the ECB’s public-debt buying programme. Taking into
consideration the 10-year public debt security, the
premium demanded from Portugal began and ended the
year at roughly 190 basis points (b.p.), with the low
recorded in March (130 b.p.) and the high in July (250
b.p.). In Spain and Italy, the movements were identical
although the risk levels demanded are situated at lower
levels than those of Portuguese debt. In fact, in Spain
the risk premium stood at marginally above 100 bp and
in Italy slightly below that level. In Greece, the signing of

the third financial assistance programme in August 2015,

was reflected in a decline in the premium attaching to
Greek public debt to around 770 b.p., which contrasts
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with the levels in the region of 1 840 b.p. in July 2015.
At the start of 2016, in light of the uncertainty pervading
the financial markets, we are witnessing a widening of
the spreads on those countries’ debt securities.
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Equities market

Global overview

The year 2015 continued to be marked at global level by
expansionist policies aimed at fostering growth and
combatting deflation. In Europe in particular,
notwithstanding the uncertainty associated with the
political events in Greece, the macroeconomic indicators
presented improvements during the greater part of the
year. However, the start of an about-turn in monetary
policy in the US, signs of an economic slowdown in
China and the impact of the falling oil price on certain
emerging economies negatively affected the perception of
risk in the closing stages of 2015. In this context, the
benchmark Euro Stoxx 600 index closed the year gaining
7%, while the S&P500 — the principal North American
stock market index — ended 2015 with a drop of 1%.

Portugal and Spain — secondary market

In Portugal, the benchmark PSI-20 index rose by 11%
during 2015. The gains of 45%, 27%, 38%, 34% and
97% in the share prices of Jerénimo Martins, Galp, NOS,
EDPR and Altri respectively were the chief contributors to
this performance. In Spain, the IBEX35 index closed the
year retreating 7%, with the shares of Banco Santander
and Repsol posting a decline of 35%. As a consequence
of the volatility noted in the year and the disappearance
of certain major listed companies, such as BES or
Portugal Telecom, trading volumes decreased by 29% in
Portugal to 26 th.M.€. In Spain, volume climbed 7% to
833 th.M.€, benefiting from the country’s improved
economic outlook. The change in the volumes traded in
Portugal and Spain was lower than the global Stoxx
Europe 600 and S&P 500 indices (+21% and +34%,
respectively).

Portugal and Spain — primary market

The activity level on the primary (new issues) market in
Portugal was limited when compared to that noted in
Spain.

Of the POS (public offers for sale) carried out in Spain,
the following merit mention: AENA (3 875 M.€), Saeta
Yield (c.435 M.€), Naturhouse (c.72 M.€), Talgo

(c.570 M.€), Cellnex (c.1 950 M.€), and Euskaltel
(c.765 M.€). There were no primary market operations in
Portugal.

2015 saw the realisation of a number of capital increases
by companies on the Iberian market. In Portugal, the
most noteworthy was the capital increase carried out by
Mota Engil in the amount of 81 M.€ as part of the
delisting operation of Mota Engil Africa. In Spain,
Telefénica (3 050 M.£€.), Banco Sabadell (1 600 M.£€.)
and OHL (1 000 M.£.) carried out large-scale operations.
Also worth mentioning was the activity in the SOCIMIs
sector (investment vehicles in the real-estate sector in the
Spanish market) which resorted to capital increases in
the total amount of 2.5 th.M.€ in four separate
operations by the companies Merlin Properties, LAR
Inmobiliaria and Axiare Patrimonio.

There were no large-scale convertible bonds issues during

2015 on the Iberian primary market.
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ANGOLAN ECONOMY

Economic activity

According to the new estimates for the 2016 General
State Budget, Angola’s economic growth decelerated to
approximately 4.0% in 2015 after posting 4.8% growth in
2014. This performance can be attributed essentially to
the downswing in non-oil and gas activity, which in turn
was affected by the slowdown in all the other sectors, with
the exception of the diamond sector. In this manner, non-
oil GDP is estimated to have expanded by 2.4%.
Conversely, oil and gas GDP accelerated in 2015 to 7.8%
versus the 2.6% downturn in 2014. Spurring crude-oil
activity was the higher output of this resource, which rose
from 1.6 million barrels per day (mbd) in 2014 to 1.8
mbd in 2015, which permitted this sector to outperform
that of the preceding year. Even so, despite the
diversification drive, the Angolan economy’s performance
continues to be heavily dependent on the revenues from
the oil and gas sector, which in 2015 was once again
penalised by the plunge in oil prices on the international
markets.

20% growth in the energy sector, 4.6% in agriculture and
3.1% in manufacturing industry and in construction.
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Economic indicators and forecasts
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014° 2015F 2016F

Real Gross Domestic Product growth (yoy, %) 34 39 5.2 6.8 4.8 4.0 33

Qil sector (3.0) (5.6) 4.3 (0.9) (2.6) 7.8 4.8

Non-oil sector 7.8 9.7 5.6 10.9 8.2 2.4 2.7
Oil production (millions of barrels / day) 1.76 1.63 1.72 1.73 1.63 1.76 1.89
Price of Angolan oil (average, USD / barrel) 76.5 108.7 111.0 107.5 100.7 51.8 45.0
Consumer Price Index (y-o-y change, end of period) 15.3% 11.4% 9.0% 7.7% 7.5% 14.3% 13.0%
Fiscal balance (% of GDP) 8.1 10.3 6.7 0.3 (6.6) (4.2) (5.5)
Non-oil primary fiscal balance (% of non-oil GDP) (47.4) (51.1) (53.7) (47.7) (42.8) (21.2) (19.7)
Net foreign exchange reserves (in thousand millions of USD,
end of period) 19.3 27.5 32.2 32.2 27.8 24.7 18.6
Average exchange rate (AKZ / USD) 919 94.0 95.6 96.9 98.5 120.7

Source: BNA, Finance Ministry Angola, FMI. E — Estimated. P — Forecasts of the Finance Ministry.

Table 5

Note: the table data for the economic growth was published by the Finance Ministry, and differ from data published by the National Statistics’ Institute.

External sector

The trade balance recorded an improvement during the
course of 2015 according to quarterly data published by
BNA up till the 3" quarter of the year, reflecting the
favourable behaviour of exports. The IMF estimates,
however, a contrasting performance, expecting a decline
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in the trade balance to 16 th.M.US$ in 2015, the
equivalent of 15.7% of GDP (vs. 23.6% of GDP in
2014), which was responsible for the deterioration of the
current account deficit to 7.6% of GDP (vs. -1.5% in
2014). In 2016, the trade balance should climb to
17.5% of GDP, which performance is explained by the



expansion in exports. This recovery should translate into
an improvement in the current account deficit to 5.6% of
GDP.

After having attained a historical maximum in mid-2013,
net foreign reserves have dropped in the past two years,
registering a 10% fall in December 2015 relative to a year
earlier to be situated at 24.6 th.M.US$ (according to BNA
data). The decrease in international reserves reflects the
drop in crude-oil export receipts. BNA carried out gradual
devaluations of the Kwanza against the North American
dollar throughout 2015. Notwithstanding the domestic
currency’s depreciation, the large divergence between the
official exchange rates and those ruling on the informal
market suggest that the liquidity problems in the
foreign-exchange market are not yet fully resolved.
Moreover, the idea is reinforced that the current level of
foreign reserves exceeds that observed prior to the oil
crisis, which makes the national economy more protected
in the present context of falling oil prices.

Public accounts

According to the Ministry of Finance’s latest estimates,
the 2015 budget deficit should be situated at 4.2% of
GDP, compared with the expected deficit of 6.6% for
2014. Oil and gas taxes continue to represent a very
significant percentage of tax receipts, although the
taxation base has now been broadened and increasingly
encompasses non-oil activities. Oil and gas tax receipts
(which represent roughly 57% of total tax receipts)
posted a decline of some 46% when compared to the
2014 figure, reflecting the downward spiral in oil prices.
In parallel, there was a trend towards the increased
weight from the non-oil sector on total taxation receipts
(43% vs. 28% in 2014), the first-mentioned rising by
around 7% relative to the 2014 figure. On the spending
side, this is expected to contract by about 28% relative
to 2014.

The 2016 State Budget assumes a GDP growth rate of
3.3% and an average oil price per barrel of 45 US$. In
this respect, the deficit should reach 5.5% of GDP,
evidencing an 8% increase in receipts relative to the
expected figure for 2015 and a 14% increase on the
expenditure side. Even so, in terms of sectorial

breakdown, the concern will continue to be focused on
the allocation of considerable amounts for social sectors,
namely for education, health and social security.

According to official estimates, public debt should climb
to 49.7% of GDP in 2016 compared with a ratio of
40.5% of GDP in 2015, increasing the recourse to
external financing. The proportion of external financing
has been rising, but the risks relative to their
sustainability appear to be relatively contained given that
the chief source of the country’s revenues — crude oil — is
also denominated in dollars. Angola made its debut on
the international financial market in 2015 with the issue
of 1.5 th.M.US$ of sovereign debt securities with a
10-year maturity and a yield of 9.5%. This issue was an
important step towards Angola’s entry into the
international capital markets and for the diversification of
the government’s funding sources. The investors’
receptiveness was extremely positive, with demand
outstripping supply by a factor of five. Fitch classified the
bond issue with a B+ rating and stable outlook.

Placements of Central Bank Securities and
Treasury Bills

Placement interest rates Amounts placed

% th.M.AKZ
16 160
12 120
8 80
: I
4 40 I
I !
0 0 1 l : : I I .
2014 2015 2014 2015
Chart 14 Chart 15
— 364 days B 364 days
— 182 days B 182 days
— 91 days 91 days
— 63 days B 63 days

Source: Angolan Central Bank (BNA).

Report | Background to operations 37



Inflation and interest rates

Following the historical lows recorded midway through
2014, the annual inflation rate returned to double-digit
figures, fuelled by several factors. The Luanda inflation
rate (which serves as the benchmark for monetary policy)
surged by 6.8 percentage points during 2015, to stand at
14.3% in the final month of the year. Inflationary
pressures resulted above all from the kwanza’s sharp
depreciation against the dollar, as well as the introduction
of new customs duties midway through 2014, which led
to an increase in the prices of certain imported goods,
not to mention the introduction of import quotas for
certain products. Besides these factors, it is estimated
that the successive cuts in fuel subsidies have also
exerted significant pressure on the general level of prices.

In light of the inflationary pressures and the local
currency’s depreciation, the BNA adopted a more
restrictive monetary policy in 2015, which translated
itself into a hike in the benchmark rate (BNA rate) to
11% at the end of the year, after having opened the year
at 9%. The BNA also decided to introduce other
measures to halt the growth in credit, and with this
control, the rise in prices, which included the hike in the
interest rate on the permanent lending facility to 13%,
the elimination of the interest rate on the permanent
overnight liquidity-absorption facility and the adoption of
the 7-day permanent liquidity-absorption facility (1.75%).
More recently, the BNA has once again revised its
monetary policy interest rates, raising the BNA rate by 100
basis point to 12% and the liquidity-provision rate to 14%.

Banking sector

Total lending to the economy posted annual average
growth of 0.7% in 2015, which compares with growth of
some 15.3% in 2014. The trend in lending resulted from
an increase in loans to the private sector, which grew by
0.9% in annual average terms, whereas loans to the
public sector (excluding Central Administration) suffered
a 3% decrease.
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A monthly drop of around 13% in loans to the economy,
recorded in December 2014 that should possibly reflect
the impact on the financial system’s balance sheets of
BESA impairments’, weighed significantly in the evolution
of loans. This drop reflected in the maintenance of the
low yoy growth rates throughout 2015, returning to the
two-digits-level at the end of the year (17.7% yoy in
December).

Deposits grew on average by around 11% in 2015 when
compared with the previous year. The weight of deposits
denominated in foreign currency on total deposits
declined from 36% at the end of 2014 to 34% in
December 2015.

Loans’ evolution
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Deposits’ evolution
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MOZAMBIQUE ECONOMY

Economic activity

The macroeconomic landscape in Mozambique remained
favourable in 2015, albeit with economic activity cooling
down when compared with the levels noted in the past

4 years when growth rates were in excess of 7%.
According to preliminary data, the economy expanded
6.3% in 2015. This behaviour essentially reflected a
deceleration in the influx of foreign investment allied to a
less expansionist fiscal policy. Meanwhile economic
activity continued to be spurred by the dynamism
associated with the mega projects and the development of
infrastructures, which is mirrored in the other sectors of
activity, notably the expansion of manufacturing industry
and the energy sector. 2015 was also marked by the
recovery of activity in the primary sector relative to the
contraction observed in the preceding year due to climatic
factors, a sector that still accounts for about 1/3 of the
economy and, therefore, a major contributor to its growth.
Accordingly, despite the slowdown in growth, Mozambique
continues to demonstrate that it is one of the principal
economies of sub-Saharan Africa in expansion, with
growth rates oscillating in the region of 6-7%.

External sector

The external accounts continue to present a marked
imbalance in view of the need to resort to external
savings in order to finance investments in the natural
resources exploration sectors, even though the bulk of
this investment continues to be financed by way of
Foreign Direct Investment. The external accounts’ deficit
should remain as long as the construction of the liquefied
natural gas units are in progress and until the export of
LNG commences. Over the medium term, the revenue
from the exports of other projects which are now in a
more advanced phase of completion, notably the coal

and gas sector, could contribute positively to alleviating
the trade deficit. During the first three quarters of 2015,
revenue from the export of the mega projects’ operations
were affected by the fall in raw material prices on the
international markets and by logistical constraints. On the
other hand, expenditure associated with imports also
registered a decrease but on a smaller scale, leading to a
deterioration in the current account deficit during this

period.
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Public accounts

Fiscal policy was less expansionist in 2015, although an
improvement of the deficit is expected to occur to -6% of
GDP! relative to the -10.6% of GDP in the previous year.
The 2016 budget once again places the public finances
on a more sustainable trajectory through the reduction in
the deficit to -4.0% of GDP. Despite the public debt still
being deemed to be at sustainable levels (according to
IMF criteria), the borrowing posture adopted by the public
sector has been more aggressive. Besides this, the form
of deficit financing has also been changing, resorting
increasingly to non-concessional and external loans to the
extent that donations have been diminishing. In this
context, the ratio of public debt to GDP should remain
high at a time when the risk relating to external public
debt also increases in the wake of the metical’s
depreciation against the US dollar.

1) Source: IMF, Country Report 16/ 9.
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Financial sector, deposits and loans

The currency stabilisation of recent years has been an
important factor in keeping the rise in the general price
level at a modest pace; however, the pressure on the
balance of payments since 2014 resulted in a strong
depreciation of the local currency. In this context, the
stock of foreign reserves also ended up suffering a
significant contraction, from 2.88 th.M.US$ at the end of
2014 to 1.97 th.M.US$ in November 2015. The effects
of the devaluation translated into a rise in the inflation
rate, which should continue to be evident during 2016.
Anticipating this effect, the Bank of Mozambique
immediately adopted a more restrictive monetary policy,
leading to an increase in the principal monetary policy
rates (the benchmark rate climbed to 9.75%) and an
increase in the compulsory reserves coefficient to 10.5%.
The rate of lending expansion to the private sector in
2015 continued to be robust, around 27% between
January and November, relative to the 24% growth in the
same period of 2014.



Domestic Commercial Banking

INDIVIDUALS AND SMALL BUSINESS BANKING

Individuals and Small Business Banking handled at the
close of 2015 1 670 thousand accounts, (+1.4% more
than the number noted at the end of the previous year),
being responsible for a portfolio of Customer Resources of
23 792 M.€ and a Loans and Guarantees portfolio in the
amount of 13 325 M.€.

At the end of 2015, Individuals and Small Business
Banking's physical distribution network comprised a total
of 495 branches and 39 Investment Centres geared to
serving high net worth Customers or those with the
potential to accumulate financial assets.

CUSTOMER RESOURCES

At 31 December 2015 Individuals and Small Business
Banking's total Customer resources stood at 23 792 M.€.
Excluding the securities portfolios of third parties,
Resources amounted to 22 145 M.€, and evidenced a
+2.9% increase. The Bank’s market share in Customer
resources advanced by 1 p.p. in 2015 to 9.6%.

Customer resources Amounts in M.€

2014 2015 A%
Sight deposits 41777 57358 37.3%
Time deposits 10560.1 78740 (25.4%)
Bonds and structured
products! placed with
Customers 584.0 9719 66.4%
o.w. Indexed Deposits 142.1 690.5 386.0%
PPR? 1207.6 967.4  (19.9%)
Insurance capitalisation® 32616 37619 15.3%

On-balance sheet resources 19 791.1 19 310.9 (2.4%)

Unit trust funds® 1089.8 1806.7 65.8%
PPR* 6474 1027.2 58.7%
Off-balance sheet resources 1737.2 2833.9 63.1%
Sub-total 21 528.3 22 144.8 2.9%
Corporate bonds held by

Customers 861.6 331.7 (61.5%)
Other Customer securities 12788 13159 2.9%
Other Customer resources® 21404 16476 (23.0%)

23 668.7 237925 0.5%
Table 6

Total Customer resources

1) Guaranteed-capital and limited-risk bonds and indexed deposits (guaranteed capital).
2) PPR (retirement savings) in the form of capitalisation insurance.

3) Excludes PPR.

4) PPR in the form of unit trust funds.

The behaviour of resources in 2015 was marked by:

= the expansion in Sight Deposits and the contraction in
Time Deposits against a backdrop, common to the
market as a whole, of the decrease in the remuneration
of time deposits;

= the 500 M.€ increase in Capitalisation Insurance;

= the 717 M.€ increase in BPI Unit Trust Funds, with
special mention of the trend in the Money Market Funds
and the Flexible Funds;

= the 548 M.€ expansion of the Indexed Deposits.

Amongst the marketing initiatives realised in 2015 the
most noteworthy were the commercialisation drives
promoting Capitalisation Insurance, BPI Capitalizacao,
BPI Multi-Solugées and BPI Multi-Solugbes Nao
Residentes, the launching of Indexed Deposits and 3 new
flexible funds: BPl Moderado, BPI Dinamico and BPI
Agressivo, which offer their participants the access to a
diversified asset management with differing risk profiles.

CUSTOMER LOANS

At 31 December 2015, the individual and small business
Customers’ loan and guarantees portfolio amounted to

13 325 M.£€. This portfolio registers a stabilisation
(+0.2%) in 2015, interrupting the negative behaviour of
the past few years. In fact, in the 2™ half of the year, the
loan and guarantees portfolio expanded by 97.2 M.€
whereas in the 1% half of the year it recorded a decrease
of 70.3 M.£.

Loans to individuals posted a 185 M.€ decrease (-1.6%).
Even so, BPI records a slight improvement in its market
share, from 9.6% in 2014 to 9.8% in 2015.

Loans channelled to small businesses expanded by
206 M.€, well above the 2.7 M.€ increase observed in
2014.

5) Includes third party funds and structured products placed with Customers, Excludes BPI stocks.
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Customer loans and guarantees Amounts in M.€

2014 2015 A%

Loans to individuals

Mortgage loans! 11022.0 108123 (1.9%)

Personal loans? 553.8 575.8 4.0%
Credit cards® 165.2 1629  (1.4%)
Car finance 103.1 108.6 5.3%

Loans to individuals 11 844.1 11 659.6 (1.6%)

Loans to small businesses

Commercial loans* 1051.0 12446 18.4%
Equipment leasing 37.6 50.7 34.9%
Property leasing 252.5 249.6 (1.2%)
Factoring 49 7.4 52.1%

1346.0 15523 15.3%
13 190.1 13 211.9 0.2%

Loans to small businesses
Total loan portfolio

Guarantees and sureties 108.3 1135 4.8%
Total 13 298.4 13 325.3 0.2%
Table 7

Individuals and Small Businesses Banking
Loans and guarantees Customer resources
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218 215 22.1
200 199
B3
| | 1I7 133 133
11 12 13 14 15 11 12 13 14 15
Chart 20 Chart 21

W Off-balance sheet
B On-balance sheet

B Other loans and guarantees
W Mortgage loans

Mortgage loans

At the close of 2015, the mortgage-loan portfolio stood at
10 812 M.£, still evidencing a slightly negative trend
(-1.9%), albeit at the slower rate than in the preceding
year.

The contracting of new loans practically doubled,
climbing from 313 M.€ in 2014 to 590 M.€ in 2015,
although this figure was still less than the amount of the
portfolio’s repayments in the year.

Personal loans
The personal loans portfolio rose by 4.0% in 2015,
reaching 576 M.€ at the end of the year.

New loans contracted totalled 235 M.€, which
corresponds to 45.7% growth relative to 2014.

In 2015, the commercialisation of loans associated with
non-financial products proceeded in a very positive
manner, having generated 18% growth in the number of
products placed and 28% growth in the volume of
commissions when compared to the previous year.

Motor car finance

The motor car finance portfolio relating to Individuals and
Small Business Banking Customers totalled 109 M.€ at
the close of 2015, corresponding to growth of 5.3%.

The contracting of new loans in 2015 registered 51.7%
growth, which mirrors the increase in the sales of motor
vehicles on the market and the consequent higher
demand for finance.

1) Loans secured by fixed property. Corresponds primarily to home loans and loans for home alterations.

2) Includes consumer loans and credit lines made available for privatisations.
3) Includes outstanding credit of non-Bank Customers.

4) Includes overdrafts, current account loans, discounted bills receivable and other loans which form part of the loans products tailored mainly for sole traders and small businesses.
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Commercial loans, leasing and factoring

The commercial loans, leasing and factoring portfolio
expanded 15.3% in 2015 to total 1 552 M.€ at the end
of the year.

In 2015 BPI maintained as priority segments for action
the export and agricultural sectors, and in general
Customers with good risk indicators.

These strategic segments were the target of certain major
external initiatives, including the conference cycles
#2015 National Agriculture Award”, directed at the
agricultural sector, and the “BPI Innovation gatherings”,
realised as part of the various initiatives aimed at
supporting innovation and entrepreneurship which Banco
BPI has been promoting. Other events were also held at
which topics were debated relating to the backing for
exports and financing for companies.

During 2015, BPI continued to provide financing for
small and medium-sized companies with competitive
conditions through the principal programmes launched by
the government, with special mention of the PME
Crescimento 2014 and PME Crescimento 2015 credit
lines, including:

= the contracting under the PME Crescimento 2014 and
PME Crescimento 2015 lines of 3 352 operations in
the overall amount of 181 M.€, with Customers of the
individuals and small business network;

= in global terms, since the launch of the PME Investe /
Crescimento credit lines, BPI has contracted 29 452
operations in the amount of 2 547 M.€, thereby
making BPI the leader with an 18.4% market share.

As regards to the PME Lider (Programa Fincresce) and
PME Exceléncia classifications, BPI continued to assume
a sustained leadership position, attaining at the end of
2015, market shares of 28% and 40%, respectively.

At the level of the individuals and small business
network, 1 083 PME Lider and 312 PME Exceléncia
status awards were made.

The Portugal 2020 incentives system, by representing an
opportunity for the development of investment projects,
also assumed great importance in 2015 from the
commercial action perspective, with the object of
supporting entities with approved projects.

1) Outstanding owed by Individuals and Small Business Customers and non Customers.

CREDIT AND DEBIT CARDS

At the end of 2015, Banco BPI had a portfolio of

487 thousand credit cards, -6.1% less than at the end of
2014. Billing increased 1.2% in 2015.

Banco BPI ended 2015 with 1 114 thousand debit
cards, down -0.3% on the December 2014 figure.
Accumulated billing posted a +9.2% increase, to be
situated at 6 668 M.€.

Credit and debit cards
Selected indicators

2014 2015 A%
Credit cards
No. of credit cards at
the end of the year (x th.) 519.0 487.4 (6.1%)
Billing (M.€) 983.1 995.3 1.2%
Loan portfolio (M.€)* 165.2 1629  (1.4%)
Debit cards
No. of debit cards at the
end of the year (x th.) 11177 11143 (0.3%)
Billing (M.€) 6103.3 6667.7 9.2%

Table 8

INSURANCE

As part of the strategic partnership with Allianz Portugal,
Banco BPI commercialises a diversified range of
insurance directed at Individuals, Companies and Small
Business (sole proprietors and self-employed people)
Customers.

In Individuals and Small Business Banking there were
some 736 thousand policies in the portfolio at the close
of 2015, considering the isolated-sale and credit-linked
insurance products. The associated commission totalled
41.3 M.€, which corresponds to 5.0% annual growth.

During 2015, isolated-sale insurance grew by 8.3% in
terms of the number of policies to 301 thousand, thanks
to the contribution from the dynamic sales promotion of
business-related insurance (small and medium-sized
companies, sole proprietors and self-employed
professionals) and health insurance, the comprehensive
range of specialised insurance (Personal and Company
Public Liability) and the reformulation of the current
product range (Multirriscos PME and Allianz Casa).
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INVESTMENT CENTRES

BPI has a network of 39 Investment Centres, present in
the principal district capitals of the country, specially
conceived for serving affluent Customers, that is,
individual Customers with high potential for accumulating
financial wealth. At the end of 2015, the trading volume
accompanied by this specialist network amounted to
5569 M.€.

BPI's Investment Centres are manned by teams of
Financial Advisors trained to provide a personalised
advisory service in the management of each Customer’s
day-to-day financial affairs. In this domain, it is vitally
important to select investment solutions suited to each
Customer, to plan for retirement and to have access
under preferential conditions to BPI’s entire range of
credit products and banking services.

Within the context of the market decline in the return on
risk-free investments, the opportunity costs of investing in
medium and long-term investment solutions fell
significantly, such as unit trust funds and capitalisation
insurance. The increased recourse to these types of
solutions during 2015, always tailored to the Customer’s
profile and the recommended asset allocation, resulted in
growth of 25% and 60% in the volumes allocated to unit
trust funds and capitalisation (unit-linked) insurance.

Turning to bonding with Customers, 2015 saw a further
increase in the number of products per Customer, with
the special contribution from the isolated-sale insurance
policies — which posted 19% growth — the 22% growth in
salary-domiciled (payday) accounts, and loans associated
with non-financial products, where the volume placed
recorded 37% growth. Also noteworthy was the growth in
the contracting of new loans, which posted +58% growth
relative to 2014.

1) Includes portfolio of third-party securities held by Customers.
2) Does not include the French branch.

44 Banco BPI | Annual Report 2015

The renovation of IT equipment utilised by the
commercial teams enabled the implementation of a set of
new digital tools for Customer attendance, opening the
way for a greater dematerialisation of financial advisory
and selling processes, the greater mobility of the
commercial teams and, consequently, improved efficiency
and service quality.

NON RESIDENTS

The Non Residents Division supports Individuals and
Small Business Banking in linking to the Portuguese
emigrant communities and to Portuguese descendants
not living in Portugal.

Integrated into this structure is the branch in France
which has 10 agencies and 1 representative office. The
Non Residents Division also has 8 representative offices
in 7 countries for providing local support to the
communities.

At the end of 2015, the non-residents’ segment of
Individuals and Small Business Banking was responsible
for a portfolio of resources'?, of 4 872 M.€ (+3.5%
relative to 2014) and a loan book? of 513 M.€ (+3.5%
relative to 2014), representing 20.4% of the resources
and 3.9% of the loans attributable to Individuals and
Small Business Banking.

The French branch had at the end of 2015 a resources
portfolio of 222 M.€ (+4.7% relative to 2014) and a
Customer loans portfolio of 76 M.€ (-9.2% relative to
2014).



PRIVATE BANKING

At the end of December 2015, BPI Private Banking’s Private Banking
business volume was 5 919 M.€, representing a 10.8% Selected indicators Amounts in M.€
advance when compared to the previous year. The 2014 2015 A%
canvassing for new Customers resulted in an 11% Discretionary management and
increase relative to the initial Customer base. advisory services 1 4595 4904 67%
Stable investments
under custody 2 565 791 39.9%
Assets under discretionary management and advisory Loans and guarantees portfolio | 3 184 o4 219%
mandate, in the amount of 4 904 M.€, registered 6.7% Business volume == 1103]| 4 5344 5919 10.8%
growth when compared to December 2014, with the Table 9

volume under discretionary management expanding by
74.9% in this period. Stable investments under custody,
with a value of 791 M.€, were 39.9% higher. The loans
and guarantees portfolio increased by 21.9% to 224 M.€
at the end of the year.

Against a market backdrop marked by greater volatility
and very low interest rates, Customers increasingly sought
a gradual diversification of solutions for their investments
through professional management, approximating and
adapting their portfolios to the recommended asset
allocation.

Accordingly, 2015 saw a decrease in the volume
allocated to Bonds and Other Securities, with a
corresponding increase in investments in BPl Funds and
Capitalisation Insurance, with the latter group of products
posting 47% growth in relation to December 2014.
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CORPPORATE BANKING, INSTITUTIONAL BANKING AND PROJECT FINANCE

BPI registers in 2015 a rise in its market share in lending
to the universe of non financial companies and in
particular to exporters, against a background of a tenuous
upswing in investment which proved to be inadequate to
foster the expansion of loans in the economy.

The strong proximity to
companies continued to be
acknowledged in market
surveys, in particular in the
2015 edition of DATA E
(Market Survey, 2015), in
which BPI registered an
excellent positioning.
Companies rate BPI the
“Best bank for
Companies”, with
leadership, amongst others,
in the indicators:

MELHOR BANCO
PARA AS EMPRESAS.
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Best bank for companies
= Best overall for

companies (BPI leads with an improvement of one
position relative to 2014);

= Most suitable products for companies (BPI leads with
an improvement of one position relative to 2014).

Additionally in this same survey 19.4% of the companies
identified BPI as its Principal Bank (BPI in 2™ position
with +2.3 p.p. than in 2014).

In general terms, the implementation of the strategy
aimed at supporting companies was founded on the
following aspects:

= support through a specialist network and teams totally
dedicated to accompanying companies;

= sustained and continued leadership in the aggregate of
the PME Investe / Crescimento lines (2015 was the 8™
year of leadership in these lines) and in the accumulated
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activity of the Mutual Guarantee Companies;

= strong dynamism within the ambit of Portugal 2020 and
PDR 2020: supporting the candidate projects, creation
of specific offers, organisation of training and
clarification sessions;

= financing innovative companies with less than 500
workers, within the context of the partnership with the
EIF / EIB, via the BPI / FEI Inovaggo Il line. This is the
first line in Portugal falling under the Horizonte 2020
Programa-Quadro comunitario de Investigacéo e
Inovagdo — (European Framework for Research and
Innovation — more specifically of InnovFin;

= keeping abreast of the needs of export companies with
the launching of specific credit lines — “Commercial
Credit for Exporters” (in PME Crescimento 2015), and
the “Angolan Internationalisation Line”, in tandem with
the reinforced placing of BPI-COSEC credit insurance;

= strengthened position as the “Bank for Agriculture”,
maintaining sustained leadership in the main credit lines
for agriculture;

= continued pro-activeness in the placing of the JESSICA
Funds, having approved the financing corresponding to
100% of the funds made available in terms of the
mandate awarded by the EIB;

= launching of BPI Tesouraria JA, a combination of very
flexible short-term credit solutions earmarked for
financing the working capital needs and to compensate
time lags between payments and receipts. It permits
financing purchase and sale operations involving goods
or services on the national market by means of: (i) Early
payment of receipts from commercial operations; (ii)
Financing the acquisition of raw materials, commodities
or other payments needed for the development of the
respective activity.



The Bank maintained a very stringent policy in the
analysis of credit risk, as well as practices or processes
which ensure the permanent accompaniment and
monitoring of risk on the part of the commercial
structure.

At the end of 2015, the loan portfolio of Corporate
Banking, Institutional Banking and Project Finance
Clients totalled 7 295 M.€.

Resources amounted to 2 316 M.€, reflecting a 5.9%
rise relative to 2014.

Corporate Banking, Institutional Banking

and Project Finance Amounts in M.€

2014 2015 A%

Loan portfolio

Corporate loans 36542 3831.7 4.9%

Large companies 14199 14455 1.8%
Medium-sized companies 22343 2386.2 6.8%
Project Finance — Portugal 11547 1161.0 0.5%

Madrid branch 1306.1 9436 (27.8%)

Project Finance 634.2 557.3  (12.1%)
Companies 671.9 386.3 (42.5%)
Public sector 14247 13588 (4.6%)
Total 7 539.8 7 295.0 (3.2%)
Resources! 2186.8 2 316.3 5.9%
Table 10

In leasing, factoring and confirming, the high growth
rates recorded in the preceding year continued to prevail
in 2015. It is worth highlighting the 76% growth in new
contracting of Leasing business (equipment and real
estate), with special reference to Real Estate Leasing with
98% growth. As regards Factoring and Confirming, the
growth rate was 9%, with new Confirming business
written posting a 49% rise.

1) Includes sight and term deposits.

Specialized corporate loans Amounts in M.€

2014 2015 A%

Leasing (contracting) 126 222 76.2%
Equipment Leasing 76 123 61.8%
Real-estate Leasing 50 99 98.0%
Factoring and Confirming 583 638 9.4%
National Factoring 311 248  (20.3%)
International Factoring 52 62 19.2%
Confirming 220 328 49.1%
Table 11

COMPANIES AND LARGE CORPORATIONS

At the end of 2015 the Customer loans portfolios relating
to the Medium-sized and Large Corporations segments
amounted to 2 386 M.€ and 1 446 M.€, respectively,
which correspond to increases of 6.8% and 1.8% when
compared with the previous year.

It is worth underlining the good performance noted in the
second half of 2015, with loans to Medium-sized and
Large Companies posting a 5% expansion. Both the
segments performed very positively, with growth rates of
5% in the Large Corporations segment and 6% in the
Medium-sized Companies segment relative to June 2015.
On the other hand, BPI pursued its strategy of reducing
exposure at the Madrid Branch.

BPI continued in 2015 to lend support to large-scale
companies in the mounting and placing, public and
private, of bonds. This strategy affords alternative sources
of financing, complementing the granting of direct loans.

In 2015 BPI participated as organiser / lead manager or
placer in 9 bond issues, with national and international
placings of issues for Large and Medium-sized
Companies.

This activity in 2015 was recognised by the Euronext
Lisbon Awards 2016, with BPI in the bonds category
being distinguished as the “No. 1 Corporate Bond
House” and “Most Active Trading House in Bonds”.
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INSTITUTIONAL BANKING AND STATE BUSINESS
SECTOR

Loans to Public Sector Clients amounted to 1 359 M.€
at the close of 2015, which represents a 5% year-on-year
decrease.

PROJECT FINANCE

The Project Finance segment’s loan portfolio presented at
the close of 2015 an amount of 1 718 million euro,
translating into a 4% contraction relative to the preceding
year, which is explained by the smaller portfolio
domiciled at the Madrid Branch.

The portfolio’s behaviour reflects the conjugation of
ordinary repayments, early repayments, sale operations
and other disbursements contracted recently on the
domestic market.

After a period strongly influenced by the macroeconomic
landscape and, namely, the suspension of the launching
of new public-investment projects under the
public-private partnership regime, the Project Finance
market has given some signs of an upturn. It has thus
been possible to capture new operations in Portugal, in
particular in the renewable energies sector, without
prejudice to adhering to a strategy of greater selectivity in
the financing of projects, and in the reinforced
involvement in monitoring the loans and guarantees
portfolio under management.
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It is worth highlighting BPI’s involvement in the
structuring, mounting and financing of the acquisition by
First State Investments of ENEL's portfolio of wind farms
in Portugal, with a total installed capacity of 641.1 MW
and involving a total amount financed of 605 M.€, an
operation that received one of the awards from
“InfraNews’ Top 10 deals of 2015” (6" place).

BPI also played an active role in a series of restructuring
and renegotiation processes involving motorway
concessions and sub-concessions in the wake of the
signing in 2011 of the Economic and Financial
Adjustment Programme between the European Union, the
International Monetary Fund and the Portuguese
Authorities. These processes have been in place for the
past few years and have evidenced a decisive trend and
attained the respective conclusion during 2015.

In parallel, with respect to the financing sphere, the
Project Finance area continues to provide financial
advisory services to the public sector (market where it
occupies a prominent position), including a portfolio of
projects in which it performs the role of permanent
financial consultant, with special mention of its
involvement in the health, infrastructures (namely water
and waste) and transportation.



BPI, THE SME BANK

Right from the very beginning, BPI has regarded the SME'’s
as being a strategic priority in commercial operations owing
to the fundamental role they play in the national economy.

Leader in PME Lider and PME Exceléncia

The PME Lider and PME Exceléncia status classifications
honour annually the national SME'’s with outstanding
performances, based on the best rating grades, sound
economic-financial indicators and the growth achieved.

The great importance attributed by BPI to the statuses is
visible in the sustained leadership shares that the Bank
has recorded:

= as concerns PME Lider, BPI has occupied the leading
position for 8 years now. In 2015, it was once again the
leader with a 28% market share (with roughly 2 000
companies), 5 p.p. higher than the 2™ bank.

= in PME Exceléncia, where the bank has always been the
leader, BPI's market shares are even more expressive.
The market share in 2015 was 40% (c. 600 companies),
17 p.p. above the 2™ bank.

In order to leverage the support for this segment, 2015
saw the launching and distribution of products specially
targeted at the PME Lider and Exceléncia companies,
namely:

= “This loan is for leaders”: In medium-term operations,
BPI launched an innovative offer, with special conditions
directed at the PME Lider and PME Exceléncia statuses
attributed by BPI.

= “This insurance is for leaders”: In certain credit-risk cover
solutions BPIl and COSEC offered special conditions for
all the PME Lider and PME Exceléncia firms.

Additionally, BPI has been making available to certain PME
Lider firms the Risk Evaluation Service, an exclusive
service that assesses the risk factors and strong points of
each SME, aggregating suggested actions which could lead
to an improvement in their risk profile. Created in 2008, it
has already identified suggestions for action that have
enabled more than 1 500 companies to improve their risk
perception at the bank.

Leader in PME Investe / Crescimento

Since the launching of the PME Investe / Crescimento lines
(and for the 8" year) BPI has assumed the top-ranking
position, attaining an overall amount contracted of some

2 550 M.€ (data at end of 2015, PME Investimentos),
with a market share of more than 18%.

In PME Crescimento 2015, earmarked for financing
investments and working capital, with special focus on
high-growth and export companies, BP| was leader in the
total number of operations handled, with some 3 200
operations, which equates to a market share of 19% (at
the end of 2015, PME Investimentos).

Leader in Mutual Guarantee

In close liaison with the Mutual Guarantee Companies
(Norgarante, Lisgarante, Garval and Agrogarante), BPI
maintained an active role in the dynamic promotion of
mutual guarantee. At the close of 2015 BPI was leader in
the number and accumulated amount of all the
guarantees issued, with shares of 25% in the number of
operations and 23% in the accumulated amount (at the
end of 2015).

Partnership in Portugal 2020

BPI has been very active in
following Portugal 2020, in
particular in its backing for
companies in the various
stages of their projects.

The commercial teams
provide counselling in the
identification of the most
appropriate solutions, as well
as in the financing of the
project via a new credit line
— BPI P2020.

My partner in Portugal 2020
This line allows companies to finance investments at two
distinct moments:

= immediately after the submission of the candidacy, even
before the decision confirming the granting of incentives:
BPI can finance the project’s eligible or non-eligible
investment with a maximum term of 8 years, in an
operation which is subsequently adaptable depending on
the incentives that are eventually approved;

= after the decision/approval: BPI co-finances the approved
projects by means of incentive advance drawings,
complementary financing and guarantees.
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With the object of debating and clarifying the main
questions regarding the new Community Framework, BPI:

= organised 8 seminars, with around 500 participants, at
which the Portugal 2020 and Horizonte 2020
programmes were presented;

= created an area at www.bancobpi.pt/empresas which
provides relevant information and which is permanently
updated;

= prepared leaflets and published articles in the Newsletter
BPI and other publications of partners with
miscellaneous information.

Anticipate the European Funds

EIB credit lines

As part of the partnership with the EIB, BPI launched the
line Linha BEI — Loans For SME & Other Priorities 4 (Linha
BEI SME 1V). This line, in the amount of 300 million euro
and destined for supporting SME'’s and MidCaps with up to
300 Employees, was exhausted after having supported
SME 1 311 projects.

In order to broaden the SME support mechanisms, two new
lines were signed with the EIB: one for companies in the
agricultural sector, in the amount of 50 M.€, and another
for companies which have trade relations with Latin
America, in the amount of 10 M.€.
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JESSICA-BPI credit line

The JESSICA programme is an initiative of the European
Commission and the European Investment Bank (EIB)
which permits countries to use a portion of the aid received
from the EU under the Structural Funds to carry out
repayable investments in projects registered under an
integrated, sustainable urban development plan.

These investments are realised by means of “urban
development funds” to be applied in the form of loans,
coupled with other sources of own and third-party capital.

The funds made available to Portugal in this regard totalled
130 M.£€, allocated to the JESSICA Holding Fund Portugal.
In this domain, Banco BPI was awarded the management
of funds amounting to 72.5 M.€, of which 46 M.€ for the
Northern Region, 8.5 M.€ for the Central Region and

18 M.€ for the Alentejo Region.

In 2015 BPI continued to be proactive in the placing of
JESSICA funds (“Joint European Support for Sustainable
Investment in City Areas”), earmarked for the funding of
urban rehabilitation and regeneration projects.

Through these strong dynamics, BPI placed the whole
amount of the funds attributed to it, having financed
56 projects falling under the Jessica Programme, in 31
municipalities and 17 sectors of activity, representing
258 M.€ of investment and 155 M.€ of financing.

After the end of the “first wave” of the application of the
JESSICA funds, in terms of the mandate entrusted to it
and during an additional period of 6 years (2016-2021),
BPI is reinvesting the funds repaid by the projects already
financed.

It is worth underlining that the Hotel Vincci Porto, one of
the projects supported by BPI, was distinguished with the
2015 National Urban Rehabilitation Prize in the category
“Best Touristic Use Works”.



BPI, THE EXPORTERS BANK

BPI places at export companies’ disposal a comprehensive
and competitive range of products and services which
encompass international trade solutions, financing and
credit-risk insurance.

In 2015 new products specially directed at export
companies were unveiled: PME Crescimento 2015 —
Crédito Comercial a Exportadoras (SME 2015 Growth —
Trade Credit for Exporters), which comprises Advances
against Export Shipments and External Financing and the
“Angola Internationalisation Line”, in tandem with the
reinforced placing of BPI-COSEC credit insurance.

BPI is leader in the specific line Trade Credit for Exporters
of the SME 2015 Growth Line, in both the amount and in
the number of operations handled by a considerable margin
vis-a-vis the other Banks. The market shares in this
specific line are very expressive: 62.5% in number and
51% in the value of operations handled'.

The “Angola Internationalisation Line” is a subsidised
credit line with Mutual Guarantee, managed by PME
Crescimentos, tailored for Portuguese companies that
already export or which are in the process of
internationalising to Angola. This line permits advancing to
companies up to 50% of the payments to be received from
Angola.

In strategic markets for national companies, such as Spain,
Angola and Mozambique, BPI developed specific products
to support investments and exports with major partners in
those markets, such as CaixaBank, BFA and BCI.

The partnership with CaixaBank now extends to Morocco,
Algeria, Turkey and the United Arab Emirates, markets in
which via BPI, companies can benefit from local
knowledge that permits exploiting in-depth commercial
opportunities, as well as a support in the management of
its export flows.

In parallel, partnership agreements between BPI, the Bank
of China and the Bank of Eastern Asia permit funding the

trade movements between national firms and those based

in the countries in which these operate.

1) Source: PME Investimentos, 31 December 2015.

Companies can count upon the support of specialised
teams which undertake the structuring of solutions adapted
to the needs of each business. In Portugal, BPI has
specialist teams such as the Spanish Companies Office,
the Africa Office, the Business Development Unit (for more
complex projects in Angola), the Mozambique Financial
Services Division (for financial consultancy and
organisation/ mounting of structured finance) and the Trade
Finance team for supporting companies engaged in
international trade.

BPI made available a host of information about the key
countries as destination markets (or potential markets) for
Portuguese companies.

In 2015 Country Files were introduced into BPI's corporate
website which provide a brief overview and the
demographic, economic and financial characterisation, as
well as the trends and risks, associated with each one of
the markets.

Presently, 10 country files are available which assume
importance as regards the interaction with Portuguese
companies, with these studies being regularly updated.

The Country Files complement other BPI surveys and
publications, also disseminated on the BPI site, such as
the country studies, the bulletin covering the economic and
financial situation in Angola, Mozambique and South
Africa, and the monthly behaviour of economic and
financial data, as well as medium and long-term forecasts
relating to the main markets.

With the development and constant updating of this space,
BPI seeks to facilitate the access to useful and pertinent
information, with a view to leading continued support to
Portuguese export firms.

2 strategic protocols were entered into in 2015 with key
associations at national level, APICCAPS (Associacao
Portuguesa dos Industriais de Calgado, Componentes,
Artigos de Pele e seus Sucedaneos) and PortugalFoods.
The protocols aim to leverage BPI's support for a group of
exporters in the footwear and agro-industrial sectors, which
sectors present great dynamism and growth potential.
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BPI, THE AGRICULTURE BANK

BPI continued to focus on the
development, modernisation
and internationalisation of
companies in the agricultural
and agro-industrial sector,
boosting its position at the
Agriculture Bank.

The Bank offers various
solutions for funding
investment, specially structured
for the sector’s needs.

The Bank for agriculture

The previous lines PRODER

and PROMAR (which covered the advance payment of non-
repayable subsidies of investment projects falling under the
PRODER and PROMAR programmes and their
complementary funding), joint solutions with
AGROGARANTE (founded on separate guarantees, which
permit obtaining loans for periods adapted to the projects)
and John Deere solutions for financing new and used
agricultural equipment (namely, tractors, combine
harvesters, balers, fodder mowers and sowers) were joined
in 2015 by the following lines:

= BPI PDR 2020: an innovative solution for financing
companies with candidacies already submitted to the
Rural Development Programme (PDR 2020). This line
adapts to all the phases of an investment project,
irrespective of its approval by the PDR 2020 Management
Authority.

BPI-EIB Agriculture: finance agreement with the EIB —
European Investment Bank, in the amount of 50 M.€,
specifically directed at the funding of SME'’s in the
agricultural and agro-industrial sectors. It covers loans of
between 25 M.€ and 50 M.€, with 10-year maturities.

In the support for treasuries, BPI has solutions such as the
Short-Term IFAP line, reserved for financial agricultural
seasons, and the BPI / CAP Protocol, which covers advance
payments of operating subsidies granted by IFAP (direct
assistance).

BPI continued to reinforce in a sustained manner its
positioning in the agricultural and agro-industrial sector,
assuming a leading position, being:

= no. 1 in the accumulated total amount of guarantees
issued by Agrogarante, with a 22% share (Agrogarante —
Sociedade de Garantia Matua®;

= no. 1 in the total amount of advance payments of
operating subsidies granted by IFAP and validated by
CAP, with a 68%? share;

= no. 1 in the total amount financed under the IFAP Short
Term Line, Agriculture, Forestry and Livestock, with a
56%° share.

In a policy of proximity and support, BPI has sponsored
and participated in the sector’s major fairs and events:
Feira Nacional da Agricultura, SISAB, Coléquio Nacional
do Milho, Ovibeja and Prémio Agricultura.

As part of the Agriculture Award, a joint BPI and COFINA
initiative, sponsored by the Ministry of Agriculture and the
Sea, with the object of promoting, incentivising and
rewarding cases of national success, 5 seminars were
organised which promoted the debate concerning topics of
national and regional importance for the sector: exports,
associations and innovation.

The 4" edition of the award received 1 017 candidacies, a
growth rate of 142% when compared to the 2014 edition,
honoured the following winners:

Category / Distinction Company / Project
Special Awards
Associations / Winner Cooperativa Unido Agricola CRL
Cooperatives Honourable mention Associacédo Criadores de Porco Alentejano; Assoc. Armadores Pesca A L Centro Sul
Companies Winner Quinta do Vallado — Soc. Agricola, Lda.
Honourable mention Testa & Cunhas, S.A.; Demeco — Agro-Pecuéria, Lda.; Pedrosa & Irmaos, Lda.; Cantinho das
Aromaticas — Viveiros, Lda.
Young Farmer Winner Formigaleite, Lda.
Honourable mention SR Berry, Unipessoal Lda.
New Projects Winner Férmula da Avo, Lda.
Honourable mention Conservas da Nena, Unipessoal Lda.
blnnovation Winner ex-aequo Micoora, S.A.; Bioinvitro Biotecnologia, Lda.

Honourable mention Simal-Soc Insular Massas Alimenticias, S.A.

'Large Companies  Winner
Personality Posthumous prize
Excellent Product ~ Winner Wine

Portucel Soporcel Florestal, S.A.
Eng.° Armando Sevinate Pinto

Table 12

1) Figures up till 31 December 2015.
2) CAP — Confederacdo dos Agricultores de Portugal; IFAP — Instituto de Financiamento da Agricultura e Pescas. Data on the agricultural campaign of 2015, reported as at 31 December 2015.
3) Latest available data, reported as at 31 October 2015.
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BPI, THE INNOVATORS’ BANK

BPI has assumed a policy of backing innovation and
entrepreneurship, focusing on products specially targeted
at innovative companies and its support by means of prizes
and initiatives.

Innovative solutions for innovative companies
BPI was pioneer in the placing in Portugal of credit lines
designed for financing innovative companies.

It was the first national bank in 2013 to take part in the
“Risk Sharing Instrument”, having launched the 1* credit line
backed by the EIF’s guarantee, the BPI-EIF Innovation line,
in the overall amount of 160 M.€, now fully drawn down.

In 2014, BPI was once again pioneer, contracting with the
EIF the 1 guarantee accord in Portugal under the
InnovFin, as part of Horizonte 2020, reserved for
supporting innovative companies, in particular SME’s. This
accord covers the launching of the BPI / EIF Innovation Il
line, in the amount of 200 M.€, which is aimed at
financing the investments and working capital of innovative
companies with less than 500 Employees, under
competitive conditions.

Taking the two credit lines together, BPI financed around
300 companies with a total amount of 215 M.€.

At the end of 2015, BPI was absolute leader in the placing
of operations falling under the Early Stages and Microcredit
programmes, with very expressive shares: 89% in the
number of operations and 92% in the amount contracted
(31 Dec.15, Sociedade Portuguesa de Garantia Mutua).

In the support lines for Entrepreneurship Microinvest and
Invest+, BPI was the 2™ most active bank in the number of
operations and amount contracted (Sociedade Portuguesa
de Garantia Matua).

Awards and other initiatives

BPI is associated with COTEC Portugal — Associagao
Empresarial para a Inovagao (COTEC) since its formation in
2003, having played an active role in its creation.

COTEC has as its mission promoting increased
competitiveness at companies located in Portugal, through
the development and dissemination of a culture and
practice of innovation, as well as of knowledge resident in
the country.

In partnership with COTEC, BPI supports initiatives which
encourage Portuguese companies to become more modern
and competitive, with the emphasis on SME, in particular:
it sponsors the SME Innovation COTEC-BPI Award and
assists with the dissemination of the Innovator
Entrepreneurship Award amongst the Portuguese diaspora.

BPI also supports the National Prize for Creative
Industries, an initiative with Unicer and the Fundagao de
Serralves which has as its object fostering, supporting,
accompanying and assisting in the implementation of
innovative projects in the field of creative industries. These
projects should present economic and financial viability,
potential drivers for the creation of qualified job posts and
act as a catalyst for Portuguese intellectual output within
the context of the global market.

BPI supports the INSEAD Entrepreneurship Prize, which
promotes companies that stand out for their innovation,
growth, internationalisation and the importance of their
strategy for Portugal, and honours the manager with an
outstanding track record on the Portuguese economic
panorama, rewarding his/her management skills and
entrepreneurship.

For the past 3 editions, BPI has been publicising and
giving visibility to the European Enterprise Promotion
Awards, an initiative of the European Commission,
promoted in Portugal by IAPMEI, which has as its goal: (i)
identifying and recognising highly successful promoters of
companies and entrepreneurs throughout Europe; (ii)
disseminating examples of best entrepreneurial policies
and practices; (iii) boosting the awareness of the rewards
of entrepreneurship; (iv) incentivising and inspiring
potential entrepreneurs.

Portugal has been recognised in the European finals for its
excellent practices in the various categories.

2015: “Lisboa Empreende” (“Lisbon Enterprise”)

2014: “AMS Thinking Ahead”, and “FAZ — Ideias de
Origem Portuguesa”.

2013: "Portuguese Shoes — The sexiest industry in Europe".
2012: “Douro Boys”.

2006: “Empresa na Hora” (Company-in-the-Hour).
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BPI-COSEC SOLUTIONS: SUPPORT FOR BUSINESS GROWTH

In 2015 BPI reinforced its leading role in the placing of
COSEC credit insurance policies.

COSEC is leader in Portugal in credit insurance and, via
the Euler Hermes network, has a strong presence abroad
which supports the international business of Portuguese
companies, offering a geographical coverage of more than
50 countries. COSEC is also responsible, on behalf of the
Portuguese State, for the cover and management of credit,
guarantee and investment risks for political-risk countries.

BPI actively promotes the placing of credit insurance with
the aim of assisting companies in the mitigation of credit
risk associated with their sales, in their market prospecting
(given that this permits the prior assessment of the risk
attaching to potential Customers) and to enhance their
ability to obtain from the Bank advance payments on
account of export proceeds.

Over the past two years, new products have been launched,
specially tailored for the SME segment and sold exclusively
by BPI.

The “BPI Secure Export”
credit insurance — innovative
owing to the fact that it
covers default on sporadic
export operations, not
requiring cover for the total
invoicing —, was
complemented in 2015
through the launch of “BPI
Secure Sale”, which permits
covering sporadic operations
on the domestic market.

BPI Venda Segura
Secure your invoices, one by one.
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The global simplified management policy “SME Secure
Business”, specially conceived for the needs of SME’s,
represented more than 50% of the global new policies
issued by it in 2015. These policies were essentially
canvassed amongst companies which had never resorted to
credit insurance, contributing to raising this insurance
product’s penetration and this management tool at smaller-
scale companies and, therefore, to support the
development of security in their businesses, especially in
the external markets.

As part of the placing of global credit-insurance policies,
BPI registered a 75% increase in the number of policies
written when compared with the same period a year ago,
being responsible for 54% of COSEC’s new Customers.
This excellent contribution, associated with a high
Customer retention rate (90%), enabled BPI to boost its
prominent position in COSEC'’s portfolio, brokering 28% of
its Customers’ business.

In the placing of the credit insurance covered by the
State-guaranteed programmes (Credit Line policy outside
the OECD), BPI maintained an active disclosure process
and placed with its Customers 68% of the operations
contracted, bearing testimony of the support given to
companies in the diversification of export markets to
countries outside the European Union.

It is worth highlighting the fact that COSEC was, once
again, distinguished by the magazine Exame as “Best
Insurer”, in the Small and Medium-sized Companies
segment in the Non-Life category as part of the “2015
Banking & Insurance” Prizes. This award recognises
COSEC's solid financial situation and its ongoing drive
aimed at innovation and enhancing the quality of the
services provided to Customers and business partners.



COMMUNICATION AND EVENTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Within the context of the special focus on the
communication related to the priority segments of
Corporate business and complying with the objective of
constant Customer proximity, BPI promoted and sponsored
during 2015, numerous initiatives, amongst which:

PME Lider and Exceléncia

“PME Exceléncia Ceremony”: within the ambit of its
sustained leadership in the PME Lider and PME Exceléncia
statuses, BPI sponsored and took part in the public
ceremony for the presentation of the companies honoured
with the PME Exceléncia 2014 status, which was held on
26 January 2015.

BPI Diplomas: delivery of the personalised diplomas to the
PME Lider and PME Exceléncia firms which adhered to the
status via BPI as a form of congratulating them for the
distinction.

Export and Internationalisation

“BPI Exportagdao Marrocos”: BP| promoted in partnership
with CaixaBank, a debate on Morocco’s economic reality
during which there was an opportunity for a group of
Portuguese companies to share experiences, in a debate
that was attended by the Embassy of the Kingdom of
Morocco in Portugal, as well as a representative of
CaixaBank.

Joint actions: additionally, BPI continued to support and
strongly pursue initiatives related with the international
markets and specific sectors of activity, notably:

= events with the Portuguese-Spanish Chamber of
Commerce: thematic lunches and breakfasts, permanent
presence of BPI advertisements, interviews and articles in
the magazine Actualidade and the electronic Newsletter;

= events with the Portuguese-French Chamber of
Commerce: BPI's participation in conferences and forums
dedicated to publicising available support and
sponsorship in the Members’ Directory 2015 / 2016;

= initiatives with various major national business
associations: APICCAPS — Associacao Portuguesa dos
Industriais de Calgado, Componentes, Artigos de Pele e
seus Sucedaneos, Portugal Foods, AEBA — Associacdo
Empresarial do Baixo Ave and ACIF — Camara do
Comercio e Industria da Madeira.

Market information: created on the BPI Empresas site and
actively directed at Chambers of Commerce and business
Associations an information section about key countries as
destination markets for Portuguese companies, aggregating
complementary information to BPI’s surveys and analyses.

This area aggregates three blocks of information:

Country Files: files with summarised description of
important markets for Portuguese companies, with
demographic, economic and political characterisation and
brief trends and risks;

Country Surveys: bulletin tracking the economic and
financial situations of Angola, Mozambique and South
Africa;

Monthly Trend: economic and financial analysis and
medium and long-range forecasts for the principal
economic markets.

Agriculture

“Agriculture 2015 Award”: in the context of the 4" edition
of the Agriculture Award, 5 conferences were staged
devoted to disseminating and promoting candidacies for
the whole country, as well as addressing important issues
relating to the agro-industrial sector. These sessions
brought together a total of some 600 participants.

The Agriculture Award is a joint initiative of BPI and
COFINA, sponsored by the Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry
and Rural Development, with the object of promoting,
encouraging and rewarding cases of national success. The
2015 edition received 1 017 candidacies, which
represents a 142% increase relative to the award’s previous
edition.

“Agriculture Selection” Programme: BPI sponsored

39 programmes transmitted by the TV station SIC Noticias,
taking the opportunity to give visibility to 17 Customers,

4 of which were included in the programme’s schedule at
BPI's specific suggestion.

Sponsorship of Major Fairs and Events: BPI sponsored and
supported the sector’s principal national initiatives, amongst
which: Feira Nacional de Agricultura, Ovibeja, Congresso
Nacional do Milho, Congresso CAP, SISAB, CIRAI and Blue
Bio Alliance, amongst others.
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Urban rehabilitation

“Growth begins in the cities”: BPI’s participation in the two
sessions realised by the JESSICA Portugal Fund, with the
aim of disseminating and promoting the European fund,
sharing the experiences of companies and promoters.

BPI was also present at the four clarification sessions
organised by Municipal Councils with a view to publicising
the BPI JESSICA line.

Innovation and entrepreneurship

“BPI Innovation”: cycle of 8 events held in partnership
with COTEC, with the objectives of: i) publicising BPI’s
product range for innovative companies (BPI-EIF
Innovation); (ii) promoting the enlargement of the SME
Innovation network, boosting BPI's connection to COTEC;
(iii) disseminating support programmes for innovation.

During the course of the year, BPI also participated in
initiatives with the object of promoting BPI solutions for
giving its backing to innovation and entrepreneurship
amongst local business entities and associations.

SME Innovation COTEC-BPI Prize

BPI backed the 11™ edition of the prize promoted by
COTEC Portugal, which rewards a group of SME’s with
innovative attitudes and businesses, constituting examples
of the creation of value for the country.

FAZ Entrepreneurship Innovation in the Portuguese
Diaspora Prize

BPI promoted once gain the dissemination of the COTEC
initiative which has as its object rewarding and publicly
showcasing those Portuguese businessmen who have
excelled overseas for their role as entrepreneurs, innovators
and responsible people.
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BPI Companies site

Several alterations were made to the BPl Companies site
during 2015 with a view to improving the information
available from the standpoint of maximising the creation of
value added for its users.

Pages with content specially compiled for certain of the
principal segments and key topics of companies were
structured and updated.

= Portugal 2020 and PDR 2020: with information about
the incentive systems, beneficiaries, aids, competitions,
amongst others;

= Exports: with regular market updates covering various
markets (Angola, South Africa, Saudi Arabia, Algeria,
Brazil, China, Columbia, Morocco, Mexico, Mozambique,
Peru, Turkey) and about the global context;

= Agriculture: with studies covering Agriculture, Forestry
and Economy of the Sea;

= Other topics: PME Lider and PME Exceléncia statuses;
credit-insurance solutions.

BPI Companies Newsletter

BPI makes available an electronic newsletter with
information about products and services to the corporate
segment, as well as analyses and other important
information of current business affairs.

The newsletter was distributed to more than 50 thousand
Companies and Small Businesses, with 10 editions having
been issued during the year.



BPI NET EMPRESAS

BPI Net Empresas is BPI's Corporate Internet Banking
service which permits an integrated management of
accounts and carrying out a broad range of national and
international operations in a rapid and convenient manner,
always with the maximum security.

In addition, it affords access to the digital documents file in
a simple, free, ecological and secure manner, with the
possibility of subscribing to the digital format of documents.

At BPI Net Empresas security is maximised by the use of
the most advanced data-protection technological
complemented by Access Keys and the Personal
Coordinates Card.

The 2015 DataE survey recognises once again that BPI's
homebanking service responds unequivocally to companies’
needs. BPI leads in “Penetration of Net Banking”.

This leadership demonstrates that the various
developments made over the past years with the aim of
better responding to the needs of companies, were well

received by Customers.

After far-reaching changes to the foreign functionalities,
specially thought out for companies with international

operations, 2015 was marked by the implementation of
several improvements relating to treasury management.

Functionalities related to Direct Debits SEPA, payment of
services (to the State and other), advances against
post-dated cheques, management and consultation of
effects, amongst others, were introduced and developed.

Bancassurance

In the insurance area, BPI has a strategic partnership with
the sector’s world leader — the German Allianz group. This
association has been cemented through BPI's 35% stake in
the capital of Allianz Portugal, and in a distribution
agreement in terms of which insurance policies are
marketed via the Bank’s commercial network.

BPI individual, corporate and small business Customers
thus have at their disposal an extensive range of insurance
products for individuals, companies and small businesses.
This range includes both life assurance — death and
disability insurance — and the other non-life branches —
motor insurance, multi-risk insurance, work accident,
engineering, agriculture, public liability, theft, personal
accident, unemployment and sickness.

Bancassurance’s performance in 2015 is reflected in the
following indicators: the amount of commissions rose to
41.3 M.€; insurance premiums totalled 152.1 M.€; at the
end of the year, the number of active insurance policies
stood at 431 thousand in life assurance and 521 thousand
in non-life insurance.
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Asset management

OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS

At the end of 2015, BPI Gestdo de Activos (Asset
Management) had under management 11 861 M.€ of
financial assets, representing a very significant increase of
almost 19% relative to 2014.

Assets under management Amounts in M.€

2014 2015 A%

Unit trust (mutual) funds 2285 3310 44.9%
Real estate unit trust funds 178 344 94.0%
Pension funds 2 249 2419 7.6%
Capitalisation insurance 5288 5843 10.5%
Institutional Customers 316 367 16.3%
Total® 10001 11861 18.6%
Table 13

BPI's Asset Management business grew for the second
consecutive year. On the domestic market, BPI's Asset
Management attained market shares in 2015 of 23.3%
in the management of unit trust (mutual) funds (second
place in the market), 13.4% in pension fund
management (third place) and 20.2% in the new
contracting of life assurance (second place).

Since the beginning of 2014 BPI's Asset Management
business has focused on diversified investment solutions
(in the form of unit trusts, PPR (retirement savings plans)
or unit-link insurance) and on niche products where there
is an evident value added in their management.

Assets under management Assets under management

breakdown
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UEREE 11.9 Institutional tJnitt
Clients frusd Real
unds - estate
10.0 funds
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Chart 24 Chart 25

1) Adjusted to eliminate duplications.
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UNIT TRUST FUNDS
The amount of unit trust (mutual) funds under BPI's
management increased by around 45% in 2015.

Considering just the national market, BPI Gestao de
Activos posted growth of 46%, well above the value
recorded by the local market (+3.2%). At the end of
2015, the Management Company recorded a 23.3%
share, retaining second place in the ranking.

Unit trust funds under management Amounts in M.€

2014 2015 A%

Bonds and money market 872 1268 45%
Capital growth (equities) 536 655 22%
Tax efficiency (PPR/E and PPA) 678 1055 56%
Diversification 198 333 68%
Total 2 285 3310 45%
Table 14

The expansion in 2015 was noted in all the fund
categories, with the Bonds and Money Market category
presenting 45% growth, thanks chiefly to the contribution
from the BPI Liquidez and BPI Monetério funds, which
rose by 60% and 42%, respectively.

The capital-growth class (equities) increased 22%. There
were good performances from the BPI Africa and BPI
Alternative Fund funds— both domiciled in Luxembourg —
with growth rates of 123% and 80%, respectively. The
overall growth was however affected by the negative
performance of the BP| Africa Nacional and BPI Brasil
Valor funds, which recorded declines of 48% and 54%
respectively. It should be noted that this class benefited
from a new product, BPI Agressivo, which totalled

1.6 M.€ at the end of the year.

The Tax Efficiency category (PPR/E and PPA) also
benefited from a very favourable behaviour, with 56%
growth, with the largest percentage gain being registered
by BPI Reforma Segura PPR (118%).

The Diversification category was however the one which
grew the most in relative terms due to the launching of
two new funds — BPI Moderado (Moderate) and BPI
Equilibrado (Balanced), which attained a total under
management of 171 M.€ at the end of the year.



REAL-ESTATE UNIT TRUST FUNDS

The real-estate unit trust funds also presented a very
positive performance (94%), at the same time as the
national market registered a 2.1% decline in the total of
open-ended funds. BPI’'s market share in the
management of this category of funds stood at 8.9% at
the end of 2015, climbing from twelfth to third place in
the ranking.

INSURANCE

In 2015 BPI Vida e Pensdes focused strongly on the sale
of unit-linked insurance. New business written in this
type of insurance increased 139.8% in 2015 to total
1141 M.€.

It is worth underlining that in this type of insurance, the
volume of BPI Vida e Pensdes’s premiums represents
52.6% of the total of the life market’s new business
written according to the latest data released by ASF —
Autoridade de Supervisdo de Seguros e Fundos de
Pensoes.

It is also worth noting that in the insurance market, there
was a significant decrease in the new contracting of
capital-guaranteed products in the order of 22.6%.

Considering insurance products as a whole, there was a
10.5% increase in the volume of assets under
management when compared with the preceding year,
which were situated at 5 843 M.€ at 31 December
2015.

PENSION FUNDS

At the end of the year, BPI Vida e Pensdes was
responsible for 35 pension funds of 269 companies with
overall net assets of 2 419 M.€. During the year BPI
Vida e Pensdes registered a 7.6% increase in Pension
Funds’ assets under management, which compares with
the market growth of 3.1%.

Pension Funds under management Amounts in M.€

2014 2015 A%

Close-ended pension funds 1898 2 030 6.9%
Open-ended pension funds 347 386 11.2%
PPR pension funds 4 3 (18.3%)
Total 2 249 2419 7.6%
Table 15

During 2015, pursuant to specific legislation, the Fundo
de Pensdes ENVC and the Fundo de Pensdes Gestnave
were wound up.

BPI Vida e Pensdes occupied third place in the ranking of
Pension Funds managers in terms of the volume of assets
under management at the close of 2015 with a 13.4%
market share. In the management of Open-ended Pension
Funds, BPI Vida e Pensdes occupies second position in
the ranking with a market share of 24.3%.
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Investment banking

CORPORATE FINANCE

Based on the figures reported by Bloomberg relating to
the deals announced in 2015 as financial advisor,
Mergers and Acquisition activity in Portugal® recorded an
increase in the number of deals (+45% to 16 operations)
relative to 2014, although with a decrease of around
60% in overall value terms (mainly due to a very large
deal in 2014).

BPI Corporate Finance provided financial advisory
services covering a significant group of operations,
amongst which assistance services in the takeover bid for
Semapa shares, in the form of a swap for the shares in
Portucel, S.A., in which it acted as global coordinator, the
conclusion of the advisory mandate from the Arié Group
in the acquisition of Barreiros Faria (Perfumes &
Companbhia), advising Winterfell in the acquisition of a
majority stake in Efacec Power Solutions and the overall
coordination of the Mota-Engil capital increase at the end
of 2015. 2015 also saw the conclusion of advisory
services to the consortium led by Suma in the
privatisation of EGF and to the Nors Group in the
acquisition of Renault Trucks Portugal.

Besides these operations, BPI provided various other
advisory services as part of investment and financing
decision-taking by Clients (in Portugal and overseas), in
the economic-financial analysis, valuations and in
corporate restructurings to a number of national and
international entities. The most noteworthy amongst
others were the privatisation of the Lisbon Oceanarium,
where BPI advised the Parques Reunidos Group in
analysing the operation; an investment in Portugal by
China Three Gorges; the privatisation of CP Carga, in
which it advised the potential interested party; as well as
advisory services to the Vicaima, Bensaude, Partex,
Ibersol, Ascendum, Salvador Caetano and Sonae groups.

1) Operations in which the target and / or purchaser is Portuguese.
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EQUITIES

Secondary market

In 2015 BPI brokered share dealings worth 7.3 th.M.€
(7.9 th.M.€ in 2014). In online stock brokerage, in
which Banco Portugués de Investimento acts as a
financial intermediary, BPl was market leader with a
share of 19.7%, having brokered 2.1 th.M.€.

Primary market

In 2015 BPI acted as Joint Global Coordinator in the
Mota Engil’'s 81 M.€ capital increase (of which 77 M.€
was in the form of consideration in specie by the
principal shareholders), and as Sole Book runner in the
Accelerated Book building of 5.56% of Corticeira Amorim
(32 M.€).

Research and sales

BPI continues to be one of the research houses with the
largest coverage of quoted companies in the Iberian
market, with a total of 62 companies covered in Spain
and 21 in Portugal at the end of 2015. It published
657 research reports during 2015.

BPI continued to organise numerous events with the goal
of fostering closer relations with companies and the
institutional investor community. Amongst these, it is
worth noting the XII Iberian Conference held in Oporto on
9, 10 and 11 September, at which 49 companies

(46 Iberian and 3 French) and 77 European and North
American institutional investors were present, as well as
representatives of the Portuguese government.
Furthermore, BPI organised several roadshows with
companies forming part of its coverage universe. In
2015, BPI was also the broker chosen as co-organiser of
the Euronext Pan-European days Conference, an event
that took place in New York and Boston from 1 to 4 June,
where 14 Portuguese companies were present.

At the close of 2015, the Iberian team was composed of
31 Employees, of whom 16 were allocated to the
Research team, 13 to Sales and Trading and 2 to the
Equity Capital Markets. This team was once again well
placed in the rankings of Iberian brokers, with special
mention of the Institutional Investors (#2 Iberian
Research Team in 2015) and the NYSE Euronext (Most
active Research House 2014 — Portugal; Most Active
Trading House in Shares — EnterNext 2014 — Portugal).

BPI Capital Africa

BPI Capital Africa, a member of the Johannesburg Stock
Exchange, continued to expand its stockbroking business
for institutional investors. From its offices in Cape Town,
BPI Capital Africa currently covers 80 stocks, including a
number of companies quoted on sub-Saharan stock
markets (South Africa, Botswana, Ghana, Mauritius,
Mozambique, Nigeria, Kenya, Ruanda, Senegal, Tanzania,
Uganda, Zambia and Zimbabwe) and maintained active
contact with some 200 institutional investors, based in
South Africa and in various international markets.

During 2015, BPI Capital Africa once again occupied a
prominent place in the rankings of FM research in South
Africa, namely #3 in the packaging sector, #5 in the
industrial sector, #5 in the construction sector, as well as
#3 in sub-Saharan Africa.

At the end of 2015, the BPI Capital Africa team was
composed of 17 staff (from South Africa, England,
Mozambique, Nigeria, Portugal and Zimbabwe).

Trading

The principal trading activity was concentrated at BPI
Alternative Fund — Iberian Equities Long Short, whose
management is subcontracted to Banco Portugués de
Investimento. The fund’s good performance since its
creation contributed to the increased placing of the
participating units with the Customer base. At the end of
2015, the fund’s assets under management amounted to
340 M.€, with the BPI Group having an economic
exposure of 23.6% to the fund’s participating units. The
fund turned in a positive performance of 6.6% in 2015,
net of commissions.
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PRIVATE EQUITY

The Group’s private equity business is conducted by BPI
Private Equity, essentially by means of the investment in
venture capital funds, and a 49% shareholding in
Inter-Risco, a venture-capital fund manager. BPI Private
Equity also has its own portfolio of investments which it
manages directly.

At the end of 2015, the overall portfolio of the Group’s
private equity assets, comprising its own portfolio and the
participating interests in the venture-capital funds,
totalled some 87 M.€ at balance sheet values. The
participating units in the venture-capital funds
corresponded at the end of December 2015 to:

= 17.9% in the capital of the Fundo Pathena SCA SICAR
(Fundo Pathena) corresponding to the investment of 10
M.€ made by BPI Private Equity in July 2015. The
Fund’s investment profile corresponds to information
technology companies (in late early stage and expansion /
growth) with head office in the European Union and
special focus on Portugal.

The Fund was created in March 2013, with its final
closing taking place in July 2015. At the end of
December 2015, the Fund had a subscribed capital of
some 55 M.€, about 26% of which has been paid up;

the 52.0% interest in the Fundo Caravela — Fundo de
Capital de Risco with a capital of 30 M.€, promoted by
BPI and managed by Inter-Risco. This fund is in the
disinvestment stage;

the 46% interest in the Fundo Inter-Risco Il, managed
by Inter-Risco. In 2015 the investors approved a capital
reduction to 69.5 M.€. The Fund has, besides BPI’s
participation of 32 M.€, other key investors such as the
European Investment Fund and the Fundacado Calouste
Gulbenkian. The fund follows a generalist sectorial
approach, focused on buyout and build-up investments
in unlisted small and medium-sized Portuguese
companies. This Fund entered into the disinvestment
phase at the end of 2015;

= the 99.8% interest in the Fundo Inter-Risco Il Cl,

launched in July 2013 with a capital of 30.05 M.€,
and with a subsidiary nature of Fundo Inter-Risco I, by

1) Excludes direct holdings in companies which are not venture capital firms.

way of investments in partnership with the latter. The
investment period runs until the end of 2016.
Inter-Risco, which holds the Fund’s remaining capital,
is the respective management company;

= 9% in the Fundo PVCi, a Fund with 111 M.€ managed
by the European Investment Fund, directed at
investments in private equity and venture capital funds
in Portugal.

Besides the aforementioned funds, which are identified
briefly next, the BPI Group also has investments in the
European Investment Fund managed by the EIB, in
F-Hitec managed by ES Ventures, in various FCR’s
(company recovery funds) managed by various entities
(Oxycapital, ESCapital, Explorer Investments and Capital
Criativo), as well as in funds managed by Portugal Capital
Ventures.

Private Equity investments®

Invested funds

C?__rjr\:zla 52.0% In the disinvestment phase

ll-'inlfli 46.0% In the disinvestment phase

Fund with a subsidiary nature of the

IR 11 Cl 99.8% Fundo IR IIA and whlch has as Pts mission
Fund the realisation of investments in

partnership with this

9.0% Investment fund in private equity and

PVCi
venture capital funds in Portugal
Investment fund in information technology
companies (late early stage and expansion /
Pathena growth) based in the member states of the

17.9%
Fund ° European Union, with a focus in Portuguese

companies or companies with a significant
part of their activity in Portugal

Equity interests?

Integ—RAlsco, 49.0% Venture capital fund manager

2) Also includes the participation of 9.2% in Conduril (civil engineering and public works) and 2.72% in Corporacién Financiera Arco after the sale in February 2015 of the 20%
shareholding in Caravela Gest SGPS, S.A. (holding the food retail area, which holds the master franchise Haagen Dazs in Portugal).
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International operations

BANCO DE FOMENTO ANGOLA

At the close of 2015, BFA had total assets of

7 957 M.€, a headcount of 2 610 Employees and a
distribution network made up of 191 units serving more
than 1.4 million Customers.

Resources
Customer resources recorded a 7.3% year-on-year decrease
to be situated at 6 860 M.€ in December 2015.

The year-on-year behaviour of deposits expressed in euro
(consolidation currency) is penalised by the kwanza’s
15% depreciation against euro, while on the other hand it
benefits from the dollar’'s 11% appreciation relative to
the euro.

When measured in the respective deposit-taking
currencies, the resources in kwanza (which represent
c.2/3 of total resources) increased by 11% year-on-year,
and Customer resources taken in USD (c.1/3 of the total)
shrank by 20% year-on-year.

The securities portfolio held by Customers increased
130% in 2015, standing at 1 247 M.€ at the end of the
year.

Loans
The loans and guarantees portfolio, measured in euro,
contracted by 18.5% to 1 494 M.€ in December 2015.

When measured in the respective lending currencies, the
loan portfolio’s growth was:

= the portfolio of loans advanced in kwanza (roughly 1/2
of the portfolio total) recorded a 19% drop which is
explained by the conversion into Treasury Bonds of the
interim tranche in AKZ of a loan granted to the Angolan
State in 2014;

= the loan portfolio in dollars (roughly 1/2 of the total)
decreased 4.0% year-on-year.

At the close of 2015, around 3/4 of the loan and
guarantees portfolio corresponded to the corporate
segment and the remaining 1/4, to the individuals’
segment.

Banco de Fomento Angola
Selected indicators

Amounts in M.€

2014 2015 A%
Net total assets 8394 7 957 (5.2%)
Loans to Customers 1833 1494  (18.5%)
Loans to Customers and guarantees 2321 1879 (19.0%)
Customer resources 7 396 6 860 (7.3%)
Bonds held by Customers

(TBonds and TBills) 541 1247  130.2%
Shareholders’ equity 835 855 2.5%
Net profit 246 282 14.8%
Contribution for BPI consolidated result 117 136 16.1%
Employees (no.) 2 526 2610 3.3%
Branches (no.) 186 191 2.7%
ATM machines (no.) 371 375 1.1%
POS (no.) 6 564 9157 39.5%
Customers (thousand) 1301 1410 8.4%
Table 16

Customer loans Customer resources

M.€ M.€
7396
1833 6 860
1494 5645
5270
4756
102 1i2 1i2 | ‘
11 11 12 13 14 15

Chart 28 Chart 29
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Cards and automated banking

BFA has a leading position in debit and credit cards in Customers
Angola, with more than 1 million valid debit cards at the
end of 2015, which corresponded to a market share of Thousand

21.9%, and with close to 17 097 active credit cards
(Classic and Gold).

1410
The Bank maintained a prominent position in the stock of 1193 T
active TPA devices and ATM facilities in 2015, closing 1074
the year with 9 157 TPA terminals corresponding to the 910
top spot with a 26.5% market share, and 375 ATM
machines, which corresponds to second position with a
14.1% market share.
Securities portfolio
BFA’s securities portfolio totalled 3 314 M.€ at the end

of 2015. Around 26% of the securities portfolio

comprised Angolan Treasury Bills, while the remaining Chart 30
74% corresponded to Angolan Treasury Bonds with

maturities ranging from 1 to 7 years.

Customers Commercial network

The inflow of new Customers totalled 110 thousand in

2015. At the end of 2015, BFA Customers numbered a NS

total of 1 410 thousand. B =
The homebanking service has been growing, registering a

total of 65 thousand new users in 2015. At the end of 3 E

the year the number of users totalled 570 thousand,

which represented 40% of the total Customer base.

Employees 344

At the end of 2015, BFA’s staff complement stood at

2 610, representing an annual increase of 3.3%.

Commercial network

BFA has an extensive and specialised distribution

network, with a strong presence in Luanda and which Chart 32
ensures broad coverage of the entire Angolan territory. = Corporate centres

At the end of 2015 it comprised 166 branches, H Investment centres

9 investment centres and 16 corporate centres. ¥ Retail branches

64 Banco BPI | Annual Report 2015

Subscribers of homebanking
services

Thousand

570
505
403
349
219 |
11 12 13 14 15

Chart 31

= BFA NET Empresas
B BFA NET Particulares

(individuals)

Employees

2172

11

2267

12

2428

13

25 2I’
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BFA APP

Download now

The BFA App Campaign —
Download Now was intended
to publicise the new
application for smartphones
which the Bank made
available to its Customers and
the public in general: the BFA
App, which aims to make the
carrying out of banking
operations and / or the
consultation of useful
information about BFA even
more user friendly.

TALK TO US

BFA attendance line

The Talk to Us Campaign —
BFA Attendance Line had as
its objective disseminating
the Bank’s Attendance Line,
923 120 120, showcasing it
as a preferential
communication channel for
assisting the Customer,
namely for the clarification of
doubts about BFA products
and services and in the
management of complaints.

ROAD LEVY

In its role of authorised
agent, BFA realised a
campaign with the object of
promoting the sale of Road
Levy stamps relating to 2015.

BFA was the agent with the
biggest number of sales in
2014 / 2015.

CAMPAIGNS

PAYMENT OF TAXES

Campaign which had as its goal disseminating the
functionality Payment of Taxes via the Internet Banking
service.

BFA App — download now

BFA attendance line — talk to us

Buy here your car’s levy stamp
It's so easy

Pay your taxes with a click
Enter BFA Net and click

PERSONAL LOANS FOR CIVIL SERVANTS

Without surety

Digital Campaign aimed at facilitating access to personal
loans without the need for a surety. This loan is reserved
solely for civil servants, whose entity has a protocol with
BFA.

Loans for Civil Servants — now without surety
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NEW PRODUCTS / SERVICES

BFA APP

First mobile application

BFA unveiled at FILDA 2015 its first mobile application.
The BFA App is an application for Customers and non
Customers and allows any user to access BFA from mobile
phones and tablets. It provides useful information, such as
the most used transactional functionalities on BFA Net. It
is a secure application, adhering to the same rules and
security standards which are associated with the BFA Net
service.

MULTICAIXA D’AGOSTO CARD

BFA launched the first co-branding Debit Card with Clube
1.° D'Agosto: Multicaixa D’Agosto. The Multicaixa D’Agosto
Card is a personalised debit card in kwanza for BFA
Customers and members of the Clube 1.° D’Agosto.
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DIGITAL DOCUMENTS

New functionality of BFA Net

BFA made available the Digital Documents functionality on
its homebanking platform. This new functionality permits
subscribers to BFA Net and BFA Net Empresas to consult
and download proof of certain operations realised on those
channels.

e-FORMAR
Online training platform

With the object of providing
online training to all BFA
Employees, the e-Formar
platform was launched at the
end of 2015. The first
e-learning training course
launched on e-Formar was

about ‘The evolution of the
work post’, imparting knowledge about the main novelties
and benefits of Windows 8 vis-a-vis Windows XP.



RECOGNITION

The Banker

Bank of the Year in Angola 2015

BFA was honoured for the second time with the Award “Bank of the Year in Angola 2015”, at an
official ceremony at the Hilton Bankside, in London. “The Banker” is a British magazine dedicated to
the financial market since 1926. It is present in more than 180 countries and is one of the principal
sources of financial information, relying upon a unique data base with more than 4 000 Banks.

Sirius Award

Best Financial Sector Company

BFA was distinguished for the third time with the Award “Best Financial Sector Company”, in the 5
edition of the Sirius Awards, which was staged at the Hotel Epic Sana, in Luanda. The Jury judged the
innovation, quality of products and services of the sector in Angola, the economic-financial performance
and the contribution that BFA has made to encourage the population to resort to banking services.

EMEA Finance Magazine

Best Bank in Angola 2015

BFA was honoured by the magazine EMEA Finance, with the award “Best Bank in Angola” for the
seventh time and for six years running. EMEA Finance is a magazine directed at the financial
community in Europe, Middle East and Africa, which analyses and classifies the performances of the
main banking institutions in several countries.

Capital Finance International magazine

Best Branch Network

BFA was awarded the prize for “Best Branch Network” by the magazine Capital Finance
International. This distinction is based on the Bank’s vast commercial network, composed of
190 Branches.

International Finance Magazine

Best Corporate Bank

The International Finance magazine rated BFA "Best Corporate Bank in Angola" for the third
consecutive year. The International Finance Magazine is a British online publication with an
audience of more than 180 countries which annually pays tribute to the best entrepreneurs in the
financial sector in their different areas of specialisation.

The Banker Africa Awards

The Best Community Development Bank

BFA was ranked the “Best community development bank” by the Banker Africa magazine. This
honour is based on the analysis of the Bank’s information in various platforms, such as: Magazines,
Reports, Newsletters, Sites, Events and Advertisements.

Euromoney Awards for Excellence 2015

Best Bank in Angola

BFA was voted the Best Bank in Angola 2015 by the Euromoney Awards for Excellence. The criterion
for awarding the prize is linked to the high levels of innovation services and experience that BFA has
been developing and also the demonstration of leadership and dynamism in the market.

Superbrands

Brand of Excellence

BFA was distinguished for the fifth consecutive year with the title of Brand of Excellence by
Superbrands, an independent international organisation dedicated to the promotion of brands.
Superbrands Angola rewards Brands of Excellence for their performance on the national market.
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Deutsche Bank

STP Excellence Award

Deutsche Bank awarded BFA for the 13" consecutive year the STP Award (Straight Through
Processing) as a result of the high success rate in the automatic processing of foreign operations
realised in 2014.

Global Banking and Finance Review

Best Commercial Bank in Angola

BFA was rated for the third consecutive year the “Best Commercial Bank in Angola” by the English
portal Global Banking and Finance Review. The prime factors behind the accolade were the
diversified range of products and services, the extensive branch network and the Corporate Social
Responsibility Programme centred on Education, Health and Social Solidarity.

World Finance

Best Corporate Management

The magazine World Finance voted BFA as the bank with the “Best Corporate Management”. In
awarding the prize, World Finance used as the chief criteria the consolidation of operations, the
contribution to the economic development of Angola and the creation of specific solutions for
Customers.
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BCI - BANCO COMERCIAL E DE INVESTIMENTOS

Total assets recorded annual growth of 6.5% relative to Banco Comercial e de Investimentos
2014, totalling 2 543 M.€. BCI reached leadership in Selected indicators Amounts in M.€
2015 in the financial system with market shares of 2014 2015 A%
29.2% in lending, 28.8% in Customer deposits and Net total assets 2389 2543 6.5%
27.5% in assets. Loans to Customers (net) 1439 1402 (2.6%)
Customer deposits 1788 1838 2.7%
Deposits Shareholders’ equity 179 214 20.0%
Deposits taken from Customers registered in 2015, when Employees (no.) 2456 3009 22.5%
measured in euro, 2.7% growth, to total 1 838 M.€ Branches (no.) 168 ol 137%
BCl's deposits portfolio was affected by the metical’s ATM machines (no.) 477 89 23.5%
depreciation against the euro. POS (no.) 6303 go6 372%
Customers (thousand) 1 036 1 285 24.0%
Foreign exchange rate EUR / MZN 40.84 50.04 22.5%
The market share in deposits was situated at 28.8% at Table 17
the end of the year, which represents a share gain of
0.31 p.p. when compared with the figure at the end of
2014. Customer loans Customer deposits
M.€ M.€
Loans . . 1439 1400 T
The Loans portfolio when expressed in euro shows a
contraction of 2.6% to 1 402 M.€, having been affected
by the negative exchange rate effect of the metical’s 10% e
deprecation. BCI’s market share in the loans segment was o 9% LA
situated at 29.2% in December (-0.45 p.p. relative to 1062
December 2014), retaining its leading position.
Distribution network
In 2015, BCI opened 25 new branches and closed
2 units. At the end of the year, the bank had a total of
191 distribution points, of which 164 are traditional
branches, 26 Exclusive Centres and 1 Business Centre. 11 12 13 14 15 11 12 13 14 15
On the other hand, BCI expanded its network of ATMs Chart 34 Chart 35

and APT terminals to 589 ATMs (+112 units vs.
December 2014) and 8 646 APTs (+2 343 units vs.
December 2014). The bank’s Customer base climbed to
around 1.3 million (+24.0%). These Customers were
served at the end of the year by a total of 3 009
Employees.
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Financial review

Selected indicators

Amounts in M.€

2014 2015
Domestic International Consolidated Domestic International Consolidated
activity activity activity activity

Net profit, efficiency and profitability
Net profit (289.7) 126.1 (163.6) 93.1 143.3 236.4
Net profit per share! (0.204) 0.089 (0.115) 0.064 0.099 0.163
Cash flow after taxation (62.7) 168.3 105.6 232.1 196.9 429.0
Net operating revenue 448.8 408.9 857.7 666.2 515.7 1181.9
Net operating revenue per Employee? (thousands of euro) 73 165 99 112 199 138
Operating costs / net operating revenue® 79.4% 34.7% 61.6% 73.1% 33.6% 56.0%
Average total assets 359183 7101.4 42 201.9 34 070.0 8189.0 41 659.0
Return on average total assets (ROA) (0.8%) 3.5% (0.1%) 0.3% 3.5% 0.9%
Average Shareholders' equity 1852.2 385.7 22379 1793.0 470.4 2 263.3
Return on average Shareholders' equity (ROE)* (15.6%) 32.7% (7.3%) 5.2% 30.5% 10.4%
Assets quality
Credit at risk 1219.1 84.9 1304.0 10709 87.1 1158.1
Credit at risk / Loans to Customers® 5.0% 4.4% 5.0% 4.5% 5.5% 4.6%
Coverage of credit at risk by impairments® 81% 102% 82% 85% 122% 87%
Net credit loss’ 0.66% 1.30% 0.70% 0.38% 1.88% 0.48%
Pension liabilities
Employee pension liabilities 1278 1278 1280 1280
Cover of pension obligations® 98% 98% 109% 109%
Capital
Shareholders' equity and non-controlling interests 1669 876 2 546 1930 906 2835
CRD IV / CRR phasing in

Common equity Tier 1 ratio 10.2%° 11.0% 10.6% 10.9%

Leverage ratio 5.9%° 6.9%
CRD IV / CRR fully implemented

Common equity Tier 1 ratio 8.6%° 9.9% 9.5% 9.8%

Leverage ratio 5.2%° 6.4%
Liquidity
Liquidity coverage ratio (CRD IV / CRR fully implemented) 124% 113%
Net Stable Funding Ratio (CRD IV / CRR fully implemented) 99% 104%
Loans-to-deposits ratio 106% 25% 84% 107% 22% 85%
Note: figures as reported. The figures presented in the Directors’ Report refer to the amounts as reported, except where it is expressly stated that they are proforma Table 18

figures (taking into consideration the retrospective application of the requirements of IFRIC 21, as provided for by IAS 8; refer to the note to the financial statements 2.1 -
Comparability of information (IFRIC 21)). The retrospective application of the requirements of IFRIC 21 has the following impacts using the consolidated figures at 31 Dec. 14:
decrease in shareholders’ equity of 16.5 M.€ and decrease of 0.9 M.€ in net income.

1) Net profit divided by the average number of shares issued net of treasury stock.

2) Taking into consideration the number of Employees of the companies that use the full consolidation method.

3) Operating costs as a percentage of net operating revenue, excluding non-recurring impacts in costs and revenues.

4) In arriving at the ROE, account is taken of shareholders’ equity before deducting the fair value reserve relating to the portfolio of available-for-sale financial assets.

5) Calculated in accordance with the definition in Bank of Portugal Instruction 23 / 2011 and considering the consolidation perimeter in IAS / IFRS, in which BPI Vida e Pensoes is
consolidated by global integration and its loan portfolio is included in the consolidated loan portfolio (under the supervision perimeter of the Bank of Portugal, BPI Vida e Pensoes is
consolidated under the equity method). According to the Instruction 23 / 2011 and considering the supervision perimeter, as of 31 Dec. 15, the consolidated credit at risk amounts to
1 158.1 M.€ and the consolidated credit at risk ratio amounts to 4.9%.

6) Cover by accumulated loans and guarantees impairment allowances in the balance sheet and without considering the effect of associated collaterals.
7) Loan impairments in the year, net of recoveries, as a % of the average loan portfolio.

8) The pension funds’ figure taken into account includes the contribution transferred to the pension funds at the start of the following year (47.0 M.€ in 2014 and 1.3 M.€ in 2015).
9) Proforma figures taking into account the adherence to the special regime applicable to deferred tax assets and the change to the risk weightings applied to Banco BPI's indirect exposure

to the Angolan State and to BNA.

70 Banco BPI | Annual Report 2015



CONSOLIDATED OVERVIEW

Consolidated results

BPI earned a consolidated net profit of 236.4 M.€ in

scale, in Mozambique through BCI — increased their
contribution to consolidated net profit by 13.6%

The return on consolidated shareholders’ equity (ROE)

The ROE on domestic operations, to which 79% of the

2015.
(+17.2 M.€) to 143.3 M.€.
Net profit Amounts in M.€
2014 2015 2014 2015 Return on consolidated shareholders’ equity
excl. non-  excl. non-
-recurring'  -recurring’ ;
o was 10.4% in 2015.
Domestic activity (289.7) 93.1 (25.5) 84.7
International activity 126.1 1433 126.1 143.3
Consolidated (163.6) 236.4 100.6 228.0
Table 19

Domestic operations contributed with 93.1 M.€.

International operations — which refer above all to the
activity carried out in Angola via BFA and, on a smaller

ROE by business area in 2015

5.2%.

Group’s average shareholders’ equity was allocated, was

The ROE generated by international operations, to which
21% of the Group’s average shareholders’ equity was

allocated, was situated at 30.5%.

Amounts in M.€

Domestic activity

International BPI Group

activity (consolidated)
Commercial Investment Participating Total
banking banking interests and other

Average risk weighted assets 1 16 167.7 289.5 127.1 16 584.3 6 717.6 23 301.8
Capital allocated 2 1646.3 459 100.8 1793.0 470.4 2263.3
Capital reallocation 3 101.7 (14.6) (87.1) - - -
Adjusted Shareholders' equity
for ROE calculation [=2+3] 1747.9 31.3 13.7 1793.0 470.4 2 263.3
Net profit 78.2 4.2 10.6 93.1 143.3 236.4
Adjustment to profit due to
capital reallocation 6 0.6 (0.1) (0.5) - - -
Net profit (adjusted) [=5+6]| 7 78.9 4.1 10.1 93.1 143.3 236.4
ROE [=7/4]| 8 4.5% 13.2% 73.6% 5.2% 30.5% 10.4%
Calculation of ROE by business areas Table 20

The return generated by each area results from the quotient between the contribution and the average capital allocated to the area.
In determining the capital allocated to domestic activity, the accounting capital (shareholders' equity) before deducting the fair value reserve (negative) relating to the portfolio of
available-for-sale financial assets, was taken into consideration. As regards each business area making up the domestic operations, it is assumed that the capital employed (before
deducting the fair value reserve) is identical to the average capital employed for this activity as a whole. The amount of capital allocated to each area is calculated by multiplying the assets
weighted by the quotient between shareholders’ equity (before deducting the fair value reserve) and the assets weighted for the universe of the aforesaid areas. Whenever the shareholders’
equity of a business area is more (or less) than the allocated capital using the above procedure, it is presumed that there has been a redistribution of capital, whereby that area’s
contribution is adjusted by the costs (revenue) resulting from the increase (decrease) in outside resources by virtue of the capital reallocation.

Geographical segmentation of the BPI Group’s domestic activity
Domestic activity comprises the commercial banking activity conducted in Portugal, the provision of banking services to non-residents abroad — namely to Portuguese emigrant
communities, and those of the Madrid branch —, and the activities relating to investment banking — conducted by Banco Portugués de Investimento —, private equity, asset

management and insurance.

International operations comprise the activity conducted by Banco Fomento Angola, 50.1% held and consolidated in full, as well as well as the activity of Banco Comercial e de
Investimentos (BCl) in Mozambique, in respect of which the appropriation of results by BPI results from the 30% shareholding held (equity accounted), the activity of BPI
Mogambique — Sociedade de Investimento (100% held) and the activity of BPI Capital Africa in South Africa (100% held). International operations’ contribution to net profit in 2015
from Banco Fomento Angola amounted to 135.7 M.€, from BCl was 9.4 M.€, from BPl Mogambique was -0.6 M.€ and from BPI Capital Africa was -1.3 M.€.

1) Refer to the description of non-recurring impacts in results in the page 81.
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Consolidated

Consolidated income statement

Consolidated net operating revenue improved by 324 M.€
(+37.8%) to 1 182 M.€ in 2015. This advance is chiefly
explained by the following contributions:

= the increase in consolidated net interest income of
149 M.€ (+29.0%), which is attributable to the
expansion in net interest income from both domestic
activity, of 28% (+77.5 M.€), founded mainly on the
decrease in the cost of time deposits, and the 30% in
international operations (+71.5 M.€);

= the higher profits from financial operations, up 170
M.€ to 195 M.€ in 2015, bearing in mind that in the
previous year these included losses of 137.5 M.€
realised on the sale of Portuguese and Italian medium
and long-term public debt.

Consolidated operating costs remained stable (-0.1%).
Excluding early-retirement costs, operating costs rose by

Net results

Consolidated Domestic activity

M.€ M.€

-285

0203040506070809101112131415

Non-controlling interests
B Net profit attributed to BPI

ROE
% 02 03 04 05 06
Consolidated 135 13.9 15.2 237 243
Domestic activity 133 13.1 13.6 18.8 22.1
International activity 15.2 249 38.6 66.8 371

-375
0203040506070809101112131415

07
24.9
234
322

3.9%. In domestic operations (excluding early-retirement
costs) operating costs decreased by 1.3% while in
international operations they posted a 22% rise which is
essentially explained by the exchange-rate effect of the
dollar’s appreciation against the euro®.

The expansion of the income base, coupled with the
stabilisation in operating costs, were responsible for the
improvement (reduction) of 5.6 p.p. in the efficiency
ratio, which was situated at 56.0%?2 in 2015. The
operating profit increased by 325 M.€, to 511 M.£€.

BPI also registers an improvement in the consolidated
indicators relating to credit quality. The credit-at-risk ratio

improved from 5.0% in 2014 to 4.6% in 2015 while the
respective impairments cover climbed from 82% to 87%.

International activity

M.€

141
g 23

1
90 99 90 g5 92
18 20 3

0203040506070809101112131415

Chart 36
08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15
8.9 8.9 8.9 (13.5) 131 29 (7.3) 104
0.7 49 4.7 (20.4) 10.2 (1.5) (15.6) 5.2
431 41.6 42.8 338 274 284 32.7 305

1) The impact of the exchange rate euro / dollar in the evolution of BFA costs denominated in euro results from the fact that personnel costs are indexed to the dollar and that a significant
part of the outside supplies and services are in foreign currency, due to the high dependence of the Angolan economy from imports of goods and services. When expressed in dollars,

BFA costs increase by 2.5% in 2015.
2) Excluding non-recurring impacts both in costs and revenues.
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Similarly, the cost of credit risk® also trended positively,
improving from 176.7 M.€ in 2014 to 118.8 M.€ in
2015, thereby contributing 58 M.€ to the improvement
in consolidated net profit before taxation.

As a percentage of the loan portfolio, credit-risk cost
declined from 0.70% to 0.48%. Despite the decline
relative to the peak of 0.96% recorded in 2013, that
indicator is still situated above the historical figures
registered by BPI (0.32% in the 10 years from 2002 to
20112).

Consolidated

recoveries, absorbed 27% of operating profit, with the
result that profit before taxes amounted to 373 M.€ in
2015.

Consolidated net profit was 236.4 M.€, given that the
profit before taxes is reduced by the charge for corporate
income tax (29.1 M.€) and the appropriation of
non-controlling interests’ share of profits (140.8 M.€),
corresponding essentially to the 49.9% equity interest
held by Unitel in BFA, and increased by the
equity-accounted results of subsidiaries (33.4 M.€,
+28.0% relative to 2014).

Impairments for loans and other purposes, net of

Consolidated income statement

Amounts in M.€

Proforma 2014* 2014 2015
Consolidated Consolidated Domestic International Consolidated
activity activity
Net interest income (narrow sense) 1 485.3 485.3 316.4 308.2 624.6
Other income® 2 29.1 29.1 38.8 0.0 38.8
Net interest income [=1+2]| 3 514.5 514.5 355.2 308.2 663.4
Technical result from insurance contracts 4 34.4 34.4 31.8 0.0 31.8
Commissions and other fees (net) 5 312.2 312.2 255.9 68.7 324.7
Profits from financial operations 6 24.9 24.9 47.9 146.7 194.6
Operating income and charges 7 (28.2) (28.2) (24.7) (7.9) (32.6)
Net operating revenue [=23t7]| 8 857.7 857.7 666.2 515.7 1181.9
Personnel costs, excluding
early-retirement costs 9 370.1 370.1 293.8 85.0 378.8
Outside supplies and services 10 238.2 238.2 177.3 719 249.2
Depreciation of fixed assets 11 30.8 30.8 19.8 16.4 36.1
Operating costs excluding
early-retirement costs [=29t011]| 12 639.1 639.1 490.8 173.3 664.1
Early-retirement costs 13 325 325 6.5 0.0 6.5
Operating costs [=12+13]| 14 671.5 671.5 497.3 173.3 670.6
Operating profit [=8-14]| 15 186.2 186.2 168.8 342.4 511.3
Recovery of loans written-off 16 16.5 16.5 16.2 1.9 18.2
Loan provisions and impairments 17 193.2 193.2 103.4 33.6 137.0
Other impairments and provisions 18 453 45.3 159 3.6 19.5
Profits before taxes [=15+16-17-18]| 19 (35.8) (35.8) 65.8 307.1 372.9
Corporate income tax 20 31.6 30.7 (4.2) 333 29.1
Equity-accounted results
of subsidiaries 21 26.1 26.1 23.1 10.3 334
Results attributable to
non-controlling interests 22 123.3 123.3 0.0 140.8 140.8
Net profit [=19-20+21-22]| 23 (164.6) (163.6) 93.1 143.3 236.4
Cash flow after taxes [=23+11+17+18]| 24 104.7 105.6 232.1 196.9 429.0
Note:
Non-recurrent impacts 25 (264.3) 8.4 8.4
Net profit excl. non-recurring impacts 26 100.6 84.7 143.3 228.0
Table 21

1) Loan impairments, net of recoveries.

2) Period prior to the maximum figures attained in 2012 (0.92%) and 2013 (0.96%).

3) Unit links gross margin, income from equity instruments and commissions associated with amortised costs (net).

4) 2014 proforma due to the retrospective application of the requirements of IFRIC 21, as provided for by IAS 8. According to the new IFRIC 21 rules, in terms of which the event that
creates the obligation and gives rise to a liability corresponding to the payment of a levy is the activity which triggers the payment of the levy, Banco BPI changed the manner in which it
records the following levies: periodic contribution to the Resolution Fund, periodic contribution paid to the Deposit Guarantee Fund and the extraordinary contribution levied on the
banking sector. See note 2.1 to the financial statements — Comparability of information (IFRIC 21).
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Consolidated

Consolidated balance sheet

At the close of 2015, consolidated assets totalled
40.7 th.M.€ while consolidated shareholders’ equity
attributable to BPI shareholders stood at 2.4 th.M.€.

Total assets deployed in domestic operations were
33.3 th.M.€. The domestic operations balance sheet
essentially reflects the intermediation business with
Customers: Customer resources funded 75% of assets,
with Customer loans representing 68% of those assets.
In its off-balance sheet accounts, the Bank had under
management 4.5 th.M.€ of Customer resources.

The international operations’ balance sheet presents a
high level of capitalisation and liquidity. Total assets were
8.0 th.M.€ whose funding is wholly funded by Customer
deposits and shareholders’ equity. BFA's business is
founded on the taking in of Customer deposits and the
application of a portion of those resources in loans (22%
of deposits), while surplus liquidity is invested in Angolan
State securities, in placements at the BNA (Central Bank)
and on the international banking market.

Consolidated balance sheet structure in 2015

40673M.€
Cash assets and loans to credit 1%
institutions
B Financial assets

held for dealing 8%
available for sale 16%
of which:

Portuguese T-Bills 3.5%

Other EU short-term

public debt 2.0%

EU sovereign bonds 2.2%
held to maturity 0.1%

M Loans to Customers
B Financial investments, fixed assets
and other

Assets

1) Balances not corrected for operations between these segments.
2) Financial assets held for trading, available for sale and held to maturity.

Consolidated balance sheet

At 31 December 2015 Amounts in M.€

Domestic  International Consolidated
activity® activity’
Assets
Loans to Customers 22 788.1 1493.6 24 281.6
Financial assets’
portfolio? 6892.5 33139 10 206.4
Other 35904 3214.3 6185.3
Total assets 33 271.0 8 021.7 40673.3
Liabilities and shareholders'
equity
Deposits 18777.2 6 860.0 25637.1
Other Customer Resources® 6211.6 6211.6
Other 6352.6 255.9 5989.1
Shareholders' equity attributable
to BPI shareholders 1927.8 479.0 2 406.9
Non-controlling interests 1.8 426.8 428.6
Total Shareholders' equity and
non-controlling interests 1929.6 905.9 2 835.5
Total liabilities and
Shareholders' equity 33 271.0 8 021.7 40673.3
Guarantees 1443.0 385.7 1828.8
Off-balance sheet
Customer resources 4 474.2 44742
Table 22
40673M.€
Short-term resources
Money market 0.2%
Repos 0.1%
ECB financing 3.7%

B Medium and long term resources
Insurance capitalisation
= Customer resources

Retail bonds 0.8%
Deposits 63.0%

B Shareholders' equity,
non-controlling interests and
other liabilities

Liabilities and
shareholders' equity

Chart 37

3) Capitalisation insurance, public debt placed with Customers and other on-balance sheet Customer resources.
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Consolidated balance sheet

Consolidated

Amounts in M.€

Proforma 2014!

2014

2015

Consolidated Consolidated Domestic International Consolidated
activity? activity?
Assets
Cash, deposits at central banks and deposits
and loans to credit institutions 1 4 .863.5 4 .863.5 2 164.6 2989.9 4570.3
Loans and advances to Customers 2 25 269.0 25 269.0 22 788.1 1493.6 24 281.6
Financial assets held for dealing 3 3017.7 3017.7 3147.1 527.5 3674.6
Financial assets available for sale 4 75258 75258 3723.0 2786.4 6 509.4
Investments held to maturity 5 88.4 88.4 22.4 0.0 22.4
Investments in associated companies
and jointly controlled entities 6 213.0 213.0 146.1 64.3 2104
Other 7 16515 16515 1279.7 160.0 1404.5
Total assets [=X1to7]| 8 42 628.9 42 628.9 33 271.0 8 021.7 40 673.3
Liabilities and shareholders' equity
Resources of central banks 9 1561.2 1561.2 1520.7 0.0 1520.7
Credit institutions' resources 10 13724 13724 1895.7 0.3 1311.8
Customer resources and other loans 11 28 134.6 28 134.6 21 264.8 6913.0 28177.8
Debts evidenced by certificates 12 2238.1 2238.1 1077.4 0.0 1077.4
Technical provisions 13 4151.8 4151.8 3663.1 0.0 3663.1
Financial liabilities associated to
transferred assets 14 1047.7 1047.7 689.5 0.0 689.5
Other subordinated loans and
participating bonds 15 69.5 69.5 69.5 0.0 69.5
Other 16 1524.3 1507.8 1160.6 202.5 13279
Shareholders' equity attributable
to BPI shareholders 17 2110.9 2127.4 19278 479.0 2 406.9
Non-controlling interests 18 418.3 418.3 1.8 426.8 428.6
Total Shareholders' equity and
non-controlling interests [=17+18]| 19 2 529.2 2 545.6 1929.6 905.9 2 835.5
Total liabilities and
Shareholders' equity [=2 910 18]| 20 42 628.9 42 628.9 33 271.0 8 021.7 40 673.3
Note: bank guarantees 21 2168.7 2168.7 1443.0 385.7 1828.8
Off-balance sheet
Customer resources® 22 3216.2 3216.2 4 474.2 4 474.2
Table 23

1) Proforma in Dec. 2014 due to the retrospective application of the requirements of IFRIC 21, as provided for by IAS 8. See note 2.1 to the financial statements — Comparability of

information (IFRIC 21).

2) The Domestic and International Operations’ balance sheets presented above are not corrected for the balances resulting from operations between those segments.
3) Unit trust funds, PPR and PPA, and assets under BPI Suisse’'s management. Figures net of the participation units in the Group banks’ portfolios.
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GROUP CAPITAL

Accounting shareholders’ equity

Accounting shareholders’ equity amounted to 2 835 M.€
at the end of 2015, and corresponded to 7.0% of
consolidated assets.

Accounting shareholders’ equity comprised:

= shareholders’ equity attributable to BPI shareholders of
2 407 M.€. At the end of 2015, 80% of shareholders’
equity was allocated to domestic activity, with the
remaining 20% being employed in international activity;

= non-controlling interests of 429 M.€ corresponding
essentially to Unitel’s 49.9% shareholding in BFA
(427 M.€).

Shareholders’ equity and non-controlling interests trend in 2015

Selected indicators Amounts in M.€

2015

Shareholders’ equity
Shareholders’ equity 2 406.9
Shareholders’ equity and non-controlling interests 2835.5
Regulatory capital — phasing in
CET1 25743
CET1 ratio 10.9%
Leverage ratio 6.9%
Regulatory capital — fully implemented
CET1 23134
CET1 ratio 9.8%
Leverage ratio 6.4%

Table 24

Amounts in M.€

Shareholders' equity

. Non-controlling Total
st o 7
Shareholders equity at 31 December 2014 1 2127.4 418.3 2 545.6
Impact of the application of IFRIC 21 2 (16.5) (16.5)
Shareholders equity at 31 December 2014 Proforma [=1+2]| 3 2110.9 418.3 2 529.2
BFA dividends paid to minorities 4 (64.2) (64.2)
Net profit 5 236.4 140.8 377.2
Change in the fair value reserve, net of deferred taxes 6 40.5 40.5
Actuarial variances, net of deferred taxes 7 102.5 102.5
Exchange translation differences of foreign companies 8 (77.0) (66.2) (143.2)
Revaluation reserves of insurers 9 (5.8) (5.8)
Other 10 (0.7) (0.0 (0.8)
[=3 410 10]| 11 296.0 10.4 306.3
Shareholders equity at 31 December 2015 [=3+11]| 12 2 406.9 428.6 2 835.5
Of which:
Domestic activity 1927.8 1.8 1929.6
International activity 479.0 426.8 905.9
Table 25

The shareholders’ equity attributable to BPI shareholders
increased by 296 M.€ in 2015. The main factors
explaining that situation were:

With positive impact,
= net profit generated in the year of 236.4 M.€;

= the positive change in the fair value reserve of
40.5 M.€, which primarily reflects the appreciation in
the value of the securities held in portfolio, above all of
Portuguese and ltalian public debt, as a result of the
decline in the respective yields on the secondary
market;

= the positive actuarial variance of 102.5 M.€ (net of
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deferred taxation). This resulted from the fact that the
return of 14% earned by the Employee pension funds in
2015 was higher than the discount rate. It should be
noted that, in terms of regulatory capital (CET1) this
impact was in large part neutralised, given that the
return generated a surplus of pension fund funding of a
similar amount, which is deducted in the computation
of CET1 capital.

With negative impact,

= the currency revaluation of the shareholdings in the
African banks, which had a negative impact of 77 M.€
due primarily to the 15% depreciation of the kwanza
and the 18% depreciation of the metical against the



euro (consolidation currency). Of that figure, 66 M.€
resulted from the conversion to euro of the shareholding
in BFA and 13.4 M.€ from the conversion to euro of
the shareholding in BCI.

Capital ratios

At 31 December 2015, the common equity Tier 1 capital
(CET1) calculated according to the CRD IV / CRR rules
applicable in 2015 totalled 2.6 th.M.€, which
corresponded to a CET1 ratio of 10.9%. The CET1
capital in domestic operations amounted to 1.7 th.M.€
and corresponded to a ratio of 11.0%, while CET1 capital
in international operations amounted to 0.9 th.M.€ and
corresponded to a 10.6% ratio.

Consolidated

positive impact on fully-implemented CET1 was
220 M.€ corresponding to an impact on the CET1 ratio

of +0.9 p.p.

= the application of the new risk weightings applied to
BFA’s exposure, expressed in Kwanza, to the Angolan

State and to the BNA.

Common Equity Tier 1 ratio
At 31 December 2015

%

Risk-weighted assets
Fully implemented

At 31 December 2015

Domestic
activity

Fully-implemented CET1 capital (that is, without = 98
benefiting from the phasing in envisaged in those rules)
amounted to 2.3 th.M.€, while the CET1 ratio was 9.8%.
In domestic operations, the CET1 ratio was 9.9% and
9.5% in international operations.
With effect from 1 January 2015, the ratios incorporate
two regulatory alterations:
Rules for Fully International

= adherence to the special deferred tax assets (DTA) 2015  implemented activity

regime approved at the Shareholders General Meeting Chart 38 Chart 39

held on 17 October 2014. At 31 December 2015, the
Common Equity Tier 1 Ratio
According to CRD IV / CRR rules Amounts in M.€

31 Dec. 14 31 Dec. 14 31 Dec. 15
proforma’ Domestic  International Consolidated
activity activity

CRD IV / CRR phasing in
CET1 capital 24255 2529.9 1715.7 858.6 2574.3
Risk-weighted assets 20 602.3 24 811.2 15 636.8 8 065.5 23702.3
CET1 ratio 11.8% 10.2% 11.0% 10.6% 10.9%
CRD IV / CRR fully implemented
CET1 capital 1700.7 2118.7 15525 760.9 23134
Risk-weighted assets 202215 24 674.7 15 610.7 8042.1 23 652.8
CET1 ratio 8.4% 8.6% 9.9% 9.5% 9.8%

Table 26

1) Proforma figures considering adherence to the special deferred tax asset (DTA) regime and the application of the new risk weightings applied to Banco BPI's indirect exposure to the

Angolan State and to BNA.
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Consolidated

The 1.2 p.p. improvement in the fully-implemented
Common Equity Tier 1 ratio relative to December 2014
(proforma) was due to the 195 M.€ increase in CET1
capital, with an impact on the ratio of +0.8 p.p., and to
the 4.1% decrease in risk-weighted assets, with a +0.4
p.p. impact on the ratio.

The increase in CET1 capital is essentially explained by
the net profit generated in the year and by the positive
change in the fair value reserve arising from the
appreciation of the portfolio of Portuguese and Italian
sovereign debt.

It should be noted that the negative impact on CET1
capital calculated when converting into euro the
shareholdings in BFA and BCI, stemming from the
depreciation of the kwanza and the metical against the
euro, is in large measure offset by the decrease in
risk-weighted assets of those investments by way of the
same currency effect.

Risk-weighted assets

BPI utilises the standard method for purposes of
determining the assets weighted by credit risk, which
constitutes the most expressive risk, representing roughly
88% of risk-weighted assets. In calculating capital
requirements for hedging operational risk (which
represents 8% of risk-weighted assets) the Bank utilises
the basic indicator method.

At the close of 2015, risk-weighted assets amounted to
23.7 th.M.€ (fully implemented) and represented 58% of
total consolidated assets.

It is worth noting that BPI had a portfolio of Euro-area
public-debt securities and denominated in euro!, and
therefore subject to a weighting coefficient of zero, which
corresponded to 8% of consolidated assets.

Noteworthy too is the high level of credit-risk cover by
impairment allowances, which translates into lower
pressure on regulatory capital for credit-risk cover and,
therefore, its increased capacity to absorb unexpected
losses.

At the close of 2015, consolidated credit-at-risk,
representing 4.6% of the gross loan book, was 87%
covered by accumulated impairment allowances on the
balance sheet. In mortgage loans, which account for
some 44% of the total portfolio, the loan-to-value ratio
was 56% at the end of 2015, while credit-at-risk (3.4%
of the portfolio) was covered by impairments to the extent
of 62%.

Leverage ratios (CRD IV / CRR)

The leverage ratio is the ratio calculated between Tier 1
capital and the total value of balance sheet assets and
off-balance sheet items, and therefore not subject to
weighting coefficients as is the case when calculating
risk-weighted assets.

At 31 December 2015 the following are the leverage
ratios:

= Phasing-in leverage ratio: 6.9%

= Fully-implemented leverage ratio: 6.4%

1) Comprised by short-term securities (2.3 th.M.€) and medium and long term securities from Portugal (0.35 th.M.€) and lItaly (0.6 th.M.€).
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Common Equity Tier 1 ratio

According to the CRD IV / CRR rules

Consolidated

Amounts in M.€

CRD IV / CRR Phasing in

CRD IV / CRR Fully implemented

31 Dec. 14 31 Dec. 14 31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 14 31 Dec. 14 31 Dec. 15
(2014 proforma’ (2015 proforma’
rules) (2014 rules) rules)

Share capital, premiums and reserves 1 21425 21425 2393.9 21275 21275 2407.0
Minority interests net of dividends
payable 2 353.1 353.1 375.5 353.1 353.1 375.5
Minority interests not eligible 3 (44.7) (13.8) (8.6) (223.6) (68.9) (99.8)

[E1to3]| 4 24509 2481.8 2 760.7 2257.0 2411.7 2682.7
Intangible assets 5 (5.0) (5.0) (11.7) (24.9) (24.9) (29.1)
Tax losses 6 (14.9) (14.9) (32.9) (102.8) (102.8) (103.6)
Surplus pension fund funding 7 0.0 0.0 (43.8) 0.0 0.0 (109.5)
Other 8 (1.9 (1.9) (3.6) (9.3) (9.3) (9.0)

[E4t8]| 9 2429.2 2 460.1 2 668.8 2120.0 22747 2431.4
Deductions of shareholdings in Cls
and Insurers < 10% 10 (0.9) (0.8) 0.0 (10.9) (8.5) 0.0
Deductions of shareholdings in Cls
and Insurers > 10% 11 (13.7) (13.0) (36.8) (163.2) (147.5) (118.0)
Deductions of deferred tax assets 12 0.0 0.0 0.0 (78.5) 0.0 0.0
Deduction of shareholdings in Cls and Insurers
>10% + deferred tax assets 13 (12.6) 0.0 0.0 (166.7) 0.0 0.0
Negative components of AT1 capital 14 (62.0) (1.8) (79.2) 0.0 0.0 0.0
National filters 15 85.5 85.5 21.6 0.0 0.0 0.0
Common Equity Tier 1 [=2 91t 15]| 16 2 425.5 2 529.9 25743 1700.7 2118.7 23134
Additional Tier 1 17 (62.0) (1.8) (79.2) 22.1 40.0 58.7
Tier Il 18 (68.4) (35.9) (33.1) (16.1) (31.4) 41.7
Total own funds 19 2 425.5 2 529.9 2574.3 17228 2 158.7 2413.8
Risk-weighted assets 20 20 602.3 24 811.2 237023 20 221.5 24 674.7 23652.8
CET1 ratio 21 11.8% 10.2% 10.9% 8.4% 8.6% 9.8%
T1 ratio 22 11.8% 10.2% 10.9% 8.5% 87% 10.0%
Total ratio 23 11.8% 10.2% 10.9% 8.5% 8.7% 10.2%
AT1 — Additional Tier 1; CET1 — Common Equity Tier 1; T1 — Tier 1; Cl — Credit Institutions. Table 27

1) Proforma figures considering adherence to the special deferred tax asset (DTA) regime and the application of the new risk weightings applied to Banco BPI's indirect exposure to the

Angolan State and to BNA.
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Consolidated

SPECIAL REGIME APPLICABLE TO DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

BPI approved at the Bank’s General Meeting held on 17
October 2014 adherence to the special regime applicable to
deferred tax assets embodied in Law no. 61 / 2014 of 26
August. This Special Regime covers the deferred tax assets
which have resulted from the non deduction of costs and
negative net asset changes arising from loan-impairment
losses and post-employment or long-term Employee
benefits.

The regime, whose application began on 1 January 2015,
permits the inclusion of those deferred taxes in Common
Equity Tier 1 capital, without the application of the
eligibility limits.

Considering the deferred tax assets in existence on
31 December 2014, the adherence to the Special Regime

had a positive impact on Common Equity Tier 1 capital of
245 M.£€.

The following were the impacts on the Common Equity Tier
1 (CET1) ratios:

= CET1 rules for 2014: +0.4 p.p.;
= CET1 fully implemented: +1.2 p.p.

At 31 December 2015, the positive impact on
fully-implemented CET1 was 220 M.€. The corresponding
impacts on the CET1 ratios was as follows:

= CET1 rules for 2015: +0.3 p.p.;
= CET1 fully implemented: +0.9 p.p.

EQUIVALENT REGULATION AND SUPERVISION

The Republic of Angola was not included in the list of third
countries having regulations and supervision equivalent to
those of the European Union and disclosed in December
2014 by the European Commission, which list includes

17 countries and territories around the world.

For this reason, according to BPI’'s announcement to the
market on 16 December 2014, with effect from 1 January
2015 Banco BPI’s indirect exposure in kwanza (i) to the
Angolan State and (ii) to Banco Nacional de Angola (BNA),
ceased to be the object, for purposes of calculating Banco
BPI's capital ratios, of the same risk weightings as those
provided for in Angolan regulations for this type of
exposure, and began to be the object of the risk weightings
envisaged in the CRR.

This means that, effective from 1 January 2015, Banco
BPI's indirect exposure in kwanza to the Angolan State and
to the BNA ceased to be the object of a weighting for
capital ratio purposes of 0% or 20%, depending on the
situation, and is now the object of a 100% weighting.

The impacts of these changes on the risk-weighted assets
and on the CET1, based on the situation at 31 December
2014, were the following:

= increase in the risk-weighted assets of 4 479 M.€ in
international operations: the risk-weighted assets rose
from 3 667 M.€ to 8 147 M.€.

= increase in CET1 of 173 M.€, explained by the increase
in eligible minority interests! (+155 M.€) as a
consequence of the increase in weighted assets to which
must be added a decrease in the deductions of
investments in Cl’s and insurers (+18 M.€) via the
increase in the reference limits.

The impacts on the Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1)? ratios
were as follows:

= CET1 rules for 2014: -2.0 p.p;

= CET1 fully implemented: -1.0 p.p.

1) The minority interests are eligible for the CET1 up to the amount of the required capital proportional to the value of the shareholding. Accordingly, the minority interests in BFA eligible for

CET1 = BFA's RWA x 7% x 49.9%.

2) In relation to the ratios at 31 Dec. 14 proforma after DTA and taking into account the risk weightings in force at the end of 2014.
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DOMESTIC OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW - RESULTS OF DOMESTIC OPERATIONS

In 2015, BPI's domestic operations posted a net profit of
93.1 M.€, compared with the previous year’s loss of
289.7 M.€, considering that these were quite adversely
affected by non-recurring costs and losses of 264.3 M.€.

Excluding non-recurring costs and losses, the net profit
from domestic operations in 2015 was 84.7 M.€ when in
2014 there was a net loss of 25.5 M.€.

The improvement in the 2015 figure was underpinned by
the recovery of the more recurrent income base:

= net interest income was up by 50.8 M.€ (+17%), the
principal contribution coming from the decrease in the
cost of time deposits, the average spread on which

relative to Euribor improved from 1.5% in 2014 to
1.0% in 2015;

= the cost of credit risk! decreased by 71.4 M.€, from
158.5 M.€ in 2014 (0.66% of the loan portfolio) to
87.1 M.€ in 2015 (0.38% of the loan portfolio);

= operating costs remained stable in 2015. Since 2007
the Bank has implemented in an ongoing and gradual
manner rationalisation and optimisation measures
directed at the operational structure in domestic
activity, which translate into a re-scaling of the installed
capacity and efficiency gains. Since 2007, costs
(excluding non-recurring) have posted a nominal
decrease of 17%, which corresponded to a saving on an
annual basis of 101 M.€.

NON-RECURRING IMPACTS

The non-recurring impacts on net profit from domestic
operations were a negative 264.3 M.€ in 2014 (after tax)

Non-recurring impacts

and a positive 8.4 M.€ in 2015 (after tax). The following
table presents details of those impacts.

Amounts in M.€

2014 2014 2015 2015

Caption before after before after
taxes taxes taxes taxes
Interest on contingent convertible subordinated Net interest (26.7) (20.5)
bonds (Cocos)! income

Loss on the sale of Portuguese and Italian MLT
public debt

Profits from financial operations ~ (137.5)

(105.9) (4.2) (3.3)

Early retirement costs Personnel costs (32.5) (23.1) (6.5) (4.8)
Impairments for private equity and other investments Other impairments (22.9) (16.7) (3.0) (2.4)
Extraordinary contribution levied on the banking sector Income tax (15.6) (13.0)
Deferred tax assets relating to 2011 tax losses? Income tax (50.9) 32.6
Change in the corporate tax rate from 23% to 21% in 2015°  Income tax (23.3) -
Other? (11.0) (8.2) (0.9) (0.7)

(230.5) (264.3) (14.5) 8.4
1) Interest cost of the contingent convertible subordinated bonds (CoCo) subscribed by the State. The cost with the CoCo refer to the interest Table 28

relating to the first six months of 2014, given that the CoCo were fully redeemed in June of that year.

2) In 2014 BPI wrote off the balance on the deferred tax assets account relating to the 2011 tax losses (with a negative impact of 50.9 M.€ on net income), given that the
projected results for 2015 did not permit foreseeing the respective utilization within the legal period which terminated in 2015. In 2015, since Banco BPI presented a
taxable profit it can use the 155 M.€ of the 2011 tax loss carry-forward, with the result that in the 2015 accounts, BPI recognised a deferred tax asset credit in the
income statement of 32.6 M.€ associated with the utilization of the tax loss carry-forward generated in 2011.

3) In 2014 BPI wrote off 23.3 M.€ of deferred taxes relating to timing differences by virtue of the change in the corporate tax rate from 23% to 21% in 2015. The decrease
in the corporate tax rate gives rise to a decrease in future income taxes, but has an immediate negative impact as a result of the recalculation of the deferred taxes.

4) Costs with the closure of branches, adjustment to the remuneration of governing bodies following the total redemption of the CoCo’s, calculation of the present value of the
long-service bonuses as a result of the alteration to assumptions, costs with consultants relating to the Asset Quality Review and extraordinary payment of the preferential

coupon.

1) Loan impairments in the year net of recoveries.
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Domestic activity

Net operating revenue excluding non-recurring impacts
advanced by 56 M.€ to 671 M.€ in 2015, which
permitted improving the cover of operating costs

(491 M.€ in 2015). The indicator “operating costs as a
percentage of net operating revenue”, excluding
non-recurring impacts, improved from 79.4% in 2014 to
73.1% in 2015.

Recurring operating profit climbed from 127 M.€ in
2014 to 180 M.€ in 2015.

Impairments for loans and other purposes (net of
recoveries) absorbed 55% of operating profit in 2015. In
this manner, profit before tax was 80.4 M.€.

Net profit (excluding non-recurring items), which
additionally includes the impact of taxation and the
equity-accounted results of subsidiaries, was situated at
84.7 M.€.

The return on average shareholders’ equity in domestic
operations, notwithstanding the recovery registered in
2015, remains low at 5.2% (4.7% excluding
non-recurring items).

Domestic activity net profit Domestic activity ROE

M.€ %
163
23
-28
-290
375 24
11 12 13 14 15 11 12 13 14 15
Chart 40 Chart 41

The following are relevant factors for the revival in the
profitability of domestic operations:

= the ongoing decline in the cost of time deposits, at the
same time as the demand for credit records a modest
upturn, resulting in the expansion albeit weak of the
loan portfolio;

= the lower cost of credit risk, which although falling to
0.38% in 2015, still remains above the historical
average of 0.27%".

= the continuing gradual implementation of cost
rationalisation and optimisation measures.

1) Average indicator in the 10 years from 2002 to 2011, period prior to the peaks attained in 2012 (0.91%) and 2013 (0.98%).
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Domestic activity income statement

Domestic activity

Amounts in M.€

Proforma 2014 2015  Non-recurring  Excluding non-recurring
20147 impacts impacts
2014 2015 2014 2015 AM.€
Net interest income (narrow sense) 1 248.7 248.7 316.4 (26.7) 2754 3164 +41.0
Other income! 2 290 290 38.8 29.0 388 +98
Net interest income [=1+2] | 3 277.7 277.7 355.2 (26.7) 304.4 355.2 +50.8
Technical result from insurance contracts 4 34.4 34.4 31.8 34.4 31.8 (2.6)
Commissions and other fees (net) 5 246.3 2463 255.9 246.3 2559  +9.7
Profits from financial operations 6 (92.7) (92.7) 479 (137.5) (4.2) 448 521 473
Operating income and charges 7 (16.9) (16.9) (24.7) (2.7)  (0.9) (14.3) (23.8) (9.5
Net operating revenue [=23t07] | 8 448.8 448.8 666.2 (166.9) (5.1) 615.6 671.3 +55.6
Personnel costs, excluding early-retirement costs 9 302.1 302.1 293.8 5.8 296.3 2938 (2.5
Outside supplies and services 10 1785 1785 177.3 2.5 176.0 1773 +1.3
Depreciation of fixed assets 11 16.7 16.7 19.8 16.7 198 431
Operating costs excluding early-retirement costs [=29to11] | 12 497.2 497.2 490.8 83 4889 490.8 +1.9
Early-retirement costs 13 325 325 6.5 325 6.5
Operating costs [=12+13] | 14 529.7 529.7 497.3 40.7 6.5 488.9 490.8 +1.9
Operating profit [=8-14] | 15 (80.9) (80.9) 168.8 (207.6) (11.6) 126.7 180.4 +53.7
Recovery of loans written-off 16 14.0 14.0 16.2 14.0 16.2 +2.3
Loan provisions and impairments 17 1725 1725 103.4 1725 1034 (69.1)
Other impairments and provisions 18 37.9 379 159 229 3.0 15.0 129 (2.1)
Profits before taxes [=15+16-17-18] | 19 | (277.3) (277.3) 65.8 (230.5) (14.5) (46.8) 80.4 +127.2
Corporate income tax 20 27.3 263 (4.2) 33.8 (22.9) (7.4) 188 +26.2
Equity-accounted results of subsidiaries 21 14.6 14.6 23.1 14.6 23.1 +8.6
Results attributable to non-controlling interests 22 0.7 0.7 0.0 0.7 0.0 (0.6)
Net profit [=19-20+21-22] | 23 | (290.7) (289.7) 93.1 (264.3) 8.4 (25.5) 84.7 +110.2
Cash flow after taxation [=23+11+17+18] | 24 (63.7) (62.7) 232.1 (241.4) 114 178.6 220.8 +42.1
Table 29

1) Unit links gross margin, income from equity instruments and commissions associated with amortised cost (net).
2) 2014 proforma due to the retrospective application of the requirements of IFRIC 21, as provided for by IAS 8. See note 2.1 to the financial statements — Comparability of information

(IFRIC 21).

Report | Financial review 83



Domestic activity

Income

Net interest income

Narrow net interest income rose by 27.2% (+67.7 M.€)
which is primarily explained by the continuing adjustment
(reduction) of the average costs of time deposits within
the context of the progressive stabilisation of the loan
portfolio.

The unit intermediation margin — defined as the margin
between the lending interest rate and the cost of deposits
— improved by 0.34 p.p., from 1.0% to 1.3%. Net
interest income as a percentage of ATA was situated at
0.9% in 2015 (0.7% in 2014).

Net interest income and technical

result of insurance contracts Amounts in M.€

2014 2015 A%
Narrow net interest income 1 248.7 316.4 27.2%
Gross margin on unit links 2 5.0 13.0 157.8%
Income from equity
instruments 3 3.6 4.7 31.2%
Commissions associated
with amortised cost 4 20.4 21.1 3.5%
Net interest income (=X 1t04]| 5 277.7 355.2 27.9%
Technical result of
insurance contracts 6 34.4 31.8 (7.5%)
Total [=5+6]| 7 312.1 387.0 24.0%

Table 30

Trend in net interest income and results from capitalisation
insurance

M.€
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Chart 42

Capitalisation insurance and other income
B Net interest income (narrow sense)
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The increase in narrow net interest income is essentially
explained by the following factors:

With positive impact,

= the decrease in the average cost of time deposits, from
1.5% to 1.0% above Euribor, which constituted the
prime factor for the improvement in net interest
income. The price effect on the margin was positive by
some 73 M.€;

= the expansion of loans to small businesses, with the
portfolio recording an average spread of 3.6%. The
11.6% growth in the portfolio’s average balance
generated a volume effect of 6 M.€;

= the contracting of new home loans with an average
spread of 2.5%. This permitted compensating via the
spread the impact on net interest income of the
decrease in the loan portfolio, bearing in mind that
repayments, being greater than the volume contracted,
refer primarily to loan operations contracted some time
ago with smaller spreads (the average spread for the
whole portfolio is situated at 1.1%);

= the complete repayment of the contingent convertible
subordinated bonds (CoCo) in June 2014. In the 1% half
of 2014, the Bank incurred a cost with those
instruments of 27 M.€.

Loans and deposits spread
Quarterly average interest rates

%

58

07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

Chart 43
~ Loans
— Deposits
— Euribor 3-months



With negative impact,

= the 10% reduction in the corporate, project finance and
public-sector loans portfolio in terms of average
balance. It should be pointed out that this portfolio has
presented a progressive stabilisation and already in the
2" half of the year registers a positive behaviour.

= the lower spreads in the corporate segment, in
particular in the lower-risk segments. The portfolio’s
average spread narrowed by 0.52 p.p., from 3.4% to
2.9%;

= the declining contribution to the interest margin from
the securities portfolio as a result of the fall in the
yields of Treasury Bills on the market and the decrease
in the portfolio. At the close of 2015 the portfolio of
Treasury Bills held by BPI, with a residual average

Average interest rates on remunerated assets and liabilities

Domestic activity

maturity of around 6 months, had an average yield of

0.04%. The interest income from the portfolio of

public-debt securities (short term and medium / long
term) dropped by 28.4 M.€, from 34.8 M.€ in 2014 to
6.5 M.€ in 2015.

Also noteworthy was the 13.6% increase (+5.3 M.€) in

the contribution from capitalisation insurance — the
margin on which is essentially recorded under the

captions “gross margin on unit links” and “technical
result from insurance contracts”. This trend is explained
by the strong expansion in the portfolio of those
resources, with an average unit margin of 0.8% in 2015.
The aggregate of net interest income and the technical
result from insurance contracts rose by 24%.

Amounts in M.€

2014 2015
Average Interest  Average Average Interest  Average
balance interest balance interest
rate rate
Loans to Customers
Companies, institutionals and project finance 1 8 068.1 260.1 3.2% 7 260.5 193.0 2.7%
Mortgage loans 2| 10814.7 146.5 1.4% 10 504.3 125.3 1.2%
Other loans to individuals 3 832.3 60.1 7.2% 803.0 56.5 7.0%
Loans to small businesses 4 1379.1 57.5 4.2% 1539.7 57.3 3.7%
Other 5 922.3 139 1.5% 855.9 154 1.8%
[=21to5]| 6] 220165 538.2 2.4% 20963.5 4475 2.1%
Customer resources' 71 20026.3 290.7 1.5% 20435.4 164.6 0.8%
Other income and costs 8 1.2 335
Narrow net interest income [=6-7+8]| 9 248.7 316.4
Interest-earning assets? 10| 292304 26 213.3
Interest-bearing liabilities? 11| 29110.6 26 235.2
Unitary interest margin [=9/10] | 12 0.85% 1.21%
Intermediation margin (= interest rate
on loans — interest rate on Customer resources) [=6-7]] 13 0.99% 1.33%
Narrow net interest income as % of ATA 14 0.69% 0.93%
Euribor 3 months (annual average) 15 0.21% (0.02%)
Euribor 3 months (3 month moving average) 16 0.23% 0.00%
Table 31

1) Deposits, cheques, payment orders and other resources.

2) Does not include the average balances of BPI Vida e Pensdes’s remunerated assets and liabilities (namely, on the assets’ side, debt certificates and the securities portfolio recorded in the
caption Financial assets held for trading, and on the liabilities’ side, capitalisation insurance) and corresponding interest, given that the margin earned on capitalisation insurance is
essentially recorded under the captions “gross margin on unit links” and “technical result of insurance contracts”.
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Commissions
Commissions and other net income increased by 3.9%
(9.7 M.€) in 2015.

The behaviour of commissions derived from commercial
banking (203.9 M.€ in 2015) and investment banking
(9.2 M.€ in 2015) is affected by the demerger-merger
operation carried out in November 2014. In the wake of
that operation, which constituted a mere internal
reorganisation of the Group, part of the activities
undertaken by Banco Portugués de Investimento started
to be exercised directly by Banco BPI, with Banco
Portugués de Investimento thereafter concentrating on
the conduct of Corporate Finance and Equities business.

Asset-management commissions, which account for
around 17% of total commissions, registered a 4.5%
increase in 2015.

Commissions and other fees (net) Amounts in M.€

2014 2015 A%
Commercial banking
Cards 1 59.9 59.0  (1.6%)
Intermediation of
insurance products 2 40.7 42.1 3.6%
Loans and guarantees 3 32.8 32.0 (2.2%)
Deposits and related services 4 21.8 29.7 36.5%
Securities operations 5 17.3 20.3 -1
Banking services 6 5.1 7.7 B
Securitised loans 7 8.1 6.5 (19.5%)
Other 8 2.8 6.5 130.5%
[==1to8]| 9 188.5 203.9 -1
Asset management 10 41.0 42.8 4.5%
Investment Banking 11 16.8 9.2 -1
Total [=9+10+11]| 12 246.3 255.9 3.9%

Table 32

Profits from financial operations
The profits from financial operations reached 47.9 M.€
in 2015.

In the preceding year, the results from financial
operations were negative in the amount of 92.7 M.€, due
chiefly to losses of 137.5 M.€ realised on the sale of
Portuguese and Italian medium and long-term public
debt.

Amounts in M.€
2014 2015 AM.€

Profits from financial operations

Operations at fair value

Equities? 1 11.3 15.1 +3.8
Interest rate 2 (6.5) 13.9 +20.4
Structured products® 3 0.1 2.3 +2.2
Hedge funds 4 1.2 0.9 (0.4)
Currency” 5 89 8.9 +0.0
Repurchase of liabilities
and other gains in bonds 6 25.3 12.6 (12.8)
[=21to6]| 7 40.3 53.6 +13.3
Available for sale assets
Bonds 8 (134.9) (5.5) +129.3
Equities 9 0.1 0.5 +0.4
Other 10 (0.2) (1.1 (0.8)
[=2 810 10]| 11 (135.0) (6.1) +128.9
Subtotal [=7+11]| 12 (94.7) 47.5 +142.2
Financial income
from pensions
Expected pension
funds return 13 43.3 31.8 (11.4)
Interest cost 14 (41.3) (31.4) +9.9
[=13+14]| 15 2.0 0.4 (1.6)
Total [=12+15]] 16 (92.7) 47.9 +140.6
Table 33

1) Non comparable amounts due to the demerger operation occurred in the last quarter of 2014 whereby part of the activities previously carried out by Banco Portugués de Investimento

were transferred to Banco BPI.
2) Relating to a long-short equities portfolio and a PSI-20 futures arbitrage portfolio.

3) Bonds whose vyield is indexed to the equities, commodities and other markets, with total or partial protection of the capital invested at the end of the period.
4) Gains resulting from the currency margin on operations carried out with the Customer commercial network.
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Other operating losses and gains

The caption “other operating gains / (losses)”, with a
negative balance of 24.7 M.€ in 2015 (-16.9 M.€ in
2014), basically refers to the cost items: contributions to
the Deposit Guarantee Fund (-0.7 M.€), contributions to
the National Resolution Fund (-2.8 M.€), an additional
contribution to the Resolution Fund which is earmarked
for the Single Resolution Fund within the framework of
the European Single Resolution Mechanism (-14.5 M.€),
subscriptions and donations (-4.9 M.€) and taxation
(-6.7 M.€).

Other operating losses and gains Amounts in M.€
2014 2015 AM.€

Contribution to the deposit

guarantee fund 1 (3.3) (0.7) +2.6
Contribution to the National
Resolution Fund 2 (2.7) (2.8) (0.1)

Contribution to the European

Resolution Fund 3 (14.5) (14.5)
Subscriptions and donations 4 (4.2) (4.9) (0.7)
Taxes 5 (5.5) (6.7) (1.2)
Results on non-financial assets 6 (4.4) (0.6) +3.7
Other 7 3.1 5.5 +2.4
Total [=31to7]] 8 (16.9) (24.7) (7.8)
Note:

Extraordinary contribution

levied on the Banking

Sector! 9 (15.6) (13.0) +2.6

Table 34

Operating costs

Operating costs — personnel costs, third party supplies
and services and depreciation and amortisation —
decreased 6.1% in 2015. The behaviour of costs
benefited from the lower early-retirement costs, from
32.5 M.€in 2014 to 6.5 M.€ in 2015.

Excluding early-retirement costs, operating costs were
down 1.3%.

Domestic activity

Within the ambit of the rationalisation and optimisation
measures which BPI has implemented in Portugal in
2015, 51 branches were closed in Portugal (-8.0%) at
the same time as the workforce attached to domestic
activity was reduced by 63 Employees (-1.1%).

The indicator “operating costs as a percentage of net
operating revenue” (efficiency ratio), excluding
non-recurring impacts on both the cost and income sides,
improved from 79.4% in 2014 to 73.1% in 2015.

The improvement in the efficiency ratio, which reached
its worst level in 2013 (86.5%), benefits from the
gradual reduction in costs since 2007 and more recently
from the recovery of the income base.

Net operating revenue Operating costs

M.€ M.€

11019
I
11 12 13

B Net operating revenue

= Net operating revenue
excluding profits from
financial operations

541

g 5100l 157
14 15 11 12 13 14 15
Chart 44 Chart 45

M Operating costs
= Operating costs, excluding
costs with early retirements?

1) The Extraordinary Contribution levied on the Banking Sector is recorded under the caption “Corporate income tax”. With the creation of the National Resolution Fund (Decree-Law no.
31-A /2012 of 10 February) the extraordinary contribution levied on the banking sector is now allocated to the funding of the Resolution Fund.
2) Excludes, in 2012 and 2013, gain resulting from the change to the calculation of the death subsidy.
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Operating costs

Amounts in M.€

2014 2015 A%
Personnel costs, excluding
early-retirement costs 1 302.1 293.8 (2.8%)
Outside supplies and services 2 178.5 177.3 (0.7%)
Operating costs before
depreciation and
amortisation [=1+2]| 3 480.6 471.1  (2.0%)
Depreciation of fixed assets 4 16.7 19.8 18.5%
Operating costs excluding
early-retirement
costs [=3+4]| 5 497.2 490.8 (1.3%)
Costs with early
retirements 6 325 6.5 (80.0%)
Operating costs [=5+6]| 7 529.7 497.3 (6.1%)
Efficiency ratio excl.
non-recurring items'? 8 79.4% 73.1%

Table 35

Personnel costs

Remuneration and pension costs (excluding
early-retirement costs) decreased 2.8% to 293.8 M.€

in 2015.

Personnel costs

Amounts in M.€

2014 2015 A%
Remunerations
Fixed remunerations 1 208.5 203.6 (2.3%)
Variable remunerations 2 18.6 214 15.0%
Other® 3 10.3 7.3 (28.8%)
Remunerations [==1t03]| 4 237.4 2324 (2.1%)
Pension costs and
social charges* 5 64.6 61.4  (5.0%)
Remunerations and
pension costs [=4+5]] 6 302.1 293.8 (2.8%)
Costs with
early retirements 325 6.5 (80.0%)
Total [=6+7] 334.5 300.2 (10.2%)

Table 36

The main factors behind the lower personnel costs

(excluding early retirements) were:

= reduction of 3.6% in the average headcount employed

in domestic operations;

= zero growth in the fixed component of remuneration, in
terms of the salary scale review in Portugal as laid down
in the Vertical Collective Labour Agreement (Acordo
Colectivo de Trabalho Vertical — ACTV) for the banking
sector;

an accounting charge of 18.9 M.€ recognised in 2015
with the variable remuneration to be awarded relating to
the year, which assumes that Employees will be
awarded the identical variable remuneration as that of
2014,

a charge of 2.5 M.€ recorded in 2015 in respect of
variable remuneration relating to the previous year. This
amount is explained by the awarding (in 2015) of 2014
variable remuneration having been made wholly in cash,
giving rise to the full recognition of its cost, when in 2014
the accrual of the cost of the RVA® remuneration was
assumed, and by adjustments between the amount
actually awarded and the estimate recognised in the
accounts.

Operating costs Personnel costs

In 2015

Depreciation M.€
of fixed assets

Costs with
early
retirements 325 318

W2y

29900 o

Outside Personnel

supplies and costs

services 11 12 13 14 15
Chart 46 Chart 47

M Variable remunerations
B Fixed remunerations, social
charges and pension costs

1) Operating costs (personnel costs, OSS and depreciation and amortisation) as a percentage of net operating revenue.

2) Excluding non-recurring impacts from both the costs and income perspectives (see page 81).

In 2014: Non-recurring impact on net operating revenue: costs and losses of 166.9 M.€. Non-recurring impacts on costs: costs of 40.7 M.€.
In 2015: Non-recurring impact on net operating revenue: costs and losses of 5.1 M.€. Non-recurring impacts on costs: costs with early retirements of 6.5 M.€.

3) Includes bonuses and motivation incentives for the commercial network, long-service awards, cost of loans to Employees and others.

4) Includes current service cost, other welfare charges, the amortisation of changes to the pension plan conditions.

5) The cost of the awarding of the RVA Programme is recorded on the accrual basis on a straight line basis, since the beginning of the year to which it refers and the date of its vesting with
the Employees (in the case of the Shares Plan: 25% on the award date and the remainder on the final day of each one of the following three years; in the case of the Options Plan:
beginning of the exercise period which occurs 3 months after the award date).
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TREND IN OPERATING COSTS IN DOMESTIC OPERATIONS BETWEEN 2007 AND 2015

Since the first signs of the international financial crisis in
2007, the Bank has directed efforts at a rationalisation of
the operational structure, involving a gradual reduction in the
branch network and staff complement deployed in operations
in Portugal, in parallel with the stringent control over costs.

Operating costs in 2015 (excluding early-retirement costs)

Operating costs

represent a nominal decline of 17% when compared with
the respective figures in 2007, which correspond to a
saving of 101 M.£€.

Since 2007 the reduction in costs in real terms (adjusting

for the movement in prices) was 24%, considering that the
Consumer Price Index climbed 9.3% in the period.

Amounts in M.€

Dec. Dec. Dec. Dec. Dec. Dec. Dec. Dec. Dec. AO07/15
07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15

M.€ %

Personnel costs! 352.8 3493 356.7 3458 3252 3185 3025 302.1 2938 (59.0) (16.7%)
Outside supplies and services 203.0 196.0 1813 1863 1826 1799 1779 1785 1773 (25.7) (12.7%)
Depreciation of fixed assets 36.4 405 39.5 34.0 25.6 20.4 18.1 16.7 19.8 (16.6) (45.7%)
Operating costs! 592.2 585.8 577.5 566.1 533.4 518.8 498.5 497.2 490.8 (101.3) (17.1%)
Table 37

Between 2007 and 2015, the workforce deployed in
domestic operations was reduced by 1 725 Employees
(-23%) and the distribution network cut by 170 units

(-23%). Since the maximum figures attained in 2008, the
workforce was reduced by 1868 Employees (-24%) and the
distribution network by 222 units (-28%).

Dec. Dec. Dec. Dec. Dec. Dec. Dec. Dec. Dec. A07/15
07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15
No. %
Employees 7624 7767 7428 7297 6658 6400 6274 5962 5899 (1725) (22.6%)
Distribution network in Portugal 755 807 804 803 746 734 683 636 585  (170) (22.5%)
Table 38

The domestic operations’ balance sheet deleveraging was
reflected in the 13% decrease in assets since 2007

(or -24% since its maximum value in 2009) and -16%
in loans and guarantees (-22% since 2009).

Even so, the productivity indicators have posted an
improvement during this period as a consequence of the
implementation of rationalisation measures: the assets and
business volume per Employee increased by 12% and 22%
respectively since 2007.

Selected indicators by branch and by Employee

However, the more recurrent income base — net interest
income, technical result of insurance contracts and
commissions — per Employee presents an unfavourable
trend, falling by 7% since 2007. This performance is
explained primarily by the decrease in the unitary interest
margin (as % of ATA) of 1.44% in 2007 to 1.04% in
2015, as a consequence of the higher costs of time
deposits and a backdrop of Euribor rates at minimum
levels.

Amounts in thousands of €

Dec.07 Dec.08 Dec.09 Dec.10 Dec.11 Dec.12 Dec.13 Dec.14 Dec.15 A07/15
By Employee
Assets 5020 5 040 5876 5 656 5756 6 197 5952 5845 5 640 12%
Business volume 7 516 7716 8132 8 380 8 765 8 559 8 553 9071 9144 22%
Net interest income, technical results
from insurance and commissions 116 97 96 99 85 107 89 91 108 -7%
Operating costs, excluding costs
with early retirements 82 76 77 76 76 79 78 81 83 0.9%
By branch
Assets 49773 47679 53426 50574 50494 53091 53657 53692 55730 12%
Business volume 74515 72995 73934 74941 76890 73333 77097 83328 90 352 21%

Table 39

1) Excluding early-retirement costs and, in 2012 and 2013, gains resulting from the change to the calculation of the death subsidy.
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Employee pension liabilities

At 31 December 2015, the present value of the Bank’s
pension liabilities amounted to 1 280 M.€. The net
assets of the Employees’ pension funds stood at

1 392 M.€!, which guaranteed the funding of 109% of
liabilities.

Employees’ pension liabilities

and pension funds Amounts in M.€

2014 2015
Pension liabilities 12784 12799
Pension funds? 12487 13923
Funding surplus / (shortfall) (29.7) 112.4

97.7% 108.8%
(183.9) (40.5)
7.7% 14.0%
Table 40

Financing of pension liabilities
Total actuarial deviation®
Pension funds return

D R N =

Financing of pension Banco BPI pension funds’

liabilities assets
At 31 December 2015

th.M.€ Other

Liquidity

Fixed-rate

Real estate
bonds

105% 1050 109%

100%. 98%

1313
11
Foreign
equities
11 12 13 14 15

Chart 48

Floating-
-rate bonds

Portuguese
equities

Chart 49

B Pension liabilities
= Coverage by the pension funds’
assets

Pension funds’ return

In 2015, the Bank’s pension funds recorded a return of
14.0%, which was higher than the discount rate (2.5%)
and therefore gave rise to a positive actuarial income
variance of 138 M.€. It should be noted that, up till the
end of 2015, Banco BPI's pension fund’s actual income
return since its creation in 1991 was 9.5% per annum,
on average, and that in the last ten, five and three years,
the actual annual returns were 7.4%, 10.2% and 13.2%,
respectively.

The funds’ positive income variance basically explains the
decrease in the negative balance of the actuarial
variances, which is recorded directly in accounting
shareholders’ equity, from -183.9 M.€ at the end of
2014 to -40.5 M.€ at the end of 2015.

The positive actuarial variance in the pensions funds’ net
income did not have a corresponding positive effect on
CET1 capital, given that it generated a surplus funding of
liabilities by a similar amount which is written off in the
CET1 capital computation.

Actuarial assumptions
There were no changes to the actuarial assumptions in
2015.

The following table presents the actuarial assumptions
utilised in the calculation of pension-related liabilities.

1) Includes contributions transferred to the pension funds at the beginning of the following year (47.0 M.€ in 2014 and 1.3 M.€ in 2015).
2) The amount of negative actuarial variances has been written off directly from shareholders’ equity in accordance with IAS19.
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Actuarial and financial assumptions

Domestic activity

2014 2015

Beginning of Jun.14 End of Beginning of End of

the year the year the year the year

Discount rate at Banco BPI! 4.0% 3.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

Current Employees 4.33% 3.83% 2.83% 2.83% 2.83%

Retired 3.50% 3.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%

Discount rate at other companies 4.0% 3.5% 2.5% 2.5% 2.5%

Pensionable salary increase rate 1.50% 1.25% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0%

Pension increase rate 1.00% 0.75% 0.5% 0.5% 0.5%
Mortality table TV 73/ 77-M - 2 years?
TV 88/ 90-F — 3 years?

Table 41

Impairments and provisions

Impairment charges in the year, after deducting
recoveries of loans previously written off, were
103.0 M.€ in 2015 and corresponded to:

= |loan impairments (net of recoveries) of 87.1 M.€;

= impairments for other purposes of 15.9 M.€.

Impairments of Customer loans

Net credit loss, which corresponds to the amount of
impairments after deducting loan recoveries, decreased
by 71.4 M.€, from 158.5 M.€ in 2014 to 87.1 M.£€. in
2015.

As a percentage of the average loan portfolio, net credit
loss was 0.38% in 2015, which compares with 0.66% in
2014. Despite the decrease noted, the indicator in 2015
is still situated above its average figure in the ten years
till 2010° which was 0.27%.

Impairment charges in 2015 are earmarked almost in
their entirely to reinforce the cover for situations
previously identified in the corporate, project finance and
institutional banking segment. In this segment,
impairments net of recoveries amounted to 89.4 M.€
(1.22% of the loan portfolio), whereas in the individuals
segment there was a net reversal of 4.5 M.€.

Cost of risk and net credit

loss

Charges in the year As % of loan portfolio

M.€ %

: 72
135§ | 0,
‘
14 15

11 12 13 11 12 13 14 15

Chart 50 Chart 51

= Loan impairments
— Net credit loss

B Loan impairments
= Net credit loss

It should be noted that, with respect to the overall loan
portfolio in domestic operations, credit at risk (adjusted
for write-offs) recorded an increase in 2015 of only

13.9 M.£€, which corresponded to 0.06% of the average
loan portfolio. Of this figure, 12.8 M.€ refers to the
corporate, project finance and institutional banking
segment, which corresponded to 0.18% of the respective
loan portfolio.

1) At Banco BPI different discount rates are taken into account for current Employees and retirees, which is the same thing as if single discounts rates of 4.0% in Dec. 13, 3.5% in Jun. 14

and 2.5% in Dec.14 and Dec.15 had been utilised for the entire population.

2) For the population covered, the age taken into consideration for males is 2 years less than their actual age (M) and 3 years less for females (F) respectively, which is equivalent to

assuming a longer life expectancy.
3) Period prior to the peaks reached in 2012 (0.91%) and 2013 (0.98%).
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The credit-at-risk ratio dropped from 5.0% in 2014 to = companies, project finance and institutional banking —
4.5% in 2015, while cover by accumulated impairment credit-at-risk ratio of 6.8% and cover ratio of 96%;
allowances on the balance sheet, not considering the

value of real guarantees, climbed from 81% to 85%. = small businesses — credit-at-risk ratio of 7.2% and

cover ratio of 89%;

At the end of 2015, the credit-at-risk and impairment-cover = mortgage loans — credit-at-risk ratio of 3.4% and cover
ratios in the principal segments were as follows: ratio of 62%".
Loan impairments Amounts in M.€
2014 2015
Impairments As % of Impairments As % of Impairments As % of  Impairments As % of
loan net of loan loan net of loan
portfolio? recoveries  portfolio? portfolio? recoveries  portfolio?
Corporate banking, institutional
banking and project finance 1 130.9 1.63% 1279 1.59% 94.6 1.29% 89.4 1.22%
Individuals and small
businesses
Mortgage loans 2 35.5 0.32% 34.0 0.30% 1.9 0.02% 0.2 0.00%
Loans to individuals
— other purposes 3 9.4 1.08% 5.5 0.63% 3.6 0.43% 0.5 0.06%
Loans to small
businesses 4 4.9 0.35% (0.8)  (0.06%) 1.0 0.07% (5.2)  (0.34%)
[=X2to4] | 5 49.7 0.37% 38.7 0.29% 6.5 0.05% (4.5) (0.03%)
Other 6 (8.2) (0.33%) (8.2) (0.33%) 2.2 0.10% 2.2 0.10%
Total [=1+5+6] | 7 172.5 0.72% 158.5 0.66% 103.4 0.45% 87.1 0.38%
Table 42

Impairments for other purposes

Impairment charges for private equity and other
investments amounted to 22.9 M.€ in 2014 and
3.0 M.€ in 2015.

Impairments for other risks were reinforced by 12.9 M.€
in 2015 (15.0 M.€ in 2014).

1) Loan-to-value ratio for the total mortgage-loan portfolio was 56% at the close of 2015.
2) Average balance of performing loans.
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Corporate income tax
In 2015 BPI recognised income of 4.2 M.€ in the
caption “Corporate income tax” which is explained by:

= a corporate income tax charge of 15.4 M.€ which
corresponded to an average income tax rate of 23%;

= a cost relating to the Extraordinary Contribution for the
Banking Sector of 13.0 M.€. Since the creation of the
National Resolution Fund (Decree-Law no. 31-A /
2012, of 10 February) the extraordinary contribution is
now earmarked for financing that fund;

a deferred tax asset income of 33 M.€ associated with
the utilisation of the tax loss carry-forward generated in
2011. In 2014 BPI wrote off 50.9 M.€ of deferred tax
assets relating to the 2011 tax losses (with a negative
impact on 2014 net profit), given that at that date the
utilisation of the tax loss carry-forward within the legal
period which ended in 2015 was not expected to take
place. In 2015, Banco BPI presented a taxable profit
with the result that it was possible to utilise 155 M.€
of the 2011 tax losses. Accordingly BPI recognised a
deferred tax asset income of 33 M.€.

Corporate income tax Amounts in M.€
2014 2015
Corporate income tax 1 (63.4) 15.4
Average tax rate [=1/7]| 2 23% 23%
Extraordinary Contribution
for the Banking Sector 3 15.6 13.0
Deferred tax assets related to 2011
tax losses 4 50.9 (32.6)
Change in corporate tax rate from
23% t0 21% in 2015* 5 23.3
Total [=1+23to5]| 6 26.3 (4.2)
Profit before taxes 7 (277.3) 65.8
Table 43

Domestic activity

Equity-accounted results of subsidiaries

The contribution from equity-accounted subsidiaries to
net profit from domestic operations was 23.1 M.€ in
2015, which represents an 8.6 M.€ increase relative to
the preceding year.

The contribution from the insurance subsidiaries was
14.8 M.€, 2.2 M.€ more than in the previous year.
Allianz Portugal contributed with 9.3 M.€ and Cosec with
5.5 M.€.

Equity-accounted results of subsidiaries Amounts in M.€
2014 2015 A%
Allianz Portugal 1 7.0 9.3 31.9%
Cosec 2 55 5.5 0.2%
[=1+2]| 3 12.5 14.8 18.0%

Finangeste 4 (0.3) 0.0
Unicre 5 2.2 84  289.0%
Other 6 0.2 0.0 (98.6%)
Total [=23t06]| 7 14.6 23.1  59.0%
Table 44

1) In 2014 BPI wrote off 23.3 M.€ of deferred taxes relating to timing differences by virtue of the change in the IRC rate from 23% to 21% in 2015. The decrease in the IRC rate gives rise
to a reduction in future taxes, but has an immediate negative impact on net income due to the recalculation of deferred taxes.
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DOMESTIC OPERATIONS BALANCE SHEET
Total assets employed in domestic operations amounted
to 33.3 th.M.€ at the close of 2015.

The domestic operations’ balance sheet reflects mainly
the commercial banking business carried on in Portugal.
At the end of 2015, Customer loans in the amount of
22.8 th.M.€, represent 68% of assets, while Customer
resources (25.0 th.M.€) constitute the chief source of
balance sheet funding (75% of assets).

The transformation of deposits into loans ratio in
domestic operations, calculated in accordance with
Instruction 16 / 2004, was situated at 107% at the end
of 2015.

BPI maintains a comfortable liquidity position and
balanced funding situation:

Domestic activity balance sheet structure in 2015

B21IME
Cash assets and loans to credit %
institutions
B Financial assets

held for dealing 9%
available for sale 11%
of which:

Portuguese T-Bills 4.3%

Other EU short-term

public debt 2.5%

EU sovereign bonds 2.7%
held to maturity 0.1%

B Loans to Customers
B Financial investments, fixed assets
and other

Assets
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= BPI has a portfolio of public-debt securities of
euro-zone countries of 3.2 th.M.€, of which 2.3 th.M.€
are short-term securities, 0.35 th.M.€ of Portuguese M /
LT debt and 0.6 th.M.€ is M / LT Italian debt;

= at the end of 2015, funds raised from the ECB
amounted to 1.5 th.M.€;

= the Bank has a portfolio of assets eligible for additional
ECB funding worth 5.6 th.M.€;

= the debt refinancing requirements in the next few years
are minimal (0.4 th.M.€ in 2016, 0.7 th.M.€ in 2017
and 0.2 th.M.€ in 2018), corresponding primarily to
funding obtained from the EIB;

= 2019 will see a release of liquidity of 0.8 th.M.€, via
the redemption of medium and long-term sovereign
bonds held by BPI in portfolio.

332711M€
6% Short-term resources
Money market 1.2%
Repos 0.1%
18% ECB financing 4.6%

B Medium and long term securities
Insurance capitalisation
m Customer resources

Retail bonds 1.0%
Deposits 56.4%

B Shareholders' equity,
non-controlling interests
and other liabilities

10%

Liabilities and
shareholders' equity

Chart 52
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Customer loans

The domestic operations’ loan portfolio, which contracted loan portfolio and the increased contracting of new
2.8% (648 M.€) in 2015, evidences a deceleration in mortgage loans, which meanwhile was insufficient to
the tempo of the contraction when compared with the two offset the portfolio’s repayments, with the result that the
previous years, when the portfolio posted decreases of mortgage-loan portfolio decreased by 1.9% (vs. 3.2%
5.2% and 5.9% in 2013 and 2014, respectively. decline in 2014).
The portfolio’s behaviour during 2015 presents a The revival in the demand for credit should remain
progressive stabilisation by virtue of a moderate upswing modest given that the recovery in consumption and
in the demand for loans in the corporate, small investment will dependent on the recoupment pace of
businesses and individuals’ segments. It is worth households’ disposable incomes, the private business
highlighting the 4.9% year-on-year growth in loans to sector’s deleveraging and on the consolidation of the
companies, 15.4% expansion of the small businesses public accounts.
Customer loans portfolio Amounts in M.€
2014 2015 A%
Corporate banking
Large companies 1 14199 14455 1.8%
Medium-sized companies 2 22343 2 386.2 6.8%
[=x1to2] | 3 3654.2 38317 4.9%
Project Finance - Portugal 4 1154.7 1161.0 0.5%
Madrid branch
Project Finance 5 634.2 557.3 (12.1%)
Corporates 6 671.9 386.3 (42.5%)
[=25t06] | 7 1 306.1 943.6 (27.8%)
Public Sector
Central Administration 8 215.4 204.8 (4.9%)
Regional and local administrations 9 814.0 774.6 (4.8%)
State Corporate Sector — in the budget perimeter 10 64.1 51.8 (19.2%)
State Corporate Sector — outside the budget perimeter 11 295.4 267.4 (9.5%)
Other institutional 12 35.8 60.2 68.1%
[=28t012] | 13 1424.7 1358.8 (4.6%)
Individuals and Small Businesses Banking
Mortgage loans to individuals 14 11 024.1 10813.9 (1.9%)
Consumer credit / other purposes 15 553.9 576.2 4.0%
Credit cards 16 166.9 164.7 (1.3%)
Car financing 17 134.8 136.2 1.0%
Small businesses 18 1450.2 16735 15.4%
[=2 141018 | 19 13 330.0 13 364.4 0.3%
BPI Vida e Pensdes!' 20 2 005.7 1720.4 (14.2%)
Loans in arrears net of impairments 21 21.1 (30.0) (241.7%)
Other 22 539.4 438.1 (18.8%)
Total [=3+4+7+13+3191022] | 23 23 436.0 22 788.1 (2.8%)
Note:
Bank guarantees 24 1680.8 1443.0 (14.1%)
Table 45

1) Securitised loans held by BPI Vida e Pensdes (fully consolidated), the BPI Group entity which manages capitalisation insurance. The securitised loans portfolio of BPI Vida e Pensdes
corresponds, mainly, to bonds and commercial paper issued by large Portuguese companies.
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Lending to medium-sized and large companies in
Portugal rose by 4.9% (+177 M.€), reversing the
downward trend noted until now.

The Madrid branch’s loan portfolio contracted 28%

(-362 M.€). The portfolio’'s performance reflects above all
the normal and early repayments of loans as a
consequence of the Bank’s decision not enter into new
syndicated operations in Spain.

The Public Sector and State Business Sector loan
portfolio posted a year-on-year 4.6% decrease (-66 M.€).

Loans to individuals and small businesses present a
stabilisation (+0.3%) given that the decrease in the
mortgage-loans portfolio was offset by the expansion
noted in the consumer credit and small business loans
portfolios:

= the mortgage-loan portfolio shrank by 1.9% in 2015
(-210 M.€). The amount contracted for home loans
shows a significant expansion in 2015, growing by a
year-on-year 89% to 590 M.€. This figure is less than
the amount of repayments which took place in the year,
representing 78% of these;

= consumer loans, motor car finance and credit cards
grew by 2.5% (+21.5 M.€);

= |oans to small businesses expanded 15.4%
(+223 M.€).

1) Corporate banking, project finance and Madrid Branch’s portfolio.

Loans to Customers
2011 to 2015

Loan portfolio
Breakdown at 31 Dec. 2015

th.M.€ BPI Vida Public sector
e Pensdes?
Mortgage
Companies! Loalic
21.3
23 249
23.4 22.8
‘ | ~Small " personal and
businesses  consumer
11 12 13 14 15 loans
Chart 53 Chart 54

Securities and financial investments portfolio

The securities and financial investments portfolio
amounted to 7 039 M.€ at the end of 2015. This
portfolio includes, besides financial assets available for
sale (3 723 M.€), those held for trading (3 147 M.€),
corresponding in essence to BPI Vida e Pensdes’ portfolio
(2 399 M.€) allocated to covering capitalisation
insurance and an equities portfolio® (358 M.€), as well
as investments held to maturity (22 M.€) and
participating interests (146 M.€).

The following were the most salient aspects of the
behaviour of the available-for-sale assets portfolio in
2015:

= reduction to less than half of the exposure to medium
and long-term Portuguese debt through the sale of
securities with a nominal value of 440 M.€. At the end
of 2015, the position held in medium and long-term
securities totalled 912 M.€ (balance sheet value) and
has a residual average maturity of around 3.5 years.
This portfolio was composed of Portuguese public debt
(351 M.€) and ltalian public debt (562 M.€);

2) Securitised loans held by BPI Vida e Pensdes. It essentially corresponds to bonds and commercial paper issued by major Portuguese Companies.
3) Associated with trading activity through the investment in and management of the BPI Alternative Fund: Iberian Equities Long Short (Lux) and the management of an arbitrage portfolio

conducted at Banco Portugués de Investimento.
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= reduction of the Portuguese Treasury Bills portfolio,
from 2.5 th.M.€ at the end of 2014 to 1.4 th.M.€ at
the end of 2015, and the acquisition of Spanish and

Financial assets

available-for-sale
2011 to 2015

Domestic activity

Financial assets
available-for-sale
Portfolio at 31 Dec. 2015

Italian short-term public debt totalling respectively th.m.€ S'tlaf,es fnd
articipatin;
440 M.€ and 390 M.€ at the end of 2015; Pt
= decrease in the corporate bonds portfolio, from &) ggggmate g’iﬁa:“’y
631 M.€ at the end of 2014 to 227 M.€ at the end of 74
2015 in terms of balance sheet value.
At the close of 2015, the unrealised gains on the i B PRO4°
available-for-sale financial assets portfolio amounted to 37
20 M.€ (before tax). 14
0.9
3.1 SRS 255 3 Italian
MLT
: Other ST
01 public .
debt Treasury public
11 12 13 14 15 bonds debt
Chart 55 Chart 56
& Other securities
B Medium and long term public
debt
| Short term public debt
Financial assets available-for-sale portfolio Amounts in M.€
2014 2015
Acquisi- Book Gains (losses)* Acquisi- Book Gains (losses)*
tion cost value tion cost value
Securi- Deriva- Total Securi- Deriva- Total
ties tives ties tives
Bonds — public debt
Short term 1 2478.0 2487.2 1.4 1.4 2256.1 2257.0 0.4 0.4
Of which:
Portugal 2478.0 2487.2 1.4 1.4 1426.3 1426.6 (0.1) (0.1)
Spain 439.9 440.2 0.3 0.3
Italy 389.9 390.2 0.2 0.2
Medium and long term 2 12924 1430.7 144.4 (185.5) (41.1) 825.2 912.5 95.2 (99.3) (4.1)
Of which:
Portugal 787.4 865.2 81.3 (108.4) (27.1) 320.2 350.9 34.2 (35.8) (1.6)
Italy 505.0 565.6 63.2 (77.2) (14.0) 505.0 561.5 60.9 (63.5) (2.5)
[=1+2] | 3 37705 39179 1459 (185.5) (39.7) 3081.3 3169.4 95.6 (99.3) (3.7)
Corporate bonds 4 595.4  630.7 12.9 (34.9) (22.0) 234.0 227.0 (14.9) (6.3) (21.2)
Equities 5 136.3 120.3 30.4 304 134.1 132.8 457 457
Other 6 239.2 193.1 (3.8) (3.8) 2439 193.8 (0.5) (0.5)
Total [=23t6] | 7 |4741.3 4 862.1 185.3 (220.4) (35.2) 3693.3 3723.0 126.0 (105.6) 20.3
Note:
Fair value reserve after
deferred tax assets (18.8) 21.8
Table 46

1) Fair value reserve before deferred taxes. Includes impact of hedging interest-rate risk.
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Customer resources
Total Customer resources — on and off the balance sheet
— registered 2.9% year-on-year growth to 28.8 th.M.€.

The aggregate “Global Customer resources”, which also
includes Customer placements in third-party financial
products, amounted to 32.3 th.M.€ at the end of 2015
(+1.1%).

Customer deposits shrank by 1.8% (-345 M.€)
year-on-year, within the context of the downward
adjustment to the remuneration of time deposits, the
behaviour of which is still influenced by a scenario of
modest economic recovery.

The positive performance of Customer resources was a
determining factor behind the expansion in the portfolio
of capital insurance and off-balance sheet Customer
resources. BPI attracted more than 570 M.€ through the
placing of capitalisation insurance, with the respective
portfolio posting 10.7% growth and 1.3 th.M.€ more in
off-balance sheet resources (unit trust funds and

retirement-savings and equities-savings plans) which
portfolio grew by 39%.

Customer resources
Breakdown at 31 Dec. 2015

Customer resources
2011 to 2015

th.M.€ Off-balance
sheet

Capitalisation
insurance
and other

Sight
deposits

21 80 %8
%57 260

Debt Term
securities deposits
11 12 13 14 15

Chart 57 Chart 58

® Off-balance sheet
B QOther on-balance sheet

M Deposits
Total Customer resources Amounts in M.€
2014 2015 A%
On-balance sheet resources
Deposits
Sight deposits 1 6392.2 8851.9 38.5%
Term and savings deposits 2 12 729.7 9925.3 (22.0%)
[=1+2] | 3 19 121.9 18 777.2 (1.8%)
Bonds placed with Customers! 4 692.9 336.2 (51.5%)
Subtotal [=3+4] | 5 19 814.8 19 113.3 (3.5%)
Insurance capitalisation and PPR (BPI Vida e Pensdes) and other 6 5305.1 5875.4 10.7%
On-balance sheet resources [=5+6] | 7 25 119.9 24 988.7 (0.5%)
Off-balance sheet resources’ 8 3 216.2 4 474.2 39.1%
Corrections for double counting® 9 (331.8) (654.0) 97.1%
Total Customer resources — on and off balance sheet’ [=7+8+9] | 10 28 004.3 28 808.9 2.9%
Other Customer resources
Public offerings 11 1006.9 396.5 (60.6%)
Third-party funds placed with Customers 12 349.4 455.8 30.4%
Other third-party securities held by Customers 13 2 586.9 2622.6 1.4%
Global Customer resources [=X10t0 13] | 14 31947.4 32 283.7 1.1%
Pension funds® 15 2248.7 2419.1 7.6%
Of which: pension funds' investments in Customer resources
(on and off balance sheet) 16 (308.7) (304.6) (1.3%)
Table 47

1) Structured products (bonds with yield indexed to the equities, commodities and other markets, and with total or partial capital protection at the end of the term), fixed-rate bonds and

subordinated bonds issued by the BPI Group and placed with Customers.
2) Unit trust funds, PPR and PPA managed by BPI.

3 Placements of the unit trust funds managed by the BPI Group in deposits and structured products.

4) Corrected for double recording.
5) Includes the BPI Group’s Employee pension funds.

98 Banco BPI | Annual Report 2015



INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

RESULTS OF INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

The contribution from international operations to
consolidated net profit was 143.3 M.€ in 2015, which
corresponds to 13.6% growth when compared to the
126.1 M.€ contribution recorded in the previous year.

The main contributions to the profit from international

activity corresponded:

= to Banco de Fomento Angola’s (BFA) contribution of
137.5 M.€, relating to the 50.1% appropriation of its
individual profit (which was up 16% on the 2014

figure);

= to Banco Comercial e de Investimentos’ (BCI)
contribution of 9.4 M.€, relating to the appropriation of
30% of its individual net profit (equity accounted),
which corresponds to an 11% year-on-year decrease.

In the individual accounts, BFA earned a return on
shareholders’ equity (ROE) of 33.6% in 2015, whilst BCI

posted an 18.6% ROE.

The return on average capital allocated to international
operations, after consolidation adjustments, namely, the
impact of the taxation on dividends to be distributed,
stood at 30.5% in 2015.

International activity

contribution to net profit

M.€

143

International activity ROE

11 12 13 14 15 12 15
Chart 59 Chart 60
BCI
W BFA
W Other

International activity income statement Amounts in M.€
2014 2015 AM.E€ A%

Net interest income (narrow sense) 1 236.6 308.2 +71.6 30.2%
Net commission relating to amortised cost 2 0.1 0.0 (0.1) (95.3%)
Net interest income [=1+2] | 3 236.7 308.2 +71.5 30.2%
Commissions and other fees (net) 4 65.9 68.7 +2.8 4.3%
Profits from financial operations 5 117.6 146.7 +29.1 24.8%
Operating income and charges 6 (11.3) (7.9) +3.4 29.7%
Net operating revenue [=23to6] | 7 408.9 515.7 +106.8 26.1%
Personnel costs 8 68.0 85.0 +17.0 25.0%
Outside supplies and services 9 59.7 719 +12.2 20.4%
Depreciation of fixed assets 10 14.1 16.4 +2.3 16.1%
Operating costs [=28t010] | 11 141.8 173.3 +31.4 22.2%
Operating profit [=7-11] | 12 267.1 342.4 +75.3 28.2%
Recovery of loans written-off 13 2.5 19 (0.6) (23.6%)
Loan provisions and impairments 14 20.7 33.6 +129 62.2%
Other impairments and provisions 15 7.4 3.6 (3.8) (51.1%)
Profits before taxes [=12+13-14-15] | 16 241.5 307.1 +65.6 27.2%
Corporate income tax 17 4.3 333 +29.0 n.s.
Equity-accounted results of subsidiaries 18 11.6 10.3 (1.3) (11.1%)
Results attributable to non-controlling interests 19 122.6 140.8 +18.2 14.8%
Net profit [=16-17+18-19] | 20 126.1 143.3 +17.2 13.6%
Cash flow after taxation [=20+10+ 14+ 15] | 21 168.3 196.9 +28.5 16.9%
n.s. — non significant. Table 48
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CONSOLIDATION OF INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS

Geographical segment - International operations
International operations encompass the business
conducted by the following companies:

Entity Country % Consoli-  Contribu-
capital dation tion to
held method profit 2015
(M.€)
BFA Angola 50.1% Full consolid.  135.7
BCI Mozambique  30% Equity method 9.4
BPI
Mocambique Mozambique 100% Full consolid. (0.6)
BPI South
Capital Africa Africa 100% Full consolid. (1.3)
Table 49

The cost and income captions, as well as the asset and
liability captions, presented as arising from international
operations, refer almost exclusively to Banco de Fomento
Angola, given that BCl's (Mozambique) contribution is
equity accounted in the BPI Group’s financial statements,
while BPI Mogambique and BPI Capital Africa, also fully
consolidated, are not material (see notes 2.2 and 3 to the
financial statements).

BFA's financial statements in local currency

Angola’s national currency is the kwanza, although the high
utilisation of the American dollar in the Angolan economy
explains why a large portion of the business transacted with
Banco de Fomento Angola’s Customers is expressed in US
dollars. At the end of 2015, 32% of assets were
denominated in dollars (39% when one also considers the
assets in kwanza indexed to the dollar), 44% of loans and
35% of deposits. A substantial part of the income and costs
are thus generated in the American currency or are indexed
to it, as is the case of personnel costs, with the result that
the behaviour of the kwanza / dollar exchange rate has an
influence on the behaviour of BFA's income and costs when
expressed in local currency.

In addition, the gains arising from the revaluation of the
positions in foreign currency recorded in BFA's balance

sheet are accounted for under the profits from financial
operations caption.

At the close of 2015, BFA's balance sheet presented a long
position in foreign currencies (essentially dollars) of
232 M.€ (short in kwanza).

Full consolidation of BFA

The inclusion of Banco de Fomento Angola’s financial
statements in the consolidated financial statements is
preceded by the conversion of the results and balances in
local currency (kwanza) to euro in accordance with IAS
21, based on the reference exchange rates disclosed on
an indicative basis by the Banco Nacional de Angola
(Central Bank). The gains or losses resulting from this
conversion are recognised directly in consolidated
shareholders’ equity, under the caption revaluation
reserves.

Trend in AKZ / USD and AKZ / EUR exchange rates

The kwanza registered a depreciation of 24% against the
dollar in 2015 (32% appreciation of the dollar) in terms of
the year-end exchange rate. When considering the year’s
average exchange rate, the kwanza's depreciation against
the dollar was 19% (23% appreciation of the dollar).

By virtue of the euro’s depreciation against the dollar which
occurred in 2015, the behaviour of the kwanza / euro cross
rate translates into a kwanza depreciation against the euro
of 15% in terms of the year-end exchange rate (euro’'s 18%
appreciation) and 3% in average exchange rate terms
(euro’'s 3% appreciation).

The following table presents the kwanza exchange rate
against the euro and the United States dollar, published on
the Banco Nacional de Angola (BNA) website on 31
December 2015 and which were used in the incorporation
into the 2015 consolidated financial statements of BFA's
results relating to the month of December 2015 and its
financial position as at 31 December 2015. The following
table also presents the average exchange rates used for the
conversion into euro of BFA's income and costs generated
during the year.

Kwanza exchange rates

End of the year! Average of the year?

2014 2015 A% 2014 2015 A%

AKZ /1 USD 1029 1353 32% 985 121.0 23%
USD /1 EUR 122 1.09 (10%) 132  1.11 (16%)
AKZ /1 EUR 12562 1478 18% 1302 133.7 3%
Table 50

1) Reference BNA (Central Bank of Angola) exchange rates
published on its website at 31 December 2015.
2) Average of the prevailing rates at the end of each month.

1) The revenues and costs generated in each of the months are converted to euros at the exchange rate of the month in which they are recognized. For assets and liabilities the exchange

rate at the end of the year is used.
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AKZ’'S DEPRECIATION AT 4 JANUARY 2016

The kwanza exchange rates against the other currencies
published on the BNA's website at the opening on

4 January 2016, first business day after 31 December
2015, evidence a depreciation of the kwanza against the
euro and the United States dollar of 13% relative to the
exchanges rates ruling on the last day of 2015. The impact
on Banco BPI consolidated financial statements will be
recognised in the 1% quarter of 2016 [see note to the
financial statements 2.2. Consolidation of subsidiaries and
Jointly controlled entities and recognition of associated
companies (IFRS 10, IFRS 11, IAS 28 and IFRS 3)].

Exchange rates Reference Chg.
considered in the exchange rates
accounts reported of BNA publi-
at 31 Dec. 2015 shed at 4 Jan.16

AKZ /1 USD 185,85} 155.6 15%
AKZ /1 EUR 147.8 169.7 15%
Table 51

The AKZ's depreciation (USD’s appreciation) underlying the
exchange rates ruling on the 1* business day of 2016
generated a positive impact of 28 M.€ in BFA's operating
profit (before impairments) which basically corresponds to
the gain of 30 M.€ with the revaluation of the long
position in USD (short in AKZ) recorded in its balance
sheet. Of the net profit after deducting corporate income
tax, BPI appropriates 50.1%, with the result that the
positive impact on BPI's net profit is 9 M.€.

The conversion of BFA's accounts in AKZ to euro
(consolidation currency) results in a negative impact of

44 M.€ on the accounting shareholders’ equity attributable
to BPI.

The impact on the consolidated CET1 ratio (phasing in and
fully implemented) is a negative 0.1 p.p., given that the
negative impact of CET1 capital is to a large extent offset by
the reduction, of a similar proportion, of the weighted assets
which stem from the statement in euro of BFA's assets.

Impact on Banco BPI’s consolidated accounts
of the AKZ's benchmark exchange rate disclosed
by the BNA on 4 Jan. 16 Consolidated amounts in M.€

31 Dec. 15 Proforma Chg.
as reported considering the
rate published in
4 Jan. 16
Net profit 236 245 +9
Assets 40 673 40 076 (597)
Loans 24 282 24 176 (106)
On balance sheet
Clients resources 31 849 31 299 (550)
Non-controlling
interests 429 384 (44)
Shareholders' Equity 2 407 2 363 (44)
CET1 phasing in ratio
(2016 rules) 10.7% 10.6% -0.1 p.p.
CET1 fully
implemented ratio 9.8% 9.7% -0.1 p.p.

Table 52
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International activity

Income

The net operating revenue from international banking operations grew by 26.1% (+106.8 M.€) in 2015.

Net operating revenue

In million €, consolidation currency (M.€) In million AKZ, local currency in Angola (M.AKZ)

2014 2015 AM.€ A% 2014 2015 A M.AKZ A%
BFA net operating revenue
Net interest income 1 237.0 308.6 71.6 30.2% 30739 41 070 10 330 33.6%
Commissions 2 65.2 67.5 2.3 3.6% 8 446 9127 681 8.1%
Profits from
financial operations 3 117.6 146.7 29.1 24.8% 15285 19 868 4583 30.0%
Operating income and charges | 4 (11.3) (7.9) 3.3 29.7% (1467) (921) 546 37.2%
BFA net operating
revenue [E1tod4]| 5 408.5 514.9 106.4 26.0% 53 003 69 143 16 140 30.5%
Other subsidiaries’ 6 0.4 0.9 0.4 89.5%
Total 5+6]| 7 408.9 515.7 106.8 26.1%

Table 53

BFA’s net operating revenue expressed in kwanza
advanced by 30.5%. When expressed in the consolidation
currency, as a consequence of the kwanza's 2.6%
depreciation against the euro (average exchange rate), the
growth was 26.0%.

In relation to the component of income generated in
dollars, its behaviour in 2015 benefited from a positive
currency effect stemming from the dollar’s appreciation
vis-a-vis the kwanza:

= in the conversion to kwanza of part of the income which
was originally generated in dollars (the dollar gained
23% relative to the kwanza in terms of the average
exchange rate);

= in the revaluation of the long position in dollars / short
in kwanza in BFA's balance sheet which generated a
gain of 50 M.€ (booked in the caption profits from
financial operations).

Net interest income
Narrow net interest income rose by 30.2% (+71.6 M.€)
in 2015.

Roughly half of this increase is explained by the positive
volume effect (34.3 M.€) of the expansion of
remunerated liabilities and assets, while the other half is
due to a positive price effect (37.7 M.€) generated by
the increase in the unitary interest margin, from 4.2% in
2014 to 5.3% in 2015.

1) BPI Capital Africa and BPI Mogambique.
2) Considering the average cost of deposits.
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The increase in remunerated liabilities and assets reflects
the expansion of deposits, and the placement of these
resources in loans and Angolan public-debt securities.

The 1.1 p.p. rise in the unitary interest margin is chiefly
the result of the higher average remuneration earned from
the Angolan public-debt securities portfolio, from 6.5%
in 2014 to 7.5% in 2015. The average remuneration on
loans and deposits presents a slight decline, to stand at
9.3% in loans and 1.5% in deposits in 2015.

Net interest income
generation in 20152

Net operating revenue

M.€ M.€
— 5
516
332

305 312 172
wogyp ¥ 308 —

231]
198 181 191 129

11 12 13 14 15 Loans Secu- Other  Net

rities interest
income

Chart 61 Chart 62

Commissions, profits from
financial operations and other
W Net interest income



Factors influencing the trend in net interest income from BFA

International activity

Amounts in M.€

2014 2015 Change in net interest income
Average Average Interest Average Average Interest Volur_nde elffefci‘t atnd Rate Total
balance rate (income balance rate (income residual efrec effect
/ costs) / costs) Volume Residual Total
effect effect
Interest-earning assets
Placements with credit
institutions 1| 16625 20% 327 13672 22% 30.2 (5.8) 0.7y (6.5) 4.0 (2.5)
Loans to Customers 2| 13886 94% 130.7 16659 93% 1546 26.1 04) 257 (1.8) 239
Financial assets 3| 27048 65% 1759 30819 75% 2306 24.5 3.7 282 26.5 54.7
Other 4 3.2 9.5 6.3
Interest-earning
assets’ [=31to4] | 5| 5755.9 6.0% 342.6 6115.0 7.0% 425.0 44.8 26 474 28.7 82.4
Interest-bearing liabilities
Customer deposits 6| 61523 1.7% 1029 7030.7 15% 107.1 14.7 (1.3) 13.4 (9.2) 4.2
Other interest-bearing liabilities 365 0.5% 0.2 159 1.1% 0.2 (0.1) (0.1) (0.2 0.2 (0.0)
Other 8 2.8 9.5 6.7
Interest-bearing
liabilities! [=36t08] | 9| 6188.7 1.7% 1059 7046.6 1.7% 116.8 14.6 (1.4) 13.2 (8.9) 10.9
Net interest income
(narrow sense) [=5-9] |10 236.6 308.2 30.2 41 343 37.7 71.6
Average spread (between
interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities) 11 4.2% 5.3%
Table 54

Commissions

Commission and other similar income in 2015 amounted
to 68.7 M.€, which corresponds to a 4.3% improvement
(+2.8 M.€) relative to 2014.

Profits from financial operations

In 2015, profits from financial operations rose by 24.8%
(+29.1 M.€) to 146.7 M.£€. This figure corresponds
mainly to:

= gains of 69 M.€ earned on the purchase and sale of
currency derived from commercial operations with
Customers. Currency gains decreased by 30 M.€
relative to 2014, against a backdrop of the scarcity of
dollars in the Angolan economy caused by the lower
inflow of dollars into the country in the wake of the fall
in crude oil prices;

= gains of 50 M.€ with the revaluation of the long
position in dollars (short in kwanza) as a result of the
kwanza's depreciation against the dollar, which
permitted offsetting the decline in the above-mentioned
currency gains.

Operating costs

Operating costs reported in the consolidation currency
(euro) were 31.4 M.€ higher (+22.2%) in 2015.

Net operating revenue and
operating costs

M.€

516

11 12 13 14 15
Chart 63

B Net operating revenue
= Operating costs

Operating costs as % of net
operating revenue

%

414
369 39.7

34.7 336

11 12 13 14 15
Chart 64

1) The volume, price and residual effects calculated for the total interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities correspond to the sum of the values of the parts.
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The increase in costs when expressed in euro is
essentially explained by the dollar’s appreciation against
the euro by around 20% in 2015, in terms of the
average exchange rate for the year.

This effect stems from the fact that BFA's personnel costs
are indexed to the dollar’s performance and that an
appreciable part of third-party suppliers and services are
predominantly in euro and dollars by virtue of the
Angolan economy presenting a high degree of
dependency on the import of goods and services.

Operating costs

When expressed in USD, operating costs were up 2.5%.
The 4.5% increase in the average headcount and the
2.7% expansion of the distribution network were the
principal factors behind this behaviour. Personnel costs
were 5.1% higher, third-party supplies and services
climbed 0.8%, while depreciation and amortisation were

down 3.0%.

The indicator “operating costs as a percentage of net
operating revenue” was situated at 33.6% in 2015.

In mi'gg;‘reﬁ'c;‘z'“‘ns_%'i)da“°" In million USD (M.USD) In million AKZ (M.AKZ)
2014 2015 AM.€ A% 2014 2015 AM. A% 2014 2015 AM. A%
usD AKZ
BFA operating costs
Personnel costs 1 66.1 829 16.8 25.4% 87.2 91.6 4.4 51% 8590 11113 2523 29.4%
Outside supplies
and services 2 59.1 71.2 12.1 20.4% 78.1 78.7 0.7 08% 7689 9523 1833 23.8%
Depreciation and amortisation | 3 14.0 16.2 23 16.1% 18.5 179 (0.6) (3.0%) 1818 2165 346 19.1%
BFA operating
costs [=x1to3]| 4 | 139.2 170.3  31.1 22.4% 183.7 188.2 4.5 2.5% 18098 22800 4703 26.0%
Other subsidiaries? 5 2.6 2.9 03 12.3%
Total [=4+5]| 6 | 141.8 173.3 31.4 22.2%
Efficiency ratio® 7 | 34.7% 33.6%
Table 55
Loan impairments and provisions
Loan impairments in the year amounted to 33.6 M.€, up Total impairments net of recoveries
by 12.9 M.€ relative to 2014. 2011 to 2015 As % of net operating profit
M.€ %
Loan impairments, after deducting recoveries (1.9 M.€),
totalled 31.7 M.€ and represented 1.88% of the average 33
loan portfolio (1.30% in 2014).
At the end of 2015, credit at risk at BFA stood at =
87.1 M.€ which corresponded to 5.5% of the gross loan
portfolio. Credit at risk was up 9.5 M.€ in 2015 53 o 1
(adjusted for write-offs), which corresponded to 0.56% of o : 8
the loan portfolio. Credit at risk cover by accumulated 7
loan provisions in the balance sheet climbed from 102% e 4
in 2014 to 122% in 2015. I I I I
11 12 13 14 15 11 12 13 14 15
Chart 65 Chart 66

Other purposes
B Loans (net of recoveries)

1) In terms of the year's average exchange rates in 2015 the dollar appreciated 23% against the kwanza while, for its part, the kwanza depreciated 3% against the euro.

2) BPI Capital Africa and BPI Mogambique.
3) Operating costs as a percentage of net operating revenue.
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Loan impairments

International activity

In million €, consolidation currency (M.€) In million AKZ, local currency in Angola (M.AKZ)

2014 % of loan 2015 % of loan 2014 % of loan 2015 % of loan

portfolio® portfolio! portfolio’ portfolio’

Loan impairments 1 20.7 1.48% 33.6 1.99% 2 664 1.46% 4 587 2.07%
(-) Recoveries of loans

in arrears written off 2 2.5 0.18% 1.9 0.11% 323 0.18% 253 0.11%
Loan impairments net

of recoveries [=1-2]|3 18.2 1.30% 31.7 1.88% 2 341 1.29% 4 335 1.96%

Table 56

Equity-accounted results of subsidiaries

Results recognised using the equity method — which
correspond to the appropriation of net profit attributable
to the 30% shareholding in BCI in Mozambique — were
11.1% lower at 10.3 M.€2.

Expressed in euro (consolidation currency), BCl's net total
assets increased by 6.5%. Customer deposits rose by
2.7% to 1 838 M.€ at the close of 2015, while the loan
portfolio contracted by 2.6% to 1 402 M.€. The number
of Customers was up 24% to 1 285 thousand, the
distribution network was enlarged by a further 23 units to
191 branches, while the staff complement rose by
22.5% to 3 009 Employees.

Shareholding of 30% in BCI Amounts in M.€
2014 2015 A%
Equity-accounted results 1 11.6 103 (11.1%)
Contribution to consolidated
net profit 2 10.6 94 (11.1%)
Book value of
the participation 3 54.8 64.3 17.4%
Table 57

1) Average balance of performing loans.

Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests in the results from international
operations correspond to the minority 49.9% stake in
BFA’s capital held by Unitel.

BPI recognised 140.8 M.€ of minority interests in BFA's
profit on 2015.

2) BCl’s contribution to BPI consolidated net profit, besides the equity-accounted results also includes the deferred tax relating to BCI's distributable results. In 2015, BCI’s contribution was

9.4 M€, down 11% on the previous year’s contribution.
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INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS’ BALANCE SHEET

BFA has an extremely liquid balance sheet, with
Customer resources (6 860 M.€) funding 86% of assets
at the end of 2015. Customer resources coupled with
own funds practically guaranteed the funding of total
assets.

The Customer resources portfolio represented 19% of
assets, while the transformation of deposits into loans
ratio was situated at 22% at the end of 2015.

BFA’s balance sheet’s surplus liquidity, defined as the
total of deposits and shareholders’ equity not allocated to
the funding of loans, compulsory reserves or financing
fixed assets, amounted to 4.8 th.M.€ at the end of
December 2015.

Surplus liquidity in kwanza is invested in short-term
securities issued by the Angolan Treasury, in placements
at BNA in reverse repos and in Angolan Treasury Bonds in
kwanza or in kwanza indexed to the dollar. Surplus
liquidity in dollars is invested on the interbank market
and in Angolan Treasury Bonds expressed in dollars.

At 31 December 2015, 66% of assets was expressed in
kwanza and 34% expressed in foreign currencies (32%!
expressed in dollars and the 2% corresponded essentially
to the euro given that the positions in other currencies
are at residual levels).

International activity balance sheet structure in 2015
8022M.€

Cash and deposits at 26%
central banks and Cl

Loans to credit institution54_

Securities——— 42%
Loans to Customers
Other 20

Assets

1) 39% considering the assets expressed in USD and in AKZ indexed to the USD.
2) Excludes loans to the Angolan State.
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BFA’s balance sheet presented at the end of 2015 a long
position in foreign currencies (essentially dollars) of
232 M.€ (short kwanza).

BFA balance sheet by currency
At 31 December 2015

Amounts in M.€

Exposure Exposure in Total
in AKZ USD and
other
currencies
Assets
Exposure to the Central Bank
of Angola (BNA) 1 355 173 1528
Of which: minimum
cash reserve in deposit
at BNA 578 88 666
Exposure to the Angolan State 2 688 982 3670
Minimum cash reserve
in securities 325 301 625
Securities portfolio 2 344 320 2 664
Loans 19 361 380
Loans to Customers? 816 297 1113
Deposits in other banks 72 1049 1121
Other assets 329 197 526
Total assets 5259 2 698 7 957
Liabilities
Clients deposits 4 298 2 582 6 881
Other responsibilities 111 92 203
Total liabilities 4 409 2 675 7 084
Forwards and other assets (361)
Assets (net position) in
AKZ indexed to the USD 570
Currency position 232
Table 58
8022M€

Customer resources

Other
Shareholders' equity and non-controlling
interests

Liabilities and
shareholders’ equity

Chart 67



Customer loans
The following was the behaviour of the loan portfolio in
2015, measured in the respective currencies advanced:

= the loan portfolio in kwanza (56% of the total of the
portfolio in 2015) decreased by 29 th.M.AKZ (-19.0%),
which is explained by the conversion into Treasury
Bonds of the interim tranche in AKZ, in the amount of
52.6 th.M.AKZ (roughly of 0.4 th.M.€), of the loan
granted to the Angolan State in the 3™ quarter of
2014

= the loan portfolio in dollars (44% of the portfolio in
2015) shrank 4.0%.

The behaviour of the loan portfolio in the consolidation
currency, the euro, is negatively affected by the kwanza’s
15% depreciation against the euro, and positively by the
dollar’s 11% appreciation against the euro.

Expressed in euro, BFA's Customer loans portfolio
decreased by 18.5%, to 1 494 M.€ at the close of
2015.

Loan portfolio
By currency at 31 Dec. 2015

Loans to Customers
2011 to 2015

th.M.€
In Kwanza
18
15
0 U ‘
11 12 13 14 15 In US Dollar
Chart 68 Chart 69

International activity

Customer loans portfolio

2014 2015 A%

Expressed in the respective
loan-advanced currency

Loans in AKZ (in M.AKZ) 1| 152295 123423 (19.0%)
Loans in USD (in M.USD) 2 746.4 716.4 (4.0%)
Loans in EUR (in M.€) 3 3.2 29 (9.5%)

Expressed in M.€
(consolidation currency)

Loans in AKZ 4| 12165 8349 (31.4%)

Loans in USD 5 613.3 655.7 6.9%

Loans in EUR and

other currencies 6 3.2 29 (8.9%)

Total loan

portfolio [=24to6]| 7| 1833.0 1493.6 (18.5%)

Bank guarantees 8 487.9 385.7  (20.9%)
Table 59

Securities portfolio

The securities portfolio at the end of 2015 amounted to
3 313.9 M.€, which corresponds to a 15.2% increase
(+436 M.€) vis-4-vis 2014. Contributing to this trend
was the conversion into Treasury Bonds of the interim
tranche in AKZ of the loan granted to the Angolan State
and the larger securities portfolio in USD.

Portfolio of Angolan Treasury Portfolio of Angolan Treasury
Bills and TBC Bonds

th.M.€ th.M.€

11||
11

11
0.9
05 0.6
11 12 13 14 15 12 13 14 15

Chart 70 Chart 71

24
23

19

15

1) The loan granted to the Angolan State in the 3" quarter of 2014 was composed of an interim tranche in AKZ in the amount of 52.6 th.M AKZ (equivalent to roughly 0.4 th.M.€) which as
envisaged in the initial conditions, was converted in June 2015 into Treasury Bonds, and a tranche in USD in the amount of 250 M.USD (equivalent to around 0.2 th.M.€).
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Securities portfolio Amounts in M.€

2014 2015 A%

Securites in AKZ 1 18672 21202 13.6%
Securites in AKZ
indexed to USD 2 593.7 570.4 (3.9%)
Securites in USD 3 417.0 623.3 49.5%
Total [=21to3]| 4| 2877.9 33139 15.2%
Of which:

Angolan Treasury

Bills (TBills) 5 615.1 876.2 42.5%

Angolan Treasury

Bonds (TBonds) 6| 22581 24129 6.9%

Other 7 4.7 24.8 n.s.

Table 60

The financial assets portfolio is composed in 2015 of
short-term securities, with maturities of up to one year,
expressed in kwanza and issued by the State (Treasury
Bills) and by Angolan Treasury Bonds with maturities of
1 to 6 years.

Customer resources
The growth in 2015 in deposits measured in the
respective deposit-taking currencies was as follows:

= Deposits in kwanza (63% of the total deposits in 2015)
expanded 11.4%;

= Deposits in dollars (35% of the total deposits in 2015)
decreased 20.2%.

The trend in deposits expressed in euro is influenced by
the behaviour of the kwanza / euro and euro / dollar
exchange rates’.

Expressed in euro (consolidation currency), the deposits
in kwanza component decreased 5.7% and the deposits
in dollars component declined 11.1%, which resulted in
a negative change of 7.3% for BFA's total deposits
portfolio.

At the end of 2015, the deposits portfolio totalled
6 860 M.€. Sight deposits represented 59% of the total
and time deposits the remaining 41%.

Customer resources
2011 to 2015

th.M.€
74
6.9
5.6
53 38 98
48
26
25
24
35[0 40
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2428
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Customer resources portfolio

Customer resources
By currency at 31 Dec. 2015

In In
US Dollar Kwanza

Other
currencies

Chart 73

2014 2015 A%

Expressed in the respective
deposit-taking currency

Deposits in AKZ (in M.AKZ)
Deposits in USD (in M.USD)
Deposits in EUR (in M.€)

569 469 634 253 11.4%
33082 2641.0 (20.2%)
120.4 143.5 19.2%

Expressed in M.€
(consolidation currency)

Deposits in AKZ
Deposits in USD

Deposits in EUR and
other currencies

4548.7
27181

42904  (5.7%)
24174 (11.1%)

129.6 152.2 17.4%

Total deposits [=X41to6] 7 396.3 6860.0 (7.3%)

Note:
Sight deposits 38059 40453 6.3%
Term deposits 35904 28147 (21.6%)
Table 61

1) The kwanza depreciated 15% against the euro, whereas the dollar appreciated 11% relative to the euro.
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Consolidated

Profitability, efficiency, loan quality and solvency consolidated indicators according to Bank of Portugal Notice 16 / 2004

2014 2015
Net operating revenue and results of equity accounted subsidiaries / ATA 2.1% 2.9%
Profit before taxation and non-controlling interests / ATA (0.0%) 1.0%
Profit before taxation and non-controlling interests / average shareholders’ equity
(including non-controlling interests) (0.4%) 15.1%
Personnel costs / net operating revenue and results of equity accounted subsidiaries? 41.9% 31.2%
Operating costs / net operating revenue and results of equity accounted subsidiaries! 72.3% 54.6%
Loans in arrears for more than 90 days + doubtful loans / loan portfolio (gross) 4.3% 3.9%
Loans in arrears for more than 90 days + doubtful loans, net of accumulated loan impairments /
loan portfolio (net) 0.1% (0.2%)
Credit at risk® 5.4% 49%
Credit at risk?, net of accumulated loan impairments / loan portfolio (net) 1.2% 0.8%
Restructured loans as % of total loans® 6.9% 6.6%
Restructured loans not included in non-performing loans ("credit at risk") as % of total loans® 4.6% 4.6%
Own funds requirements ratio 11.8%* 10.9%°
Basis own funds ratio (Tier 1) 11.8%* 10.9%°
Common Equity Tier 1 ratio 11.8%* 10.9%°
Loans (net) to deposits ratio 84% 85%

Table 62

Note: In the calculation of the indicators above, the perimeter of the Group subject to the supervision of the ECB is considered, i.e.,

BPI Vida e Pensdes is recognized by the equity method (in the consolidated accounts, according to IAS / IFRS, that entity is consolidated by global integration).

1) Excluding costs with early-retirements.

2) Credit-at-risk corresponds to the sum of (1) the total outstanding value of loans which have principal or interest instalments in arrears for more than 90 days; (2) the total
outstanding value of loans which have been restructured after having been in arrears for a period of 90 days or more, without having adequately reinforced the guarantees
given (these must be sufficient to cover the total value of outstanding principal and interest; (3) the total value of loans with principal or interest instalments in arrears for
less than 90 days, but in respect of which there is evidence that justify their classification as credit at risk, namely the debtor’s insolvency or liquidation.

3) According to Bank of Portugal Instruction 32 / 2013.
4) According to the phasing-in CRD IV / CRR rules applicable in 2014.
5) According to the phasing-in CRD IV / CRR rules applicable in 2015.

ATA = Average total assets.
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Risk management

At the BPI Group, risk management is founded on the
ongoing identification and analysis of the exposure to the
different risks (credit risk, country risk, market risks,
liquidity risks, operational and other risks) and on the
execution of strategies aimed at maximising the results
vis-a-vis risks, within predefined and duly supervised
limits. Risk management is complemented by the
analysis a posteriori of performance indicators.

ORGANISATION

The BPI Group’s global risk management is entrusted to
the Board of Directors’ Executive Committee. At the
Executive Committee level, a Director without direct
responsibility for the commercial divisions is placed in
charge of the risk divisions.

At senior level, there are also two specialised executive
committees: the Global Risks Executive Committee
(global market, liquidity, credit, country, operational risks)
and the Credit Risks Executive Committee, which
concentrates its activity on the analysis of large-scale
operations.

The Bank has a centralised and independent structure for
dealing with the analysis and control of risk in
accordance with the best organisational practices in this
domain and with the requirements of the Basel Accord.
The Risk Analysis and Control Division is responsible for
monitoring global risks and for the management of the
risk datamart for the whole Group.

In the specific domain of corporates, small businesses,
institutional Clients and project finance credit risks, the
Credit Risk Division undertakes an appraisal, independent
of the commercial structures, of the risk of the various
proponents or sureties and of the characteristics of the
operations. The granting of ratings falls within the terms
of reference of this Division’s Ratings Area, with the
Rating Committee having the power to derogate from
them in the case of large exposure Customers.
Quantitative models and expert analysis produced,
respectively, by the Risk Analysis and Control Division
and the Credit Risk Division, are available to support the
attribution of ratings. The Corporate Loans Recovery
Division undertakes the management of recovery
proceedings in the event of default.
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In the specific sphere of Individuals’ credit risk, it is the
task of the Individuals’ Credit Risk Division to perform
the functions of independently analysing proponents,
sureties and operations, backed by the various risk
indicators and scoring models produced by the Risk
Analysis and Control Division. The management of
recovery processes also forms part of the functions of the
Individuals’ Credit Risk Division.

In specific segments such as loans to financial
institutions or derivatives, there are credit risk analysis
areas which carry out similar functions to those described
for companies or individuals.

The management of operational risks is entrusted to the
Operational Risks Management Area of the Organisation
and Quality Division — dedicated solely to this matter —
and to the Employees specifically nominated at each of
the Group’s divisions, who are responsible for the
identification, monitoring and mitigation of operational
risks within their sphere of work. The management of
operational risks also encompasses the management of
Business Continuity and Information Security, observing
the same governance model. There are three committees
for overseeing Operational Risks, i.e. the Operational
Risks, the Business Continuity and the Information
Security Committees.

The BPI Group’s Compliance Division has as its mission
contributing to the prevention and mitigation of the
“Compliance Risks”, which translate into the risk of legal
or regulatory sanctions, financial or reputational loss as a
consequence of the failure to comply with the law,
regulations, code of conduct and good banking practices,
fostering the observance by the BPI Group and its
Employees of all the applicable rules by way of an
independent involvement, in conjunction with all the
Bank’s organic units. Compliance risks comprise, besides
the risk of legal breach, market abuse risk and the risk of
money laundering and financing of terrorism.



Matrix of responsibilities for risk management and control

DOQ: regulations

DC, Internal and external
Auditors', Supervisory
Board, Bank of Portugal:
control

Legal and
compliance risks

DJ

DC: analysis of compliance risks (=
legal default, market abuse, money
laundering and financing terrorism)

CECA: compliance

CECA, CACI, DJ, DC,
Internal and external
Auditors', Supervisory
Board, Bank of Portugal:
control

Identification and analysis of exposure | Strategy Limits and control Recovery Performance Evaluation
Credit / DACR: rating and scoring models CECA: overall CA (with CRF advisory) DRCE: CECA, CERC,
counterparty risk | (probabilities of default), and loss strategy CECA CERC. Credit Board Companies DCPE. DACR
given default for all loan segments CECA. CERC: DRC. DRCP. DACR. DF: | DRCP: Al tl; bi
’ : ' ' » O : other Divisions
DACR and DF: external rating approval of limits Individuals and
identification for debt securities and substantial operations CA (with CRF advisory) Small
for credit to financial institutions Credit Board. DRC CECA CACI. CERC Cr;adit Businesses
DRC: Risk analysis, Rating for DRCP, DF: approval | Board, DACR, DO, Internal
Corporates, Small Businesses, Project | of operations and external Auditors’,
Finance and Institutional Clients Supervisory Board, Bank of
Rating Committee: Rating for Institutional Portugal: control
Clients and Derogation of Rating for Large
Corporates
DRCP: Expert System for loans to
Individuals
DACR: exposure to derivatives
DACR: analysis of overall exposure to
credit risk
Country risk DF: analysis of individual country risk | CECA: overall CA (with CRF advisory)
with recourse to external ratings and strategy CECA CACI. DACR DC
analyses DF, DA: operations | Internal and external
DACR: analysis of overall exposure Auditors', Supervisory
Board, Bank of Portugal:
control
Market risk DACR: analysis of risk by books / CECA: overall CA (with CRF advisory)
instruments and global risks — interest | strategy CECA CERG DACR. DF
rates, currencies, shares, DF, DA: operations | DA: limits
commodities, other.
CECA, CACI, DACR, DC,
Internal and external
Auditors', Supervisory
Board, Bank of Portugal:
control
Liquidity risk DF, DA: individual risk analysis of CECA: overall CA (with CRF advisory)
liquidity, by instrument strategy CECA CACI. DACR DC
DACR: analysis of overall liquidity risk Internal and external
Auditors', Supervisory
Board, Bank of Portugal:
control
Operating risks DACR: analysis of overall exposure CECA: overall CECA, DORG, DACR: DJ, DAI, DO, CECA, DOQ?
DOQ and all the Divisions: organisation regulation and limits C(')rfn_nercial
identification of critical points CRO CECA, CACI, DOQ, DACR, | Divisions

CA - Conselho de Administracdo (Board of Directors): CACI — Comisséo de Auditoria e de Controlo Interno (Audit and Internal Control Committee); CECA — Comissédo Executiva do Conselho
de Administracdo (Board of Directors Executive Committee); CERC — Comisséo Executiva de Riscos de Crédito (Credit Risks Executive Committee); CRF — Comissdo de Riscos Financeiros

(Financial Risks Committee); CRO — Comité de Risco Operacional (Operating Risk Committee); DA — Departamento de Acgdes (Equity Department); DACR — Direcgédo de Andlise e Controlo de

Riscos (Risk Analysis and Control Division); DAI — Direcgéo de Auditoria e Inspeccao (Audit and Inspection Division); DC — Direc¢do de Compliance (Compliance Division); DCPE — Direccao
de Contabilidade, Planeamento e Estatistica (Accounting, Planning and Statistics Division); DF — Direccao Financeira (Financial Division); DJ — Direcgéo Juridica (Legal Division); DO —
Direcgéo de Operacdes (Operations Division); DOQ — Direcgéo da Organizacdo e Qualidade (Organisation and Quality Division); DRC — Direccao de Riscos de Crédito (Credit Risk Division);
DRCE - Direcgédo de Recuperacao de Crédito a Empresas (Corporate Credit Recovery Division); DRCP — Direcgéo de Riscos de Crédito a Particulares (Individuals Credit Risk Division).

The Financial Risks Committee — a consultative body reporting to the Board of Directors — is responsible, without
prejudice to the legal terms of reference vested in the Supervisory Board, for monitoring the management policy covering
all the financial risks arising from BPI’s operations, namely liquidity, interest rate, exchange rate, market and credit risks,
as well as monitoring the Company’s pension-fund management policy.

1) As part of the execution of the audit and statutory audit of the BPI Group’s accounts, the external auditors also contribute to the process of controlling the various risks to which the

Group is exposed.

2) Except in the cases of compliance and DC division.
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Credit risk

Management process

Credit risk associated with the possibility of actual
default by a counterparty (or with the change in the
economic value of a given instrument or portfolio
stemming from a deterioration in the risk quality of a
counterparty) constitutes the primary risk factor inherent
in the BPI Group’s business spectrum.

Specific approval for loans to companies and small
businesses or to institutional Customers follows the
principles and procedures laid down in the credit
regulations, and in essence result from the following:

= Rejection filters: the existence of incidents and
defaults, liens or debts to the Tax Administration and to
the Social Security Department; others.

= Exposure limits to credit risk: evaluation of the present
capability to service debt and the establishment of
corresponding maximum exposure limits, also paying
attention to the Bank’s involvement capacity.

Acceptance / rejection boundary according to the
probability of the counterparty defaulting: a boundary is
set in accordance with the internal rating (potential
Customers whose classification places them in a risk
class which is deemed to be excessive are turned down,
that is, whose probability of defaulting is high) or in
accordance with an equivalent analysis by an expert
system.

Mitigation of risk attaching to operations: regard is had
to any personal or tangible guarantees which contribute
to reducing risks.

In the corporate segment, the object is to become
involved with long-term operations which are associated
with tangible guarantees (financial and non-financial),
with collateral cover levels (net of haircuts and temporal
adjustments in the case of financial assets) of 100%.

In the small businesses segment, the medium / long-term
operations must as a rule be fully secured by tangible
guarantees.

In order to mitigate credit risk on companies’ derivative

operations, in addition to the drafting of contracts with
clauses which permit the set-off of obligations in the
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event of default, BPI has as a rule signed collateralisation
accords with its counterparties.

For more details concerning the policy for evaluating and
managing collateral, see the report “Market Discipline”
published on the Investor Relations web site.

In project finance or structured finance, the clear
identification and allocation of the principal attendant
risks is fundamental, isolating the project and its risk
assets from the Promoters or Shareholders
(“ring-fencing”), focusing on their perceived or actual
cash-flow generating capability, whether it be as the
source of debt repayment or as the security for loans.
The loan contract typically contains far-reaching oversight
powers and mechanisms by the lenders.

The specific approval of loans to individuals follows the
principles and procedures laid down in the credit
regulations and in essence result from the following:

= Rejection filters: the existence of incidents and
defaults, liens or debts to the Tax Administration and to
the Social Security Department, minimum and
maximum age restrictions and others.

= Exposure limits: evaluation of the present capability
to service debt through the calculation of the
housing-to-income ratio or the estimated value of the
savings of the loan applicants, guarantors or sureties.
As a general rule, applications where the
housing-to-income ratio is considered to be excessive or
where savings become slightly positive or even negative
due to the costs of the new loan, are turned down.

Acceptance / rejection boundary, according to the
probability of the counterparty defaulting: there are
reactive scorings for each loan segment (housing,
personal loans, credit cards and motor car finance)
designed to evaluate the probability of default by the
counterparty, guarantors or sureties. In complex cases,
the identification of the risk class (probability of
default) requires the involvement of the Individuals
Credit Risk Division. Potential Customers whose
classification places them at risk which is deemed to be
excessive are turned down, that is, whose probability of
defaulting is high.

= Mitigation of risk attaching to operations: in the
acceptance or rejection of Customers and operations,



regard is had to any personal or tangible guarantees
which contribute to reducing risks. In the most
expressive segment — home loans —, the relationship
between loan and security (or loan-to-value ratio) has a
maximum ceiling of 80%. For more details concerning
the policy for evaluating and managing collateral, see
the report “Market Discipline” published on the Investor
Relations website.

For each one of the different divisions involved, the
relevant hierarchical levels for the approval of credit
according to their risk or commercial characteristics have
been defined with the object of decentralising decisions
and, therefore, ensuring processing speed and efficacy.

A posteriori, the Bank maintains constant vigilance over
the behaviour of its exposure to different counterparties,
and over the trend of its portfolio (diversification by
geographical area, sector of activity, loan segment,
counterparty, currency and maturity). A more detailed
description of the topic dealing with risk concentration is
in the report “Market Discipline” which is available for
consultation on the Investor Relations website.

The Bank also keeps constant vigilance over the earnings
and profitability indices achieved vis-a-vis the risks
assumed.

Problematic loans, provisioning cover indices, write-offs
and recoveries are also analysed monthly.

Recovery procedures are duly identified with a view to
assessing on a case-by-case basis the choice of option
that prospectively allows maximising the amount
recovered.

In the case of Companies or Small Businesses, the Bank
seeks as a rule a non-judicial restructuring of the debt
which, when credible, could involve extending the
maturity period and possibly even the pardon of principal
with the payment of arrear interest and reinforced
security. Also as a rule, the Bank does not reinforce its
exposure, neither does it accept payment in specie and
nor does it convert debt into principal. Once a
restructuring operation has been realised, the process is
duly monitored. Non-compliance with the agreed plan

sets into motion the judicial recovery of the debt. Where
the debt restructuring is not feasible, the loan is
subjected to judicial execution.

In the case of Individuals, the restructuring or
renegotiation agreements are also a preferred path for
recovery providing that there is the minimum prospect of
their being complied with. The choice is largely
dependent on the period of default and the loan product,
which could entail extending the maturity period and
implementing a payment plan of outstanding and unpaid
instalments, amongst other modes. There also exists a
system that alerts to default of the restructuring
agreement, triggering a subsequent action.

In the case of defaulting operations, but also for
operations with incidents or performing loans, the Bank
makes an estimate of the provisions for impairments,
which entails not only a statistical calculation but also an
assessment by an expert system of the same impairment,
for all of the most significant loans. Impairments and
provisions are evaluated monthly by the Board of
Directors’ Executive Committee (Executive Committee for
Credit Risks), and are reviewed half-yearly by the external
auditors and analysed regularly by the Financial Risks
Committee.

Functioning as agents controlling this entire management
process, in addition to the Board of Directors, the
Financial Risks Committee, the Audit and Internal Control
Committee, the Supervisory Board and the Executive
Committee for Credit Risk, are the Risk Analysis and
Control Division, the internal and external auditors® and
the supervision authority.

1) As part of the execution of the audit and statutory audit of the BPI Group’s accounts, the external auditors also contribute to the process of controlling the various risks to which the

Group is exposed.
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DESCRIPTION OF MEDTHODOLOGY FOR CALCULATING IMPAIRMENTS

Financial assets or off-balance sheet operations (loans,
guarantees given, irrevocable commitments, underwriting of
commercial paper, derivatives, others) are in an impaired
situation when events take place after the asset’s initial
recognition that change the expectations in relation to the
future cash flows associated with that asset. The
impairment corresponds to the difference between the
financial asset’s balance sheet value and the present value
of its estimated future cash flows. The recording of
provisions for the losses already incurred but not yet
observed is also foreseen (IBNR — Incurred but not
reported).

In the case of loans to individual Customers the portfolio is
segmented according to the type of products and a
collective analysis of impairments is carried out. The
individual analysis in the case of Individuals only occurs
for exposures of 250 th.€ or more (Private Banking and
International Private Banking).

In the case of Corporate Banking, Project Finance,
Institutional Banking and the State Business Sector,
size-related and other complementary criteria are utilised
for determining the type of analysis to be carried out, while
all companies are subject to individual analysis. In the
case of the Small Business and Sole Proprietors’ segment,
those companies with more significant exposures (250 th.€
or more) are also subjected to individual analysis, as are
operations involving the following products or categories of
products — Commercial Loans, Bank Guarantees, Factoring,
Confirming and other debit balances (including
derivatives). The analysis is performed on a collective basis
for less significant exposures. In the Small Businesses
segment, collective analyses are undertaken separately for
the following portfolios — Equipment Leasing, Real Estate
Leasing and Commercial Loans.

The impairment losses relating to the operations recorded
in the loan portfolio are calculated by means of individual
analysis, and these are monitored by the Finance Division.

As a general rule, in the case where no provisions are set
aside after individual analysis, provisions are created based
on the collective analysis.

The calculation of individual impairment is done operation
by operation. The following constitute objective indices,
amongst others, of the existence of individual impairment:

= |ncidents and defaults (not accidental);
= Record of Incidents in the BdP’s CRC;
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= Risk warnings which indicate significant degradation of
the situation of individuals and of the Group / companies;

= Attachment / seizure of account;

= Applications for insolvency;

= [ncome Tax and Social Security debts;

= |ncrease in the probability of default (including Scoring /
Rating situations beyond the prescribed threshold and
restructured / renegotiated debts arising from risk
deterioration);

= Depreciation in the value of the collateral.

The final calculation of individual impairment is based on
the empirical estimate (educated guess) of the product of a
probability of default and of a loss in the event of default
(for performing loans or with incidents); or simply of a loss
in the case of default (for non-performing loans).

The expected loan recovery value contains a judgment as to
the value of the cash flows to be presented by Customers,
based on both their historical economic-financial
performance and the expectation of future trends. The
expected value of the loan recovery includes, mandatorily,
the cash flows that could result for the execution of the
guarantees of the collateral associated with the loan
advanced. In this case, the costs arising from the
respective recovery process are deducted.

Properties pledged as security are obligatorily valued in
loco prior to the process being closed definitively. The
valuation of foreclosed properties is entrusted by Banco
BPI to duly accredited external valuers independent of the
Bank who must mandatorily visit the interior of the
property. The object of these valuations effected for Banco
BPI is to establish the “market value” of a given property,
according to the principles defined by:

= |VSC — International Valuation Standards Council in the
International Valuation Standards publication (edition of
2013);

= Bank of Portugal Notice 5/ 2006 (Valuation of
Mortgaged Properties pledged as Guarantee for Mortgage
Bond Loans);

= Bank of Portugal Notice 5 /2007 (Own Funds
Adequacy).

The “Market Value” of a property is the price for which an
assets can be sold under a contract between an interested
seller and a buyer with the means to realise the transaction
at the valuation date, on the assumption that the property is
placed publically for sale, that the market conditions permit
a normal transfer and that there is a normal period, taking



into account the nature of the property for negotiation of the
sale. In determining Market Value it is possible to resort to
three valuation methods: “Market method”, “Income
method” and “Cost method”.

The calculation mode for collective provisions relating to the
most important portfolios (Home loans, Companies and
Small Businesses) entails partitioning according to the

gravity of past or present indices. In the case of Home
Loans, the restructured or renegotiated operations (without
delays) are also dealt with separately. In calculating
impairments using IBNR (incurred but not reported),
applied to loans without signs of the above-mentioned
portfolios, specific parameters are applied for restructured
loans with financial difficulties.

Segments Without signs

With signs Default

Corporate Banking

Small Businesses
Performing loans or
delays up to 30 days

Personal Loan

Motor Car Finance

Delays of more than 30 days
or risk factors

Delays of more than

180 days or litigation

Delays of more than 30 days
Delays of more than
90 days or litigation

Performing loans or

e Lozl delays up to 12 days

Delays of more than

Delays of more than 12 days 180 days o litigation

Performing loans (status AA) or

Credit Cards n ] :
miscellaneous (inactive, cheques, etc.)

Default (status CG) or
litigation

Delinquencies
(status DO1, DO2 and DO3)

The balance sheet value corresponds to the sum of the
book value of the capital not yet due, the overdue
principal, the overdue interest and the other costs of
overdue loans.

Based on the aforesaid partitions, probability curves are built
based on the Kaplan-Meier methodology. Sign of impairment
/ arrear probabilities are calculated during an emergency
period of 6 months and for a subsequent transition to a
default situation (delay of 180 days or 90 days, according to
the segments) up until the final maturity.

The sign probability curves are built based on the time
elapsing since the beginning of the observation of the loans
(corresponds to the beginning of the operations or the
beginning of the observation in the history of the information
being considered), since the resolution of the delay / default
or since the moment of a restructuring due to financial
difficlties. As a rule, the probabilities are lower to the extent
that operations run their course without incidents and the
distance increases vis-a-vis the initial observation.

Different transition probability curves are also built
depending on the gravity of the sign and based on the time

elapsed since it was first observed. The probability is
marginally smaller the bigger the distance from the
observation of the sign and as long as the operation /
Customer does not enter into default.

In case of default, an estimate is made of an economic
loss. Based on the historical data for each segment, the
payments made by the Customers after the default are
identified, after deducting the direct costs of the recovery
process. These flows are discounted at the rate of interest
applicable to the operations and compared (%) with the
exposure at the time of the default. Different recovery
curves are estimated for operations which are in default for
different periods (based on the amount outstanding after t
months of the operations / Customers which / who remain
in default in that month). In the Real Estate Leasing and
Home Loan segment, in which the recovery processes are
more protracted due to the property foreclosure, the
recoveries include an estimate of the recovery via judicial
proceedings (execution / repossession of the asset, based
on the past records available relating to those situations
(probability of recovery via judicial proceedings multiplied
by the percentage of the estimated recovery via judicial
proceedings).
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Risk Factors

Without signs With signs Default

Probability of sign (or incident):
Probability of an operation / Customer becoming late
during an emergency period.

Probability of transition (to default):
Probability of an operation / Customer which / who already
records delays (signs) arriving at a Default situation during
the remaining term of the operation.

Loss in case of default (LGD):
Economic loss of the operations in case of default.

Depending upon the situation of the loans, provisions for impairments are calculated in a different manner.

Loans without signs

Impairment = Z ( Book Value y ;- Z @> X SPy;
H.j T (140 '

Loans with signs

Impairment = > ( Book Value pg — > EEE )
DS t (1+i)t

Loans in Default

Impairment = > ( Book Value, x LGD,)
i

Restructuring of loans

The recovery procedures are duly identified with a view to
deciding case-by-case on the choice of option which
hopefully permits maximising the amount recovered.

In the case of Companies and Small Businesses, the Bank
endeavours as a rule to achieve a non-judicial restructuring of
the debt which, if credible, could involve extending the term
and possibility the deferment of principal with the payment of
the overdue interest or the appropriate reinforcement of the
security pledged, depending on the characteristics of each
specific case. Also as a rule, the Bank does not raise its
exposure, neither does it accept payment in specie nor does
it convert debt into principal. Having realised the
restructuring, the process is duly monitored. Non-compliance
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Where:

ECF = expected cash flow

SP = sign probability
TP = transition probability

LGD = default loss

DS = degree of sign (e.g. 12-30 days, 30-60 days, etc.)

H = history of operations / Customers without signs (without
problems in the past: signs or default)

t = period in which the payment of a future cash flow is
contractually envisaged

with the agreed plan sets into motion the judicial debt
execution process. Where the debt restructuring proves not to
be feasible, the debt is subjected to immediate judicial
execution.

In the case of Individuals, the restructuring or renegotiation
agreements are also a preferred path for recovery providing
that there is the minimum prospect of being complied with.
The choice is largely dependent on the default period and
the loan product, which could entail extending the maturity
period and implementing a payment plan of outstanding and
unpaid instalments, amongst other modes. There also exists
a system that alerts to default of the restructuring
agreement, triggering a subsequent action.




Evaluation of exposure to credit risk

Companies, institutional Customers, specialised finance
and small businesses

BPI uses an internal rating system for companies
(excluding small businesses) with ten classes (E1 to E10)
plus two classes in the case of incidents (ED1 and ED2)
and one in the case of default (ED3, which corresponds
to a 100% “probability of default”). Default probabilities
are associated to each classification for the evaluation of
loans, guarantees and securities of medium and large-
sized companies.

Internal rating of companies
Breakdown of exposure by risk classes
At 31 December 2015

Value % of One-year default
Risk classes (M.€)? portfolio probability?
amount

El 1 70.2 1.1% 0.03%
E2 2 334.0 5.4% 0.03%
E3 3 721.6 11.7% 0.03%
E4 4 958.9 15.5% 0.04%
E5 5 12224 19.8% 0.06%
E6 6 726.3 11.8% 0.07%
E7 7 637.4 10.3% 0.49%
E8 8 368.2 6.0% 2.72%
E9 9 232.8 3.8% 7.34%
E10 10 260.4 4.2% 17.27%
Without rating 11 16.7 0.3% 1.22%
ED1 12 0.4 0.0% 42.86%
ED2 13 1.4 0.0% 61.85%
ED3 (default) 14 628.6 10.2% 100.00%
Total [=2 1to14]| 15 6 179.1 100% 1.60%
Table 63

The average probability of default in the Companies’
portfolio over 1 year, weighted by the value of the
liabilities at 31 December 2015, was 1.60%. The loss in
the event of default in this segment is on average
40.36%. The expected loss is on average is 0.66% for
the whole portfolio.

In the project finance and structured finance areas, there
is a classification system based on five classes. The
portfolio is composed in the majority of cases of projects
with “good” or “strong” ratings.

Internal rating of project finance
Breakdown of exposure by risk classes
At 31 December 2015

Risk classes Value (M.€) % of p:;tizl:;
Strong 1 146.1 6.3%
Good 2 1283.8 55.0%
Satisfactory 3 430.0 18.4%
Weak 4 222.5 9.5%
Default 5 199.8 8.6%
ND 6 53.0 2.3%
Total [=x1to6]| 7 2 335.2 100.0%

Table 64

The segment of small businesses is still at an initial stage
of a rating evaluation process. Notwithstanding this fact,
it is possible to estimate an average default probability
over a one-year period in the case of this portfolio, and a
loss in the event of default of 3.38% and 60.58%,
respectively (the definition of default used in the
calculations of impairment losses is that of loans in
arrears for 180 days or more).

These systems for evaluating counterparty risk are
complemented by other methodologies, in particular, the
calculation of the capital at risk, in accordance with the
assessment enshrined in regulations governing solvency
ratios or a variation thereof.

Exposure concentration indices are also analysed. In
overall terms, in a qualitative appraisal, the portfolio
reveals an average / high degree of concentration by
counterparties or groups (including conservative
compliance with the regulation regarding “large
exposures”) and a reduced concentration by sectors.

According to the Bank of Portugal’s calculation
methodology, the individual concentration indicator is
0.44% while the sectorial concentration is 11.2%. The
concentration in geographical terms is inherent to the
location of the Group’s business operations.

1) Includes bonds, bank guarantees and commercial paper of the corporate segment and excludes without-recourse factoring operations and derivatives.
2) In the calculation of default probabilities, all the operations in default of a single Customer were regarded as being a single negative case (and not various cases). The calculation of the
portfolio’s average default probabilities naturally excludes the ED3 class. The DPs presented are point-in-time and hence not comparable with those published in previous years as they

were through-the-cycle.
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Financial institutions

In financing granted to other financial institutions, BPI
bases its risk analysis on available external ratings.
Financing relations are restricted, at the time of the
investment, to investment grade institutions.

This system for evaluating counterparty risk is
complemented by the calculation of the capital at risk, in
accordance with the assessment enshrined in regulations
governing solvency ratios.

Individuals

In the individuals domain, there is a reactive scoring
model for each segment, designed to represent default
probabilities (distribution of the results of each scoring by
ten classes, plus two in the case of incidents and one
class in the case of default).

Over the life of the operations, the default probabilities
are assessed by behavioural scorings. It should be noted
that in the home loan segment, notwithstanding the
difficult economic environment, the portfolio’s average
probability of default is low (0.91%). This favourable
trend is due to the natural decline in default probabilities
on older loans (the portfolio’s average age is 8.4 years
while the peak of default probabilities in their lifespan is
situated at 2 to 3 years).

Default probabilities of loans to individuals
At 31 December 2015

Probability of Loss given  Expected
Risk classes default within a default loss
yearh?3

Mortgage loans 0.9% 13.0% 0.1%
Personal loans 2.4% 33.6% 0.8%
Motor car finance 0.9% 22.5% 0.2%
Credit cards 0.7% 48.5% 0.3%
Table 65

1) Probability of default weighted by the liabilities in portfolio or potential liabilities (credit cards).

The estimated loss on each operation in default in these
segments is also revised periodically over the lifespan of
the operations. The lowest expected loss in the event of
default in the motor-car and housing finance is directly
related to the existence of tangible guarantees,
facilitating the recoupment of loans. The existence of
enforcement orders and, at times, financial collateral,
also facilitates the recovery of amounts (relatively low)
advanced in the form of personal loans.

Loan-to-value ratio in housing loans
At 31 December 2015

2015

New loans contracted* 65.4%
Housing loan portfolio 55.6%
Loans in default (more than 90 days) 87.4%
Table 66

This system for evaluating counterparty risk is
complemented by the calculation of the capital at risk, in
accordance with the assessment enshrined in regulations
governing solvency ratios.

Debt securities portfolio

In what regards the evaluation of risks stemming from its
securities portfolio, BPI resorts primarily to information
obtained from external rating reports. The investment
portfolio is predominantly composed of the securities of
low credit-risk issuers.

2) The calculation of the average default probability includes situations of loans in arrears for less than 90 days.

3) The DPs presented are point-in-time.
4) Loans granted in December 2015.
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Bonds and fixed-interest securities’

investment portfolio! Amounts in M.€

Rating 2014 % 2015 %
AAA 9 02% 0 0.0%
AA 1 0.0% 0 0.0%
A 236 4.4% 73 1.7%
BBB 790 14.6% 1394 328%
BB 3517 65.2% 1840 43.3%
B 47  0.9% 53 1.2%
ccc 1 0.0% 0 0.0%
Commercial paper with guarantees
from credit institutions 152 2.8% 168  4.0%
Commercial paper without guarantees 527  9.8% 495 11.7%
Without rating 117 22% 226 53%
Total 5397 100% 4249 100%
Table 67

Equities and participating interests’ portfolio

As regards the structural position of the equities and
participating interests portfolio, the corresponding market
risk is not easily measured by traditional methodologies
such as VaR, given the investment’s time horizon, the
importance of the positions or the lack of quoted prices
in the equity market. According to the Basel Accord, this
risk is treated as credit risk (and eventually included in
the treatment of large exposures).

The realisation of a stress test on this portfolio (20% fall
in quoted prices) reveals a capital at risk figure of
24 M.£€.

Derivative operations

Credit risk analysis relating to operations in derivatives is
founded on the replacement value (exposure equivalent to
credit), and on default probabilities and loss values in the
case of default attaching to the counterparty and to the
operations, respectively.

The set-off and collateralisation contracts naturally have
an influence on the calculation of this type of exposure.
These agreements, which entail the receipt (and
payment) of collateral amounts for hedging risks between

counterparties, permitted a reduction in the substitution
value of the derivatives portfolio from 321 M.€ (gross
amount) to 200 M.€ (net amount, after set off and
collateralisation) at the end of December 2015.

Current credit risk — substitution value

of derivatives by type of counterparty? Amounts in M.€

2014 % 2015 %
Over-the-counter market 226.4 100.0% 200.5 100.0%
Financial institutions 115 2.0% 8.3 2.0%
Other financial intermediaries 1.1 0.8% 1.0 0.8%
Local and administrative public sector 0.4 0.3% 0.3 0.3%
Companies 2126 96.1% 190.2 96.1%
Unit trust funds and pension funds 0.3 0.0% 0.3 0.0%
Individuals 0.5 0.9% 04 09%
Regulated markets - - - -
Stock exchange - - - -
Total 226.4 100.0% 200.5 100.0%

Table 68

This form of evaluating exposure to counterparty risk is
complemented by the traditional regulatory approach
(own funds requirements by capital at risk).

Default, provisioning and recovery levels

BPI recorded a decrease in the flow of new default
situations, an improvement in the loan-quality indicators
and the reinforcement of provisions for credit risk.

The following are details of the principal arrear-loan,
risk-cost and impairment-coverage ratios:

= Loans in arrears ratio (+90 days): the consolidated ratio
of loans in arrears for more than 90 days improved from
3.8% at the end of 2014 to 3.6% at the close of 2015.
In domestic operations (94% of the consolidated loan
portfolio), that ratio stood at 3.6%, while in
international operations (in Angola), which represent
6% of the consolidated loan portfolio, it was 4.2%.

1) Includes securities in the available-for-sale portfolios, bonds classified as loans and commercial paper.
2) The total substitution value is the sum of the substitution values of the counterparties, when positive. It does not include options inserted into bonds issued or bought. The substitution
value incorporates the effect of the risk reduction that results from the set-off of credit and debit balances between the same counterparties and agreements with counterparties, which

serve as guarantee for compliance with obligations.
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= Credit-at-risk ratio (IAS / IFRS consolidation scope?):
the consolidated credit-at-risk ratio, according to the
Bank of Portugal’s definition, improved from 5.0% at
the end of 2014 to 4.6% at the end of 2015. In
domestic activity, that ratio was situated at 4.5% and
in international activity (in Angola) at 5.5%.

= Credit risk cost: impairment charges in the year, after
deducting loan recoveries, represented 0.48% of the
loan portfolio in 2015 (0.70% in 2014). In 2015, loan
impairments for the year (net of recoveries) in domestic
operations represented 0.38% of the loan portfolio and
in international operations 1.88% of the loan portfolio.

= Impairment cover: Accumulated loan impairment
allowances in the balance sheet at the end of 2015
stood at 1 013 M.€. This figure corresponded to 87%

Credit at risk Ratio of credit at risk
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— Credit at risk
— Loans in arrears for more
than 90 days

B Credit at risk
Of which:
M Loans in arrears for more
than 90 days

of credit-at-risk!, not taking into account the effect of
risks covered by collateral, which represents an increase
in loan-impairment cover when compared with the
previous year (82%). Accumulated loan impairment
allowances in the balance sheet for non-performing
loans? and guarantees (real and personal) represented
93% cover for the total exposure to operations with
principal or interest in arrears for more than 30 days,
including the associated loans falling due.

Foreclosed properties: properties repossessed in loan
recovery operations totalled 153.5 M.€, in terms of
gross balance sheet value. The balance sheet value net
of accumulated impairments was 126.3 M.€, which
compares with their market value of 153.5 M.£€.

Impairments coverage
Not considering collaterals

Property repossessed from
loans recovery (gross value)
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Coverage of:

— Credit at risk

— Loans in arrears for more than
90 days

m Other
W Housing loans

1) Calculated in accordance with Bank of Portugal Instruction no. 23 /2011 and considering the consolidation scope in IAS / IFRS, with the result that BPI Vida e Pensdes is fully
consolidated and its portfolio is included in the consolidated loan portfolio (in Bank of Portugal’s supervision scope, BPI Vida e Pens@es is equity accounted). According to Instruction 23 /
2011 and considering the supervision scope, at 31 Dec. 2015 the credit at risk amounted to 1158 M.€ while the credit-at-risk ratio stood at 4.9%.

2) In addition, BPI had impairment allowances of 329 M.€ for loans with no arrear instalments and for guarantees. Taking this figure also into account, coverage for total overdue loans and

associated loans falling due stood at 119%.

120 Banco BPI | Annual Report 2015



Loans to Customers in arrears and loan impairments Amounts in M.€

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Conso- Conso- Conso- Conso- Domestic International Conso-
lidated lidated lidated lidated activity activity lidated
Customer loan portfolio (gross) 1 28995 28129 26897 26306 23 668 1592 25 260
Loans in arrears, falling due loans and impairments
Credit at risk? 2 9239 11574 12770 1304.0 10709 87.1 1158.1
Loan impairments and guarantees (accumulated
in the balance sheet) 642.9 824.4 978.7 10752 906.7 106.1 10128
Loans in arrears for more than 90 days 4 686.6 891.9 976.3 10083 841.4 66.8 908.2
Loans in arrears for more than 30 days 728.4 917.4 997.2 1043.7 850.0 72.4 922.5
Ratios (as % of total loans)
Credit at risk as % of loan portfolio*? [=2/1]| 6 3.2% 4.1% 4.7% 5.0% 4.5% 5.5% 4.6%
Loan impairments (accumulated in the balance
sheet) as % of loan portfolio [=3/1]| 7 2.2% 2.9% 3.6% 4.1% 3.8% 6.7% 4.0%
Loans in arrears for more than 90 days as %
of loan portfolio [=4/1]| 8 2.4% 3.2% 3.6% 3.8% 3.6% 4.2% 3.6%
Loans in arrears for more than 30 days as %
of loan portfolio [=5/1]| 9 2.5% 3.3% 3.7% 4.0% 3.6% 4.6% 3.7%
Loan impairments as %
of credit at risk [=3/2]| 10 70% 71% 77% 82% 85% 122% 87%
Loan impairments as % of loans in arrears
for more than 90 days [=3/4] | 11 94% 92% 100% 107% 108% 159% 112%
Write-offs and sales of loans in arrears 12 86.3 81.3 93.4 106.5 162.0 7.3 169.2
Recovery of loans and interests
in arrears written-off 13 20.3 155 17.6 16.5 16.2 19 18.2
Table 69

DOMESTIC OPERATIONS

Trend in defaulting loans and impairments in the year

The international financial crisis which began in 2007 and
which was subsequently followed by a sovereign debt crisis
that affected the countries of southern Europe — leading in
Portugal’s case to a request for an international bailout and
to the implementation of a stringent financial stabilisation
programme — originated far-reaching impacts in the real
economy that resonated strongly in Banco BPI's domestic
operations.

Since 2007, BPI has registered in domestic operations a
deterioration in default indicators and a rise in credit-risk
cost, which despite remaining at relatively good levels,
have heavily penalised profitability in domestic operations.

Effective from 2013, BPI has recorded a slowdown in the
flow of new default situations in domestic operations after
having reached a historical high in 2012.

The emergence of new default cases (in arrears for more
than 90 days) in domestic activity, calculated as the
change in the balance of non-performing loans between the
beginning and end of the year, to which is added write-offs

effected and after deducting loan recoveries, attained
40 M.€ in 2015 (0.18% of the loan portfolio), which
corresponds to a significant decrease since the peak of
263 M.€ in 2012 (0.99% of the loan portfolio).

The change in the credit at risk, adjusted for write-offs and
net of recoveries, was -2 M.€ (-0.01% of the loan
portfolio), which compares with an annual maximum
increase of 299 M.€ (1.13% of the loan portfolio) in
2012.

Impairment charges for the year, net of loan recoveries,
decreased from a maximum of 249 M.€ reached in 2013
(0.98% of the loan portfolio) to 87 M.€ in 2015 (0.38%
of the loan portfolio).

The present text centres on the trend in the loan portfolio’s
quality indicators in Banco BPI’s domestic operations.
However, in order to provide a global vision for the Group,
the following tables also present the indicators for the
international operations and for the consolidated viewpoint
(Group).

1) According to Bank of Portugal Instruction 16 / 2004, includes loans in arrears for more than 90 days, associated loans not yet due, restructured loans (previously with instalments in
arrears for more than 90 days and in respect of which the debtor had not adequately reinforced the guarantees furnished or paid in full the interest and other charges overdue) and
insolvency situations still not contemplated in loans in arrears for more than 90 days.

2) Considering the consolidation scope in IAS / IFRS, with the result that BPI Vida e Pensdes is fully consolidated and its portfolio is included in the consolidated loan portfolio (in Bank of
Portugal’s supervision scope, BPI Vida e Pensdes is equity accounted). According to Instruction 23 / 2011 and considering the supervision scope, at 31 Dec. 2015 the credit at risk
amounted to 1 158 M.€ while the credit-at-risk ratio stood at 4.9%.
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Last 10 years’ trend in defaulting loans (for more than 90
days)

From 2004 till 2007, new incidences of arrear loans (for
more than 90 days) — adjusted for write-offs and after
deducting recoveries — in domestic operations amounted to
an annual average figure of around 40 M.€, which
represented roughly 0.20% of the loan portfolio.

Since 2007, mirroring the economic repercussions of the
international financial crisis that emerged halfway through
that year, there was an increase in non-performing loan
situations in domestic operations. In annual average terms,
the new entries of arrear loans (for more than 90 days) —
adjusted for write-offs and net of recoveries — climbed to
117 M.€ (0.42% of the loan portfolio) between 2008 and
2010.

The stream of non-performing loan situations became more
pronounced with effect from 2010, as a consequence of the

Annual change in loans in arrears (+90 days), adjusted by
write-offs and net of recoveries

M.€
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repercussions in the Portuguese economy of the
implementation, in a short space of time, of a demanding
programme aimed at correcting the macroeconomic
imbalances. In 2012, a maximum of 263 M.€ was reached,
which corresponded to 0.99% of the loan portfolio.

With effect from 2012, there have been two consecutive
years of decline in the number of new cases of loan defaults,
amounting to 40 M.€ in 2015 (0.18% of the loan portfolio).

Credit-at-risk

The trend in credit-at-risk adjusted for write-offs and net of
recoveries is similar to that for arrear loans (for more than
90 days). In 2015, credit-at-risk (adjusted for write-offs and
net of recoveries) in domestic operations remained virtually
unchanged (-2 M.€ corresponding to -0.01% of the loan
portfolio), whilst in 2012 it reached a maximum amount of
299 M.€ (1.13% of the loan portfolio).

Loan impairments! net of recoveries
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1) According to CRD IV / CRR.

2) In 2009, it was considered the impairment charges for the year excluding the extraordinary charge made in December of that year (of 33.2 M.€).
3) In 2010 the utilisation of the extraordinary charge made in December 2009 (of 33.2 M.€) was added to the impairment charges for the year.
4) In 2011, loan impairment charges for Greek sovereign debt of 68.3 M.€ were excluded from impairments charges for the year.
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New entries of arrear loans (for more than 90 days) and credit-at-risk net of recoveries
Change in arrear loans (for more than 90 days) and in credit-at-risk, adjusted for write-offs and
sale of loans in arrears in 2015, net of recoveries of loans previously written off

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Amounts in M.€

Loans in arrears for more than 90 days (annual change)

Domestic activity 83 211 57 145 263 157 97 40
as percentage of loan portfolio (average balance) 0.31% 0.76%  0.20%  0.52% 099% 061% 041% 0.18%
International activity 12 23 38 31 2 4 25 11
as percentage of loan portfolio (average balance) 1.08% 1.77%  293% 293% 0.13% 0.34% 1.77%  0.65%
Consolidated 95 235 95 176 264 160 122 51

as percentage of loan portfolio (average balance) 0.34% 0.81% 0.32% 0.61% 0.95% 0.60% 0.48% 0.21%
Credit at risk (annual change)

Domestic activity 111 207 93 166 299 190 92 (2)
as percentage of loan portfolio (average balance) 0.41% 0.74%  0.32%  0.60% 1.13%  0.75%  0.38% (0.01%)
International activity 16 41 53 20 (10) 5 25 8
as percentage of loan portfolio (average balance) 1.43% 3.13% 4.08% 1.87% (0.90%) 047% 1.79% 0.45%
Consolidated 127 248 146 186 289 195 117 5

as percentage of loan portfolio (average balance) 0.45% 0.85% 0.49% 0.64% 1.04% 0.74% 0.46% 0.02%
Note:
Performing loan portfolio (average balance)

Domestic activity 27189 27804 28792 27836 26546 25500 23984 22860
International activity 1128 1325 1308 1054 1141 1087 1404 1 686
Consolidated 28317 29129 30100 28890 27687 26587 25388 24546
Table 70

Impairments for the year net of recoveries

Net credit loss, measured as loan impairments and net of
recoveries of overdue loans in the year, was 87 M.€ in
domestic operations in 2015, representing a 162 M.€
decrease relative to the peak of 249 M.€ registered in
2013.

The net credit loss in domestic operations corresponded to
0.38% in 2015 of the average non-performing loan portfolio.
This indicator’s average figure in the 10-year period up till
2010 (before the maximum values recorded in 2012 and
2013) was 0.27%.

Impairment charges in the year net of recoveries Amounts in M.€

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Loan impairments net of recoveries

Domestic activity 82 84 119 118 242 249 158 87
as percentage of loan portfolio (average balance) 0.30% 0.30% 041% 042% 091% 098% 0.66%  0.38%
International activity 10 28 19 7 12 6 18 32
as percentage of loan portfolio (average balance) 0.85% 2.12% 1.46% 0.62% 1.07%  0.56% 1.30% 1.88%
Consolidated 91 112 138 124 254 255 177 119

as percentage of loan portfolio (average balance) 0.32% 0.38% 0.46% 0.43% 0.92% 0.96% 0.70% 0.48%
Note:
Performing loan portfolio (average balance)

Domestic activity 27189 27804 28792 27836 26546 25500 23984 22860
International activity 1128 1325 1308 1054 1141 1087 1404 1 686
Consolidated 28317 29129 30100 28890 27687 26587 25388 24546
Table 71
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Trend in credit risk and impairments by segments

Impairment charges in 2015, higher than the flow of new entries of credit risk, are partly explained by the increased level of

cover of previously-identified default situations.

New entries in credit at risk! and impairments in the year,
deducted of recoveries, by market segment

Amounts in M.€

New entries in credit at risk, Impairments in the year,
deducted of recoveries deducted of recoveries
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Domestic activity
Companies in Portugal® 1 149 129.0 1069 1035 6.5 239 1191 84.6 76.1 649
Madrid branch® 2 63 410 911 (184) 315 19.8 11.7 94.8 52.7 279
Public Sector 36.8 36 (40 (4.8 (30.4) 0.3 9.0 (23) (09 (3.4
Individuals and Small Businesses Banking
Mortgage loans to individuals 4 60.3 812 (15.3) 208 (6.1) 333 69.0 50.2 34.0 0.2
Other loans to individuals* 5 11.2 13.8 5.9 56 (1.2) 9.4 129 6.3 55 0.5
Small businesses 6 354 275 76 (11.7) (2.5) 28.6 19.6 9.1 (0.8 (5.2)
[=24t6]] 7| 1069 1226 (1.8) 147  (9.9) 713 1015 65.7 38.7 (4.5)
Other 8 1.5 27 (19 (32 (0.0 2.8 0.4 63 (8.2) 2.2
Domestic activity [=2(1tc3)+7+8]| 9| 166.4 298.8 190.3 91.8 (2.4) 118.0 241.6 249.0 1585 87.1
International activity 10 19.7 (10.2) 5.1 25.1 7.6 6.5 12.2 6.1 18.2 31.7
Total [=9+10]| 11 | 186.1 288.6 195.5 116.9 5.2 124.5 253.9 255.0 176.7 118.8
Table 72

Credit-at-risk and impairment cover by segments

The balance on credit-at-risk in domestic operations
decreased from 1 219 M.€ at the end of 2014 to

1 071 M.€ at the close of 2015. The credit-at-risk ratio
records a decrease from 5.0% in 2014 to 4.5% in 2015.

Credit-at-risk cover by impairments in domestic operations,
disregarding collaterals, increased from 81% in 2014 to
85% in 2015.

Credit-at-risk cover by impairment allowances (disregarding
associated collaterals) in the main loan segments at the
end of 2015 was:

= 99% in company loans in Portugal;

= 87% in loans to Spanish companies (Madrid branch
portfolio);

= 89% in small business loans;

= 62% in mortgage loans. It should be noted that in this
segment the average loan / value ratio for the total
portfolio was 56% at the end of 2015.

The following table presents the credit-at-risk and
impairment cover ratios in the balance sheet by market
segment, as well as each segment’s contribution to the
gross loan portfolio.

1) Annual change in outstanding credit-at-risk, adjusted by write-offs.
2) Corporate Banking and Project Finance in Portugal.

3) Loan portfolio of Madrid Branch (corporates and project finance).
4) Consumer credit, credit cards and car financing.
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Credit-at-risk and coverage by Impairments accumulated in the balance sheet, by segment
2014 2015
Loan Credit at Credit at Impair- Loan Credit at Credit at Impair-
portfolio risk  risk ratio ments portfolio risk  risk ratio ments
(gross), as (M.€) cover (gross), as (M.€) cover
% of total % of total
Domestic activity
Companies in Portugal 1 19% 427 8.3% 88% 21% 408 7.7% 99%
Madrid branch 2 6% 176 12.0% 101% 4% 116 11.2% 87%
Public Sector 3 5% 31 2.1% 18% 5% 0 0.0% n.s.
Individuals and Small Businesses
Banking
Mortgage loans to individuals 4 43% 397 3.5% 62% 44% 375 3.4% 62%
Other loans to individuals 5 3% 39 4.4% 97% 4% 40 4.4% 101%
Small businesses 6 6% 146 9.2% 91% 7% 128 7.2% 89%
[=24to6]| 7 53% 582 4.2% 72% 55% 543 3.9% 71%
Other 8 10% 3 0.1% S.S. 9% 3 0.1% n.s.
Domestic activity
[=2(1t03)+7+8]| 9 93% 1219 5.0% 81% 94% 1071 4.5% 85%
International activity 10 7% 85 4.4% 102% 6% 87 5.5% 122%
Total [=9+10]| 11 100% 1 304 5.0% 82% 100% 1158 4.6% 87%
Table 73

Restructured loans

The amount of restructured loans (consolidated) totalled
1 549 M.£€ at the close of 2015. Of this amount,
452.5 M.€ is included in the credit-at-risk balance.

The amount of restructured loans not included in
credit-at-risk therefore totals 1 096.5 M.€, which
corresponds to 4.3% of the gross loan portfolio.

Restructured loans Amounts in M.€

2014 as % of 2015 as % of
gross gross
loan! loan?

Amount included in

credit-at-risk 1 520.7 2.0% 4525 1.8%

Performing loans 2 1152.2 4.4% 1096.5 4.3%

Total [=1+2]| 3| 1673.0 6.4% 1 549.0 6.1%
Table 74

Impairments cover for defaulting loans
At the end of 2015, the total exposure to loans with

arrear instalments of principal or interest amounted to
1 274 M.€ in consolidated terms and corresponded to:

= total arrear loans (principal or interest instalments in
arrears for more than 30 days) of 922 M.€ which
represented 3.7% of the gross loan portfolio;

= portion not yet due in those loan operations of
352 M.€.

In average terms, the total exposure to the aforesaid loans
(arrear loans and associated instalments falling due) was
93% covered by individual impairments set aside
specifically for those loans (684 M.€) and by the value of
real guarantees (504 M.€).

1) Restructured loans in accordance with Bank of Portugal Instruction and considering the consolidation scope in IAS / IFRS, with the result that BPI Vida e Pensdes is fully consolidated
and its portfolio is included in the consolidated loan portfolio (in Bank of Portugal’s supervision scope, BPI Vida e Pens@es is equity accounted).
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Loans in arrears and performing loans associated with loans in arrears

Amounts in M.€

2014 2015
Loans with Loans without Total Loans with Loans without Total
collateral collateral collateral collateral
Loans
In arrears 425.7 618.0 1043.7 407.5 515.0 922.5
Falling due loans! 268.9 151.9 420.8 207.4 144.2 351.6
Loans [=1+2] 694.6 769.9 1464.5 614.8 659.2 1274.0
Real guarantees®
(mortgages and other®) 542.8 542.8 503.6 503.6
Impairments? 262.7 489.9 752.5 257.1 426.9 684.0
Loans coverage by
collateral and
impairments /= (4+5)/3] 116% 64% 88% 124% 65% 93%
Table 75

Foreclosed properties

At the end of 2015, BPI had a portfolio of foreclosed
properties with a gross balance carrying amount of
153.5 M.€. Of this figure, 59.9 M.€ refers to properties
repossessed for home-loan recoveries and 93.6 M.€
refers to properties repossessed for the recoupment of

other loans.

Property repossessed from loans recovery

At 31 December, the accumulated amount of
impairments for foreclosed properties amounted to
27.3 M.€, which corresponded to 18% of the gross
balance sheet value. Accordingly, the net balance sheet
value of these properties was 126.3 M.€, which
compares with their market value of 153.5 M.€.

Amounts in M.€

2014 2015
Home Other Total Home Other Total
Gross amount 1 72.7 88.5 161.2 59.9 93.6 153.5
Impairment 2 34 23.9 27.4 2.6 24.7 27.3
Cover by impairments [=2/1]| 3 5% 27% 17% 4% 26% 18%
Net amount [=1-2]] 4 69.3 64.5 133.9 57.3 69.0 126.3
Market value 5 85.9 76.5 162.4 71.4 82.1 153.5

1) Performing loans associated with loans in arrears.

2) The amount outstanding was considered when this is lower than the fair value of the real guarantees.

3) Include liens over bank deposits and securities.

Table 76

4) In the calculation of impairments in mortgage loans in respect of which a legal recovery process has been initiated, the value of fixed properties (deemed) is the execution amount, which

is less than the respective market value.
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COUNTRY RISK

Management process

Country risk is very similar in terms of its respective
effects to counterparty risk and is associated with the
changes or specific turmoil of a political, economic or
financial nature in those places where the counterparties
operate (or, more rarely, in a third country where the
business transaction takes place), which impede full
compliance with the contract, irrespective of the
counterparties’ will or capacity. The “country-risk”
designation is also used to classify the counterparty risk
involved in loans to state entities, given the similarity
between the analysis methods for country risk and those
for a state’s counterparty risk (sovereign risk).

The Board of Directors’ Executive Committee approves
the list of countries in respect of which country-risk
exposure is authorised and the respective limits. Eligible
countries considered are large-sized emerging markets
which embrace market economy principles, are open to
international trade and are of strategic importance within
the framework of international politics.

Country risk exposure
Exposure net of guarantees at 31 December 2015

Subsidiaries (Angola
and Mozambique)

Countries from
group |l

Euro zone

Other countries
group |

Other EU
countries e

Chart 82

In addition, the operations defined as eligible are
short-term financing for external trade, the loans of
certain multilateral banks, certain medium-term
operations with political risk hedging or which, due to
their structuring, are not subject to transfer risk.

Country-risk exposure assessment

Country risk exposure

At 31 December 2015 Amounts in M.€

Rating Gross Personal Tangi- Exposure

exposure guaran- ble net of

Country tees gua- guarantees
rantees

Countries from Group |

Euro Zone 2 968.4 79.4 (102.6) 2 945.3
AAA 426.0 69.8 (17.9) 477.9
AA 219.7 0.0 (9.2 210.6
A 35.2 (03) (0.1) 34.8
BBB 22874 9.9 (75.4) 22220
cce 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1
Other EU countries 196.9 0.0 (4.9 192.0
AAA 6.8 0.0 (0.1) 6.8
AA 185.5 0.0 (4.9 180.7
A 4.5 0.0 0.0 4.5
BBB 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.1
Switzerland AAA 111.2 19 (1.7) 111.3
USA AAA 57.7 00 (2.0 55.7
Other 329 1.7 (0.6) 34.0
Offshores 68.8 0.0 (0.6) 68.2
3436.0 83.1(112.5) 3 406.6

Countries from Group Il
Brazil BB 20.0 0.0 (0.8 19.2
Angola B 220.7  (127.9) (15.0) 77.8
Mexico BBB 52.7 0.0 0.0 52.7
Mozambique B 58.7 20 (6.0 54.7
Venezuela cce 129 0.0 (3.5 9.4
Cape Verde B 81.2 (78.7) 0.0 2.5
South Africa BBB 7.1 0.0 (1.0 6.2
Other 5.6 0.0 (04) 5.2
459.1 (204.6) (26.7) 227.8

Subsidiaries

Angola (BFA) 428.6 0.0 0.0 428.6
Mozambique (BCI) 64.3 0.0 0.0 64.3
492.9 0.0 0.0 492.9
Total 4387.9 (121.5) (139.1) 4 127.3
Table 77

Individual evaluation of each country’s risk is performed
with recourse to external ratings, external studies (IIF and
others) and internal reports prepared by the Finance
Division.

The exposure to country / sovereign risk via trading

activity is included in the section dealing with market
risks — trading.

Report | Risk management 127



MARKET RISKS - TRADING POSITIONS
Management process

Market or price risk (interest rates, foreign exchange
rates, equity prices, commodity prices and other) is
defined as the possibility of incurring losses due to
unexpected variations in the price of financial
instruments or operations.

The trading positions are managed autonomously by
traders and kept within the exposure limits by market or
products, fixed and revised periodically. There are
different exposure limits including overall VaR limits set
by the Global Risks Executive Committee and later
distributed autonomously amongst the various books, by
the divisions involved in trading activities. In addition,
stop-loss limits are defined.

As a general rule, the Bank abstains from any open
positions in options sales.

Market risk exposure assessment — trading

In evaluating exposure under trading operations, this
function is carried out on a daily basis which calculates
the VaR — Value at Risk — according to standardised
assumptions, which as a rule are consistent with the
BIS’s set of recommendations. Exposure arising from
options is controlled by recourse to specific models. The
information generated by the risk evaluation and control
system is available online to authorised users.

The VaR figures found show that the trading exposure
levels are not material.

Market risk in trading books* Amounts in M.€

2004 2015
Average Maximum Average Maximum
VaR VaR VaR VaR
Interest rate risk 0.8 2.8 1.3 4.3
Currency risk 1.2 1.7 0.2 2.5
Equities risk 2.3 3.8 1.8 4.8
Commodities risk 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Table 78

MARKET RISKS — STRUCTURAL INTEREST RATE RISK
POSITION

Management process

The risk management of structural interest rate positions
(excluding trading activity) of up to one year has been
delegated to the Finance Division within limits fixed by
the Executive Committee or the Global Risks Executive
Committee.

Long-term structural positions are managed in
accordance with the rules laid down by the Executive
Committee or the Global Risks Executive Committee.

Structural interest rate risk exposure assessment

The assessment of treasury positions (short term) and
structural risk positions relating to interest rates (long
term) is based on gap schedules. In addition, several
stress tests are conducted.

At 31 December 2015, the repricing gap (of interest
rates) accumulated up to 1 year of EUR was 7 433 M.€.

Interest rate risk?
Structural position, at 31 December 2015

Until 1 1-2 2-5 5-7 7-15 >15
year years years years years Yyears

Amounts in M.€

Accumulated gap 7433 7420 7906 8003 8212 8260
Table 79

The Bank is structurally exposed to the risk of a fall in
interest rates. A classical stress test to a 50 b.p. change
in interest rates points to a loss in net interest income of
33 M.€%,

MARKET RISKS - STRUCTURAL POSITION OF
EXCHANGE RATE RISK

Management process

The management of currency risk on structural positions
resulting from business dealings with the Bank’s
Customers is delegated to the Finance Division, within
the operating bands set at senior level. As a general rule,
the Bank seeks substantial hedging of these currency
positions.

1) Potential maximum loss, with a 99% confidence level, resulting from an unfavourable trend in prices, indices and interest rates over a time span of two weeks, considering in the
calculation of overall risk the effect of the correlation of returns. A normal distribution of returns is assumed. Maximum VaR extracted from daily calculations.

2) Customer sight deposits were considered as being not sensitive to the interest rate.

3) This standard test entails the simulation of a 50-basis points drop in the rates of assets and liabilities sensitive to the interest rate on the repricing date and taking into account a one-year

time horizon.
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The structural currency positions resulting from
investments or participating interests are managed in
accordance with the directives laid down by the Executive
Committee. “Hedging” or “non hedging” are options to
be decided upon depending on the prospects surrounding
the direction of foreign exchange rates and the risk level

Evaluation of the exposure to structural foreign exchange
rate risk

In the foreign exchange domain, BFA's consolidation in the
Group gives rise to a position in kwanza of an expressive
amount. The positions in the remaining currencies are of
minor significance. A stress test to the structural position
(depreciation of 30% in Kwanza and 20% in the remaining
currencies) reveals a capital at risk of 192 M.€.

involved.

Foreign exchange rate risk
Structural position, at 31 December of 2015

Amounts in M.€

Type of financial instrument

Assets and liabilities by currency

EUR usD AKZ Other Total
Assets
Cash and liquid assets 1346 510 1 440 44 3340
Financial assets held for dealing and at fair value
through profit and loss 2974 301 389 10 3675
Financial assets available for sale 3621 1157 1731 0 6 509
Loans and advances to credit institutions 578 511 139 1 1230
Loans and advances to Customers 22 474 885 835 88 24 282
Investments held to maturity 22 0 0 0 22
Hedging derivatives 89 2 0 0 91
Tangible and intangible assets 91 0 133 1 224
Investments in associates and jointly-controlled entities 146 0 0 64 210
Tax assets 411 0 8 1 420
Other assets 606 46 12 6 669
32 358 3412 4 687 216 40 673
Liabilities
Resources of central banks 1521 0 0 0 1521
Financial liabilities held for dealing 267 2 26 0 294
Credit institutions' resources 1214 97 0 1 1312
Clients' resources and other loans 19 758 3912 4 310 197 28178
Debts evidenced by certificates 1073 4 0 0 1077
Financial liabilities associated to transferred assets 690 0 0 0 690
Hedging derivatives 161 0 0 0 162
Provisions 75 21 3 1 100
Technical provisions 3663 0 0 0 3663
Tax liabilities 61 0 31 0 92
Other subordinated liabilities and participating units 70 0 0 0 70
Other liabilities! 605 31 37 3 677
Foreign exchange operations pending settlement
and forward position operations 1292 (884) (344) (60) 4
30 449 3184 4 064 141 37 838
Shareholders’ Equity
Shareholders' equity attributable to BPI shareholders 1918 9) 429 69 2 407
Non-controlling interests 2 0 427 0 429
1920 9) 855 69 2 835
Structural position (62) (596) (5)
Stress test (12) (179) (1) (192)
Table 80

1) Excludes the amounts recorded in Foreign exchange operations pending settlement and forward position operations.
Note: Stress test on the currency structural position (excluding assets and liabilities held for dealing and at fair value through profit and loss). The stress test considers the impact of a 20%
positive change in foreign exchange rates, except with regard to the Kwanza, in which case a 30% change was taken into account.
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LIQUIDITY RISK

Management process

Liquidity risk is monitored in its various facets: i) in the
ability to monitor the growth in the asset and to satisfy
treasury needs without incurring abnormal losses; ii) in
the maintenance of tradable assets in portfolio; iii) in the
compliance with regulatory ratios.

At overall level, the liquidity-risk management strategy is
the responsibility of the Executive Committee and
executed by the Group’s Finance Division, founded on the
constant vigilance of the exposure indicators and the
object of close monitoring by the Board of Director’s
Financial Risks Committee.

Insofar as the asset portfolio is concerned, the various
managers keep a constant watch over the transaction
levels of the various instruments in accordance with a
variety of indicators (BPI's market share, number of days
to unwind positions, size and volatility of spreads, etc.),
although always observing the operating limits set for
each market.

Liquidity and funding

Liquidity management in the prevailing economic and
financial environment was one of the principal priorities
during 2015. The equilibrium in the liquidity situation
was the dominant aspect:

= Customer resources constitute the principal source of
funding. The transformation of deposits into loans ratio
was situated at 107% and 85%, respectively in
domestic operations and in consolidated terms;

= the Bank maintained at 1.5 th.M. € the amount of
funds raised from the ECB at the close of 2015;

= the Bank had at the end of the year a portfolio of public
debt of Eurozone countries amounting to 3.2 th.M.€, of
which 1.4 th.M.€ in Treasury Bills issued by the
Portuguese Republic, 0.4 th.M.€ issued by the Italian
Republic and 0.4 th.M.€ issued by the Kingdom of
Spain. This portfolio is fully discountable at the ECB for
liquidity raising operations. This portfolio decreased
over the year by some of 0.7 th.M.€.
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= the portfolio of assets eligible for funding from the
Eurosystem stood at 8.1 th.M.€ at the end of the year.
Of this figure, the amount not yet utilised and the
therefore capable of being converted into immediate
liquidity at the ECB was 5.6 th.M.€;

= the net refinancing requirements of medium and
long-term debt in the next few years are relatively
minor: 0.4 th.M.€ from 2016 to 2021. It is also worth
pointing out that there will be a significant release of
liquidity in 2019 through the redemption of 0.8
thousand M.€ of Portuguese and Italian medium and
long-term bonds held by BPI in portfolio.

Short-term gap

BPI's short-term funding Gap (domestic operations)
passed from -1.9 th.M.€ in December 2014 to

-1.5 th.M.€ in December 2015. The principal factors
explaining this behaviour were:

= the positive change in the commercial Gap of 0.6
th.M.€. This change is explained by the maintenance of
the resources taken from Customers and by some
reduction in the loan portfolio;

= the sale of public debt in portfolio, namely Portuguese,
of 0.5 th.M.€ and of corporate bonds;

= the decrease of 0.3 M.€ in the Treasury Bills portfolio
and its diversification;

= the repurchase of own issues of 1.0 th.M.€.

Trend in short-term funding GAP

Amounts in M.€

GAP at 31 Dec.14 (1918)
Change in commercial liquidity GAP 577
Redemption of own debt (975)
New debt issued 0
Redemption of bonds held 68
Sales of Treasury Bonds 511
Change in the Treasury Bills’ portfolio 292
GAP at 31 Dec.15 (1 446)

Table 81



At the end of 2015, short-term funding was broken down
as follows:

= net creditor position on the money market of 107 M.€
and security repos of 39 M.€;

= funding from the ECB of 1.5 th.M.€.

Financing of short term

liquidity position Amounts in M.€

2014 2015
Short term lending

Loans to credit institutions 1 463 596
=11 2 463 596

Short term borrowing
Money market 3 (825) (489)
Repos 4 (39) (39)
[=3+4]| 5 (865) (527)
Euro commercial paper 6 (16) (0)

Funding from the ECB
(net of deposits) 7 (1500) (1514)
[=25t07]| 8 (2381) (2042)
Total short term gap [=2+8]| 9 (1918) (1 446)

Table 82

ECB funding

The Bank had at the end of 2015 1 514 M.€ in funds
raised from the ECB. This figure corresponds to the sum
of the drawings of 410 M.€ and 1 109 M.€ made in the
1%t and 2" phases of the 4-year fixed-rate operation
launched by the ECB at the close of 2014 in order to
foster the granting of loans to the economy, with maturity
in 2018.

Portfolio of assets eligible for Eurosystem funding

At the end of 2015, BPI had at its disposal a portfolio of
assets eligible for the Eurosystem worth 8 102 M.€
(figures net of price appreciation and haircuts).

Taking into account the portfolio utilisations on that date
for repo operations, for the collateralisation of various
obligations and for funding from the ECB, BPI had at its
disposal the means to raise additional funding from the
ECB of 5 573 M.€.

1) Total eligible assets, net of price appreciation and haircuts and before utilisation.
2) Assets given as collateral to entities other than the ECB.

Assets eligible for the Eurosystem Amounts in M.€

2014 2015

Total eligible assets! 1 9 394 8 102
of which: assets given as collateral? 2 1463 1 007
Net eligible assets [=1-2]| 3 7 931 7 094
Used as collateral in funding with ECB 4 1516 1521
Available eligible assets [=3-4]| 5 6 415 5573
Table 83

The reduction of the portfolio of eligible assets during
2015 essentially reflects the sale of public debt which
occurred during the year, namely Portuguese securities in
the amount of some 500 M.€.

Assets eligible for the Net financing with the ECB

Eurosystem funding

th.M.€ th.M.€
18
11
94
55
55 8.1
70 9.4% 9.4%
34
0 429 35%
37%
42
12 11 12 13 14 15
Chart 83 Chart 84

= Available assets (not used) M Net financing with the ECB
Assets used in: — as % of consolidated total
B Financing with ECB assets
W Repo operations

Report | Risk management 131



Outlook for the liquidity situation in 2016

The expansionist monetary policy implemented by the
ECB, in both the medium-term financing issues and in
the purchase of public-debt issues and other bonds, will
continue and will possibly be bolstered by other
measures.

Despite this background, the Bank should not need to
resort to market funding in order to finance its activity,
continuing to give preference to the funding of its assets
through the medium of Customer deposits.

The ECB will make available up till June 2016 access to
funds maturing in 2018 within the ambit of the TLTRO at
fixed costs and the same rate as the benchmark rate of
0.05%, to which the Bank has the option to resort to in
the event of need.

Between 2016 and 2021 the net medium and long-term
refinancing needs arising in that period are 0.4 M.€ and
result from the redemption of own debt in the amount of
1.3 th.M.€ on the one hand, and the redemption of
bonds in portfolio of 0.9 th.M.€. on the other.

In 2016 the maturity of own medium-term issues
amounts to 0.4 th. M.€.
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BPI medium and long-term debt repayments net of bonds
portfolio redemptions

(+) Net cash inflows
796

(-) Net refinancing needs

) (203)
(687)
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Repayment of medium W o
and long-term debt (420) (215)
issued by BPI (724)

Bonds portfolio redemptions
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OPERATIONAL RISKS

Management process

Operational risk — defined as the risk of incurring
financial losses provoked by deficiencies (shortcomings)
in the definition or execution of procedures, failures in
the information systems or as a consequence of external
factors — is inherent to the activities of all institutions.

The BPI Group has implemented an operational-risk
management model whose ultimate objective is to
maximise the security, resilience and efficiency of the
management of the assets under its custody and the
service rendered to the Customer.

This model provides for the evaluation of exposure to
operational risks, the mitigation of the main risks and
their permanent monitoring, while at the same time being
reviewed periodically.

The evaluation and monitoring of risk exposure is carried
out in various forms, including: identification of the
probability and potential impact of the risks, assessment
of the effectiveness of the controls implemented,
monitoring of operational-risk events by frequency, impact
and type of risk.

The operational risks are identified and evaluated based
on a self-assessment basis, being the responsibility of the
risk managers of each one of the Divisions. They are also
responsible for the identification of risk-mitigation
measures and for ensuring their implementation.

Following good market practices, operational-risk
management involves the Group’s different units: the first
line of defence is secured by the different Divisions, the
second line is assured by the central risk-management
unit integrated within the Organisation and Quality
Division, and by specific operational-risk management
Committees, namely, the Operational Risk Committee, the
Business Risk Committee and the Information Security
Committee. Finally, the Audit ensures an independent
vision of the operational-risk management, thereby
functioning as the third line of defence.

Risk occurrences are recorded and analysed with a view
to identifying their respective cause. Whenever important,
mitigation measures are defined and implemented.

The reporting lines laid down ensure that the main risks
and occurrences are analysed by the appropriate
managerial levels.

Operational risk events

The recording of operational risk occurrences allows
accessing process efficiency and the decentralization of
this process fosters a greater awareness of this type of
risk.

The distribution of the occurrences registered in 2015,
by type of cause, was as follows!:

Events of operational risk in 2015
Breakdown of financial impact by type of cause

Processes® Systems®

3%4%

External causes?

Chart 86
Events of operational risk in 2015
Breakdown of frequency by type of cause
Processes* Systems®

External causes?

4% 6%

Chart 87

1) These data are valid on the date of the compilation of the report, being subject to alterations according to the evolution of each process.

2) External criminal activity, failures in the provision of contracted services and natural disasters.
3) Human failure in the execution of tasks and unauthorized intentional employee behaviour.

4) Failures in the definition of policies and / or procedures.
5) Failures in IT and communication systems.

Report | Risk management 133



Business continuity

The Business Continuity Plans of each one of the Group’s
Bodies detail the BPI’s response strategy for the incidents
capable of jeopardising the security of persons and other
assets or of causing business interruption, laying down
the alternative procedures and resources for guaranteeing
the continuity of critical activities.

These plans and the information underpinning them are
located outside the bank at redundancy systems,
available and accessible to the respective managers at
any moment and at any place.

2015 saw the updating of the business continuity plans,

introducing refinements that enhanced the efficacy of the
response to unforeseen incidents. The operability of their
execution was checked.

The conditions for the preparation and functioning of the
contingency premises in Lisbon and Oporto were similarly
reinforced.

Special importance was given to improving the
management and communication processes in response
to incidents that affect the conduct of normal activity.

There are also alternative technological platforms for
information and communication systems, guaranteeing
the Bank’s functioning even under contingency
conditions.

The technological renovation of these platforms which
support BPI’s critical activities was concluded during
2015. The Data Processing Centre located at BPI's
premises was migrated to an IMB DPC, which is certified
in accordance with the international standards which
regulate the operation and management of Data Centres.
Work was started on the final phase of the total coverage
of local contingency solutions to the critical platforms
and which will be completed in the 1% quarter of 2016.
These solutions will significantly mitigate all the IT risks
associated with the IT platforms and guarantee the
Continuity of Operations Plan for the activities defined as
critical.
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Information security

The existence of operations’ teams dedicated to
Information Security ensures permanent monitoring, both
as regards the aspect of risk evaluation and the
implementation of mitigation measures and in terms of
the response to any incidents.

The management of information-security risks is
integrated into the management model for the operational
risks with the closest link to the information systems.

In 2015 continuity was given to the reinforcement of the
security-monitoring systems and the means deployed in
the detection and response to computer-related threats,
with particular emphasis on the aspects relating to cyber
attacks and to the security of payments made via the
internet. Special emphasis was also placed on the early
detection of vulnerability mechanisms by the integration
of the verification and control systems into the
applicational development cycle. Work also continued on
strengthening the mechanisms for controlling access to
the execution of operations, to information and to the
critical systems.

Employees and Customers are continually kept informed
and made aware of good practices in information security
and internet and email utilisation.

LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE RISKS

In the specific domain of Operational Risks — legal risks —
there is the possibility of incurring unexpected losses
stemming from shortcomings in the analysis of the legal
framework applicable at a given moment to the contracts /
positions to be established or from an alteration to the
same legal framework.

Special attention is paid in the realm of legal risks to the
analysis of the legal framework and to the identification
of any regulatory shortcomings; to the analysis of the
prospects of changes to the legal framework and their
consequences; to the clarification of the nature of
contractual relationships and the interpretation given to
them by the counterparties; the analysis of products,
their legal situation, centralisation of communications to
the supervision authorities and the drawing up of the
respective processes for submission to such authorities;
and to the identification / proposals of measures capable
of reducing eventual litigation risks.



Compliance risk encompasses, besides the risk of legal
default arising from a mistake or incorrect transposition
into internal rules of legal provisions, the risk of market
abuse and the risk of money laundering and financing of
terrorism.

The scale of the Compliance risk which translates into
legal or regulatory sanctions, financial or reputational loss
as a consequence of the failure to comply with the
application of laws, regulations, code of conduct and
good banking practices, is assured and monitored by
means of:

= the regular internal dissemination of news of a legal
nature (national and European Union standards and
regulations, as well as public consultations and other
legislative initiatives) by the principal interlocutors of
each division affected;

= the Compliance Division’s assignment of the monitoring
of the analysis of its impact on the Bank and the need
for the transposition / updating of the internal rules to
the Division where the new legal disposition in question
has the most relevance.

This procedure is complemented by the Compliance
Division’s regular monitoring of the adequacy of the
internal rules vis-a-vis the applicable legal provisions and
the permanent monitoring of the transposition to the
internal rulebook of new pieces of legislation, as referred
to above.

As concerns the risk of market abuse, Banco BPI, as a
complement to the provisions dealing with this subject
contained in the Code of Conduct, defined in an internal
regulation in a very stringent and detailed manner the
rules and limitations applicable to personal operations
realised by key persons, ensuring: i) the existence of a
permanently updated list of the universe of those persons
who should be regarded as being key persons; ii) as well
as the communication to those people of their status and
of the limitations stemming therefrom with respect to the
personal operations involving financial instruments
realised by them; iii) and, finally, the recording of all the
personal operations realised by the key persons.

The BPI Group also has a policy for the prevention of
money laundering and the financing of terrorism and has
procedures implemented at each one of the entities
making up the Group to manage this risk in an
appropriate manner. These procedures consist of a
constant monitoring of all the transactions realised via
the accounts and in a regular filtering of the persons and
entities who integrate at any moment the official lists of
terrorists and / or subject to restrictive measures with the
ultimate object of identifying any suspect. Several
communications were made in 2015 of suspicious
situations to the competent official entities.

Moreover, BPI has a policy for identifying and accepting
Customers, which makes provision for the possibility of
the refusal of the establishment of any banking
relationship, namely in cases where there exists
incomplete identification details or in which the purpose
and / or the nature of an economic, financial or
partnership relationship is unclear. The opening of
anonymous or numbered accounts is not allowed, as well
as the establishment of direct or indirect relations with
“shell banks”. In 2015 the updating of its Customers’
identification details was one of BPI’s chief concerns
within the context of the prevention of money laundering.

BPI provided its Employees training in the prevention of

money laundering and the terrorism financing, using the
e-learning channel and classroom training.
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ADOPTION OF THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE FINANCIAL STABILITY FORUM AND OF THE COMMITTEE OF
EUROPEAN BANKING SUPERVISORS RELATING TO THE TRANSPARENCY OF INFORMATION AND VALUATION OF

ASSETS

The Bank of Portugal, through the circular-letters 97 / 08 /
DSBDR of 3 December 2008 and 58 / 09 / DSBDR of 5
August 2009, has recommended that, in the accounting
reporting, a separate chapter or a specific annex is
prepared as part of the Annual and Interim Reports,
designed to respond to the recommendations of the CEBS
and of the FSF, taking into account the principle of
proportionality and following the questionnaire presented

as an annex to the Bank of Portugal’s circular-letter 46 /
08 / DSBDR.

In order to comply with the Bank of Portugal’s
recommendation, the present chapter provides a response
to the aforesaid questionnaire, using cross-references to
the more detailed information presented in the Report
and Accounts for 2015.

Recommendation Summary

Cross-reference for Annual Report 2015

. BUSINESS MODEL
1. Description of the business model

DR - Financial and business structure, page.13.

2. Description of strategies and objectives

DR — Presentation of the report, page 7; Financial review, page 70; Risk
Management, page 110.

3. Description of the importance of the operations carried out and the
respective contribution to business

DR — Domestic Commercial Banking, page 41; Bancassurance, page
57: Asset management, page 58; Investment banking, page 60;
International activity page 63; Financial review, page 70;

NFS - 3. Segment reporting, page 170.

4. Description of the type of activities undertaken

5. Description of the objective and extent of the institution’s involvement
relating to each activity undertaken

DR — Domestic Commercial Banking page 41; Bancassurance, page 57;
Asset management, page 58; Investment banking, page 60; International
activity page 63; Background to operations, page 31; Financial review,
page 70; Risk Management, page 110.

1. RISK AND RISK MANAGEMENT
6. Description of the nature and extent of the risks incurred in relation to
the activities carried out and the instruments utilised

DR — Risk Management, page 110
NFS - 4.49. Financial Risks, page 239 and following.

7. Description of major risk-management practices in operations

DR — Risk Management, page 110;
NFS — 4.49. Financial Risks, page 239 and following;
CGovR — IlI. Internal Control and Risk Management, page 333.

11l. IMPACT OF THE FINANCIAL TURBULENCE PERIOD ON
RESULTS
8. Qualitative and quantitative description of the results

DR — Financial review, page 70.

9. Breakdown of the “write-downs” / losses by types of products and
instruments affected by the period of turbulence

NFS — 4.5. Available-for-sale financial assets, page 180, 4.7. Loans to
Customers, page 187, 4.22. Provisions and impairments, page 213, 4.41.
Net gains / losses from financial operations, page 232; 4.49 Financial
Risks, page 239.

10. Description of the reasons and factors responsible for the impact
suffered

DR — Financial review, page 70; Background to operations, page 31.

11. Comparison of the i) impacts between (relevant) periods and ii)
financial statements before and after the turbulent period

DR - Financial review, page 70.

12. Breakdown of the write-downs between realised and unrealised
amounts

DR — Financial review, page 70;

NFS — 4.5. Available-for-sale financial assets, page 180; 4.7. Loans to
Customers, page 187; 4.41. Net gains / losses from financial operations,
page 232 and 4.22. Provisions and impairments, page 213.

13. Description of the influence of the financial turbulence on the
behaviour of Banco BPI shares

DR — Banco BPI Share, page 138.

14. Disclosure of the maximum loss risk

DR — Risk Management, page 110;
NFS — 4.49. Financial Risks, page 239 and following.

15. Disclosure of the impact that the trend in spreads associated with the
institution’s own liabilities had on earnings

DR — Financial review, pages 84 and 102.
The Bank did not revalue its liabilities.

DR - Directors’ Report; NFS — Notes to the financial statements; CGovR — Corporate governance report.
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Recommendation Summary

Cross-reference for Annual Report 2015

IV. EXPOSURE TYPES AND LEVELS AFFECTED BY THE TURBULENT
PERIOD
16. Nominal value (or amortised cost) and fair value of exposures

NFS — 4.49. Financial Risks, page 239 and following and 4.5 Available-
for-sale financial assets, page 180.

17. Information about credit risk mitigation and respective effects on
existing exposures

DR — Risk Management, page 110 and following.

18. Detailed disclosure of exposures

DR — Risk Management, page 110;
NFS - 4.49. Financial Risks, page 239 and following, 4.5. Available-for-
sale financial assets, page 180 and 4.7. Loans to Customers, page 187.

19. Movements which occurred in the exposures between the relevant
reporting periods and the underlying reasons for these variations (sales,
write-downs, purchases, etc.)

DR — Financial review, pages. 97 and 107.

20. Explanations about exposures which have not been consolidated (or
which have been recognised during the crisis) and the associated
reasons

The BPI Group consolidates all the exposures in which it has significant
control or influence, as envisaged in IFRS 10,11, IAS 28 and IFRS 3. No
changes were made to the BPI Group’s consolidation scope as a
consequence of the turbulent period in the financial markets.

21. Exposure to “mono-line” insurers and quality of insured assets

At 31 December 2015, BPI’s exposure to mono-line insurers was totally
indirect and stemmed from the existence of a portfolio position, the
interest and principal of which were unconditionally guaranteed by this
type of company. There were no losses worth noting, given that this
security was not in default. At the end of 2015, BPI exposure to mono-
line insurers amounted to 1.4 M€ (book value).

V. ACCOUNTING AND VALUATION POLICIES
22. Classification of transactions and structured products for accounting
purposes and the respective accounting treatment

NFS — 2.3. Financial assets and liabilities, page 157; 2.3.3.
Available-for-sale financial assets, page 158; 2.3.4. Loans and other
receivables, page 159; 4.21. Financial liabilities associated with
transferred assets, page 211.

23. Consolidation of Special Purpose Entities (SPE) and other vehicles
and their reconciliation with the structured products affected by the
turbulent period

The vehicles through which Banco BPI’s debt securitisation operations
are effected are recorded in the consolidated financial statements
according to the BPI Group’s continued involvement in these operations,
determined on the basis of the percentage of the equity interest held of
the respective vehicles.

24. Detailed disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments

NFS — 4.49. Financial Risks, page 239 and following.

25. Description of the modelling techniques utilised for valuing financial
instruments

NFS — 2.3. Financial assets and liabilities, page 157 and 4.49. Financial
Risks, page 239 and following.

VI. OTHER IMPORTANT DISCLOSURE ASPECTS
26. Description of disclosure policies and principles which are used in
financial reporting

CGovR — IV. Investor Relations, page 336.

DR - Directors’ Report; NFS — Notes to the financial statements; CGovR — Corporate governance report.
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Banco BPI Shares

STOCK MARKET PERFORMANCE

Banco BPI shares closed 2015 at 1.091 euro, posting a
gain of 6% over the period. The Portuguese PSI-20 index,
after having dropped 27% in the preceding year, recovered
11% in 2015 in spite of the downward trajectory that
started in the second quarter of the year. The European
banking sector, represented by the DJ Euro Stoxx Banks,
shed 3% in 2015.

At the macro level, the Chinese economy’s deceleration,
the continuing drop in the price of crude oil, the risk of
deflation and concerns about growth in Europe, as well as
the tensions in Ukraine and Russia, contributed to the
widespread retreat in the equities markets with effect from
the second quarter of the year.

In February CaixaBank made public the preliminary
announcement of a takeover bid for the shares of Banco

BPI at a price of 1.329 euro per share, an offer that it
later retracted in June.

50%

25%

BPI's share price during 2015 was relatively affected by
the uncertainty surrounding the Bank’s capacity to find a
solution to the situation of having surpassed the large
exposures limit triggered by the loss with effect from
January 2015 of the supervisory equivalence status that
Angola enjoyed up until the ECB’s pronouncement
relating to this issue.

In the second half of the year, the uncertainties regarding
the final outcome of the sale of Novo Banco, within the
framework of the resolution measure applied to Banco
Espirito Santo in 2014, and the application of a
resolution measure at Banif, compounded the concerns
about the final obligations of the Resolution Fund and via
this route, those of the participating financial institutions.

53132
1.091€

Price change (%)

— Banco BPI -16 +6
—PSI-20 -27 +11
— DJ Stoxx Banks -3 -3
Liquidity (M.€)

Annual trading volume 1068.3 | 707.4
Daily average trading volume| 42 28

-25%

31 Dec. 14 31 Mar. 15

Codes and tickers:

ISIN and Euronext code: PTBPIOAMO04
Reuters: BBPI.LS

Bloomberg: BPI PL

1) On 14 January 2016.

30 Jun. 15

182.6

DJ STOXX BANKS

30 Sep. 15 31 Dec. 15

Chart 88

Listing on the Euronext Lisbon
Index weighting (31 Dec. 15)
PSI-20: 2.96%; #11

Next 150: 0.67%*

Note: at 31 December 2015 Banco BPI's share capital stood at 1 293 063 324.98 euro, represented by 1 456 924 237 ordinary, nominative and dematerialised shares, with no per value.

All the shares were admitted for dealing on the Euronext market.
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Banco BPI shares
Selected indicators

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Data per share (€)*
Cash flow after taxation 0.461 0.510 0.259 0.074 0.296
Net profit (0.284) 0.216 0.048 (0.115) 0.163
Book value 0.467 1.235 1.389 1.467 1.659
Weighted average no. of shares (in millions) 1003.8 1154.6 1383.7 1422.3 1450.4
Market valuation indicators
Price as a multiple of:
Cash flow after taxation (PCF) 1.0 19 4.7 13.8 3.7
Net profit (P/E) (1.7) 4.4 25.2 (8.9) 6.7
Book value (PBV) 1.0 0.8 0.9 0.7 0.7
Earnings yield (23.0%) 45.8% 5.1% (9.5%) 15.9%
Stock market capitalisation (M.€)? 476 1.311 1.690 1.495 1.590
Table 84

TREASURY SHARES

Banco BPI manages a portfolio of own shares created for

referred to below were realised in 2015. At the end of
2015, Banco BPI held 5 947 872 treasury shares (0.41%

the purpose of executing the variable-remuneration of capital).
scheme (Portuguese initials RVA) for Employees and
executive directors. In this regard, the transactions
Treasury shares transactions in 2015 Amount and price in euro
No. shares Acquisition Disposal Total turnover No. shares
held (amount) held
(31 Dec. Quantity Amount  Average Quantity Amount  Average (31 Dec.
14) Price Price 15)3
Banco BPI* 6 181 589 1025 1 650 1.61 234 742 283 365 1.21 235 767 5947 872
Banco Portugués
de Investimento 0 0 - 0 0 - 0 0
Total 6 181 589 1025 1 650 1.61 234 742 283 365 1.21 235767 5947 872
% of share capital 0.42% 0.0001% 0.02% 0.02% 0.41%
Table 85

1) Amounts adjusted for capital increases with cash contribution in June 2012 and through the incorporation of reserves in May 2011.
2) Earnings per share recorded in the year divided by the BPI share price at 31 December of the preceding year.
3) The balance of treasury shares at the end of December 2015 does not include:
— 344 222 shares awarded under the condition subsequent as part of the RVA scheme but not yet freely disposable. The transfer of the ownership of the shares awarded under the RVA
scheme is wholly effected on the award date, but their availability is dependent on employees continuing to work for the BPI Group, with the result that for accounting purposes, the
shares remain in Banco BPI’s treasury shares portfolio up until the date they become freely disposable, but whose reporting of transactions to the CMVM and to the market occurs at

the time of the award;

— 148 538 shares held in the securities portfolios of the insurance capitalization unit links of BPI Vida e Pensdes. The other subsidiaries whose management is controlled by Banco BPI
did not own any Banco BPI shares at the end of December 2015.

4) Includes only over the counter transactions.
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Rating

In 2015 S&P revised upwards the rating given to the
Portuguese Republic from BBu! to BB+u', on the basis of
the country’s economic recovery and budget
consolidation. Moody’s and Fitch maintained their
respective Bal and BB+ ratings during 2015.

The rating grades attributed to the banking sector
reflected the new methodologies utilised by the rating
agencies and the approval of the new Directive dealing
with banking resolution.

The ratings grades given to Banco BPI remained stable
during the year. The Bank’s current long / short term
ratings and respective Outlook are as follows:

= Moody’s: Ba3 / Not Prime with Outlook under revision;
= S&P: BB- / B with Negative Outlook;

= Fitch: BB / B with Stable Outlook.

) ) , STANDARD
FitchRatings Mooby’s &POOR’S

Banco BPI credit rating

Long term BB Ba3 BB-

Short term B Not prime B

Outlook Stable Under revision Negative

Individual rating Viability rating Baseline Credit Assessment Stand-alone credit

bb bl profile (SACP)

bb-

Collateralised senior debt

= Mortgage A3

= Public sector Baal

Non-collateralised senior debt Ba3 BB-

= Long term BB

= Short term B Not prime B

Subordinated debt BB- B2 B-

Subordinated junior debt B3

Commercial paper B Not prime B

Other short-term debt B Not prime B

Preference shares B Caal (hyb) CEE

Portuguese Republic sovereign risk’

Long term BB+ Bal BB+u

Short term B Not prime Bu

Outlook Stable Stable Stable

Fitch Ratings: rating decision on 19 May 2015. On 23 June 2015 Fitch Ratings reaffirmed the credit ratings (LT / ST) and attributed a stable Outlook.

Moody’s: rating decision on 28 March 2012. On 22 March 2016 Moody’s placed the ratings on review for downgrade.
Standard & Poor’s: rating decision on 14 February 2012. On 11 February 2016 Standard & Poor’s placed the long-term rating on Creditwatch with negative implications.

1) The ratings given by S&P to the Portuguese Republic are “u” — unsolicited.

140 Banco BPI | Annual Report 2015

Figure 4



Proposed application of results

E3BPI

Considering that:

a) in 2015, Banco BPI, S.A. reported in its consolidated accounts a net profit of 236 368 751 euro and, in its
individual accounts, a net profit of 183 751 180.31 euro;

b) Banco BPI's shareholders’ equity, as shown in its individual balance sheet as at 31 December 2015,
forming part of the report and accounts to be considered within the ambit of point 1 on the order of business
for the General Meeting to be held on 28 April 2016, includes an accumulated loss brought forward of
15 477 766.87 euro, stemming from the impact of the introduction of accounting standard interpretation
IFRIC 21 which was recorded in 2015;

c) In view of the current circumstances, and taking into account the objective of adopting a conservative and
prudent position with respect to the appropriation of the results for the year, it is considered appropriate that
the Bank should reinforce its own funds;

The Board of Directors, in light of the aforegoing, proposes:

1. That the net profit for 2015 as reported in Banco BPI’s individual accounts, should be appropriated as follows:

To Legal Reserve* 18 375 118.03 euro
To Other Reserves: 165 376 062.28 euro
Total: 183 751 180.31 euro

2. That with a view to covering the amount referred to in b) included in the caption “Retained earnings”, the
amount of 15 477 766.87 euro be transferred to it from the caption “Other reserves”.

Porto, 15 March 2016

The Board of Directors

* In terms of article 97(1) of the General Regime for Credit Institutions and Financial Companies.
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Final acknowledgements

E3BPI

BPI recorded of its best ever performances in 2015, as clearly borne out by the scale and quality of its results
and the principal risk and financial solidity indicators, both domestically and internationally. The Board of
Directors is grateful for the cooperation received from the Authorities, and recognises in the loyalty of its
Customers and in the professionalism of its Employees a decisive contribution to the results attained.

At the beginning of 2016 Tomaz Jervell renounced the office of member of the Board of Directors and member of
the Corporate Governance Committee, positions held since March 1987 and December 2006, respectively. For
the past 31 years, Tomaz Jervell has been part of BPI's founding shareholder nucleus, and has maintained since
then, in personal terms and through Auto Sueco and later the Nors Group, a permanent dedication to BPI, with
decisive involvement in essential moments of the institution’s history that fully justifies the very special gratitude
and tribute recorded here in the name of the members of all the governing bodies. His son, Tomés Jervell, chief
executive of the Nors Group, was co-opted to the Board of Directors on 27 January 2016 to fill the vacancy left
open, which decision will be submitted for ratification by the Shareholders at the General Meeting scheduled for
28 April 2016.

Allianz Europe Ltd., the entity elected as member of the Board of Directors at the Shareholders’ General Meeting
of 23 April 2014, nominated Carla Sofia Pereira Bambulo to exercise the respective functions following the
renunciation presented in January 2015 by Herbert Walter, who has been appointed by the German government
as President of the Federal Agency for Financial Market Stabilisation (FMSA). Appointed on 13 March 2015 by
the Board of Directors to the Corporate Governance Committee, Carla Bambulo is responsible for the Allianz SE’s
(the Allianz Group’s holding company) Iberian Peninsula and Latin America Business Division, so that BPI is
proud to count upon her expertise on the Board of Directors and on the Governance Committee.

Following the renunciation presented by the Board of Directors’ member Anténio Massanell Lavilla, Lluis Vendrell
Pi was co-opted to the position on 29 July 2015, a decision that was ratified by the Shareholders at the General
Meeting held on 5 February 2016. Lluis Vendrell's acknowledged skills and experience as jurist and manager of
CaixaBank S.A.’s Corporate Finance and Mergers and Acquisitions unit, enriches and strengthens the Board of
Directors team.

Porto, 29 March 2016

The Board of Directors
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2015
AND 2014 PROFORMA AND 1 JANUARY 2014 PROFORMA

(Translation of statements originally issued in Portuguese — note 5)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro)

31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 14 1 Jan. 14
Proforma Proforma
Notes Amounts before Impairment, Net Net Net
impairment, depreciation and
depreciation and amortisation
amortisation
ASSETS
Cash and deposits at central banks 4.1 2728 185 2728 185 1894 203 1372211
Deposits at other credit institutions 4.2 612 058 3 612 055 380475 469 487
Financial assets held for trading and
at fair value through profit or loss 43744 3674 604 3674 604 3017733 1317 558
Financial assets available for sale 4.5 6 628 939 119 551 6 509 388 7 525778 9 624 243
Loans and advances to credit institutions 4.6 1230 043 1 230 043 2 588 817 1886 070
Loans and advances to Customers 4.7 25 260 276 978 654 24 281 622 25 268 969 25965 133
Held to maturity investments 4.8 22417 22 417 88 382 136 877
Hedging derivates 4.4 91 286 91 286 148 693 194 043
Non-current assets held for sale 4.9 11 604
Investment properties 4.10 154 777 164 949
Other tangible assets 4.11 693 949 498 854 195 095 204 239 197 337
Intangible assets 4.12 123932 94 794 29 138 24 883 19 149
Investments in associated companies
and jointly controlled entities 4.13 210 447 210 447 212980 221 992
Tax assets 4.14 420 214 420 214 422 531 539 692
Other assets 4.15/4.28 698 269 29471 668 798 684 786 711671
Total assets 42 394 619 1721 327 40 673 292 42 628 850 42 820 412
LIABILITIES
Resources of central banks 4.16 1520 735 1561 185 4 140 068
Financial liabilities held for trading 417 /4.4 294 318 326 785 255 245
Resources of other credit institutions 4.18 1311791 1372 441 1453 249
Resources of Customers and other debts 4.19 28 177 814 28 134 617 25630473
Debt securities 4.20 1077 381 2238074 2 598 455
Financial liabilities relating to transferred assets 4.21 689 522 1047 731 1 387 296
Hedging derivatives 4.4 161 556 327 219 548 458
Provisions 4.22 99 864 107 333 124 037
Technical provisions 4.23 3663 094 4 151 830 2 689 768
Tax liabilities 4.24 92 050 42 630 57711
Contingent convertible subordinated bonds 4.25 920 433
Other subordinated debt and participating bonds 4.26 69 512 69 521 136 931
Other liabilities 4.2714.28 680 156 720 324 606 612
Total Liabilities 37 837 793 40 099 690 40 548 736
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Subscribed share capital 4.29 1293 063 1293 063 1 190 000
Other equity instruments 4.30 5194 5270 3414
Revaluation reserves 431 (87 564) (51 143) (362 336)
Other reserves and retained earnings 4.32 972 587 1 042 087 1025 154
(Treasury shares) 4.30 (12 797) (13 828) (17 090)
Consolidated net income of the BPI Group 4.47 236 369 (164 558) 67 015
Shareholders’ equity attributable to the shareholders of BPI 2 406 852 2110 891 1906 157
Non-controlling interest 4.33 428 647 418 269 365519
Total shareholders’ equity 2 835 499 2 529 160 2 271 676
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 40 673 292 42 628 850 42 820 412
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Guarantees given and other contingent liabilities 4.33 1828 781 2168711 2106771
Of which:
[Guarantees and sureties] [1 497 070] [1 826 825] [1 832 700]
[Others] [331 7111 [341 886] [274 071]
Commitments 4.33 3372509 3355940 3020 342

The Accountant
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these balance sheets.

The Board of Directors



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME FOR THE YEARS ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 2014 PROFORMA

(Translation of statements originally issued in Portuguese — note 5)

(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro)

Notes 31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 14
Proforma
Interest and similar income 1112987 1290 123
Interest and similar expenses (488 421) (804 795)
Financial margin (narrow sense) 4.35 624 566 485 328
Gross margin on unit links 4.36 12 967 5029
Income from equity instruments 4.37 4739 3612
Net commission relating to amortised cost 4.38 21118 20 484
Financial margin 663 390 514 453
Technical result of insurance contracts 4.39 31804 34 393
Commissions received 312974 322 588
Commissions paid (40 537) (47 637)
Other income, net 52 241 37 222
Net commission income 4.40 324 678 312173
Gain and loss on operations at fair value 200 258 157 903
Gain and loss on assets available for sale (6 031) (135 005)
Interest and financial gain and loss with pensions 413 1991
Net income on financial operations 4.41 194 640 24 889
Operating income 32423 33 236
Operating expenses (41 857) (44 428)
Other taxes (23 176) (17 010)
Net operating loss 4.42 (32 610) (28 202)
Operating income from banking activity 1181 902 857 706
Personnel costs 4.43 (385 267) (402 538)
General administrative costs 4.44 (249 233) (238 219)
Depreciation and amortisation 4.11/4.12 (36 117) (30 770)
Overhead costs (670 617) (671 527)
Recovery of loans, interest and expenses 18 162 16 472
Impairment losses and provisions for loans and guarantees, net 4.22 (136 997) (193 191)
Impairment losses and other provisions, net 4.22 (19 523) (45 266)
Net income before income tax 372 927 (35 806)
Income tax 4.45 (29 142) (31 598)
Earnings of associated companies (equity method) 4.46 33433 26 125
Global consolidated net income 377 218 (41 279)
Income attributable to non-controlling interests 4.33 (140 849) (123 279)
Consolidated net income of the BPI Group 4.47 236 369 (164 558)
Earnings per share (in Euro)
Basic 4.47 0.163 (0.116)
Diluted 4.47 0.162 (0.115)

The Accountant

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

Consolidated fi

The Board of Directors
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 2014 PROFORMA

31 Dec. 15
Attributable to Attributable to Total
shareholders of the non-controlling
BPI Group interests
Consolidated net income 236 369 140 849 377 218
Income not included in the consolidated statement of income:
Items that will not be reclassified to net income:
Actuarial deviations 144 783 144 783
Tax effect (42 263) (42 263)
102 520 102 520
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to net income:
Foreign exchange translation differences (76 945) (66 218) (143 163)
Revaluation reserves of financial assets available for sale:
Revaluation of financial assets available for sale 38 370 38 370
Tax effect (10 692) (10 692)
Transfer to income resulting from sales 7 089 7 089
Tax effect (1972) (1972)
Transfer to income resulting from impairment recognized in the period 10 019 10 019
Tax effect (2 290) (2 290)
Valuation of assets of associated companies (12.817) (12 817)
Tax effect 2303 2303
(46 935) (66 218) (113 153)
Income not included in the consolidated statement of income 55 585 (66 218) (10 633)
Consolidated comprehensive income 291 954 74 631 366 585

The Accountant
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(Translation of statements originally issued in Portuguese — note 5)

(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro)

31 Dec. 14 Proforma

Attributable to Attributable to Total
shareholders of the non-controlling
BPI Group interests

(164 558) 123 279 (41 279)

(93 291) (93 291)

17 892 17 892

(75 399) (75 399)

24 796 23763 48 559

240 311 240 311

(71 430) (71 430)

135 544 135 544

(37 137) (37 137)

25 844 25 844

(6 735) (6 735)

22178 22178

(6217) (6217)

327 154 23763 350917

251 755 23763 275518

87 197 147 042 234 239

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

The Board of Directors
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 2014 PROFORMA

Subscribed share
capital

Other equity
instruments

Revaluation
reserves

Balance at 31 December 2013 Proforma 1 190 000

3414

(362 336)

Impact of application of IFRIC 21

Balance at 1 January 2014 Proforma 1 190 000

3414

(362 336)

Appropriation of net income for 2013 to reserves

Exchange operation of subordinated debt and preference shares for ordinary shares (OPT) 103 063
Dividends paid on preference shares

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests

Variable Remuneration Program (RVA)

Sale / purchase of treasury shares

Comprehensive income for 2014 Proforma

Other

1856

311193

Balance at 31 December 2014 Proforma 1 293 063

5270

(51 143)

Appropriation of net income for 2014 to reserves
Dividends paid on preference shares

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests
Variable Remuneration Program (RVA)
Comprehensive income for 2015

Other

(76)

(36 421)

Balance at 31 December 2015 1 293 063

5194

(87 564)

The Accountant
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(Translation of statements originally issued in Portuguese — note 5)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro)

Other reserves and Treasury Net income Non-controlling Shareholders’

retained earnings shares interests equity

1 040 707 (17 090) 67 015 365 519 2 287 229

(15 553) (15 553)

1025 154 (17 090) 67 015 365 519 2 271 676
67 015 (67 015)

12 484 (48 998) 66 549

(1108) (1108)

(44 186) (44 186)

3262 5118

(3 096) (3 096)

(59 438) (164 558) 147 042 234 239

(32) (32)

1 042 087 (13 828) (164 558) 418 269 2 529 160
(164 558) 164 558

(46) (46)

(64 207) (64 207)

249 1031 1204

92 006 236 369 74 631 366 585

2803 2803

972 587 (12 797) 236 369 428 647 2 835499

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

The Board of Directors
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 AND 2014 PROFORMA

31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 14
Proforma
Operating activities
Interest, commissions and similar income received 2494 102 3627 980
Interest, commissions and similar expenses paid (1 522 684) (2 682 698)
Recovery of loans and interest in arrears 18 162 16 472
Payments to personnel and suppliers (617 679) (598 244)
Net cash flow from income and expenses 371901 363 510
Decrease (increase) in:
Financial assets held for trading, available for sale and held to maturity 779 531 846 938
Loans and advances to credit institutions 1356 531 (695 242)
Loans and advances to Customers 718 434 534 047
Investment properties 10172
Other assets 350 694 (42 704)
Net cash flow from operating assets 3205 190 653 211
Increase (decrease) in:
Resources of central banks and other credit institutions (85 560) (2 620 418)
Resources of Customers (393 266) 3933611
Financial liabilities held for trading (32 467) 71 540
Other liabilities (322 874) (182 815)
Net cash flow from operating liabilities (834 167) 1201918
Contributions to the Pension Funds (7 798) (10 654)
Income tax paid (34 622) (26 002)
2 700 504 2181983
Investing activities
Sale of Finangeste — Empresa Financeira de Gestao e Desenvolvimento, S.A. 11 604
Subscribed to the capital increase in Banco Comercial e de Investimentos, S.A.R.L. (12 988)
Purchase of other tangible assets and intangible assets (57 059) (37 099)
Sale of other tangible assets 39 73
Dividends received and other income 32 365 35196
(26 039) (1 830)
Financing activities
Liability for assets not derecognised (358 653) (340 035)
Redemption of contingent convertible subordinated bonds (920 000)
Issuance of debt securities and subordinated debt 51 766 410 129
Redemption of debt securities (1176 408) (1 069 758)
Purchase and sale of own debt securities and subordinated debt (11 892) 336 256
Purchase and sale of preference shares (11 843)
Interest on contingent convertible subordinated bonds (27 108)
Interest on debt securities and subordinated debt (50 653) (81 527)
Dividends paid on preference shares (46) (1108)
Dividends distributed to non-controlling interests (64 207) (44 186)
Purchase and sale of treasury shares 1204 2021
(1 608 889) (1747 159)
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(Translation of statements originally issued in Portuguese — note 5)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of euro)

31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 14
Proforma
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents 1065 576 432 994
Cash and equivalents at the beginning of the year 2 274 661 1841 667
Cash and equivalents at the end of the year 3 340 237 2 274 661
Cash and deposits at central banks 2728179 1894 186
Deposits at other credit institutions 612 058 380475
Cash and equivalents 3 340 237 2 274 661
Of which:
Cash and equivalents of Banco de Fomento Angola 1908 074 1470 269
Of which: in AKZ 1440 063 778 978
in USD 461 086 682 782
Cash and equivalents by currencies 3 340 237 2 274 661
EUR 1 346 045 726 003
usb 510 001 712 960
AKZ 1440 063 778 966
Other currencies 44128 56 732

The Accountant
Alberto Pitorra

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

The Board of Directors

Chairman  Artur Santos Silva
Deputy-Chairman  Fernando Ulrich
Members  Alfredo Rezende de Almeida
Anténio Domingues
Anténio Lobo Xavier
Armando Leite de Pinho
Carla Bambulo
Carlos Moreira da Silva
Edgar Alves Ferreira
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Lluis Vendrell
Manuel Ferreira da Silva
Marcelino Armenter Vidal
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Mario Leite da Silva
Pedro Barreto

Vicente Tardio Barutel
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
as of 31 December 2015 and 2014

(Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts are expressed in thousands of euro — th. euro)

1. THE FINANCIAL GROUP

Banco BPI is the central entity of a multi-specialised financial group
dedicated to banking, which provides a broad range of banking
services and products to companies, institutional investors and
private individuals. Banco BPI has been listed on the Stock
Exchange since 1986.

The BPI Group started operating in 1981 with the foundation of SPI
— Sociedade Portuguesa de Investimentos, S.A.R.L. By public deed
dated December 1984, SPI| — Sociedade Portuguesa de
Investimentos, S.A.R.L. changed its corporate name to BPI — Banco
Portugués de Investimento, S.A., which was the first private
investment bank created after the re-opening, in 1984, of the
Portuguese banking sector to private investment. On 30 November
1995 BPI — Banco Portugués de Investimento, S.A. (BPI
Investimentos) was transformed into BPI — SGPS, S.A., which
operated exclusively as the BPI Group’s holding company, and BPI
Investimentos was founded to act as the BPI Group’s investment
banking company. On 20 December 2002, BPI SGPS, S.A.
incorporated, by merger, the net assets and operations of Banco BPI
and changed its corporate name to Banco BPI, S.A.

At 31 December 2015 the Group’s banking operations were carried
out principally through Banco BPI in the commercial banking area
and through BPI Investimentos in the investment banking area. The
BPI Group is also the holder of a 50.1% participation in Banco de
Fomento Angola, S.A. which operates as a commercial bank in
Angola.

In 2014, due to the entry into force of IFRS 10 — Consolidated
Financial Statements, the BPI Group started consolidating the funds*
BPI Obrigacdes Mundiais — Fundo de Investimento Aberto de
Obrigacdes, Imofomento — Fundo de Investimento Imobiliario Aberto
and BPI Strategies, Ltd. in accordance with the full consolidation
method. At 31 December 2015 the BPI Group held 30.6% and
44.3% of the participating units of BPI Obrigacdes Mundiais and
BPI Strategies, Ltd., respectively. The participations in BPI
Obrigacdes Mundiais and BPI Strategies were consolidated in
accordance with the full consolidation method, although the BPI
Group holds less than 50% of the participating units, given that the
BPI Group has control over the related fund management company
and holds more than 20% of the participating units. In the third
quarter of 2015 Banco BPI ceased having control over Imofomento —
Fundo de Investimento Imobiliério, as it became holder of less than
20% of the participating units in the fund. Consequently, the fund
Imofomento — Fundo de Investimento Imobiliario ceased being
consolidated in accordance with the full consolidated method.

1) Funds managed by asset management companies controlled by the BPI Group.
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(These notes are a translation of notes originally issued in Portuguese — note 5)

In 2014 there was a split-merger operation, which involved the
separation of some activities carried out by Banco Portugués de
Investimento, S.A. for incorporation into Banco BPI, S.A. Under this
operation, which was only an internal reorganization, the BPI Group
maintained form, the following activities now being carried out
directly by Banco BPI:

= Private Banking;

= reception of deposits and other repayable funds, means of payment
and recording and deposit of financial instruments;

= online brokerage, and
= management of financial participations.

In 2014 the investment in Finangeste — Empresa Financeira de
Gestdo e Desenvolvimento, S.A. was reclassified to the caption
NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE, as the requirements of IFRS 5 for
this classification were met, namely the existence of negotiations to
sell the investment in the short term. The sale was completed in the
first half of 2015.

During the first half of 2015 Banco BPI subscribed the amount of
12 988 th. euro to the share capital increase of Banco Comercial de
Investimentos, maintaining its 30% participation in that company.

During the second half of 2015 BPI Locagdo de Equipamentos, Lda.,
a wholly owned subsidiary of Banco BPI, S.A., was liquidated.

The vehicles through which the Bank’s loan securitisation operations
are carried out are recorded in the consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the BPI Group’s continuing involvement in these
operations, based on the percentage held of the equity piece of the
corresponding vehicles. In 2015 and 2014, the BPI Group held
100% of the equity pieces of these vehicles and so they were
consolidated in accordance with the full consolidation method.



At 31 December 2015 the BPI Group was made up of the following companies:

Head Share- Total Net income Direct Effective Consolidation /
office holder’s assets  (loss) for partici- partici- Recognition
Equity® the year pation pation method

Banks
Banco BPI, S.A. Portugal 1724 123 32515479 183 751
Banco Portugués de Investimento, S.A. Portugal 31492 37 599 1473 100.00% 100.00%  Full consolid.
Banco Comercial e de Investimentos, S.A.R.L. Mozambique 214 401 2545730 34 071 30.00% 30.00% Equity method
Banco de Fomento Angola, S.A. Angola 855400 8317409 256 144 50.09% 50.10%  Full consolid.
Banco BPI Cayman, Ltd. Cayman lIslands 157 324 477 901 2 485 100.00%  Full consolid.
Asset management companies and dealers
BPI Gestdo de Activos — Sociedade Gestora de
Fundos de Investimento Mobiliarios, S.A. Portugal 13833 33 556 3757 100.00% 100.00%  Full consolid.
BPI - Global Investment Fund Management
Company, S.A. Luxembourg 2 351 9 444 1825 100.00% 100.00%  Full consolid.
BPI (Suisse), S.A. Switzerland 9 001 9726 4348 100.00% 100.00%  Full consolid.
BPI Alternative Fund: Iberian Equities
Long / Short Fund (Lux)* Luxembourg 340 311 404 222 15935 23.64% 50.77%  Full consolid.
BPI Obrigagdes Mundiais — Fundo de Investimento
Aberto de Obrigacoes' Portugal 45 345 45 408 (694) 11.36% 30.59% Full consolid.
BPI Strategies, Ltd.! Cayman lIslands 50179 50414 119 44.29% 44.29%  Full consolid.
Venture Capital Companies
BPI Private Equity — Sociedade de Capital de Risco, S.A. Portugal 33 567 41 817 (1012) 100.00% 100.00%  Full consolid.
Inter-Risco — Sociedade de Capital de Risco, S.A. Portugal 1054 1532 6 49.00% Equity method
Insurance Companies
BPI Vida e Pensdes — Companhia de Seguros, S.A. Portugal 150216 5919 946 17 174 100.00% 100.00%  Full consolid.
Cosec — Companhia de Seguros de Crédito, S.A. Portugal 62 667 104 288 11 022 50.00% 50.00%  Equity method
Companhia de Seguros Allianz Portugal, S.A. Portugal 213551 1210676 25 536 35.00% 35.00% Equity method
Others
BPI Capital Finance Ltd.? Cayman lIslands 1807 1813 44 100.00% 100.00%  Full consolid.
BPI Capital Africa (Proprietary) Limited South Africa (4 238) 1322 (1097) 100.00%  Full consolid.
BPI, Inc. US.A 779 779 (5) 100.00% 100.00%  Full consolid.
BPI Madeira, SGPS, Unipessoal, S.A. Portugal 158 213 164 028 5 368 100.00% 100.00%  Full consolid.
BPI Mocambique — Sociedade de Investimento, S.A. Mozambique 402 1287 (465) 98.40% 100.00%  Full consolid.
Unicre — Instituicdo Financeira de Crédito, S.A. Portugal 137 926 347 230 39872 21.01% 21.01% Equity method

Note: Unless otherwise indicated, all amounts are as of 31 December 2015 (accounting balances before consolidation adjustments). The financial statements of subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities are pending approval by the respective governing bodies. However, the Board of Directors of Banco BPI believes that there will be no changes with significant
impact on the consolidated income of the Bank.

1) Funds managed by asset management companies controlled by the BPI Group.

2) Share capital is made up of 5 000 ordinary shares of 1 euro each, and 1 786 000 non-voting preference shares of 1 euro each. Considering the total share capital of the company,
the effective participation of the BPI Group in this company corresponds to 0.28%.

3) Includes net result for the year.
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2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND MAIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A) BASES OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial statements were prepared from the
accounting records of Banco BPI and its subsidiary and associated
companies in conformity with International Accounting Standards /
International Financial Reporting Standards (IAS / IFRS), as
endorsed by the European Union in accordance with Regulation (EC)
1606 / 2002 of 19 July of the European Parliament and Council,
incorporated into Portuguese legislation through Bank of Portugal
Notice 1 /2005 of 21 February.

Adoption of standards (new or revised) issued by the
“International Accounting Standards Board” (IASB) and
interpretations issued by the “International Financial Reporting
Interpretation Committee” (IFRIC), as endorsed by the European
Union

The standards (new or revised) and interpretations applicable to the
operations of the BPI Group reflected in the financial statements as
of 31 December 2015, are as follows:

= |[FRIC 21 - Levies: this interpretation establishes the criteria for
recognition of a liability for a levy imposed by a government (other
than income taxes). This interpretation typifies the levies and the
obligating events for the recognition of a levy, clarifying when it
should be recognised as a liability. This interpretation is of
mandatory application for years beginning on or after 17 June
2014.

= [mprovements to international financial reporting standards —
2011-2013 Cycle: this process involved the revision of 4
accounting standards: (i) IFRS 1: clarifies the meaning of the
IFRSs in force at the end of the first reporting period of an entity
that applies IAS / IFRS for the first time; (ii) IFRS 3 — Business
combinations: clarifies that IFRS 3 excludes from its scope, the
recording of the formation of a joint arrangement in the financial
statements of the joint arrangement itself; (iii) IFRS 13 - Fair
value measurement: clarifies that the exception to the application
of the standard to financial assets and liabilities with compensating
positions includes all contracts within the scope of IAS 39
regardless of whether they meet the definition of financial assets or
liabilities as defined in IAS 32; (iv) IAS 40 Investment properties:
clarifies that judgement is necessary in determining if an
acquisition of an investment property is an acquisition of an asset
or a business combination as defined by IFRS 3. These
amendments are of mandatory application for years beginning on or
after 1 January 2015.

The impact of the implementation of the new requirements of IFRIC
21 is explained in note 2.1 — Comparability of information.
Application of the other aforementioned standards did not have a
significant impact on the accompanying financial statements.

At 31 December 2015 the following standards (new and revised) and
interpretations, already endorsed by the European Union, were
available for early adoption:

= [mprovements to international financial reporting standards —
2010-2012 Cycle: this process involved the revision of 7
accounting standards. The improvements involve the clarification of
some aspects relating to: (i) IFRS 2 — Share-based payment:
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definition of ‘vesting condition’; (ii) IFRS 3 — Business
combinations: recording of contingent payments; (iii) IFRS 8 —
Operating Segments: disclosure of the judgements used in relation
to the aggregation of segments and clarification regarding the need
to reconcile total assets by segment to the assets in the financial
statements; (iv) IAS 16 — Property, plant and equipment and IAS
38 — Intangible assets: need to restate of accumulated depreciation
in the case of the revaluation of fixed assets; (v) IAS 24 — Related
party disclosures: clarifies that an entity that provides management
services to the company or its parent is a related party; and (vi)
IFRS 13 — Fair value measurement: clarifications relating to the
measurement of short-term receivables and payables. These
amendments are of mandatory application for years beginning on or
after 1 February 2015.

IAS 19 - Employee Benefits: Defined benefit plans — Employee
contributions: this standard was amended to clarify the
requirements regarding the way in which contributions from
Employees relating to services rendered must be linked to the
periods of service. In addition, if the amount of the contributions is
independent of the number of years in which the service is
rendered, it allows the contributions to be recognised as a
deduction from current service cost in the period in which the
related service is rendered. These amendments are of mandatory
application for years beginning on or after 1 February 2015.

Improvements to international financial reporting standards —
2012-2014 Cycle: this process involved the revision of 4
accounting standards. The improvements involve the clarification of
some aspects relating to: (i) IFRS 5 — Non-current Assets held for
sale and discontinued operations: introduces guidance on how to
proceed in the case of changes regarding the expected method of
realization (sale or distribution to shareholders); (ii) IFRS 7 —
Financial instruments: Disclosures: clarifies the impact of servicing
contracts of assets for the purpose of determining the disclosures
required relating to the continued involvement of derecognized
assets and exempts condensed interim financial statements from
the disclosures required regarding the compensation of financial
assets and liabilities; (iii) IAS 19 — Employee benefits: clarifies
that the high quality corporate bonds used in estimating the
discount rate to be used for post-employment benefits should be in
the same currency as the benefits to be paid; and (iv) IAS 34 -
Interim financial reporting — clarification regarding the procedures
to be used when the information is available in other documents
issued together with the interim financial statements. These
amendments are of mandatory application for years beginning on or
after 1 January 2016.

IFRS 11 — Joint arrangements: this change relates to the
acquisition of interests in joint operations. It establishes the
mandatory application of IFRS 3 when the joint operation acquired
constitutes a business combination in accordance with IFRS 3.
When the joint operation in question is not a business, the
transaction should be recorded as an acquisition of assets. This
amendment is applied prospectively for new acquisitions of
interests. This amendment is of mandatory application for years
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.



= |[AS 1 - Presentation of financial statements: this amendment
clarifies some aspects relating to the disclosure initiative, namely:
(i) the entity should not make it difficult to understand financial
statements by aggregating material items with immaterial items or
by aggregating material items of different natures; (ii) the specific
disclosures required by IFRS need only be made if the information
in question is material; (iii) the line items to be presented in the
financial statements specified in IAS 1 can be aggregated or
segregated, as is most significant for purposes of the financial
report; (iv) other comprehensive income resulting from the
application of the equity method in associates and joint
arrangements must be presented separately from the other
components of other comprehensive income, also segregating the
items that are likely to be reclassified to net results from those that
will not be reclassified; (v) the structure of the notes should be
flexible, respecting the following order: (a) a statement of
compliance with IFRSs in the first section of the notes; (b) a
description of the significant accounting policies in the second
section; (c) supporting information for items in the financial
statements in the third section; and (iv) other information on the
fourth section. This amendment is of mandatory application for
years beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

IAS 16 - Property, plant and equipment and IAS 38 - Intangible
assets: this amendment establishes a presumption (which may be
rebutted) that revenue is not an appropriate basis for amortizing an
intangible asset and prohibits the use of revenue as a basis for
depreciating tangible fixed assets. The presumption established for
amortization of intangible assets can only be rebutted if the
intangible asset is expressed in terms of revenue generated or when
the use of economic benefits is highly related to the revenue
generated. This amendment is of mandatory application for years
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

= |AS 27 — Separate financial statements: this amendment
introduces the possibility of measuring interests in subsidiaries,
joint arrangements and associates in separate financial statements
by the equity method, in addition to the existing measurement
methods. This amendment applies retrospectively. This amendment
is of mandatory application for years beginning on or after
1 January 2016.

These standards, although endorsed by the European Union, were

not adopted by the BPI Group at 31 December 2015 because their
application is not yet mandatory. Significant impact is not expected
on the financial statements as a result of adopting these standards.

B) MAIN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following accounting policies are applicable to the consolidated
financial statements of the BPI Group.

2.1. Comparability of information (IFRIC 21)

IFRIC 21 — Levies was endorsed by the European Union on 13 June
2014 and is of mandatory application for years beginning on or after
17 June 2014. The purpose of IFRIC 21 is to provide guidance as to
when to recognize a liability for the payment of a levy imposed by
the Government that is recorded in accordance with 1AS 37 -
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

IFRIC 21 identifies the obligating event for the recognition of a
liability as the activity that triggers the payment of the levy in
accordance with the relevant legislation. As a result of the entry into
force of IFRIC 21, and based on the interpretation of current
legislation, Banco BPI changed its accounting policy for the
recognition of the following levies:

= Extraordinary contribution over the banking sector — Banco BPI
believes that the event that gives rise to the obligation to pay the
extraordinary contribution over the banking sector is the activity
carried out in the year preceding its payment, which is June of the
following year. Therefore, the corresponding liability related to the
extraordinary contribution over the banking sector as well as its
cost, have been recognized on a straight-line basis in the year
preceding its payment. Prior to the application of IFRIC 21, Banco
BPI recognized the cost of this contribution on a straight-line basis
over the year in which the respective payment was made;

Periodic contribution to the Deposit Guarantee Fund — Banco BPI
believes that the event which gives rise to the obligation to pay the
periodic contribution to the Deposit Guarantee Fund is the receipt of
the payment notification for that year. Therefore the liability for the
annual contribution to the Deposit Guarantee Fund as well as its cost,
are now fully recognized upon receipt of the payment notification for
that year, usually during the month of April. Prior to the application of
IFRIC 21, Banco BPI recognized the cost of this contribution on a
straight-line basis over the year in which the payment was made;

Periodic contribution to the Resolution Fund — Banco BPI believes
that the event which gives rise to the obligation to pay the periodic
contribution to the Resolution Fund is the fact of being in operation
on the last day of April of the year to which the periodic
contribution refers, in accordance with Article 9 of Decree-Law 24 /
2013 of 19 February. Therefore, the liability relating to the periodic
contribution to the Resolution Fund, as well as its cost, are now
being fully recognized in April of the year to which the contribution
refers. Prior to the application of IFRIC 21 Banco BPI recognized
the cost of the contribution on a straight-line basis over the year in
which the payment was made.
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Retrospective application of the requirements of IFRIC 21, as required by IAS 8, had the following impact:

Consolidated net Consolidated
income as of  shareholders' equity
Dec 31, 2014 at Dec. 31, 14
(including net income

for the year)

Consolidated
shareholders' equity
at Dec. 31, 13
(including net income
for the year)

Balances as reported (before the retrospective application

of the change in accounting policy) 2 287 229 (163 623) 2 545 648
Impact of application of IFRIC 21

Extraordinary contribution over the banking sector (15 553) (935) (16 488)

(15 553) (935) (16 488)

Balances (proforma) 2271676 (164 558) 2529 160

2.2. Consolidation of subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities
and recognition of associated companies (IFRS 10, IFRS 11,
IAS 28 and IFRS 3)

Banco BPI has direct and indirect participations in subsidiary and
associated companies.

Subsidiary companies are entities over which the Bank has control,
which is when the following conditions are met, cumulatively:

= power over the company;

= exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
company; and

= ability to use this power over the company to affect the amount of
the variable returns.

In the case of investment funds managed by BPI Gestédo de Activos,
it is assumed that there is control whenever the BPI Group has a
participation of more than 20%. In the case of investment funds
managed by Inter-Risco, the BPI Group does not consolidate the
funds in which, despite having a participation greater than 20%, it
does not have control over investment decisions.

Associated companies are entities over which Banco BPI has direct
or indirect significant influence over their management and financial
policies but over which it does not have control. As a general rule, it
is presumed that significant influence exists when the participation
exceeds 20%.

The financial statements of subsidiary companies are consolidated
using the full consolidation method. Significant intra-group
transactions and account balances are eliminated in the
consolidation process. The amount of share capital, reserves and net
results corresponding to third party participation in these subsidiaries
is reflected in the caption MINORITY INTEREST, except for investment
funds which are recorded in the caption RESOURCES OF CUSTOMERS.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the subsidiary companies’
financial statements to ensure their consistency with the BPI Group’s
accounting policies.

Goodwill arising from the difference between the cost of acquisitions
(including expenses) and the fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of subsidiary companies as of the
date of the first consolidation are recorded as assets and are subject
to impairment tests. When a subsidiary company is sold, net goodwill
is included in determining the gain or loss on the sale.
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Associated companies are recorded in accordance with the equity
method of accounting. In accordance with this method, the amount
of the investment, which is initially recognised at cost, is adjusted by
post-acquisition changes in the net asset value of the associated
companies, in proportion to the BPI Group’s participation.

Goodwill relating to associated companies is included in the book
value of the investment. The book value of associated companies
(including goodwill) is subject to impairment tests in accordance
with IAS 36 and IAS 39.

In the case of associated companies acquired in stages, goodwill is
calculated at the time that the acquired company becomes an
associate, being determined by the difference between the total
acquisition cost of the investment and the proportion held of the fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate as of
that date. As provided for in IAS 28, total acquisition cost
corresponds to the fair value of the original investment on the date
that significant influence is achieved, plus the amount paid for the
additional participation. In accordance with the policy established by
the BPI Group, gains or losses on the revaluation to fair value of the
original investment are recognised in the statement of income on the
date the acquired company becomes an associate.

Following the loss of significant influence over an associated
company (it is presu med that participation is less than 20%) and in
accordance with IAS 28, the participation held is reclassified from
the Investments in Associated Companies portfolio to the Financial
Assets Available for Sale portfolio, being recorded at its fair value as
of the date of the loss of significant influence. The difference
between the fair value of the participation held and the cost of
investment at that date is recognised in the statement of income.

In accordance with IFRS 1 and the BPI Group’s accounting policies
up to the date of transition to IAS / IFRS, goodwill on investments
acquired up to 1 January 2004 was deducted in full from
shareholders’ equity.

Negative goodwill arising from the difference between the cost of
acquisitions (including expenses) and the fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of subsidiary
and associated companies as of the date of the first consolidation or
the date the equity method is first applied is immediately recognised
in the statement of income.

The financial statements of subsidiary or associated companies
which are inactive or in liquidation were excluded from the
consolidation and from application of the equity method. These
participations are classified as financial assets available for sale.



Consolidated net income is the sum of the individual net results of
Banco BPI and the percentage of the net results of subsidiary and
associated companies, equivalent to Banco BPI’s effective
participation in them, considering the period the participations are
held for, after elimination of income and expenses resulting from
inter-group transactions.

Foreign currency subsidiary and associated companies (IAS 21
and IAS 29)

The foreign currency financial statements of subsidiary and
associated companies were included in the consolidation after being
translated to Euro at the exchange rates published by the Bank of
Portugal and, in the case of BFA and BCI, by the Central Banks of
Angola and Mozambique, respectively:

= assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated
to Euro using the exchange rates in force at the balance sheet
date;

= income and expenses expressed in foreign currencies are translated
to Euro using the exchange rates in force in the months in which
they are recognised; and,

= exchange differences resulting from the translation to Euro are
recognised directly in the shareholders’ equity caption REVALUATION
RESERVES, since the Bank does not have participations in
subsidiaries and associated companies the functional currency of
which is that of a hyperinflationary economy.

When a foreign entity is sold, the accumulated exchange difference
is recognized in the statement of income as a gain or loss on
disposal.

The exchange rates used for the translation to euros of the accounts
of foreign subsidiaries and associated companies were as follows:

31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 14

Kwanza — Angola 147.8320 125.1950
Metical Mozambique 50.0400 40.8400
Swiss Franc 1.0835 1.2024
South Africa Rand 16.9530 14.0353
USA dollar 1.0887 1.2141

The consolidated balance sheet of the BPI Group includes a
significant portion of assets and liabilities in kwanzas, as shown in
note 4.49 Financial Risks — Foreign exchange risk. Financial
information expressed in this currency disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes has been translated to
euros for presentation purposes based on the above criteria. The
amounts should not be interpreted as representing that the amounts
in kwanzas could have been, or could be, converted to euros.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of Banco BPI for
2015, the inclusion of the results of BFA for the month of December
2015 and its financial position as of 31 December 2015 were
determined taking into account the exchange rates of kwanzas to
other currencies, particularly to the euro and the USA dollar,
published by the National Bank of Angola (BNA) at 31 December
2015.

The exchange rates of the kwanza in relation to other currencies
published by BNA at the opening day of 4 January 2016, the first
business day after 31 December 2015, show a devaluation of the
kwanza in relation to the euro and USA dollar of about 15%.

Official exchange Official exchange  Change

rates on rates on

31 Dec. 15 4 Jan. 16
AKZ /1 USD 135.3 155.6 15%
AKZ /1 EUR 147.8 169.7 15%

Taking into account the requirements of IAS 21 — “The effects of
changes in exchange rates”, Banco BPI decided to use the exchange
rates published in BNA's Internet site at 31 December 2015. In this
respect, it should also be mentioned the position informed by BNA
that in Angola the financial statements for 2015 should be prepared
based on these exchange rates.

The use of the kwanza exchange rates published by the BNA on

4 January 2016 results in a positive impact on the consolidated net
income of Banco BPI, after tax, of about 9 million euro, and a
negative impact on total equity attributable to the shareholders of
the Bank of about 44 million euro.

Consolidated amounts in million euro

31 Dec. 15 Proforma Change
as reported  considering the
exchange rate on

4 Jan. 16

Net Income 236 245 +9
Assets 40 673 40 076 (597)
Loans 24 282 24 176 (106)
Customer resources and

other liabilities 28 178 27 628 (550)
Non-controlling interests 429 384 (44)
Shareholders' equity 2 407 2 363 (44)

2.3. Financial assets and liabilities (IAS 32, IAS 39, IFRS 7 and
IFRS 13)

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the BPI Group’s
balance sheet on the trade or contracting date, unless there is an
express contractual stipulation or applicable legal or regulation
regime under which the transactions’ inherent rights and obligations
are transferred at a different date, in which case the latter date is
applicable.

Financial assets and liabilities are initially recorded at fair value plus
direct transaction costs, except for assets and liabilities that have
been recognised at fair value through profit or loss, in which case the
transaction costs are immediately recorded in the statement of
income.

In accordance with IFRS 13, fair value is understood to be the price
that would be received from the sale of an asset or paid for the
transfer of a liability in a transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. On the contracting date or at the beginning
of an operation fair value is generally the transaction amount.

Fair value is determined based on:

= the price in an active market, or
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= valuation methods and techniques (when there is not an active
market) supported by:

= mathematical calculations based on recognised financial theories;
or,

= prices calculated based on similar assets or liabilities traded on
active markets or based on statistical estimates or other
quantitative methods.

Financial assets are initially recognised, at the time of their
acquisition or inception, under one of the four categories defined in
IAS 39:

= financial assets held for trading and at fair value through profit or
loss;

= held-to-maturity financial assets;
= available-for-sale financial assets;
= |oans and other receivables.

Following the amendment to IAS 39 in October 2008 entitled
“Reclassification of financial assets”, it became possible to reclassify
financial assets between financial asset categories, as follows: (i) in
specific circumstances, non-derivative financial assets (other than
those initially designated as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss under the “fair value option”) can be reclassified out of
the fair value through profit and loss category, and (ii) financial
assets which meet the definition of loans and receivables can be
reclassified from the available-for-sale financial assets category to
the loans and receivables category, provided that the entity has the
intention and ability to hold the asset for the foreseeable future or
until maturity. For reclassifications made up to 1 November 2008,
the reference date of the changes made by the BPI Group was 1 July
2008. The reclassifications made on or after 1 November 2008 are
effective only as from the reclassification date.

In note 4.49 the valuation methods of assets and liabilities recorded
at fair value (Financial assets held for trading and at fair value
through profit or loss, Financial liabilities held for trading and
Financial assets available for sale) are presented in detail.

2.3.1. Financial assets held for trading and at fair value through
profit or loss and financial liabilities held for trading
These captions include:

= fixed income securities and variable-yield securities traded on
active markets, which the Bank has opted, on the recognition date,
to record and value at fair value through profit or loss, can be
classified as held for trading or at fair value through profit or loss;

= securities related to capitalisation insurance portfolios; and,
= derivatives (including embedded derivatives on financial assets and

liabilities), except for those designated as hedging instruments
under hedge accounting (note 2.3.8).
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Such assets and liabilities are valued daily at fair value, taking into
account the own credit risk and counterparty risk of the operations.
The book value of bonds and other fixed income securities includes
accrued interest.

Gains and losses resulting from changes in fair value are recognised
in the statement of income.

Derivative operations are subject to credit risk analysis, their value
being adjusted with a corresponding entry to loss on financial
operations.

2.3.2. Held-to-maturity investments

This caption includes non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and defined maturities that the BPI Group
has the intention and ability to hold until maturity.

These investments are measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest rate method and subject to impairment tests.

The impairment losses on financial investments held to maturity are
recorded in the income statement. If, in a subsequent period, the
amount of an impairment loss decreases and that decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the date on which the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through the statement of income for
the year.

2.3.3. Financial assets available for sale
This caption includes:

= fixed income securities which have not been classified in the
trading, held to maturity or loan portfolios;

= variable yield securities available for sale; and

= shareholders’ loans and supplementary capital contributions in
financial assets available for sale.

Assets classified as available for sale are valued at fair value, except for
equity instruments that are not traded on active markets and for which
their fair value cannot be reliably measured or estimated. In this case
they remain recorded at cost.

Gains and losses resulting from changes in the fair value of financial
assets available for sale are recognised directly in the shareholders’
equity caption FAIR VALUE REVALUATION RESERVE, except for impairment
losses and exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, until the
asset is sold. At this time, the gain or loss previously recognised in
shareholders’ equity is transferred to the statement of income.

Interest accrued on bonds and other fixed income securities and
differences between their cost and nominal value (premium or discount)
are recorded in the statement of income using the effective interest rate
method.

Income from variable-yield securities (dividends in the case of shares) is
recorded as income when it is attributed or received. In accordance with
this procedure, interim dividends are recorded as income in the period
in which they are declared.



At the date of preparation of the financial statements, the Bank
assesses the existence of objective evidence that financial assets
available for sale are impaired, considering the market situation and
the available information about the issuers.

In accordance with IAS 39, a financial asset available for sale is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if: (i) there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that occurred after initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”)
and (ii) that (those) loss event (s) has (have) an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset, that can be
reliably estimated.

In accordance with IAS 39, objective evidence that a financial asset
available for sale is impaired includes observable data regarding the
following loss events:

= significant financial difficulty of the issuer;

= a breach of contract by the issuer in terms of the repayment of
principal or payment of interest;

= probability of bankruptcy of the issuer;

= the disappearance of an active market for the financial asset
because of financial difficulties of the issuer.

In addition to the events relating to debt instruments referred to
above, the existence of objective evidence of impairment on equity
instruments also takes into consideration information about the
following loss events:

= significant changes with adverse impact on the technological,
market, economic or legal environment in which the issuer operates
indicating that the cost of the investment may not be fully
recovered;

= a significant or prolonged decrease in the market value of the
financial asset below its cost.

When there is objective evidence that a financial asset available for
sale is impaired, the accumulated loss in the fair value revaluation

reserve is removed from equity and recognised in the statement of

income.

Impairment losses recorded on fixed income securities are reversed
through the statement of income if there is a positive change in the
fair value of the security resulting from an event which has occurred
after determination of the impairment. Impairment losses on
variable-yield securities cannot be reversed. In the case of securities
for which impairment losses have been recognised, subsequent
negative changes in fair value are always recognised in the statement
of income.

Exchange differences on non-monetary assets (equity instruments)
classified in the available-for-sale portfolio are recognised in the
exchange difference revaluation reserve. Exchange differences on
other securities are recorded in the statement of income.

Financial assets available for sale, designated as hedged assets, are
valued as explained in note 2.3.8. Hedge Accounting — derivatives
and hedged instruments.

2.3.4. Loans and other receivables

Loans and other receivables include loans and advances made by the
Bank to Customers and to credit institutions, including finance lease
operations, factoring operations, participation in syndicated loans
and securitised loans (commercial paper and bonds issued by
companies) that are not traded on an active market and which are
not intended to be sold.

Loans and securitised loans traded on active markets are included in
the caption FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE.

At the inception date, loans and other receivables are recognised at
fair value. In general, fair value at the inception date corresponds to
the amount of the transaction and includes commission, taxes and
other costs and income relating to credit operations.

Loans and other receivables are subsequently valued at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method and are subject to
impairment tests.

Interest income, commission, fees and other costs and income on
credit operations are recognised on an accruals basis over the period
of the operations, regardless of when they are received or paid.
Commission received relating to credit commitments is deferred and
recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
commitment.

The Bank classifies as overdue credit, instalments of principal and
interest overdue for more than 30 days. Credits under legal collection
procedures include the full amount of the principal (both overdue
and not yet due).

The BPI Group writes off loans on operations considered to be
unrecoverable, for which provisions (in accordance with the Adjusted
Accounting Standards (Normas de Contabilidade Ajustadas — NCA)
established by Bank of Portugal Notice 1 /2005) and impairment
losses have been recorded for their full amount in the month
preceding the write-off.

Gains and losses on the sale of loans to Customers on a definitive
basis are recognised in net income on financial operations in the
caption GAIN AND LOSS ON THE SALE OF LOANS AND ADVANCES TO
CUSTOMERS. These gains or losses correspond to the difference
between the sale price and the book value of those assets, net of
impairment losses.

Loans designated as hedged assets are valued as explained in note
2.3.8. Hedge Accounting — derivatives and hedged instruments.

Finance leasing (IAS 17)

Lease operations in which the Bank transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to a Customer or to a third
party, are reflected on the balance sheet, at the inception date, as
loans granted, at the net amount paid to acquire the leased asset.
Lease instalments are composed of an interest income component
and a principal repayment component. The interest income
component for each period reflects an effective interest rate of return
on the outstanding amount of principal.
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Factoring

Assets resulting from factoring operations with recourse are recorded
on the balance sheet as loans granted, by the amount advanced on
account under the terms of the corresponding contracts.

Assets resulting from factoring operations without recourse are
recorded on the balance sheet as loans granted, by the amount of
the credit taken, with a corresponding entry to the liability caption
CREDITORS FOR FACTORING OPERATIONS. Amounts advanced under the
contracts are debited to the caption CREDITORS FOR FACTORING
OPERATIONS.

Invoices received under factoring contracts with recourse, in which
amounts are not advanced, are recorded in the off-balance sheet
caption, CONTRACTS WITH RECOURSE — INVOICES NOT FINANCED, by the
amount of the invoices received. The balance of this caption is
reduced as the invoices are settled.

Commitments resulting from unused credit lines negotiated with
Customers are recorded as off-balance sheet items.

Securitised credit not derecognised

The Bank does not derecognise credits sold in securitisation
operations when:

= it retains control over the operations;

= it continues to receive a substantial part of the remuneration; and,
= it retains a substantial part of the risk on the credits transferred.
Credits sold that have not been derecognised are recorded in the
caption LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS and are subject to the
accounting principles used for other credit operations. Interest,
commission and fees relating to the securitised loan portfolio are

accrued over the period of the credit operation.

Amounts received relating to securitisation operations are recorded

under the caption FINANCIAL LIABILITIES RELATING TO TRANSFERRED ASSETS.

The respective interest, commission and fees are accrued based on
the remuneration ceded by the Bank, in accordance with the
expected average life of the securitisation operation at the launching
date.

The risks and / or benefits maintained are represented by the bonds
with the highest degree of risk, issued by the securitisation vehicle.
The amount recorded in assets and liabilities represents the
proportion of risk / benefit held by the Bank (continuing
involvement).

Bonds issued by securitisation vehicles and held by the BPI Group
entities are eliminated in the consolidation process.

Securities under repurchase and resale agreements

Securities purchased with resale agreements are not recorded in the
securities portfolio. Funds paid are recorded as loans at the
settlement date, while interest is accrued.

Securities sold with repurchase agreements are maintained in their
original securities portfolio. Funds received are recorded in the
corresponding liability caption at the settlement date, while interest
is accrued.

Guarantees given and irrevocable commitments
Guarantees given and irrevocable commitments are recorded in
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off-balance sheet accounts by the amount at risk, while interest,
commission, fees and other income are recorded in the statement of
income over the period of the operations. These operations are
subject to impairment tests.

Impairment

Loans, other receivables and guarantees given are subject to monthly
impairment tests. Impairment losses identified are recorded by
corresponding charge to the statement of income for the year. If, in
subsequent periods, there is a decrease in the estimated impairment
loss, the impairment loss initially recorded is reversed by credit to
the statement of income.

In accordance with IAS 39 a financial asset is considered to be
impaired when there is evidence that one or more loss events have
occurred after initial recognition of an asset, and such events have
an impact on the estimated recoverable value of the future cash
flows of the financial asset considered.

IAS 39 defines some events that may be considered as objective
evidence of impairment (breach of contract, such as delay in the
payment of principal or interest; probability that the borrower will
become bankrupt, etc.). However, in certain circumstances
determination of impairment loss requires professional judgement.

Objective evidence of impairment situations is assessed as of the
date of the financial statements.

Impairment assessment is made based on individual credits where
they are significant in amount and on an individual or collective
basis where the credits are not significant in amount.

BPI's loan portfolio is segmented as follows for purposes of
determining impairment:

= Corporate Banking;
= Private individuals and small businesses;

= Specialised credit: housing loans, equipment leasing, real estate
leasing, vehicle financing, consumer credit and credit cards;

= Commercial portfolio: discounts, credit with a plan, credit without a
plan and overdrafts;

= Project Finance;
= |nstitutional Banking and the State Business Sector;
= Others.

Impairment losses relating to the Corporate Banking, Project
Finance, Institutional Banking and the State Business Sector
segments are determined on an individual basis whenever the credits
show signs of impairment or are in default. Impairment losses are
also determined on an individual basis when they relate to: (i) groups
with exposure of more than 250 th. euro in operations in the
Commercial loans, Credit by signature, Mobile item leasing, Real
estate leasing, Factoring, Confirming and other debtor balances
(including derivatives) included in the Private individual and small
business segment; (ii) Customers with exposure equal to or exceeding
250 th. euro included in the Private Banking and International
Private Banking segments, and (iii) loan operations monitored by the
Financial Department.



Credit operations in these segments that do not show signs of
impairment, as well as operations of the other segments are subject
to collective assessment to determine the amount of the related
impairment.

Individual assessment

In the case of assets for which there is objective evidence of
impairment on an individual basis, impairment is calculated
operation by operation, based on the information included in the
Bank’s credit risk analysis models which consider, among others, the
following factors:

= overall exposure of the Customer and nature of the liabilities
contracted with the Bank: financial or non-financial operations
(namely, liabilities of a commercial nature or performance
guarantees);

= notation of Client risk determined based on a calculation system
implemented by the BPI Group. Risk notation includes, among
others, the following characteristics:

= financial situation of the Customer;
= risk of the business sector in which the Customer operates;

= quality of management of the Customer, measured by the
experience in the relationship with the BPI Group and the
existence of incidents;

= quality of the accounting information presented;

= nature and amount of the guarantees relating to the liabilities
contracted with the Bank;

= non-performing loans for a period exceeding 30 days.

In such situations the amount of the loss is calculated based on the
difference between the book value and the estimated recoverable
amount of the credit, after recovery costs, discounted at the effective
rate of interest during the period from the date the impairment to the
expected date of recovery.

The expected recoverable amount of the credit reflects the cash
flows that can result from execution of the guarantees or collateral
relating to the credit granted, less costs of the recovery process.

Assets evaluated individually, for which there are no objective signs
of impairment, are included in a group of assets with similar credit
risks, and impairment losses are assessed collectively.

Impairment for these groups of assets is assessed as explained in the
following section — Collective assessment.

Assets assessed individually, for which an impairment loss is
recognised, are excluded from the collective assessment.

Collective assessment

Future cash flows of groups of credit subject to collective impairment
assessment are estimated based on the past experience of losses on
assets with similar credit risk characteristics.

Collective assessment involves estimating the following risk factors:

= the possibility of a performing operation or Customer coming to
show signs of impairment through delays arising during the
emergence period (period between the occurrence of a loss event
and identification of that event by the Bank).

In accordance with IAS 39 these situations correspond to losses
incurred but not reported, that is cases in which, for part of the
credit portfolio, the loss event has already occurred, but the Bank
has not yet identified it;

= the possibility of an operation or Customer that has already had
delays, going into default (situations of legal collection) during the
remaining period of the operation;

= financial loss on operations in default.

For purposes of determining the percentage of estimated loss on
operations or Customers in default, the Bank considers payments by
Customers after default, less direct costs of the recovery process.
The flows considered are discounted at the interest rate of the
operations and compared to the exposure at the time of default.

The inputs used for calculating collective impairment are determined
based on statistical models for credit groups and revised regularly to
approximate the estimated amounts to the actual amounts.

For exposures with objective evidence of impairment, the amount of
the loss results from a comparison of the book value with the present
value of the estimated future cash flows. The interest rate of the
operations at the date of each assessment is used to calculate the
present value of the future cash flows.

2.3.5. Deposits and other resources

After initial recognition, deposits and other financial resources of
Customers and credit institutions are valued at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate.

This category includes life capitalisation insurance without a
discretionary participation feature.

Deposits designated as hedged liabilities are valued as explained in
note 2.3.8 Hedge Accounting — derivatives and hedged instruments.
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2.3.6. Debt securities issued by the Bank
Debt securities issued by the Bank are recorded under the captions
DEBT SECURITIES and OTHER SUBORDINATED DEBT.

At the date of issue, debt securities are recorded at fair value (issue
value), including transaction expenses, commission and fees, and
subsequently valued at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method.

Derivatives embedded in bonds are recorded separately and revalued
at fair value through the statement of income.

Bonds designated as hedged liabilities are valued as explained in
note 2.3.8. Hedge Accounting — derivatives and hedged instruments.

Bonds issued by the Bank can be listed, or not, on the Stock
Exchange.

Secondary market transactions

The Bank repurchases bonds issued in the secondary market.
Purchases and sales of own debt securities are included
proportionately in the respective captions of debt issued (PRINCIPAL,
INTEREST, COMMISSION, FEES and DERIVATIVES), and the differences
between the amount liquidated and the decrease or increase in the
amount of the liability are immediately recognised in the statement
of income.

2.3.7. Contingent convertible subordinated bonds

Under the Recapitalisation Plan for reinforcing Core Tier 1 own
funds, so as to comply with the minimum ratios defined by the
European Banking Authority and the Bank of Portugal, in June 2012
Banco BPI issued financial instruments eligible as Core Tier 1 own
funds (contingent convertible subordinated bonds), which were
subscribed for by the Portuguese State (notes 4.25, 4.29 and 4.51).

Considering its features, defined in Law 63-A / 2008 of 24
November, re-published by Law 4 / 2012 of 11 January (Bank
Recapitalisation Law), Ministerial Order 150-A / 2012 of 17 May
and in the Terms and Conditions established in Order 8840-A /
2012, of the Portuguese Minister of State and Finance of 28
June 2012 and the requirements of the International Financial
Reporting Standards, namely IAS 32, these financial instruments
were recorded by the BPI Group as financial liabilities, since:

= it has been established that the par value of these instruments
bears interest, which must be paid by the Issuer in cash or in shares
of the Issuer, otherwise the instruments will be converted into
shares of the Issuer in accordance with Section 8 of the above
mentioned Terms and Conditions;

= the instruments should be repurchased by Banco BPI from the
Portuguese State up to the end of 29 June 2017, otherwise they
will be converted into shares of the Issuer;

= the conversion referred to in the preceding paragraphs will be made
through the delivery of a number of shares that cannot be
determined prior to the occurrence of the event that determines the
conversion, since (i) as defined in the Conversion Price contained
in Section 1.1. of the above mentioned Terms and Conditions, the
price depends on the listed / market value of the shares in the
period prior to the occurrence of such event and (ii) the
determination of the number of shares is based on the
Conversion Price.
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Contingent convertible subordinated bonds are valued at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method.

The BPI Group concluded the repayment of the contingent
convertible subordinated bonds to the Portuguese State on 25 June
2014.

2.3.8. Hedge accounting — derivatives and hedged instruments
The BPI Group designates as hedging instruments, derivatives
contracted to hedge interest rate and foreign exchange rate risk (fair
value hedge operations) on financial assets and liabilities identified
individually (bond portfolio, issuance of own debt securities and
loans), and on groups of operations (term deposits and fixed rate
loans).

The BPI Group has formal documentation of the hedge relationship
identifying, at the inception of the transaction, the instrument (or
part of the instrument, or part of the risk) that is being hedged, the
strategy and type of risk being hedged, the hedging derivative and
the methods used to demonstrate the effectiveness of the hedge.

Monthly, the Bank tests the effectiveness of the hedge by comparing
changes in the fair value of the hedged instrument, attributable to
the hedged risk, with changes in the fair value of the hedging
derivative, the relationship between them being within the range of
80% to 125%.

Hedging derivative instruments are recorded at fair value and the
gains and losses resulting from their revaluation are recognised in
the statement of income. Gains and losses resulting from changes in
the fair value of hedged financial assets or liabilities, attributable to
the hedged risk, are also recognised in the statement of income, by
corresponding entry to the book value of the hedged asset or liability
in the case of operations at amortised cost (loans, deposits and debt
issued) or to the fair value revaluation reserve in case of financial
assets available for sale (bonds portfolio).

A hedged asset or liability may have only one part or one component
of its fair value hedged (interest rate risk, foreign exchange rate risk
or credit risk), provided that the effectiveness of the hedge can be
measured separately.

When using hedge accounting, the Bank does not value the
commercial spreads of the hedged assets or liabilities.

If the hedging relationship ceases to exist as a result of the
relationship between the fair value changes of the derivatives and the
hedged instruments being outside the 80% to 125% range, the
derivatives are reclassified to trading instruments and the amount of
the revaluation of the hedged instrument is recognised in the
statement of income for the remaining period of the operation.

Hedging effectiveness tests are duly documented on a monthly basis,
thus ensuring the existence of evidence during the period of the
operation.

2.3.9. Foreign currency financial assets and liabilities
Foreign currency financial assets and liabilities are recorded in
conformity with the multi-currency system that is in their original
currencies.



Foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated to Euro at the
official market rates published by the Bank of Portugal.

Foreign currency income and expenses are translated to Euro at the
exchange rates in force on the dates they are recognised.

2.4. Tangible assets (IAS 16)

Tangible assets used by the Bank in its operations are stated at cost
(including directly attributable costs) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Depreciation of tangible assets is recorded on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful lives, which corresponds to the period the
assets are expected to be available for use:

Useful life (years)

Property 20 to 50
Improvements in owned property 10 to 50
Non-recoverable expenditure capitalised

on leasehold buildings 3to0 10
Equipment 3to 12
Other tangible assets 3to 10

Non-recoverable expenditure on improvements in leasehold buildings
is depreciated in accordance with its estimated useful life or the
remaining period of the lease contract.

As established in IFRS 1, tangible assets acquired by the BPI Group
up to 1 January 2004 have been recorded at their book value at the
date of transition to IAS / IFRS, which corresponds to cost adjusted
for revaluations recorded in accordance with legislation, based on
price level indices. In accordance with current tax legislation, 40%
of the additional depreciation charge resulting from such revaluations
is not deductible for income tax purposes, the resulting deferred tax
liability being recognised.

Tangible assets acquired under finance lease

Tangible assets acquired under finance lease operations, in which
the Bank has all the risks and rewards of ownership, are depreciated
in accordance with the procedures explained in the preceding
section.

Lease instalments comprise an interest charge and a principal
repayment component. The liability is reduced by the amount
corresponding to the principal repayment component of each of the
instalments and the interest is reflected in the statement of income
over the term of the lease.

2.5. Investment properties

Properties held by the investment funds consolidated by the Group in
accordance with the full consolidation method are recorded as
investment properties since they are held for the purpose of long
term capital appreciation and not for short-term sale, nor for use in
carrying out banking activity.

These properties are initially recognised at cost, including transaction
costs, being subsequently revaluated at fair value. The appraisals are
carried out by independent appraisers registered at “Comissdo dos
Mercados de Valores Mobiliarios” (Stock Exchange Commission). The
fair value of investment properties should reflect market conditions
at the balance sheet date, the corresponding changes being recorded
in the statement of income caption OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES.

Investment properties are not depreciated.

At 31 December 2015 the BPI Group had no investment properties
as it no longer consolidated the fund Imofomento — Fundo de
Investimento Imobiliario (note 4.10).

2.6. Assets received in settlement of defaulting loans and non-
current assets held for sale (IFRS 5)

Assets (property, equipment and other assets) received in settlement
of defaulting loans are recorded in the caption 0THER ASSETS as they
are not always in condition to be sold immediately and may be held
for periods in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at the
legal or tax acquisition amount or the amount stated in the
settlement agreement. Assets recovered following the resolution of
lease contracts are recorded at the outstanding amount due not
invoiced. Such property is subject to periodic appraisals, with
impairment losses being recorded whenever the appraised value net
of costs to sell is lower than its book value.

The caption oTHER ASSETS also includes the Bank’s tangible assets
retired from use (unused property and equipment) which are in the
process of sale. Such assets are transferred from tangible assets at
their book value in accordance with IAS 16 (cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses) when they become available for
sale, and are subject to periodic appraisals with impairment losses
being recorded whenever the appraised value (net of selling costs) is
lower than their book value.

The appraisals are carried out by independent appraisers registered
at “Comissao dos Mercados de Valores Mobilidrios” (Portuguese
Securities Market Code). Unrealized gains on these assets are not
recognised in the balance sheet.

Tangible assets available for sale are not depreciated.

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale whenever it is
expected that their book value will be recovered through sale rather
than through their continued use. In order to be classified as such,
an asset must meet the following conditions:

= its sale must be highly probable;

= the asset must be available for immediate sale in its present
condition;

= the sale must be expected to be realized within one year from the
date of classification in this caption.

Assets classified in this caption are not amortized, being valued at

the lower of cost and fair value, less costs to be incurred with the
sale.
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If book value is greater than fair value less costs to sell, an
impairment loss is recognised in the caption IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND
OTHER PROVISIONS, NET.

The caption NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE at 31 December 2014
includes the investment in Finangeste — Empresa Financeira de
Gestdo e Desenvolvimento, S.A., as the above requirements for that
classification were met. The investment was valued based on its
expected sales value. The sale was completed in the first half of
2015.

2.7. Intangible assets (IAS 38)

The Bank recognises, in this caption, expenses relating to the
development stage of projects implemented and to be implemented,
as well as the cost of acquiring software, in both cases where the
impact extends beyond the financial year in which the cost is
incurred.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line monthly basis over
the estimated period of useful life of the assets which, in general,
corresponds to a period of three years.

To date the Bank has not recognised any intangible assets generated
internally.

2.8. Retirement and survivor pensions (IAS 19)

2.8.1. Employees of domestic operations

The BPI Group companies that have adhered to the Collective
Vertical Labour Agreement for the Portuguese Banking Sector
(Acordo Colectivo de Trabalho Vertical para o Sector Bancario
Portugués) have assumed the commitment to pay their Employees or
their families, pensions for retirement due to age or incapacity,
pensions for early retirement or survivor pensions (defined benefit
plan). The pensions consist of a percentage, which increases with
the number of years of service of the Employees, applied to their
salaries. Up to 31 December 2010 the majority of Employees of the
BPI Group was not covered by the Portuguese Social Security
system.

With the publication of Decree-Law 1-A /2011 of 3 January, all the
bank Employees that benefit from CAFEB — Caixa de Abono de
Familia dos Empregados Bancarios were incorporated into the
General Social Security Regime as from 1 January 2011, becoming
covered by this regime as regards old age pensions and possible
maternity, paternity and adoption, the cost of which the Bank no
longer covers. Given the complementary nature of the rules of the
Collective Labour Agreement for the Portuguese Banking Sector, the
Bank will continue to cover the difference between the amount of the
benefits paid under the General Social Security Regime for the items
covered and the benefits established in the Collective Labour
Agreement.

Incapacity and survivor pensions and sickness subsidy of these
Employees will continue to be the Bank’s responsibility.

Following the Three Party Agreement between the Government, the
Credit Institutions and the Labour Unions for the Banking Sector,
Decree-Law 127 / 2011 of 31 December was published, which
establishes transfer to the Social Security of the liability for
retirement and survivor pensions of retirees and pensioners which at
31 December 2011 were in that situation and were covered by the
substitute social security regime included in the collective labour
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regulations in force for the banking sector (Pillar 1), as well as
transfer to the Portuguese State of the part of the pension fund
assets covering these liabilities.

Through its pension fund, Banco BPI retains the liability for payment
of (i) the amount of updates of the pensions mentioned above,
according to the criteria set out in the Collective Labour Agreement
(Acordo Colectivo de Trabalho); (ii) the complementary benefits to
the retirement and survivor pensions assumed by the Collective
Labour Agreement; (iii) the contribution on retirement and survivor
pensions for Social Medical Support Services (Servigos de Apoio
Médico-Social); (iv) death subsidy; (v) survivor pensions to children
and surviving spouse related to the same Employee and (vi) survivor
pension due to the family of a retired Employee, in which the
conditions for being granted occurred as from 1 January 2012.

The value of the pension fund assets transferred to the Portuguese
State must be equal to the amount of the liabilities assumed by the
Social Security and was determined taking into account the following
assumptions: (i) discount rate of 4%; (ii) mortality tables in
accordance with the regulations defined by the Portuguese Insurance
Institute (Instituto de Seguros de Portugal): male population:

TV 73/ 77 less 1 year; female population: TV 88 / 90.

Transfer of the Bank’s pension fund assets was made entirely in
cash.

The Bank transferred ownership of the assets under the following
conditions: (i) up to 31 December 2011, the amount equivalent to
55% of the provisional present value of the liabilities; (ii) by 30 June
2012, the remaining amount to complete the current definitive
amount of the liabilities, as a result of the final determination of the
liabilities transferred, made by an expert independent entity hired for
the purpose by the Ministry of Finance.

Since the transfer to the Social Security corresponds to settlement,
with extinction of the corresponding liability of Banco BPI, the
difference between the amount of the pension fund assets
transferred to the Portuguese State and the amount of the liabilities
transferred based on the actuarial assumptions used by Banco BPI
was recorded in the statement of income caption OPERATING GAINS AND
LOSSES, as provided for in paragraph 110 of IAS 19.

In accordance with the Decree-Law 127 /2011 of 31 December the
cost incurred as a result of the transfer of the liability for retirement
and survivor pensions of retired personnel and pensioners to the
Social Security is tax deductible, in equal amounts, in the tax years
beginning on or after 1 January 2012 based on the estimated
average number of years of life expectancy of the pensioners whose
liabilities were transferred, which is estimated at 18 years, and so
the corresponding deferred tax asset relating to the amount settled
was recognised in the statement of income.

The BPI Group determines the amount of its past service liability by
actuarial calculation using the “Projected Unit Credit” method in the
case of retirement due to age, and the “Single Successive
Premiums” method in the case of retirement due to incapacity and
survivor benefits. The actuarial assumptions used (financial and
demographic) are based on the expectations, as of the balance sheet
date, regarding salary and pension increases, using mortality tables
adapted to the Bank’s population. The discount rate is determined
based on market rates for low risk bonds with similar terms to those



of the related pension liability. The current economic situation and
sovereign debt crisis in Southern of Europe have caused volatility
and disruption in the debt market in the Eurozone, with an abrupt
decrease in market yields on corporate bonds with better ratings and
also a reduction in the available portfolio of these bonds. In order to
maintain the representativeness of the discount rate in these
circumstances, at 31 December 2015 and 2014 Banco BPI
incorporated in its determination, information on interest rates that
can be obtained on bonds of the Eurozone universe and that it
considers to be of high quality in terms of credit risk. An analysis of
the actuarial assumptions and, if applicable, their corresponding
change, is carried out by the BPI Group as of 30 June and

31 December of each year. On 31 December 2014 the BPI Group
changed the discount rate and the salary and pension increase rates.
At 31 December 2015, the BPI Group did not change the actuarial
assumptions because it considers that the assumptions as of 31
December 2014 are still applicable considering the current market
conditions and expectations at the balance sheet date. The updating
of these assumptions is reflected in actuarial deviations for the
period and prospectively in pension costs. The amount of the liability
includes, in addition to the retirement pension benefits, post-
employment healthcare benefits (SAMS) and death subsidy during
retirement.

In accordance with the requirements of IAS 19, the BPI Group
recognizes the effect of re-measuring the net liability (asset) of
defined benefit pension plans and other post-employment benefits,
directly in equity, in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, in the
period in which it occurs, including actuarial gains and losses and
deviations relating to the return on pension fund assets.

The increase in the past service liability resulting from early
retirements is fully recognised as cost in the statement of income for
the year.

Increases in the past service liability resulting from changes in the
conditions of the Pension Plans are recognised in full in the
statements of income.

The past service liability (post-employment benefits) is covered by
Pension Funds. The value of the Pension Funds corresponds to the
fair value of their assets at the balance sheet date.

The funding requirements of the Pension Fund are defined in Bank
of Portugal Notice 4 / 2005, which establishes the requirement to
fully fund (100%) pensions under payment and a minimum of 95%
of the past service liability for current personnel.

The past service liability for retirement pensions net of the amount of
the pension fund is recorded in the BPI Group’s financial statements
under the caption OTHER LIABILITIES (insufficient coverage) or OTHER
ASSETS (excess coverage).

The following costs relating to retirement and survivor pensions are
included in the consolidated statement of income of the BPI Group:

= current service cost (cost for the year);
= net interest cost;

= cost relating to the increase in the past service liability due to early
retirements;

= gains and losses resulting from changes in the conditions of the
Pension Plan.

The above components are recognised in personnel costs, except the
cost of the interest of all liabilities and expected return on pension
funds that are recorded in net income on financial operations —
interest and financial gain and loss with pensions.

At the transition date to IAS / IFRS, the BPI Group adopted the
option, allowed under IFRS 1, of not recalculating actuarial gains
and losses deferred since the inception of the pension plans (reset
option). Consequently, deferred actuarial gains and losses reflected
in the BPI Group’s financial statements as of 31 December 2003
were reversed by corresponding entry to retained earnings at the
transition date (1 January 2004).

2.8.2. Employees of BFA

BFA’s Employees are covered by Law 7 / 04 of 15 October, which
regulates the Social Security system in Angola, and provides for the
granting of pensions to all Angolan Employees covered by Social
Security. The amount of these pensions is calculated based on a
table proportionate to the number of years of work, applied to the
average gross monthly salary received in the periods immediately
preceding the date on which the Employee ceases his / her
functions. In accordance with Decree 38 / 08 of 9 June the rates of
the system are 8% for the employer and 3% for the Employees.

In compliance with Article 262 of Law 2/ 00 of 11 February
(General Labour Law), BFA has recorded a provision for the liability
relating to “Retirement income”, calculated based on 25% of the
base monthly salary on the date the Employee reaches legal
retirement age, times the number of years of seniority at that date.
The total amount of the past service liability is determined on an
annual basis by experts, using the “Projected Unit Credit” method
for past service liabilities.

On 15 September 2015 Law 7/ 15 of 15 June (New General Labour
Law) came into force, which revoked Law 2/ 00 of 11 February. The
New General Labour Law does not refer to the requirement to record
a provision for “Retirement income”. However, despite the revoking
of Law 2/ 00 of 11 February, BFA continues to record a provision for
“Retirement income” on the same basis.

In addition, BFA granted its Employees hired locally and their
families the right to retirement benefits for retirement due to age,
disability and survivor pension. Therefore as from 1 January 2005 it
created a defined contribution “Supplementary Pension Plan”
covered by BFA's Pension Fund (as from 2013).
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BFA’s contribution to the BFA Pension Fund consists of a fixed
percentage of 10% of the salary subject to discounts for Angolan
Social Security, applied to fourteen salaries. In addition to the
amount of the contributions, the profit of the investments made, net
of any taxes, is added.

2.9. Long service premiums (IAS 19)

Under the Collective Labour Agreement (Acordo Colectivo de
Trabalho) for the banking sector there is a commitment to pay
Employees a long service premium in the month in which they reach
15, 25 and 30 years of good and effective service in the banking
sector, corresponding, respectively, to one, two and three months of
their effective monthly remuneration (in the year the premium is
attributed).

In December 2012, Banco BPI made an advanced payment of the
proportional part of the long service premium for the anniversary in
progress, relating to the 15, 25 and 30 years of banking service,
corresponding to the period of good and effective service in the
banking sector at 31 December 2012.

In subsequent years, the BPI Group continued to follow the
requirements of the Collective Labour Agreement for the banking
sector as regards the long service premium, so that it pays the long
service premium in the years in which the Employees complete 15,
25 and 30 years of good and effective service in the banking sector,
less the amounts already paid at 31 December 2012.

Annually, the BPI Group determines the present value of the liability
for long service premiums by actuarial calculation using the
“Projected Unit Credit” method. The actuarial assumptions used
(financial and demographic) are based on the expectations, as of the
balance sheet date, regarding salary increases, using mortality tables
adapted to the Bank’s population. The discount rate used is
determined based on market rates for high quality corporate bonds
with similar terms to those of payment of the liability. The
assumptions are mutually compatible.

The liability for long service premiums is reflected under the caption
OTHER LIABILITIES.

The following costs relating to the liability for long service premiums
are included in the consolidated statement of income of the BPI
Group:

= current service cost (cost for the year);
= interest cost;

= gain and loss resulting from changes in the conditions of the
benefits.

The long service premiums are only paid to the Employees of
domestic operations.

2.10. Treasury shares (IAS 32)

Treasury shares are recorded at cost in equity captions and are not
subject to revaluation. Realised gains and losses, as well as the
resulting taxes, are recorded directly in shareholders’ equity, not
affecting net income for the year.
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2.11. Share-based payments (Remuneracao variavel em acgoes —
RVA) (IFRS 2)

The share-based payment program (Remuneracdo Variavel em Acgdes
— RVA) is a remuneration plan under which, whenever it is decided to
grant variable remuneration to Executive Directors and Employees of
the BPI Group (in the latter case provided that it exceeds 2 500
euro), it is partly made up of BPI shares and BPI share options. The
individual remuneration under the RVA program varies between 10%
and 50%, the percentage increasing with the responsibility level of
the beneficiary.

The shares granted to Employees under the RVA program are
transferred in full at the grant date, but 75% of the transfer is
subject to a resolution condition (relating to termination of the
employment relationship, unless made by just cause of the
Employee), which terminates on a gradual basis over the three years
following the grant date (25% each year). The share purchase
options may be exercised between the 90th day and the fifth year as
from the grant date. Termination of the employment relationship
between the Employee and BPI Group also affects the options
granted, in accordance with RVA Regulations.

The conditions for granting shares and share options to the Executive
Directors up to RVA 2009 were similar to those previously referred to
for Employees. As from RVA 2010, the shares and share options
granted to Executive Directors under the RVA program are subject to
the following suspending condition: Banco BPI’s consolidated
shareholders’ equity, based on the consolidated accounts for the
third year following that to which the variable remuneration relates,
must be greater than Banco BPI's consolidated shareholders’ equity
for the year to which the variable remuneration relates, taking into
account the assumptions established in the RVA Regulations. The
granting of shares is also subject to the suspending condition
relating to non-termination of the management or employment
relationship established in the RVA Regulations. In addition to these
conditions, the granting of the shares is also subject to a suspending
term of three years as from the grant date and the strike period for
the share options begins after that period.

As set forth in the Recapitalisation Plan (note 4.50), during the
Portuguese State investment period, the members of Banco BPI’s
Executive Commission will not be paid any variable remuneration.
Nonetheless, the Remuneration Committee may continue to evaluate
annually the performance of the members of the Executive
Commission of the Board of Directors and determine the amount of
the variable remuneration to which they would be entitled under the
rules established in the Remuneration Policy approved in the
Shareholders General Meeting of April 2011. However, payment of
the variable remuneration will depend on the decision of the
Remuneration Committee in office when the Portuguese State
investment has been fully repaid.

The remuneration limitations resulting from the recapitalisation
operation referred to in the preceding paragraph, terminated on
25 June 2014, when the public investment resulting from the
recapitalization operation was fully repaid.

In this respect, considering that the recommendation of both the
Nominating, Admission and Remuneration Committee and the
Remuneration Policy for the 2014 / 2016 period, approved by the
Shareholders’ General Meeting, established the recommendation
that:



1) the performance evaluation of the members of the Executive
Commission of the Board of Directors and determination of the
variable remuneration to which they would be entitled under the
Remuneration Policy rules should continue to be made annually,
the payment of such amount being subject to a decision of the
Remuneration Committee then in office and to take place after
full repayment of the public investment;

2) also dependent upon a decision to be made by the Remuneration
Committee, then in office, after full repayment of the public
investment, the members of the Board of Directors, members of
Executive Commission of the Board of Directors and members of
the Supervisory Board should be paid the amounts corresponding
to the reduction of their fixed remuneration resulting from the
limitations due to the recapitalization operation;

The Remuneration Committee made the following decisions on
3 September 2014:

a) Considering their performance in the period in which there was
public investment (second half of 2012, 2013 and first half of
2014), it approved payment to the members of the Board of
Directors and members of the Supervisory Board in office
during that period, of the amounts corresponding to the
reduction of their fixed remuneration in that period resulting
from the limitations due to the recapitalization operation; and

b) Taking into account the opinion of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Admission Committee (CNAR), approved the
payment to the members of the Executive Committee of the
Board of Directors who were in office in 2012 of the amount of
their variable remuneration applicable as if no limitations were
applied due to the recapitalization operation, in the overall
amount of 1% of the consolidated net results for 2012.

c) Ask CNAR to issue its opinion on the performance of the
members of the Executive Commission of the Board of
Directors in 2013 and determination of the amount of variable
remuneration that should be granted to them for their
performance in that year. Following this decision, taking into
account the positive opinion of CNAR issued on 26 March
2015, the Remuneration Committee decided, at that time, to
grant the members of the Executive Board in office in 2013
variable remuneration for their performance in that year
corresponding to 1% of consolidated net income for 2013.

Costs relating to the share-based payment program (RVA program)
are accrued under the caption PERSONNEL cOSTS with a corresponding
entry to “Other equity instruments”, as established by IFRS 2 for
share-based payments. The cost of the shares and option premiums,
as of the date they are granted, is accrued on a straight-line basis
from the beginning of the year of the program (1 January) to the
moment they become available to the Employees.

For the purpose of share-based payments, the Bank has created a
portfolio of BPI shares transferring ownership of the shares to
Employees on the grant date (in the case of Executive Directors, after
verifying the suspension terms and conditions). However, for
accounting purposes, the shares remain in the Bank’s treasury share
portfolio until the date they are made available. The shares are then
derecognised by corresponding entry to the amounts accumulated
under the caption OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS.

For purposes of the share-based payment in options, the BPI Group
has created a portfolio of BPI shares in order to hedge the liability
resulting from issuing call options over the BPI shares, following a
delta hedging strategy (determined using a model to evaluate the BPI
share options, developed in-house based on Black-Scholes
methodology).

This strategy corresponds to the creation of a portfolio with delta
shares for each option granted, delta corresponding to the
relationship between evolution of the price of an option and evolution
of the price of the underlying shares. The treasury shares held to
hedge the risk of variation in the value of the options sold are
recorded under the caption TREASURY SHARES HEDGING THE SHARE-BASED
PAYMENT PROGRAM, Where they remain while they are held for that
purpose.

When the options are exercised, the treasury shares are derecognised
together with transfer of their ownership to the Employees. At that
time the Bank recognises a gain or loss resulting from the difference
between the exercise price and the average cost of the treasury share
portfolio hedging each program, less the cost of the option premiums
accumulated in the caption OTHER EQUITY INSTRUMENTS.

Realised gains and losses on treasury shares in the coverage and
exercise of the options of the share-based payment program, as well
as the related taxes, are recorded directly in shareholders’ equity, not
affecting net income for the year.

2.12. Technical provisions (IFRS 4)

The BPI Group sells capitalisation life insurance products through its
subsidiary BPI Vida. Capitalisation insurance products without
discretionary participation features are recorded in accordance with
IAS 39 and included in the caption RESOURCES OF CUSTOMERS AND
OTHER DEBTS. Capitalisation insurance products with discretionary
participation features are recorded in accordance with IFRS 4, in the
caption TECHNICAL PROVISIONS.

The technical provisions recorded for life insurance contracts
represent, collectively, the liability to the insured Customers and
include:

= Mathematical provisions determined using prospective actuarial
methods in accordance with the technical bases of each product.

They also include a provision for rate commitments, which is
recorded when the effective profitability rate of the assets which
represent the mathematical provisions of a certain product is lower
than the technical interest rate used to calculate the mathematical
provisions.

Provision for participation in profits to be attributed to the
contracts in force at the end of each year. The amount is
calculated in accordance with the technical bases of each contract,
duly approved by the Portuguese Insurance Institute (Instituto de
Seguros de Portugal), using the profitability rates for investments
covering the respective mathematical provisions.

Provision for claims to cover indemnities payable relating to claims
incurred but not yet settled. Since the BPI Group does not
commercialise risk insurance, no provision has been recorded for
claims incurred but not yet reported (IBNR).
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2.13. Provisions for other risks and charges (I1AS 37)

This caption includes provisions to cover other specific risks, namely
tax contingencies, legal processes and other losses arising from the
operations of the BPI Group.

2.14. Income taxes (IAS 12)
All the Group companies are taxed individually.

2.14.1. Domestic operations

Banco BPI and its subsidiary and associated companies with head
offices in Portugal are subject to the tax regimes established in the
Corporation Income Tax Code (Portuguese initials — CIRC) and in the
Statute of Tax Benefits.

Current taxes are calculated based on the legal tax rates in force in
the countries in which the Bank operates during the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities correspond to the tax recoverable
and payable in future periods resulting from temporary differences
between the carrying value of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases. Tax losses carried forward and tax credits also
give rise to the recognition of deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent of the probable
existence of sufficient expected future taxable income to absorb the
deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities have been calculated using the tax
rates decreed for the period in which the respective assets or
liabilities are expected to be realised.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in the statement of
income, except for those relating to amounts recorded directly in
shareholders’ equity (namely gains and losses on treasury shares and
securities available for sale and actuarial deviations in retirement
and survivor pension liabilities).

The BPI Group does not recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities
for deductible or taxable temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries as it is unlikely that such differences will
be reversed in the foreseeable future, except for the deferred tax
liability relating to taxation in Angola of the dividends to be
distributed to the companies of the BPI Group, in the following year,
over the net result for the year of Banco de Fomento Angola.

The BPI Group does not recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities
for deductible or taxable temporary differences relating to
investments in associated companies, as the participation held by
the BPI Group exceeds 5% for more than two years, which enables it
to be considered in the Participation Exemption regime, except for
Banco Comercial e de Investimentos, in which the deferred tax
liability relating to taxation in Mozambique of all the distributable
profits are recognized.

Net income distributed to Banco BPI by subsidiary and associated
companies in Portugal are not taxed in Banco BPI as a result of
application of the regime established in article 51 of the Corporation
Income Tax Code, which provides for the elimination of double
taxation of net income distributed.
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2.14.2. Banco de Fomento Angola
BFA is subject to industrial tax and capital income tax (“Imposto de
aplicacéo de capitais”).

BFA is subject to Industrial Tax, being considered for tax purposes as
a Group A taxpayer. On 1 January 2015 the new Industrial Tax Code,
approved by Law 19 /2014 of 22 October, came into force, which
established the Industrial Tax rate at 30%. A transitional regime
applicable to 2014 was also established, which stipulated the
application of the same tax rate (30%).

The new Industrial Tax Code provides that income subject to Capital
Income Tax (“IAC”) is deducted for determining taxable profit for
Industrial Tax purposes.

Income from Treasury Bonds and Treasury Bills issued by the
Angolan State after 1 January 2013 is subject to Capital Income Tax
(“IAC™), at the rate of 10% (5% in the case of debt securities traded
on a regulated market with maturities equal to or more than three
years) or Industrial Tax in the case of capital gain or loss obtained
(including possible exchange revaluation of the principal
component).

2.15. Preference shares (IAS 32 and IAS 39)
Preference shares are classified as equity instruments when:

= there is no contractual obligation for the BPI Group to redeem the
preference shares acquired by a holder (in cash or in another
financial asset);

= remission or early redemption of the preference shares can only be
made at the option of the BPI Group;

= dividends distributed by the BPI Group to the preference
shareholders are discretionary.

The BPI Group classified the preference shares issued by BPI Capital
Finance Ltd. as equity instruments. The payment of dividends and
redemption of the shares are guaranteed by Banco BPI.

The preference shares classified as equity instruments, held by third
parties, are presented in the consolidated financial statements in the
caption MINORITY INTERESTS.

Realized gain and loss on the repurchase and sale of preference
shares classified as equity instruments, as well as the corresponding
tax effect, are recorded directly in shareholders’ equity, not affecting
net result for the year.

2.16. Insurance and reinsurance brokerage services

Banco BPI is duly authorized by the Portuguese Insurance Institute
(Instituto de Seguros de Portugal) to provide insurance brokerage
services in the Insurance Brokerage Services area, in accordance
with the article 8, paragraph a), subparagraph i) of Decree-Law 144 /
2006 of 31 July and operates in the life and non-life insurance
brokerage areas.



In the insurance brokerage services area, Banco BPI sells insurance
contracts. As remuneration for insurance brokerage services rendered,
Banco BPI receives commission for brokering insurance contracts,
which is defined in agreements / protocols established between Banco
BPI and the Insurance Companies.

Commission received for insurance brokerage services refers to:

= commission that includes a fixed and a variable component. The
fixed component is calculated by applying a predetermined rate
over the amounts of subscriptions made through Banco BPI and a
variable component calculated based on predetermined criteria,
total annual fees being the sum of the fees calculated monthly;

= commission for participation in the results of insurance, which is
calculated annually and paid by the Insurance Company in the
beginning of the year following that to which it refers (up to
31 January).

Commission received for insurance brokerage services is recognised
on an accruals basis. Fees received in a different period from that to
which they relate are recorded as receivables in the caption OTHER
ASSETS by corresponding entry to “Commissions received — for
insurance brokerage services”.

Banco BPI does not collect insurance premiums on behalf of
Insurance Companies, or receive or pay funds relating to insurance
contracts. Thus, there are no other assets, liabilities, income or
expenses to be recognised relating to the insurance brokerage
services rendered by Banco BPI, from those already referred to.

2.17. Main estimates and uncertainties regarding the application
of the accounting standards

The BPI Group’s financial statements have been prepared using
estimates and expected future amounts in the following areas:

Retirement and survivor pensions

Retirement and survivor pension liabilities have been estimated
based on actuarial tables and assumptions of the increase in
pensions and salaries and discount rates. These assumptions are
based on the BPI Group’s expectations for the period during which
the liabilities will be settled.

Loan impairment

Loan impairment has been determined based on expected future
cash flows and estimated recoverable amounts. The estimates are
made using assumptions based on the available historical
information and assessment of the situation of the Customers.
Possible differences between the assumptions used and the actual
future behaviour of the loans and changes in the assumptions used
by the BPI Group have an impact on the estimates.

Fair value of derivatives and unlisted financial assets

The fair value of derivatives and unlisted financial assets was
estimated based on valuation methods and financial theories, the
results of which depend on the assumptions used.

The financial market environment, particularly in terms of liquidity,
can influence the realisable value of these financial instruments in
some specific situations, including their sale prior to maturity.

Income taxes

Current and deferred taxes have been recognised based on the tax
legislation currently in force for the BPI Group companies or on
legislation already published for future application. Different
interpretations of tax legislation can influence the amount of income
taxes. Additionally, deferred tax assets are recognised based on the
assumption of the existence of future taxable income.
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3. SEGMENT REPORTING

The BPI Group’s segment reporting is made up as follows:

= Domestic operations: corresponds to commercial banking business
in Portugal, the provision overseas of banking services to
non-residents — namely to emigrant Portuguese communities and
services provided in the Madrid branch — and investment banking,
private equity, asset management and insurance operations. Thus,
domestic operations are divided into:

= Commercial banking
= [nvestment banking
= Equity investments and others

= International operations: consist of the operations in Angola carried
out by Banco de Fomento Angola, S.A, in Mozambique by Banco
Comercial de Investimentos, S.A.R.L. and BPI Mogambique —
Sociedade de Investimento, S.A. and in South Africa by BPI
Capital Africa (Proprietary) Limited.

Commercial banking
The BPI Group’s operations are focused mainly on commercial
banking. Commercial banking includes:

= Retail Banking — includes commercial operations with private
Clients, sole traders and businesses with turnover of up to 5 million
euro through a multi-channel distribution network made up of
traditional branches, investment centres, home banking services
and telephone banking. It also includes the Private Banking area
which is responsible for implementing strategies and investment
proposals presented to Customers and ensures the management of
their financial assets.

Corporate Banking, Project Finance and Institutional Banking —
includes commercial operations with companies with a turnover of
more than 2 million euro and also with Retail Banking for the
segment of up to 5 million euro. This also includes project finance
services and relationships with entities of the Public Sector, Public
and Municipal Companies, the State Business Sector, Foundations
and Associations. This segment operates through a network of
business centres, institutional centres and home banking services
adapted to the business needs.
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Investment banking
Investment banking covers the following business areas:

= Corporate finance — this includes rendering consultancy services
relating to the analysis of investment projects and decisions,
market privatisation operations and the structuring of merger and
acquisition processes.

= Share department — includes trading activities, financial instrument
primary market, brokerage and research.

= Portfolio management — includes services rendered to BPI Global
Investment Fund Management Company, S.A. in the management
of BPI Alternative Fund — Iberian Equities Long Short.

Equity investments and others

This segment includes essentially Financial Investments and Private
Equity activities. The BPI Group Private Equity area invests
essentially in unlisted companies with the following objectives: the
development of new products and technologies, financing of
investments in working capital, acquisitions and the strengthening of
financial autonomy.

This segment also includes the Bank’s residual activity, such
segments representing individually less than 10% of total income,
net profit and the Group’s assets.

Inter-segment operations are presented based on the effective

conditions of the operations and application of the accounting
policies used to prepare the BPI Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

The reports used by Management consist essentially of accounting
information based on IFRS.
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4. NOTES

4.1. Cash and deposits at central banks
This caption is made up as follows:

31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 14

Proforma
Cash 520 524 446 448
Demand deposits at the Bank of Portugal 738 402 211 668
Demand deposits at foreign central banks 1469253 1236070

Accrued interest 6 17

The changes in impairment losses and provisions in 2015 and 2014
are presented in note 4.22.

4.3. Financial assets held for trading and at fair value through
profit or loss
This caption is made up as follows:

31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 14

2728 185 1894 203 Proforma
FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD
The caption DEMAND DEPOSITS AT THE BANK OF PORTUGAL includes FOR TRADING
deposits made to comply with the minimum cash reserve Debt instruments
requirements of the Eurosystem. These deposits bear interest and Bonds issued by Portuguese government entities 33322 86 482
correspond to 1% of the amount of Customers’ deposits and debt Bonds issued by foreign government entities 513721 217493
securities issued maturing in up to 2 years, excluding liabilities to Bonds issued by other Portuguese entities
other institutions subject to and not exempt from the same minimum Non-subordinated debt 12751 17095
reserve system, liabilities to the ECB and national central banks that Bonds issued by foreign financial entities 372
participate in the euro. Bonds issued by other foreign entities
Non-subordinated debt 59 190 35363
The caption DEMAND DEPOSITS AT FOREIGN CENTRAL BANKS includes 619 356 356 433
deposits made by Banco de Fomento Angola in Banco Nacional de Equity instruments
Angola (BNA) to comply with Angola’s requirements for the Shares issued by Portuguese entities 173978 150 276
maintenance of compulsory cash reserves. These deposits do not Shares issued by foreign entities 184 541 102 435
bear interest. 358 519 252711
Other securities
Compulsory cash reserves at 31 December 2015 are calculated in Participating units issued by Portuguese entities 140 153
accordance with the terms of BNA /nstruction 16 / 2015 of 22 July Participating units issued by foreign entities 2 98
and are held in kwanzas and in dollars, based on the currency of the 142 251
978 017 609 395

liabilities which serve as a basis for determining the amount and
must be maintained during the whole period to which they refer.

At 31 December 2015 the requirement to maintain compulsory cash
reserves was calculated by application of the rate of 25% to the
mathematical average of the eligible liabilities in kwanzas and 15%
to the mathematical average of the eligible liabilities in other
currencies. Compulsory cash reserves in kwanzas can be made up to
10% of the liability in Treasury Bonds, provided that they are issued
as from January 2015.

At 31 December 2014 compulsory cash reserves were calculated
under the terms of BNA Instruction 07 / 2014 of 3 December and
must be held in kwanzas and in dollars, based on the currency of the
liabilities which serve as a basis for determining the amount, and
must be maintained during the whole period to which they refer.

At 31 December 2014 the requirement to maintain compulsory cash
reserves was calculated by application of the rate of 15% to the
mathematical average of the eligible liabilities in kwanzas and in
other currencies.

4.2. Deposits at other credit institutions
This caption is made up as follows:

31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 14

Proforma
Domestic credit institutions
Demand deposits 34 441 3244
Cheques for collection 70123 59 795
Other 337 1957
Foreign credit institutions
Demand deposits 502 960 309 722
Cheques for collection 4197 5757
Impairment 3)
612 055 380 475

Cheques for collection from domestic credit institutions correspond
to cheques drawn by third parties against domestic credit
institutions, which in general do not remain in this account for more
than one business day.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Debt Instruments
Bonds issued by Portuguese government entities 39 002 83372

Bonds issued by foreign government entities 1299 163 1486 446
Bonds issued by other Portuguese entities
Non-subordinated debt 74 565 68 142
Subordinated debt 102
Bonds issued by foreign financial entities 22 060

Bonds issued by other foreign entities
Non-subordinated debt 173 340 86 501
Subordinated debt 1104 2245
1609 234 1726 808

Equity instruments

Shares issued by Portuguese entities 735 1712
Shares issued by foreign entities 17 030 1980
17 765 3692

Others securities
Participating units issued by Portuguese entities 99 644 43 447
Participating units issued by foreign entities 716 037 344 360
815 681 387 807
2442 680 2118 307

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS WITH
POSITIVE FAIR VALUE (NOTE 4.4) 253 907 290 031

3674604 3017733

This caption includes the following assets hedging capitalisation
insurance products issued by BPI Vida e Pensdes:
31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 14

Proforma

Debt instruments
Of public entities 1338166 1569818
Other entities 270 907 156 838
Equity instruments 18 069 4 096
Other securities 768 718 358 550
Derivative instruments with positive fair value 3107 1099

2398 967 2090 401
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4.4, Derivatives

The caption DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS HELD FOR TRADING (notes 4.3 and 4.17) is made up as follows:

31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 14 Proforma
Notional Book value Notional Book value
value! value!
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Exchange rate contracts
Futures 500 3 499 15
Options 67
Exchange forwards and swaps 1989 721 22 187 26 701 1471 401 1 656 2 800
Interest rate contracts
Futures 3249 42 93 630 36 1
Options 374914 1617 1217 365 726 2217 1122
Swaps 5329 039 186 081 212 459 5673 703 236 076 256 228
Contracts over shares
Futures 7 156 35 89 9 487 61 122
Swaps 412 332 5274 22 000 313424 2630 21 805
Options 996 416 2675 47 267 637 1192
Contracts over other underlying items
Futures 151 550 50 519
Others
Options® 859 473 31821 31 805 978 496 42 660 43 444
Others® 1 660 502 4074 1807 933 464
Overdue derivatives 98 3488
11 784 919 253 907 294 318 11032455 290 031 325 986
1) In the case of swaps and forwards only the asset amounts were considered.
2) Parts of operations that are autonomous for accounting purposes, commonly referred to as “embedded derivatives”.
3) Corresponds to derivatives associated to financial liabilities relating to transferred assets (note 4.21).
The caption DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS HELD FOR HEDGING is made up as follows:
31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 14 Proforma
Notional Book value Notional Book value
value! value’
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Interest rate contracts
Futures 70 619 5 16 135381 30 171
Swaps 7 744 856 91 281 159 493 12 370 356 148 645 312 488
Contracts over shares
Swaps 733 413 2047 499 815 18 14 471
Contracts over the underlying items
Swaps 9232 89
8 548 888 91 286 161 556 13 014 784 148 693 327 219

1) In the case of swaps and forwards only the asset amounts were considered.
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The BPI Group’s operations include carrying out derivative
transactions to manage its own positions based on expectations
regarding market evolution, to meet the needs of its Customers or
hedge positions of a structural nature (hedging).

The BPI Group carries out financial derivative transactions in the
form of contracts over exchange rates, interest rates, goods and
metals futures price, shares or share indices (relating, among others,
to inflation, shares) or a combination of these. These transactions are
realised in over-the-counter (OTC) markets and in organised markets
(especially stock exchanges).

Derivatives traded on organised markets follow the standards and
rules of these markets.

Derivatives traded on the over-the-counter (OTC) markets are
normally based on a standard bilateral contract that covers the group
of operations over derivatives between the parties. In the case of
inter-professional relationships, there is an ISDA — International
Swaps and Derivatives Association Master Agreement. In the case of
relations with Customers there is a BPI contract.

These types of contract include offsetting responsibilities in the
event of non-compliance (the scope of the offsetting is established in
the contract itself and is regulated by Portuguese legislation and, in
the case of contracts with foreign counterparties or subject to foreign
legislation, by the appropriate legislation).

Derivative contracts can also include an agreement to collateralise
the credit risk generated by the transactions covered by them.
Derivative contracts between two parties normally include all the
derivative OTC transactions carried out between the two parties,
irrespective of whether they are for hedging purposes or not.

In accordance with IAS 39, the parts of operations normally known
as “embedded derivatives” are also considered separately and
recorded as derivatives, in order to recognise, in net income, the fair
value of these operations.

All derivatives (embedded or autonomous) are recorded at market
value.

Derivatives are also recorded as off balance sheet items by their
theoretical value (notional value). Notional value is the reference
value for purposes of calculating the flow of payments and receipts
resulting from the operation.

Market value (fair value) corresponds to the value of the derivatives if
they were traded on the market on the reference date. Changes in
the market value of derivatives are recognised in the appropriate
balance sheet accounts and have an immediate effect on net
income.

Note 4.49 includes details of the valuation methods used to
determine the fair value of derivative financial instruments.

The amount of the exposure corresponds to the present value of the
estimated loss, in the case of counterparty default. In the case of a
derivative contract that establishes the compensation of
responsibilities in the event of non-compliance, the amount of the
exposure is the sum of the market values of the operations covered
by the contract, when positive. In the case of operations for which
the contract does not establish the compensation of responsibilities,
the amount of the exposure is equal to the sum of the market values
of each individual transaction, if positive. The scope of the
compensation clauses, in the case of default, is considered by the
BPI Group on a conservative perspective, considering that, in the
case of doubt, compensation does not exist.

The potential loss in a group of derivative operations on a given date
corresponds to the amount of the exposure on that date. In futures
contracts, the stock markets being the counterparties for the BPI
Group’s operations, the credit risk is eliminated daily through
financial settlement. For medium and long term derivatives,
contracts usually provide for the netting of outstanding balances with
the same counterparty, which eliminates or reduces credit risk.
Additionally, in order to control credit risk on OTC derivatives, some
agreements have also been signed under which the Bank receives
from, or transfers to, the counterparty, assets (in cash or in
securities) to guarantee fulfilment of the obligations.
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At 31 December 2015 the notional value, by term remaining to maturity was as follows:

<=3 > 3 months > 6 months > 1 year > 5 years Total
months <= 6 months <=1 year <= 5 years
Over-the-counter market
Exchange rate contracts 1 682 433 285 241 22 047 1989 721
Forwards 666 236 284 524 21 289 972 049
Swaps 1016 197 717 758 1017 672
Interest rate contracts 2 205 031 1117 011 3 356 189 3 632 808 3 075 539 13 386 578
Swaps 2130 262 1055 164 3318 290 3516 320 3053 859 13 073 895
Options 74 769 61 847 37 899 116 488 21 680 312683
Contracts over indexes and shares 351 745 253 823 834 587 425 898 41 000 1 907 053
Swaps 351 745 153 760 415 351 224 889 1145 745
Options 100 063 419 236 201 009 41 000 761 308
Others 114 601 1199 390 762 263 443 721 2519975
Options 114 601 433 104 244 885 66 883 859 473
Others 766 286 517 378 376 838 1 660 502
4 239 209 1770 676 5412 213 4 820 969 3 560 260 19 803 327
Organized markets
Exchange rate contracts 567 567
Futures 500 500
Options 67 67
Interest rate contracts 126 099 10 000 136 099
Futures 63 868 10 000 73 868
Options 62 231 62 231
Contracts over indexes and shares 239 246 3018 242 264
Futures 7 156 7 156
Options 232 090 3018 235108
Contracts over other underlying items 151 550 151 550
Futures 151 550 151 550
517 462 3018 10 000 530 480
4 756 671 1773 694 5422 213 4 820 969 3 560 260 20 333 807
At 31 December 2014 the notional value, by term remaining to maturity was as follows:
<=3 > 3 months > 6 months > 1 year > 5 years Total
months <= 6 months <=1 year <=5 years
Over-the-counter market
Exchange rate contracts 1199 426 259 590 12 385 1471 401
Forwards 213026 257 733 12 385 483 144
Swaps 986 400 1857 988 257
Interest rate contracts 2234 185 1 255 551 4 229 142 7 289 253 3 401 654 18 409 785
Swaps 2221191 1245 276 4017 833 7175107 3384 652 18 044 059
Options 12 994 10 275 211 309 114 146 17 002 365 726
Contracts over indexes and shares 304 391 9 234 123 069 544 132 41 000 1 021 826
Swaps 304 391 9034 75 885 423929 813 239
Options 200 47 184 120 203 41 000 208 587
Contracts over other underlying items 5970 3262 9 232
Swaps 5970 3262 9232
Others 107 11 232 773 435 1 519 205 482 450 2 786 429
Options 107 11232 208 580 690 958 67 619 978 496
Others 564 855 828 247 414 831 1807 933
3738 109 1 541 577 5141 293 9 352 590 3925 104 23 698 673
Organized markets
Exchange rate contracts 499 499
Futures 499 499
Interest rate contracts 137 183 42 355 49 473 229 011
Futures 137 183 42 355 49 473 229 011
Contracts over indexes and shares 68 537 68 537
Futures 9 487 9487
Options 59 050 59 050
Contract over other underlying items 50 519 50 519
Futures 50 519 50 519
256 738 42 355 49 473 348 566
3994 847 1 541 577 5183 648 9 402 063 3925 104 24 047 239

178 BancoBPI | Annual Report 2015



At 31 December 2015 the distribution of derivative

operations, by counterparty external rating, was as follows:

31 Dec. 15

Notional value!

Gross exposure?

Exposure considering netting®

Net exposure*

Over-the-counter market (OTC)

AA- 1113981 5228 1912 12
A+ 1 079 269 6023 2643 741
A 5874 172 47 760 18 743 1 605
A- 2071 059 12 127 2714 1594
BBB+ 2170224 11 379 6 890 3184
BBB 629 539 16 826 1116 1116
BB 827
BB- 129 275 7 086 3493
N.R. 4 215 006 214 751 213575 192 218
17 283 352 321 180 251 086 200 470
Traded on the stock exchange
Futures® 530 480
530 480
17 813 832 321 180 251 086 200 470

Note: The amounts were accumulated by rating levels of the counterparties, considering the senior medium and long term debt ratings attributed by the Moody, Standard & Poor and Fitch
agencies as of the reference date. The selection of a rating for a given counterparty follows the rules recommended by the Basel Committee in force on the reference date (where
there are diverging ratings the second best was selected). The operations with entities without ratings (N.R.) correspond essentially to Customers subject to internal ratings.

1) Does not include embedded derivatives and other options in the amount of 2 519 975 th. euro.

Gross exposure used for risk management purposes, without considering netting agreements, collateral and value adjustment due to credit risk.

3) Amount of exposure without considering collateral and value adjustment due to credit risk.

4) Amount of exposure considering netting agreements and collateral. The amount of possible exposure from excess collateral placed by BPI in its counterparties is not classified as

derivative exposure.

The exposure of the futures is nil, because they are traded on organised stock exchanges and there is daily financial settlement.

ERS)

o

At 31 December 2014 the distribution of derivative operations, by counterparty external rating, was as follows:

31 Dec. 14 Notional value® Gross exposure?  Exposure considering netting® Net exposure*
Over-the-counter market (OTC)
AA- 516 837 5989 3442 42
A+ 1229 627 3211 650 192
A 6 853 257 88 856 49 923 4083
A- 1423410 6 144 4148 1488
BBB+ 2 836 954 35215 3376 706
BBB 693 871 12 250 8 066 2 336
BBB- 3726114 28 513 9126 2 645
BB+ 57 354 8 465 4 358
BB- 205 819 1 096 1 096 1 096
N.R. 3369 001 243 783 243188 243 188
20912 244 433 521 327 373 255 776
Traded on the stock exchange
Futures® 348 566
348 566
21 260 810 433 521 327 373 255 776

Note: The amounts were accumulated by rating levels of the counterparties, considering the senior medium and long term debt ratings attributed by the Moody, Standard & Poor and Fitch
agencies as of the reference date. The selection of a rating for a given counterparty follows the rules recommended by the Basel Committee in force on the reference date (where
there are diverging ratings the second best was selected). The operations with entities without ratings (N.R.) correspond essentially to Customers subject to internal ratings.

1) Does not include embedded derivatives and other options in the amount of 2 786 429 th. euro.

Amount of exposure used for risk management purposes, without considering netting agreements, collateral and value adjustment due to credit risk.

3) Amount of exposure without considering collateral and value adjustment due to credit risk.

4) Amount of exposure considering netting agreements and collateral. The amount of possible exposure from excess collateral placed by BPI in its counterparties is not classified as

derivative exposure.

The exposure of the futures is null, because they are traded on organised stock exchanges and there is daily financial settlement.

»
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4.5. Financial assets available for sale
This caption is made up as follows:

31 Dec. 15 31 Dec. 14
Proforma

Debt instruments
Bonds issued by Portuguese government entities 1 777 581 3 352 382
Bonds issued by foreign government entities 4175426 3226519
Bonds issued by other Portuguese entities
Non-subordinated debt 29782 498
Bonds issued by other foreign entities
Non-subordinated debt 143730 139 068
Subordinated debt 53473 491 125

6179992 7 209 592

Equity instruments

Shares issued by Portuguese entities 66 494 70 000
Impairment (28 432) (27 851)
Quotas 60 784 59 844
Shares issued by foreign entities 55 328 39 476
Impairment (18 619) (18 524)

135 555 122 945

Other securities

Participating units issued by Portuguese entities 226 470 230921
Impairment (49 044) (41611)
Participating units issued by foreign entities 16 822 4418
Impairment (1784) (1734)
192 464 191 994

Loans and other receivables 23 049 22 606
Impairment (21 672) (21 359)
1377 1247

Overdue bonds 1045
Impairment on overdue bonds (1 045)

6 509 388 7 525778
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Banco BPI holds a portfolio of fixed rate bonds, issued by national
and international entities, in which the interest rate risk is hedged by
derivative instruments.

In 2015 the BPI Group sold bonds issued by Portuguese government
entities with a nominal value of 440 00O th. euro. In 2014 the BPI
Group sold bonds issued by Portuguese and foreign government entities
with a nominal value of 850 000 th. euro and 487 500 th. euro,
respectively. The impact of the sale was recognised in “Net income on
financial operations” (note 4.41).

The caption LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES corresponds to shareholders’
loans to, and supplementary capital contributions in, companies
classified as financial assets available for sale.

In the review made by the Bank, no impaired securities were
identified, other than the amounts already recognised.

The changes in impairment losses and provisions in 2015 and 2014
are shown in note 4.22.



At 31 December 2015 this caption was made up as follows:

Quantity Amounts per unit (€) Cost Book Net gain/ Hedge Impairment
Nature and type of security Nomi i value_/ (Ios_s)_ 0'2 accoun-
ominal  Listing / Fair securities ting
price value! effect?
SECURITIES
Debt Instruments
Issued by Portuguese entities
Portuguese public debt
Treasury Bills
BILHETES DO TESOURO CZ-22.07.2016 140 000 000 1.00 1.00 139974 139 997 14
BILHETES DO TESOURO-CZ-18.03.2016 308 483 000 1.00 1.00 308374 308 483 24
BILHETES DO TESOURO-CZ-18.11.2016 176 487 000 1.00 1.00 176468 176 323 (146)
BILHETES DO TESOURO-CZ-20.05.2016 336 393 000 1.00 1.00 336286 336 349 1
BILHETES DO TESOURO-CZ-22.01.2016 231 500 000 1.00 1.00 231287 231 500 13
BILHETES DO TESOURO-CZ-23.09.2016 234 000 000 1.00 1.00 233927 233991 44
1426 316 1426 643 (50)
Treasury Bonds
OT - 4.35% (16.10.2017) 1 560 000 0.01 0.01 1 666 1691 78
OT - 4.75%-14.06.2019 300 000 000 0.01 0.01 318513 349 247 34 161 (35 822)
320179 350938 34239 (35822
Others residents
Non-subordinated debt
Other bonds
VIOLAS-SGPS SA-TV-06.11.2023 30 000 000 98.93 30 000 29782 (321)
30 000 29 782 (321)
Others non-residents
Non-subordinated debt
Bonds
BILHETES DO TESOURO — Angola 76 146 960 6.76 472 036 508 145
BUONI ORDINARI DEL TES-CZ-14.09.2016 70 000 000 1000.00 1000.41 69 962 70 029 56
BUONI ORDINARI DEL TES-CZ-14.10.2016 70 000 000 1000.00 1000.42 69 985 70 029 40
BUONI ORDINARI DEL TES-CZ-14.11.2016 50 000 000 1000.00 1000.44 49 994 50 022 27
BUONI ORDINARI DEL TES-CZ-14.12.2016 200 000 000 1000.00 1000.46 199979 200 092 112
BUONI POLIENNALI DEL T-4.25%-01.09.2019 312 500 000 1000.00 1140.21 319558 360 706 41 214 (41 846)
BUONI POLIENNALI DEL T-4.5%-01.03.2019 175 000 000 1000.00 113261 185458 200 810 19727 (21 635)
OBRIGAQOES DO TESOURO - AKZ — Angola 1809 208 676.44 1620274 1655208
OBRIGA(;OES DO TESOURO - USD - Angola 44 734 135.29 611 549 620 209
SPAIN LETRAS DEL TESORO-CZ-09.12.2016 210 000 000 1000.00 1000.50 209 969 210 105 134
SPAIN LETRAS DEL TESORO-CZ-15.07.2016 50 000 000 1000.00 1000.27 49 997 50014 15
SPAIN LETRAS DEL TESORO-CZ-16.09.2016 130 000 000 1000.00 1000.32 129938 130 042 87
SPAIN LETRAS DEL TESORO-CZ-19.08.2016 50 000 000 1000.00 1000.29 49 983 50 015 27
4 038682 